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Corporate Portfolio

NEIL

COMPANY OVERVIEW

HC International, Inc. (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred as the “Group”) is one of the leading groups in the industrial Internet
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”). The Group was
established in 1992, listing on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) in 2003, and had
successfully transferred to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 10
October 2014. In August 2017, the Company was selected as a constituent
stock of a number of index series by Hang Seng Indexes Company Limited,
and was admitted to in Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect in September
of the same year. As of 31 December 2017, the Group had expanded its
business scope to cover more than 100 cities nationwide, with branches in
nine cities and a service team of around 2,578 individuals.

The three major business segments of the Group's business comprise
information service, transaction service and data service. As a provider of
comprehensive industry internet services, relying on the advantages on its
core position in the industry chain, collective advantages in the industry,
and resources application advantages, the Group provides services to both
upstream and downstream enterprises across the entire industrial chain, so
as to empower the enterprises for transformation and facilitating industry
reform.

In the past few years, the Group maintained its core advantages in the area of
“to B” and “to C” through information services segment, and fully enhanced
its capability on the Internet information services in the industry through the
support of technical service systems such as search engine, big data, artificial
intelligence and SAAS, so as to promote the internet transformation and
upgrade in the industry.

In addition, while the Group has strengthened the advantages in its existing
transaction platform through the transaction services segment, it has also
included the elements such as finance, logistics and warehousing into
transactions, so as to inject capital flow, logistics and information flow into
transactions, developing all-rounded solutions and penetrating deeply into
various vertical industries, so as to provide interactive marketing, consultancy
and research, commodity transactions and supply chains services for both
upstream and downstream enterprises along the industrial chain.

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017
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Corporate Portfolio
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At the same time, the Group, through the data services segment, aims at
constructing the “2025 Data Engine” made in China, in order to open up
a brand new layout for data marketing for customers, and establish a data
marketing ecological chain covering data production and data application.
At the beginning of the year, the Group cooperated with various platforms,
enterprises and organizations such as Tsinghua University, Legend Holdings,
Joyvio Shares, Silk Road International Cooperation Working Committee and
China Electronic Commerce Association to build “Hui Chain”, a core product.
It aims at understanding the rationale of brand data for customers, optimizing
the commercial behavior of branding, maintaining the sustainability of
branding and promoting the continuous upgrade of branding business, so as
to enable data to be the core power of branding.

With industry chain environment constantly deepened and industry margin
effects continuously expanded, the Group followed the nation’s “Belt and
Road” strategy to make its transformation from serving domestic trade to
both domestic and foreign trade. In addition, the Group transferred its single
round business model of serving small-and-medium enterprises into double
round business model of small-and-medium enterprises and major clients,
while establishing industrial internet whole industry chain environment
with data services business for basis, transaction services for scenarios and
information services for supports.
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Financial Highlights
B E

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E-tF ZZ—RF —Z-0F —ZT-mE —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000
AREBTT AR®ETF T ARBTF T AR®T T AREFT
Revenue SHEWA 3,702,466 1,958,283 916,138 966,637 837,721
EBITDA EBITDA 653,075 555,096 121,215 277,584 216,414
Profit attributable to RRRERZEEA
equity holders of the FE(E &M
Company 267,777 181,784 52,552 187,633 153,326
Earnings per share (RMB) FREMARET)
- Basic —HEK 0.2651 0.1882 0.0696 0.2833 0.2634
- Diluted —#E 0.2559 0.1852 0.0679 0.2729 0.2489
Financial position BRI
Net current assets REEEFE 1,578,519 41,313 141,176 936,319 585,484
Total assets BEE 7,334,553 6,252,419 5,687,042 3,250,155 1,956,782
Total liabilities BAR 2,877,424 2,984,276 3,088,096 1,934,988 946,308
Total equity B 4,457,129 3,268,143 2,598,946 1,315,167 1,010,474
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REVENUE ANALYSIS $4E U A D47
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ARBTR ARBTT ARBTR ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
2,041,038 951,170 131,723 106,066 39,372 433,097 3,702,466
2016 —ERF 126,197 823,106 93,179 66,137 7,583 842,081 1,958,283
2015 —T-RfF = 733,309 127,615 55,168 46 = 916,138
2014 —E-mE = 812,935 137,509 16,193 = = 966,637
2013 —T-=F = 693,903 143,818 = = 837,721
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Management’s Statement
BIEERS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Group generated a total
revenue of approximately RMB3,702,466,000 (2016: RMB1,958,283,000).
This represented an increase of approximately 89.1% as compared to that in
2016. The increase was mainly derived from the new segment of B2B trading
platform which contribute RMB2,041,038,000.

For the Group’s financial performance in different segments, a total revenue
of approximately RMB951,170,000 was achieved from the online services
segment in 2017, and represented an increase of approximately 15.6% from
approximately RMB823,106,000 in 2016. Revenue derived from seminars
and other services segment was approximately RMB131,723,000 in 2017,
which represented an increase of approximately 41.4% from approximately
RMB93,179,000 in 2016. Revenue from anti-counterfeiting products and
services segment increased from approximately RMB66,137,000 in 2016
to approximately RMB106,066,000 in 2017 which represented an increase
of approximately 60.4%. Revenue from financing services segment was
approximately RMB39,372,000. Revenue from 020 business exhibition centre
was approximately RMB433,097,000.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Group increased
its operating expenses from approximately RMB948,393,000 in 2016 to
approximately RMB1,012,537,000 which was mainly due to the increase of
staff salaries.

The Group achieved a profit for the year of approximately RMB317,310,000

in 2017 (2016: RMB300,676,000).

The Board does not recommend payment of any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$0.05 per share).

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017
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Manement’s Statement
B ERE

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2017, the Group further adjusted its business structure by enhancing the
Group's “Industrial Internet” strategy, and leveraged the ecological synergies
in information flow, transactional flow and data follow through its three
major segments, namely “information service, transaction service, and data
service”.

The Group aims at reforming the industry and transformation of empowered
enterprise by utilizing the internet and the traditional industry which are data-
empowered, and providing services to upstream and downstream enterprises
through “information + transaction + data”, thereby meeting the market
demand and the nation’s technological strategies. With the continuous
deepening of the Group’s service chain, the Group continues to expand its
business presence geographically, transition its trading from domestic trades
into domestic trades and foreign trades, and extend its business overseas
under the national initiative of “Belt and Road”. At the same time, the
Group's business, which was previously driven by a single mode, i.e. serving
small-to-medium enterprise, has been gradually changed to a dual mode, i.e.
serving small-to-medium enterprise and large customers.

Information Services Segment

In 2017, the Group’s hc360.com continued to undergo in-depth upgrade
in relation to the internet information service, including improving and
enhancing traditional product services such as Mai Mai Tong ("E&#i") and
customer experiences, and focused on utilizing technological innovations to
drive the upgrades of product, service and technologies as well as efficient
operations. By utilizing artificial intelligence, the most suitable products and
services can be matched up with vendors and purchasers more accurately,
effectively reducing the operation cost of customers, accurately reaching
target users and enhancing user experience, which would achieve the purpose
of maximizing marketing effectiveness.

The Group’s zol.com.cn, being the largest technology portal in China,
continued to provide comprehensive service solutions integrating product
information, professional consultancy, technology videos and interactive
marketing to brand owners including a number of Fortune 500 companies.
Relying on the refined cultivation and innovation of technology industries
such as mobile phones, home appliances and commercial sectors, through
professional evaluated content, website traffic acquisition and technology
upgrades, we continuously expanding our position in the industry and
increase our market share. We also elevate the Group’s capability to influence
brand customers and purchasers, so as to complete the layout of the vertical
B2B product internet platform for the technology industry.
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Manement’s Statement
EIRERE

In 2017, we continued to upgrade the quality of the services offered to users
on zol.com.cn and achieved major breakthrough. We reached a strategic
cooperation with Baidu, TouTiao, Tmall and JD in terms of data sharing. This
cooperation establishes the main entrance for data traffic across the entire
platform, and boosting the brand value for customers to a new level. In the
coming 5G era, zol.com.cn is ready to take on the new round of outbreaks
of the science and technology industry, and will gain tremendous room for
growth and development opportunities.

During the whole year of 2017, the revenue of the Group’s information
service segment was approximately RMB999.8 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately 9.1% from RMB916.1 million for the previous
year. The Group continued its result-oriented approach and increased its
efforts in optimizing its information service solutions for brand customers
and enhance the overall service experience for small — and medium-sized
customers, which is the driving force behind the growth of information service
revenue.

Transaction Service Segment

After years of in-depth exploration in the industry, we have acquired
profound understanding of the industry. An industry-wide platform has been
set up through vertical injection of resources and reformation in relation
to information flow, financial flow, and logistics and working together
with ibuychem.com (which is internally equity-held), and by investing
“UnionCotton” and “China Formwork”, “Shanghai Huijing E-commerce
Co., Ltd. (¥ ki BT FB A MR R)” (“Shanghai Huijing”), a supply chain
finance integrated service platform, and is wholly-owned by the Group has
also been built up.

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017
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Manement’s Statement
B ERE

Ibuychem.com is originated from a chemical e-commerce platform which
was established by the Group over 20 years ago, and it has developed into
a leading B2B platform in the chemical industry. Its service covers nearly
1 million enterprises and 8 million members of the chemical rubber and
plastics industry chain in China. The platform focuses on the spot trading
of chemical rubber and plastic products, and its annual transaction size has
exceeded RMB1 billion. “Shanghai Huijing” is a cross-industry supply chains
comprehensive finance service platform that the Group built with great efforts.
Capitalizing on experience in more than 50 sub-industries accumulated by HC
over the years, we penetrate into all aspects along the supply chain to provide
a full range of financial services to those in the supply chains, with an annual
transaction size exceeding RMB1 billion. In addition, the “Union Cotton” and
“China Formwork” which are invested by the Group, have huge potential for
development. Of which, “Union Cotton”, being one of the earliest entrants
of B2B e-commerce operator in the cotton industry, has attracted leaders
with extensive experience in the cotton industry and has significant market
resources, with an annual transaction size of exceeding RMB1 billion. As for
“China Formwork”, it is committed to building up a leading comprehensive
service platform in the construction framework industry, and it takes
advantage of the Internet, big data, intelligent equipment and the Ethernet
technology to reform the traditional framework supply chain industry, building
up a materials bank in the construction formwork industry.

Relying on the strong industrial resources of the Group, the industrial
platforms have injected capital flow, logistics and information flow service into
the industrial chain, developing all-rounded solutions and penetrated deep
into various vertical industries. The industrial platforms have also provided
interactive marketing, consultancy and research, commodity transactions and
supply chains services for upstream and downstream enterprises along the
industrial chain. Through the Internet and the technologies present in various
business aspects such as system support, finance, warehousing, logistics, and
technological upgrade, we assist an enterprise in enhancing its intrinsic value
in terms of “source identification, cost reduction, efficiency enhancement,
risk avoidance” and in turn together we achieve mutual success, growth and
sharing.

Through 2017, the income from transaction segment of the Group was
approximately RMB2,490.6 million, representing an increase of 155.2%
compared to RMB976.1 million from the same period last year. The
continuous upgrade of the transaction platform and the realization of the
ecology cycle cultivated by the Group over the years, we have achieved
growth in our operating income.
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Manement’s Statement
EIRERE

Data Service Segment

Data service is our Group’s key development area. Currently, through the
two companies, PanPass Information Technology Co., Ltd. (At 5t Ik (515 B4
T B2 ) (Stock code: 430073) (“PanPass Information”) and Tianjin
Huijiayuantian Advertisement Media Company Limited and its subsidiaries
("Huijia”), the key aim is to construct a comprehensive data service system
and build up an advanced technological segment within HC's system, forming
an entire new service model with data as the core and technology as the
motivation. With the three central features of advanced technology, big data
and digitalization of data service, as well as the production and utilization of
data, we aim to undergo rapid transformation for brand customers, building
up the core competitiveness of data service of the Group.

As for data production, the Group has established an entrance for data
through “PanPass Information” for the era of “Made in China 2025".
Positioned as a leader in the global product digital identity management,
PanPass Information engages in data identity management for Fortune China
500 and Fortune Global 500 companies. With vast amount of data collection
with respect to brand anti-counterfeiting, smart source tracking, supply
chain management and innovation, import and export certification, PanPass
Information formed a high-flow of data entry and set up a huge industry
database for data services. With 23 years of experience in the industry,
PanPass Information owns 30 patented technologies, 30 branches and 6
service centers. Through the smart analysis of data, it helps brands enhance
their operating efficiency and avoid potential risks. At present, PanPass
Information has established good cooperative relationship with domestic and
foreign organizations and enterprises including UNESCO, Petro China, Moutai,
Xiaomi, Tong Ren Tang, Lulu and Junlebao.

As for data application, “Huijia”, improves marketing for brand customers,
promotes marketing efforts with data, and opens up new layout for data
marketing through big data. Through the Group’s self-generated data, Huijia
helps to match products with their potential consumers. Meanwhile, it can
also produce an in-depth user behaviors through the data-modelling based on
the habits, behaviors and scene-based interaction, creating the shortest path
for brands to reach their users.
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In the process of constructing a full-service chain in data marketing, Huijia
has also cooperated with Tsinghua University, through which, both parties
have jointly established a professional data research laboratory, targeting at
the big data business of Huijia. They have also initiated in-depth cooperation
in the field of identification of users of brand customers and the area of
algorithm research, with the common aim of accurating delivery more value
for well-known brand customers. Through the integrated application model
of production-learning-research, it focused on the research and application
of big data, user behavior mapping, machine learning and user identification.
Making use of effective methods, Huijia created a highly effective driving
engine for data module to grasp the pulse of brand data, optimizing the
commercial behavior of brands, maintaining the sustainable development of
brands, and promoting the continuous upgrade of branding business, so as to
enable data to be the core power of brands.

Meanwhile, Huijia has continued to enrich its own data dimension through
operators. A thorough understanding of users is achieved through their
data resources from 31 provinces, cities and autonomous regions in China.
Capitalizing on these high-valued data from operators, Huijia further explores
users’ behaviors by studying the characteristics of the user’'s consumption
behavior, and create a behavior map of brand users. These efforts will achieve
a more accurate and efficient reach for users, and provide more refined
marketing solutions for brands. These efforts have won attraction from plenty
of brand customers such as Faw Toyota, Benz and Subaru.

In addition to constructing the “data engine” under “Made in China 2025"
of the Group, Panpass Information and Huijia also joined hands to build “Hui
Chain”, a core product of blockchain era. It is connected to supply chain
and shared a credit system to settle the problem of “trust”. At present,
the Group is cooperating with Legend Holdings Joyvio Agriculture, Silk
Road International Cooperation Working Committee, and China Electronic
Commerce Association, and “Hui Chain”, a blockchain, has been first applied
to fields such as agriculture and international trade. “Hui Chain” will be useful
to certain applications within the B2B industry to solve more problems for
brands.

Throughout 2017, the Group has recorded a revenue from data service
segment of approximately RMB212.0 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 220.6% from RMB66.1 million for last year.

Throughout 2017, approximately 27.0% of the Group’s revenue was from
information service sector, approximately 67.3% is from transaction service
sector, and approximately 5.7 % is from data service sector.
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Prospects

The development and breakthrough of technologies such as the Internet,
cloud computing, big data, and mobile communications have penetrated into
the traditional fields, and industrial interconnection has emerged. Statistics
showed that China’s Internet economy accounted for only 4.4% of the GDP
in 2013, and now it amounts to 10% of the GDP. The market size of the
internet economy exceeds RMB7,000 billion, however, the size of the Internet
economy of the traditional industries, is currently only RMB300 billion. With
the introduction of China’s “Made in China 2025" ({pEH#2025) ),
“Guidance on Actively Rolling out the Internet+ Initiative” ( B ARE IR i3 5
WA+ 1T E Y454 % W) ) and “Guidance on How to Boost the Coordinated
Development between Manufacturing and the Internet” ((BARGAL ik 2E
BT B A A 8 B 53 % 1) ), the industrial Internet has been lifted up to
the level of national strategy.

The Company was listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange in 2003, and had successfully transferred to the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 10 October 2014. In August 2017, the Company was
selected as a constituent stock of a number of index series by Hang Seng
Indexes Company Limited, and was admitted to in Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Stock Connect in September of the same year. With the vision to become a
“leading Internet group in the industry”, our integration of the three major
segments through business linkage and synergistic experts optimizes our
service systems gradually and continuously, so as to promote enterprises,
businesses and industries, transforming the conventional trade to precision
trading, thereby providing relevant industrial services to small — and medium-
sized enterprises and large enterprises.

In 2018, the Group will continue its strategic upgrade.

As for the information service segment, the Group will fully take advantages
of its experience accumulated in the industry over the years, together with
its vast number of customers from various industries, and also through its
technological capabilities, to reduce the cost while improve the efficiency for
customers, ultimately creating a highly effective Internet service platform in
the industry.
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As for the transaction service segment, the Group will rely primarily on the
self-operated trading platform. We will also invest in third-party’s trading
platform. We rely on the supply chain management, third-party warehousing
services, financial instruments and the synergies generated from information
services segment to fully manifest the Group's industry advantages in
various industries. Meanwhile, we aim at expanding the scale of operating
revenue from platform-based transactions, and ultimately bring benefits
to shareholders. In the next three years, leading trading platforms such as
"ibuychem.com”, “Shanghai Huijing”, and “Union Cotton” are expected to
exceed the transaction volume of RMB10 billion, becoming the top leaders in
their respective industries.

As for the data application segment, looking ahead, it will form a customer-
centered strategy specificality on major customers. We will take time to
identify major customers with a competitive advantage from industries and
continue to implement the strategies targeting at major customers, and
enhance the professionalism and impact of data service, allowing data to
become the core motivation of brands.

At last, we would like to give our thanks to the Group’s partners for their full
assistance and unconditionally accompany. In the future, we will continue to
spare no effort in building the leading industrial Internet platform in China.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank the
management and every member of the Group for their on-going dedication
and hard work in the past year.

Liu Jun
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Beijing, PRC
27 March 2018
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Biographic Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESZNSREEABBN

DIRECTORS
As at 31 December 2017, the Board comprised:

Executive Directors

LIU Jun

Aged 39, is an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company. Mr. Liu was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 12
September 2016.

Mr. Liu has also been the senior vice president of the Group since July 2016.
From 2004 to 2011, Mr. Liu was the chief executive officer of FE 5B BR
7xa] (Yigao Group Company Limited*) leading the company to enter into the
information technology businesses. Mr. Liu has also been a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu has obtained the Master’s degree in
Chemical Engineering from Zhejiang University in March 2004 and Bachelor’s
degree in Chemical Engineering, Bio-engineering and Chemical Processing
from Zhejiang University as well in June 2000.

LEE Wee Ong

Also known as Alex Lee, aged 48, is an executive Director and the chief
financial officer of the Company. Mr. Lee was first appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 9 September 2011 and was re-
designated as an executive Director on 1 July 2012.

Mr. Lee graduated from the Northern University of Malaysia with a bachelor
degree in accounting in 1993. Mr. Lee spent 6 years with Colonial First State
Investments Group and Hambros Australia as a fund manager and was
seconded to CMG CH China Funds Management. Mr. Lee had been the chief
financial officer of the Company, and subsequently the chief strategy officer
of the Company from 2000 to 2006. Mr. Lee is the founder of AlexCybot
(Beijing) Technology Company Limited (28 &8 (I R ) EHE B R A 7)), while
holding directorship in MultiVision (Beijing) Technology Company Limited (4
TR AEROBHAR A R).
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GUO Jiang

Aged 44, is an executive Director and the chairman of the Company. Mr.
Guo is also the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) and a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company (the “Remuneration committee”). Mr. Guo was appointed as
an executive Director with effect from 1 August 2006.

Mr. Guo joined the Group in 1996 as a sale manager and became the chief
executive officer of the Group in 2008. He is responsible for overseeing
the operations of the Group. Prior to that, Mr. Guo spent two years at the
Broadcasting Science Institute of the State Administration of Radio, Film
and Television as an assistant to director. Mr. Guo graduated from the
Harbin University of Commerce, the PRC, in 1994 with a bachelor degree in
computer science. He also attended the Business Administration Course for
Senior Management of Modern Enterprises conducted by Guanghua Business
School of Peking University, the PRC, in 2002.

Mr. Guo is the nephew of Mr. Guo Fansheng, a non-executive Director.

Non-Executive Directors

GUO Fansheng

Aged 62, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Guo was appointed as an executive
Director on 21 March 2000.

Mr. Guo found the Group in October 1992 and is responsible for the overall
strategic development and policy of the Group. From 1990 to 1992, Mr.
Guo worked as a manager in a State-owned business information company
in Beijing, the PRC. From 1987 to 1990, Mr. Guo served as a director of the
Liaison Office and General Office of the Economic System Reform Institute
under the State Commission for Economic Restructuring, and as the deputy
director of the Western China Development Research Centre. Prior to working
at the State Commission for Economic Restructuring, Mr. Guo served from
1982 to 1987 as a senior official in the government of the Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region. Mr. Guo obtained a bachelor degree in industrial
economics from Renmin University of China, the PRC in 1982.

Mr. Guo is the uncle of Mr. Guo Jiang.
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LI Jianguang

Aged 52, is a non-executive Director and a member of the audit committee
of the Company (the “Audit committee”). Mr. Li was appointed as a non-
executive Director with effect from 1 August 2006.

Mr. Li is a senior partner of IDG Capital Partners. Mr. Li is also a member of
IDG Technology Venture Investments, LLC, which is the general partner of IDG
Technology Venture Investments, LP. Mr. Li is responsible for the investment
management of IDG’s China-related early funds and IDG Accel China Growth
Fund. Prior to that, Mr. Li worked in Crosby Asset Management Limited as an
investment manager. Mr. Li graduated from Peking University in 1987 with
a bachelor degree in economics and attained a master degree from Guelph
University in Canada in 1994.

Mr. Li is also a director of Tarena International, Inc., a company listed on
NASDAQ since April 2014, a non-executive director of China Binary Sale
Technology Limited, a company listed on Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 8255) and a director of = J#ENEEMHBREA
7] (Sanxiang Impression Company Limited*), a company listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 601898).

WONG Chi Keung

Aged 51, is a non-executive Director and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Wong was appointed as a non-executive Director on 12
September 2016.

Mr. Wong is currently the company secretary of Digital China Holdings
Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 00861)). Mr. Wong is mainly responsible for the
financial reporting and listing issues of Digital China Holdings Limited.
Previously, Mr. Wong worked for Ernst & Young, an international accounting
firm, for 6 years. Mr. Wong graduated from The University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences and is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wong has over 28 years of
experience in financial management and corporate administration.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

ZHANG Ke

Aged 64, is an independent non-executive Director. He is the chairman of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee, respectively, and
a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Zhang was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 28 March 2003.

Mr. Zhang is a certified public accountant in the PRC and is currently the
chairman and chief partner of Shine Wing Certified Public Accountants. He
graduated from Renmin University of China in 1982 with a bachelor degree in
economics majoring in industry economics. He has many years of experience
in the fields of economics, accounting and finance. Mr. Zhang is currently
a vice-president of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
member of Internal Control Standard Committee of the Ministry of Finance
and the Chief Supervisor of Beijing Association of Forensic Science.

Mr. Zhang is also an independent director of — ;X =#84%B{ERH AR A7)
(Erliusan Internet Communication Company Limited*), a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and an independent non-executive director
of China Coal Energy Company Limited (FF B IEEERKMDER AT, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1898)
and The Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601898).

ZHANG Tim Tianwei

Aged 54, is an independent non-executive Director. He is also a member
of each of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Zhang was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 1
November 2011.

Mr. Zhang graduated from Tsinghua University (52 A£2) at the Faculty of
Precision Instruments & Mechanology in July 1986. He obtained a Master
of Economics from the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences (fr Eit &£
BE) and a Master of Business Administration (MBA) from The University of
Chicago. Mr. Zhang has over 20 years of experience in financial and business
management. He was the founder and managing director of Taconic Capital
Ltd. from September 2003 to September 2005. He acted as the vice-chairman
and general manager of Unicredit China Capital Limited from September
2005 to June 2007. He served as the managing director of J.P. Morgan
Securities (Asia Pacific) from July 2007 to October 2011 and acted as the
chairman of J.P. Morgan (China) Venture Capital Investment Co. Ltd. since its
foundation in 2010 to October 2011. He served as the managing director of
Taconic Capital Group from November 2011 to March 2012, and as the chief
operating officer of China Merchants Capital Management Limited from April
2012 to December 2014. He is the managing director of Mount Flag Capital
Ltd. since January 2015 and is also the chief executive officer of Mount Flag
LLC since August 2015. Mr. Zhang has been a non-executive director to China
ITS (Holdings) Co., Ltd (stock code: 1900) since May 2014, whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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QI Yan

Aged 68, is an independent non-executive director of the Company. Ms. Qi
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 30 November
2017.

Ms. Qi is currently the senior vice president of J\KEIEZEREER T
(Xiaomi Technology Co., Ltd*), who has been so appointed since 2012.
From September 2004 to September 2011, she served in E B & ESE 1L
AR /A 7A] (Aigo Digital Technology Co., Ltd*) as a vice president, and was
subsequently promoted to the vice chairman and the chief executive officer
from September 2011 to March 2012. She also served in EHEE 7RI A

‘A7) (Aigo Electronics Technology Co. Ltd*) as the chief executive officer
from March 2012 to December 2012. She has over 20 years’ experience in
the area of business management. Ms. Qi was awarded the certificate of
Postgraduate Master’s degree in applied sociology from the Graduate School
of FEM&RIERT (Chinese Academy of Social Sciences) in June 1998. Ms.
Qi joined the China National Democratic Construction Association (“CNDCA")
in 1987 and had served the Central Committee of CNDCA and the Beijing
Municipal Committee of CNDCA. Ms Qi is currently a representative of the
16th National People’s Congress of Haidian District, Beijing City.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at 31 December 2017, the senior management of the Company comprised
the following members:

LIU Xiaodong

Aged 45, is the president of the Group and the chief executive officer of
zol.com.cn, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. He is responsible for the
Information service business segment of the Group. In July 2015, the Group
has completed the full acquisition of zol.com.cn. Mr. Liu joined zol.com.
cn in 2000 and served as a general manager of zol.com.cn in 2004. Mr. Liu
also served as the vice president of CNET (China) in 2008. He served as a vice
president of CBSI (China), a general manager of technology cluster and the
consumer cluster of CBSI (China) from 2008 to 2014. Since 2015, he served as
a chief executive officer of zol.com.cn. Mr. Liu has over 19 years of experience
in media operation and management in the TMT field. Mr. Liu graduated and
obtained a bachelor degree from International Modern Design Art College Of
Inner Mongolia Normal University in July 1997, and obtained a master degree
of business administration from China Europe International Business School in
2011.
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Biographic Details of Directors and Senior Management
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LU Qingguo

Aged 44, is the Board secretary of the Company and the general counsel
of the Group. Mr. Lu joined the Group in May 1998 and has served as the
Company lawyer, the head of legal department and chief legal officer, and
was appointed as the Board secretary of the Company in 2011. Mr. Lu is
mainly responsible for the legal affairs and listing affairs of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Lu has taught in Guizhou Minzu University for two
years. Mr. Lu graduated from Southwest University of Political Science & Law
and obtained a bachelor degree of Laws, LL.B. Mr. Lu also passed the national
lawyer qualification examination and obtained the certificate of lawyer
qualification in 1997. Mr. Lu has over 19 years of experience in corporate
legal affairs.

WU Lei

Aged 38, is the executive vice president of the Group, responsible for the
management of transaction services business segment of the Group. Mr.
Wu joined the Group in 2015 and has served as the managing director of
the finance and leasing company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wu was the sales director for Eastern China
region in Start Group (Z#Z%E]) and subsequently the assistant president
of Zhejiang Fuyue Holding Group Co., Ltd. (T = AR 2 E). Mr. Wu has
over 10 years' experience in the operation and management in the industry.
Mr. Wu graduated from Zhejiang University (#171 A£2) in 2002 and obtained
a bachelor degree of electronic engineering.

HONG Chaoran

Aged 35, is the executive vice president of the Group, responsible for the
management of data services business segment of the Group, and he also
serves as the chief executive of Huijia, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group. Mr. Hong established Huijia in 2013, and the Group completed the full
acquisition of Huijia in February 2017. Prior to establishing Huijia, Mr. Hong
served as the managing director of Beijing Yimao Technology Co., Ltd. (3t =
BRI AR ARF]). Mr. Hong has over 10 years’ operating and managing
experience in new media and big data marketing. Mr. Hong graduated from
Hangzhou Dianzi Keji Technology University (7)1 & F&H% A Z) in 2006 and
obtained a bachelor degree of environmental engineering.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s cash and bank balances decreased by
approximately RMB561,605,000 from approximately RMB963,523,000 as at
31 December 2016 to approximately RMB401,918,000.

The Group had total borrowings (including convertible bonds — liabilities
portion) and finance lease obligation amounted to approximately
RMB1,538,517,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB1,538,383,000). A
at 31 December 2017, the gearing ratio of the Group was 20% (2016: 15%),
whereas the Group’s gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. The capital and reserves attributable to the Company’s equity holders
increased by approximately RMB665,309,000 as compared to last year.

The Group’s net current assets amounted to approximately RMB1,578,519,000
as at 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB41,313,000). Its current ratio, which is
calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities, was approximately 2.22
times as at 31 December 2017 as compared to approximately 1.02 times as at
31 December 2016. The Group's trade receivables turnover has decreased from
approximately 24.52 days in 2016 to approximately 21.98 days in 2017.

Contractual Arrangement Involving HC Construction

In light of the relevant PRC laws and regulations restricting the participation
and operation of internet content services by foreign investors, the Group has
engaged Beijing Huicong Construction Information Consulting Co., Ltd. (3t =
B RIEERAARAF) ("HC Construction” or “Huicong Construction”)
to operate its online platform, and publish its business information on the
internet pursuant to certain contractual arrangements (the “HC Contractual
Arrangements”). The Group relies on the HC Contractual Arrangements in
respect of its online services.

Please also refer to the prospectus of the Company dated 8 December 2003,
the announcement of the Company dated 25 September 2014 in relation to
the transfer of listing from GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(the “Transfer of Listing Announcement”), and the 2016 annual report of the
Company for further details of the HC Contractual Arrangements.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, save as disclosed in this report, there
was no material change in the HC Contractual Arrangements and/or the
circumstances under which they were adopted.

For the reporting period, none of the structured contracts under the HC
Contractual Arrangements had been unwound as none of the restrictions that
led to the adoption of the said structured contracts had been removed.

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017
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To further strengthen the Group's protection under the HC Contractual
Arrangements and its management and control over Huicong Construction,
the Group amended certain terms of the then existing agreements and
entered into new exclusive option agreement, equity pledge agreement
and powers of attorney with Huicong Construction and/or its registered
shareholders (namely, Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang) on 15
September 2014. As a result of the HC Contractual Arrangements, Huicong
Construction is considered to be a subsidiary of the Group and financial
statements of Huicong Construction are included in the Group’ consolidated
financial statements from 15 September 2014.

As at the date of this report, agreements underlying the HC Contractual
Arrangements include (i) the domain names and trademarks licence
agreement, (ii) the technology services agreement, (iii) the online information
distribution agreement, (iv) the online advertisement publication agreement, (v)
the exclusive option agreement, (vi) the equity pledge agreement and (vii) the
powers of attorney.

The Group depends on the HC Contractual Arrangements with Huicong
Construction (who holds, among other things, the Telecommunications
and Information Services Business Operation Licence (F 81z BARAE
B FFAI ) (“ICP Licence”), bearing a term through 9 March 2022) in
respect of its online services. For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue
generated from related online services of the Group is RMB444,322,000 (2016:
RMB594,079,000) represents approximately 12% (2016: approximately 30%)
of the total revenue of the Group.

Information of Huicong Construction

Huicong Construction is a limited liability company established in the PRC.
As at the date of this report, the registered capital of Huicong Construction
is owned as to 50% by Mr. Guo Fansheng (a non-executive Director) and
50% by Mr. Guo Jiang (a substantial Shareholder). Mr. Guo Jiang currently
is the sole director and the legal representative of Huicong Construction,
and he is responsible for making financial and management decisions of
Huicong Construction, and overseeing their implementation, so as to ensure
that Huicong Construction operates in accordance with the terms of the
HC Contractual Arrangements. As each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo
Jiang holds 50% equity interests of Huicong Construction and they are
the controllers of Huicong Construction, Huicong Construction is thus a
connected person of the Company.
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Set out below is the key financial information of Huicong Construction during
the year ended 31 December 2017:

HEWA
BERE

Revenue
Total assets

TRIIBE-FEF+ A=+ RULFEER
Bz ERUBER

Year ended 31 December 2017
RMB’000

ZE—+tHF+-A=1+—HILEE
AR® T

1,254
15,883

To the best knowledge, information and belief of the Company and as
confirmed by Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang, save for the operation
and provision of services for the Group as contemplated under the HC
Contractual Arrangements, Huicong Construction has no other material
business operation during the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the
date of this report.

Views of the Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the HC Contractual
Arrangements, and confirmed that for the financial year ended 31 December
2017, (1) the transactions carried out during the year have been entered
into in accordance with the relevant provisions of the HC Contractual
Arrangements, and (2) no dividends or other distributions have been made
by Huicong Construction which are not otherwise subsequently assigned or
transferred to the Group.

Major terms of the agreements underlying the HC
Contractual Arrangements

Technology Services Agreement

Beijing Huicong International Information Co., Ltd. (“Beijing HC International”)
first entered into a technology services agreement (the “Technology Services
Agreement”) with Huicong Construction on 2 January 2002 for a term of
three years (and subsequently extended). The existing term of the Technology
Services Agreement is three years commencing from 15 September 2017 to
14 September 2020, and may be renewed for additional term of three years
at the sole discretion of Beijing HC International (and such renewal shall be
subject to the Company having obtained all necessary approval and consents
in accordance the applicable laws, rules and regulations (including applicable
rules of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”))).

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017
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Pursuant to the Technology Services Agreement, Beijing HC International is
appointed by Huicong Construction as its exclusive agent to provide Huicong
Construction with technology support and services related to internet content
provider business of Huicong Construction, which includes:

(i)  server maintenance services;

(i) the development, renewal and upgrading of server application software
and its application in the internet content provider business;

(i) the development, renewal and upgrading of application software for
internet user;

(iv) the technology service of e-commerce;
(v)  the training of technical personnel; and

(vi) other reasonable requests from Huicong Construction for technical
services.

Under the Technology Services Agreement, Huicong Construction shall pay
Beijing HC International an annual fee of RMB250,000 for the provision of the
aforesaid services. The annual fee thereafter may be adjusted, but it shall not
exceed 20% of the amount charged in the previous year.

Domain Names and Trademarks Licence Agreement

Beijing HC International first entered into a domain names and trademarks
licence agreement (the “Domain Names and Trademarks Licence Agreement”)
with Huicong Construction on 2 January 2002 for a term of three years
(and subsequently extended). The existing term of the Domain Names and
Trademarks Licence Agreement is three years commencing from 15 September
2017 to 14 September 2020, and may be renewed for additional term of
three years at the sole discretion of Beijing HC International (and such renewal
shall be subject to the Company having obtained all necessary approval and
consents in accordance with applicable laws, rules and regulations (including
applicable rules of the Listing Rules)).
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Pursuant to the Domain Names and Trademarks Licence Agreement, Beijing
HC International licences Huicong Construction to use certain domain names
and trademarks (including domain names and trademarks owned by Beijing
HC International and to be obtained by it from time to time) for the sole
purpose of operating the website and dissemination of information for the
benefit of Beijing HC International in the PRC. Any intellectual properties
developed by Huicong Construction during the term (including any renewed
term) of the Domain Names and Trademarks Licence Agreement would
belong to Beijing HC International. Parties further agreed that where any
intellectual properties are required by law to be registered in the name of
Huicong Construction, Huicong Construction shall, where permitted by
applicable laws and regulations, upon request of Beijing HC International
assign such intellectual property rights to Beijing HC International or a party
as designated by Beijing HC International, and shall return any consideration
received for such transfer. Huicong Construction has undertaken that they
shall warrant and guarantee that such intellectual properties are flawless and
it shall bear all damages and losses caused to Beijing HC International by any
flaw of such intellectual properties. Beijing HC International has the right to
recover all of its losses from Huicong Construction for liabilities to any third

party.

Under the Domain Names and Trademarks Licence Agreement, Huicong
Construction shall pay an annual fee of RMB250,000. The annual fee
thereafter may be adjusted, but the adjustment shall not exceed 20% of the
amount charged in the previous year.

Online Information Distribution Agreement

Beijing HC International first entered into an online information distribution
agreement (the “Online Information Distribution Agreement”) with Huicong
Construction on 2 January 2002 for a term of three years (and subsequently
extended). The existing term of the Online Information Distribution Agreement
is three years commencing from 15 September 2017 to 14 September 2020.
And may be renewed for additional term of three years at the sole discretion
of Beijing HC International (and such renewal shall be subject to the Company
having obtained all necessary approval and consents in accordance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations (including applicable rules of the Listing
Rules)).

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017
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Pursuant to the Online Information Distribution Agreement, Beijing HC
International appoints Huicong Construction to exclusively publish the
information collected, edited or produced by Beijing HC International on the
website operated by Huicong Construction.

Under the Online Information Distribution Agreement, Beijing HC International
shall pay an annual fee of RMB900,000. The annual fee thereafter may be
adjusted, but the adjustment shall not exceed 20% of the amount charged in
the previous year.

Online Advertisement Publication Agreement

HC Advertising first entered into an online advertisement publication
agreement (the “Online Advertisement Publication Agreement”) with Huicong
Construction on 2 January 2002 for a term of three years (and subsequently
extended). The existing term of the Online Advertisement Publication
Agreement is three years commencing from 15 September 2017 to 14
September 2020, and may be renewed for additional term of three years at
the sole discretion of HC Advertising (and such renewal shall be subject to the
Company having obtained all necessary approval and consents in accordance
with applicable laws, rules and regulations (including applicable rules of the
Listing Rules)).

Pursuant to the Online Advertisement Publication Agreement, HC Advertising
appoints Huicong Construction to publish exclusively advertisement designed,
produced by or entrusted to HC Advertising on the website operated by
Huicong Construction.

Under the Online Advertisement Publication Agreement, HC Advertising
shall pay an annual fee of RMB900,000. The annual fee thereafter may be
adjusted, but the adjustment shall not exceed 20% of the amount charged in
the previous year.

Exclusive Option Agreement

Beijing HC International entered into the exclusive option agreement (the
"Exclusive Option Agreement”) with Huicong Construction, Mr. Guo
Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang on 15 September 2014, pursuant to which Mr.
Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang jointly and severally granted to Beijing HC
International (and Huicong Construction having consented to such grant) an
irrevocable exclusive option for Beijing HC International (or such third party
as it may designate) to purchase, to the extent permitted by PRC laws, all or
part of their equity interests in Huicong Construction, at the consideration of
RMB1,400,000 or a minimum purchase price permitted under PRC laws and
regulations at the time of exercise of such option. Such exclusive option is for
an indefinite term commencing on 15 September 2014 until (i) it is terminated
by Beijing HC International in writing, or (ii) upon transfer of the entire
equity interests held by Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang in Huicong
Construction. Such exclusive option may not be revoked or varied during the
term of the Exclusive Option Agreement.
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Pursuant to the Exclusive Option Agreement, each of Mr. Guo Fansheng
and Mr. Guo Jiang has undertaken to Beijing HC International, among other
things, that they shall not create any pledge, indebtedness or third party
encumbrances, and shall not transfer, give by way of gift, pledge or otherwise
dispose of its equity in Huicong Construction to any party other than Beijing
HC International (or such third party as it may designated by it). Further,
Huicong Construction has undertaken to Beijing HC International, among
other things, that:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

HC International, Inc.

it will operate its business in accordance with laws, regulations,
requirements and other management requirements or directions by
relevant governmental department;

it shall ensure the continual existence of Huicong Construction in
accordance with good financial and business standards and practices,
and shall prudently and effectively operate its business and transactions,
and shall use its best endeavours to ensure Huicong Construction
obtaining all licences, permits and approval requires for its operation,
and to ensure that they shall not be cancelled, revoked or declared
invalid;

Huicong Construction shall provide all its information in respect of its
operation and finance at Beijing HC International’s request;

Huicong Construction shall not conduct any of the following matters
unless with prior written approval from Beijing HC International: (a) sell,
transfer, pledge or otherwise dispose of any assets, business, or income,
or allow encumbrance be created thereon (save as in its ordinary course
of business or with prior written approval from Beijing HC International);
(b) enter into any transactions which will materially and adversely
affect its assets, obligations, operation, equity interest and other legal
rights (save as in its ordinary course of business or with prior written
approval from Beijing HC International); (c) declare dividend, bonus to
its shareholders; (d) incur, take up, guarantee or allow any indebtedness
other than those in the ordinary course of business and with the prior
written consent of Beijing HC International;

resolve any shareholders’ resolution on increasing or decreasing its
registered capital, or alerting its registered capital structure;

alter its articles of association, or change its scope of business; and

change or remove any of its director or senior management.

Annual Report 2017
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Each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang, as registered shareholders
of Huicong Construction, has executed a blank equity transfer agreement
with respect of his equity interests in Huicong Construction to the custody of
Beijing HC International, which may be effected by Beijing HC International
(or such third party as it may designate) in the event he fails to discharge his
obligations.

Huicong Construction, Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang further executed
an undertaking dated 15 September 2014 (the “Undertaking”), pursuant to
which, among other things, they undertake to unconditionally return to the
Group any consideration they receive in the event Beijing HC International
acquires the equity interests in Huicong Construction, and to unconditionally
transfer the domain name “hc360.com” and related registered trademark(s)
to Beijing HC International (or such third party as it may designated by it) in
the event that the agreements underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements
lapse, expire or be terminated.

Power of Attorney

On 15 September 2014, each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang has
executed a power of attorney (the “Power of Attorney”). Pursuant to each
of the Powers of Attorney, each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang
unconditionally and irrevocably authorises any individual designated by Beijing
HC International (which shall be a director of the Company (other than
Mr. Guo Fansheng, Mr. Guo Jiang or their close associates), and shall be a
resident of PRC) to represent him in exercising all his rights as shareholders of
Huicong Construction under applicable PRC laws, including without limitation,
to transfer all his equity interests, to determine the consideration for such
transfer, to complete all relevant procedures regarding such transfer, to attend
general meetings and exercise voting rights, to execute all such relevant
documents, agreements and resolutions, etc.. Such Powers of Attorney
shall remain in full force and effect from 15 September 2014 until Mr. Guo
Fansheng or Mr. Guo Jiang (as the case may be) ceases to be a shareholder of
Huicong Construction.

Equity Pledge Agreement

Beijing HC International, Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang entered
into the equity pledge agreement (the “Equity Pledge Agreement”) on 15
September 2014 (as supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated 15
September 2017), pursuant to which each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo
Jiang pledged all their respective equity interests in Huicong Construction
to Beijing HC International to secure performance of all their obligations
and the obligations of Huicong Construction under the Domain Names
and Trademarks Licence Agreement, the Technology Services Agreement,
the Online Information Distribution Agreement, the Online Advertisement
Publication Agreement, the Exclusive Option Agreement and the Powers of
Attorney.
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Beijing HC International will be entitled to exercise the rights of pledge in the
event Huicong Construction fails to pay the service fee under the Technology
Services Agreement and the Domain Names and Trademarks Licence
Agreement or fail to perform any other term of the above agreements, the
Online Information Distribution Agreement and the Online Advertisement
Agreement, or any of Huicong Construction, Mr. Guo Fansheng or Mr.
Guo Jiang fails to perform any term of the Exclusive Option Agreement and
the Powers of Attorney (as the case may be), upon reasonable notice. If
Huicong Construction declares any dividend, bonus or adopt any proposal for
distribution of profits during the term of the Equity Pledge Agreement, such
dividends, bonus or economic benefits of all such proposal for distribution
shall be delivered to Beijing HC International.

The Equity Pledge Agreement is for an indefinite term commencing from
15 September 2014 until (i) all the agreements (other than the Equity
Pledge Agreement) underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements have been
terminated by Beijing HC International and/or HC Advertising (as the case may
be) or (ii) all the obligations under the Equity Pledge Agreement have been
fulfilled. The Equity Pledge Agreement has been filed at relevant Industry and
Commerce Bureau on 16 September 2014.

Risks associated with the HC Contractual Arrangements

The government may determine that the agreements underlying the HC
Contractual Arrangements do not comply with applicable requlations, or these
regulations or their interpretation may change in the future

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and members of the
Group established in the PRC are considered as foreign-invested enterprise.
Currently, laws and regulations of the PRC restrict participation and operation
of internet content services by foreign investors. The Group depends on the
HC Contractual Arrangements with Huicong Construction in respect of its
online services. Upon interview conducted by the PRC legal advisers with
relevant responsible officer of the Telecommunication Department of Beijing
Communications Administration (t R BEEIEFEEEIEE), the PRC
legal advisers were informed that currently, there is no prohibition of adoption
of contractual arrangements or variable interest entity in the business
of services, and there has been no law, rules, regulations or normative
documents in the PRC which stipulates that such arrangements constitute
“concealing illegal intentions with a lawful form” under PRC laws.
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Save for matters as further discussed in the paragraph headed “Certain terms
of the HC Contractual Arrangements may not be enforceable under PRC
laws" below, our PRC legal advisers are of the opinion that the agreements
underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements are, collectively and individually,
legal and valid and do not violate PRC laws, rule and regulations. Although
the Group has not received any interference regarding the legality of the
Contractual Arrangements, there is no assurance that the PRC government
or judicial authorities would agree that the HC Contractual Arrangements
comply with PRC licensing, registration, other regulatory requirements or
policies that may be adopted in the future. If the PRC government or judicial
authorities determines that the Group or the HC Contractual Arrangements
do not comply with applicable PRC laws and regulations, it could have
discretion in dealing with such incompliance, including:

(i) discontinuing or placing restriction on the business operation of Beijing
HC International, HC Advertising and/or Huicong Construction in the
PRC;

(i) requiring reorganisation or restructuring of ownership or business of
Beijing HC International and/or HC Advertising;

(iii) levying fines and/or confiscating the proceeds generated from the
operations under the HC Contractual Arrangements;

(iv) taking other regulatory or enforcement actions that could have a
material adverse effect over the Group's financial condition or business.

The imposition of any of the above mentioned consequences could result
in a material and adverse effect on the Group’s ability to conduct its online
business. In particular, in the event the imposition of any of these consequence
prevent Huicong Construction from providing internet content provider
services to the Group and the Group is unable to locate any substitute timely,
the operation of the Group’s platform could be severely disrupted and the
Group may breach its existing contracts for online businesses (including
among others, subscription for Mai-Mai-Tong and Biao-Wang search). Where
the Group loses the right to direct the activities of Huicong Construction as
a result of these consequences, the Group would also be no longer able to
consolidate the financial results of Huicong Construction.
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The HC Contractual Arrangements may not provide control as effective as
direct ownership

The Group depends on the HC Contractual Arrangements with Huicong
Construction, who hold key licences required, in respect of its online services.
Huicong Construction is owned as to 50% by Mr. Guo Fansheng and as to
50% by Mr. Guo Jiang. The Company and its subsidiaries do not own or hold
any equity interests in Huicong Construction.

The HC Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective in providing control
over website operations in PRC as direct ownership in these businesses. For
example, Huicong Construction and its shareholders could breach or fail to
perform their obligations under the HC Contractual Arrangements. If Huicong
Construction fails to perform its obligations under the HC Contractual
Arrangements, the Group will have to resort to legal remedies under the PRC
law, which could result in substantial litigation costs and diverse the Group’s
management’s time and efforts away from their running the regular business
of the Group. There is uncertainty as to the outcome and duration of legal
proceedings and its enforceable. In addition, the Group cannot be sure that
contractual remedies would be effective or sufficient to enforce its interests.
In the event Huicong Construction refuses or fails to provide the internet
content services to the Group and the Group is unable to locate any substitute
timely, the operation of the Group'’s platform could be severely disrupted and
the Group may breach its existing contracts for online businesses.

The Group currently operates its online platform principally through the
website of “hc360.com”. Currently, Huicong Construction is the registrant
of the domain name “hc360.com” in light of relevant requirements in the
PRC on internet content provider business. Huicong Construction, Mr. Guo
Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang have undertaken pursuant to the agreements
underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements and the Undertaking that
Huicong Construction will, so far as it is permitted under the PRC laws,
transfer the domain name and trademark(s) to the Group (or the Group's
nominee) in the event the HC Contractual Arrangements lapse, expire or be
terminated. If the Group is unable to acquire the domain name from Huicong
Construction, or if Huicong Construction declares bankruptcy or if the domain
name, as part of Huicong Construction’s assets, become subject to liens or
rights of third party, the Group may be unable to continue its existing business
using “hc360.com” and may be required to establish a new domain name,
and to establish new trademark, which may disrupt the Group’s operation,
confuse users and damage the Group’s reputation, and may materially and
adversely affect the Group’s results of operation.
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The registered shareholders of Huicong Construction may have potential
conflicts of interest with the Group

As at the date of this report, equity interests of Huicong Construction is
owned as to 50% by Mr. Guo Fansheng and 50% by Mr. Guo Jiang. Mr.
Guo Fansheng is the sole director and the legal representative of Huicong
Construction. The Directors are of the view that Mr. Guo Fansheng and
Mr. Guo Jiang are controllers of Huicong Construction. Each of Mr. Guo
Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang has undertaken to the Company that each of
them will procure Huicong Construction in fulfilling its obligations under the
agreements underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements. Each of Mr. Guo
Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang, as a Director, also owes fiduciary duties to the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole pursuant to relevant law of the
Cayman Islands.

There is no assurance that when conflicts of interests arise, shareholders of
Huicong Construction will act in the best interests of the Group, or that any
conflicts of interests will be resolved in favour of the Group.

To further strengthen the protections to the Group over potential conflicts of
interest between the registered shareholders of Huicong Construction, and
the Group, on 15 September 2014, Beijing HC International entered into,
among others, the Exclusive Option Agreement, the Equity Pledge Agreement
and the Powers of Attorney with Huicong Construction. Pursuant to the
Exclusive Option Agreement, Beijing HC International was granted the option
to purchase from the registered shareholders their equity interest in Huicong
Construction when and to the extent permitted by law. Pursuant to the Equity
Pledge Agreement, Beijing HC International is entitled to dispose of the equity
interests of Huicong Construction pledged, in the event of stipulated events
regarding failure of performance by, among others, registered shareholders
of Huicong Construction. Further, each of the Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr.
Guo Jiang has executed the Power of Attorney which authorises individual
designated by Beijing HC International to exercise all of their rights and
powers as shareholders of Huicong Construction.
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Since the entering into of the agreements underlying the HC Contractual
Arrangements and up to the date of this report, neither Huicong Construction
nor its registered shareholders commits any breach of the agreements
underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements or undertakings. However, if
shareholder(s) of Huicong Construction cause Huicong Construction to breach
the HC Contractual Arrangements, or in the event Mr. Guo Fansheng and/
or Mr. Guo Jiang breach the aforesaid undertakings, the Group will have to
resort to legal remedies under the PRC law, which could result in substantial
litigation costs and diverse the Group’s management’s time and efforts away
from their running the regular business of the Group. There is uncertainty as
to the outcome and duration of legal proceedings and its enforceability, and
the Group cannot be sure that contractual remedies would be effective or
sufficient to enforce its interests. Acquisition by the Group (or by designees of
the Group) of equity interests under the Exclusive Option Agreement and/or
the Equity Pledge Agreement may further be subject to substantial transaction
costs) and taxation. In the event that the HC Contractual Arrangements
are breached and the Group is unable to locate any substitute to provide
internet content services timely, the operation of the Group's platform
could be severely disrupted and the Group may breach its existing contracts
for online businesses, and the Group’s operation, result of operations and
financial conditions may be materially and adversely affected. Also, if the
Group is unable to acquire the domain name in such events, or if Huicong
Construction declares bankruptcy or if the domain name, as part of Huicong
Construction’s assets, become subject to liens or rights of third party, the
Group may be unable to continue its existing business using the domain name
of “hc360.com” and may be required to establish a new domain name, which
may disrupt the Group’s operation, confuse users and damage the Group’s
reputation, and may materially and adversely affect the Group’s results of
operation.

The HC Contractual Arrangements may subject the Group to increased
taxation due to different income tax rates applicable to Beijing HC
International and Huicong Construction

Pursuant to the Online Information Distribution Agreement, Huicong Construction
provides internet content provider services for an annual fee of RMB900,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 2016 and 2017, Beijing HC
International is subject to a preferential tax rate of 15%, and Huicong
Construction is subject to a tax rate of 25%.
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In light of the different income tax rates applicable, the determination of such
annual fee and other payment by the Group to Huicong Construction may
be challenged by relevant PRC tax authorities as unfair, and may adjust the
taxable income or tax amount payable by the Group, requesting outstanding
tax amount be paid or imposing administrative penalty, thereby having
adverse tax consequence and affect the Group's business, financial conditions
and results of operations of the Group materially and adversely.

Since the entering into of the HC Contractual Arrangements and up to the
date of this report, the Group has not received any interference from relevant
PRC tax authorities as to the different income tax rates applicable.

Huicong Construction may not provide internet content services to the
Group if the HC Contractual Arrangements are not renewed or extended on
equivalent or similar terms, or if Huicong Construction ceases its operation or
corporate entity in the event of dissolution or liquidation, etc.

The Group depends on the HC Contractual Arrangements with Huicong
Construction, which holds key licences required, to operate the Group's online
platform. Certain agreements underlying the Contractual Arrangements (other
than the Exclusive Option Agreement, the Equity Pledge Agreement and
the Powers of Attorney, which have an indefinite terms unless terminated)
currently has a term of three years, and will expire by 14 September 2020,
subject to renewal by Beijing HC International and/or HC Advertising at
its respective discretion in accordance with the respective terms of the
agreements. The Company expects that the Group will renew the agreements
on equivalent or similar terms prior to their expiries.

If the HC Contractual Arrangements are not renewed or extended on
equivalent or similar terms, or if Huicong Construction ceases its operation or
corporate entity in the event of dissolution or liquidation, the Group would
have to engage another PRC entity holding relevant licences required to
provide internet content services to the Group.
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To strengthen the Group's protection, Beijing HC International entered
into the Exclusive Option Agreement dated 15 September 2014, pursuant
to which Beijing HC International (or such third party as it may designated)
may purchase the equity interests of Mr. Guo Fansheng or Mr. Guo Jiang
in Huicong Construction, among others, in the event that HC Contractual
Arrangements are not renewed. The said option is for an indefinite period
unless terminated by Beijing HC International or upon Beijing HC International
acquiring all equity interests in Huicong Construction. Further, each of the
registered shareholders of Huicong Construction (namely, Mr. Guo Fansheng
and Mr. Guo Jiang) has executed the Power of Attorney which authorise
individual designated by Beijing HC International to exercise all of their rights
and powers as shareholders of Huicong Construction. In addition, as each
of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang, being all registered shareholders
of Huicong Construction, is a Director, each of them further owes a duty of
care to the Company and the Shareholders as a whole under applicable laws.
The Directors are of the view that Huicong Construction and/or its registered
shareholders are not entitled to terminate the agreements underlying the HC
Contractual Arrangements save for material breach by Beijing HC International
and/or HC Advertising (as the case maybe). In such cases of termination,
that the Group will be entitled to exercise its rights under the Equity Pledge
Agreement to uphold its rights or have to resort to legal remedies under the
PRC law.

There is no assurance that the Group can identify new entity which provides
internet content services required for the Group’s operation timely, or on
equivalent or similar terms. In the event that existing PRC entity cannot be
located, the Group may be required to engage other parties to set up new
entity. Pursuant to the existing laws and regulations, approval procedures
for key licences to operate internet content services usually takes three to six
months, with such requirements including among others, the Qualification
Requirement (as further discussed below) and a minimum requirement of
registered capital of not less than RMB1,000,000, while there is no assurance
that such approval will be granted, or will be granted on a timely manner.

In the event that the HC Contractual Arrangements are discontinued and the
Group is unable to locate any substitute to provide internet content services
timely, the operation of the Group's platform could be severely disrupted and
the Group may breach its existing contracts for online businesses, which could
materially and adversely affect the Group’s business operation and financial
results.

Certain terms of the HC Contractual Arrangements may not be enforceable
under PRC laws

The HC Contractual Arrangements provide for dispute resolution by way of
arbitration in accordance with the arbitration rules of the Beijing Arbitration
Commission in the PRC. The HC Contractual Arrangements also contain
provisions to the effect that, the arbitral body may award remedies over
shares and/or assets of Huicong Construction, injunctive relief and/or winding
up of Huicong Construction, and that courts in Hong Kong and the Cayman
Islands are of competent jurisdiction with power to grant interim remedies in
support of arbitration pending formation of arbitral tribunal or in appropriate
cases.
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We have been advised by our PRC legal advisers that the above mentioned
provisions regarding injunctive relief or interim remedies contained in the
HC Contractual Arrangements may not be enforceable, and that under PRC
laws, arbitral body does not have the power to grant any injunctive relief or
liquidation order in case of dispute.

Accordingly, such remedies may not be available to us timely, or be available
to us at all notwithstanding the relevant contractual provisions contained in
the HC Contractual Arrangements.

Exercise of option to acquire the equity interests in Huicong Construction
may be subject to limitations and the ownership transfer may be subject to
substantial costs

Under the HC Contractual Arrangements, the Group has the option to
purchase equity interests in Huicong Construction. It is the intention of the
Group to unwind the HC Contractual Arrangements as soon as the law allows
the business to operate without such HC Contractual Arrangements.

The Administrative Rules for Foreign Investments in Telecommunications
Enterprises (2016 amended) (the “FITE Rules”) currently stipulated that
foreign investors are not allowed to hold more than 50% of the equity
interests of a company providing value-added telecommunications services,
including internet content provider services. As the Company is a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands, all members of the Group controlled by
the Company through majority shareholdings or equity interests are regarded
as such foreign invested enterprise, which restrict the exercise of option.

In addition, under the FITE Rules, a foreign invested enterprise wishing to
acquire any equity interest in a value-added telecommunications business
in the PRC must demonstrate a good track record and experience in
providing value-added telecommunications services overseas (”Qualification
Requirement”). There is currently no clear guidance on the interpretation
of the Qualification Requirement under the existing applicable PRC laws,
regulations or rules, and the Company is therefore unable to ascertain the
Qualification Requirement. There is no assurance that the Group will be
able to sufficiently satisfy the Qualification Requirement, or there will not
be any subsequent change, interpretation or guidance on the Qualification
Requirement, or such other requirements concerning the operator of internet
content provider services. If the restrictions on the percentage of foreign
ownership in telecommunications services are removed, the Group may need
to unwind the HC Contractual Arrangements before the Group is in a position
to comply with the Qualification Requirement.
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The exercise of option to acquire equity ownership of Huicong Construction
may incur substantial costs on the part of the Group. Pursuant to the HC
Contractual Arrangements, the Group has an exclusive option to purchase,
to the extent permitted by PRC laws, equity interests in Huicong Construction
in all or part, at the consideration of RMB1,400,000 or a minimum purchase
price permitted under PRC laws and regulations at the time of exercise of
such option. Where the relevant PRC authorities determine that the purchase
price is below the market value, they may require Beijing HC International to
pay enterprise income tax for ownership transfer income with reference to the
market value. The amount of tax may be substantial, which could materially
and adversely affect the business, financial condition and results of operation
of the Group.

If Huicong Construction fails to obtain and maintain the requisite assets,
licences and approvals as required under the regulatory environment for
internet content provider business in the PRC, the business, financial condlition
and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected

The telecommunications services industry in China is heavily regulated by
the PRC government and numerous regulatory authorities of the central
PRC government are empowered to issue and implement regulations
governing various aspects of the telecommunications services industry. These
telecommunications services-related laws and regulations are relatively new
and evolving, and there are a certain degree of uncertainty especially on
the interpretation and enforcement of these laws. As a result, in certain
circumstances it may be difficult to determine what actions or omissions may
be deemed to be in violations of applicable laws and regulations.

Huicong Construction is required to obtain and maintain certain assets
relevant to its business as well as applicable licenses or approvals from
the relevant regulatory authorities in order to provide its current services.
These assets and licenses are essential to the operation of internet content
provider business and are generally subject to annual review by the relevant
governmental authorities. Also, Huicong Construction may need to obtain
additional licenses. If Huicong Construction fails to obtain or maintain any of
the required assets, licenses or approvals, its continued business operations in
the telecommunications services industry may subject it to various penalties,
including but not limited to fines and the discontinuation or restriction of
its operations. Any such disruption in the business operations of Huicong
Construction will materially and adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.
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The Company may lose the ability to use and enjoy assets held by Huicong
Construction that are important to the Group'’s business if Huicong
Construction declares bankruptcy or becomes subject to a dissolution or
winding up proceeding

Huicong Construction holds certain assets that are important to the Group's
business operations, primarily the ICP Licence and the domain name of
"hc360.com”. The HC Contractual Arrangements with Huicong Construction
and its shareholders contain terms that specifically obligate Mr. Guo Fansheng
and Mr. Guo Jiang to ensure the valid existence of Huicong Construction.
However, in the event that Mr. Guo Fansheng or Mr. Guo Jiang breaches
this obligation and voluntarily wind up Huicong Construction, or Huicong
Construction declares bankruptcy or is otherwise dissolved, some or all of
the Group’s online business operations may have to be ceased, which could
materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results
of operations. If Huicong Construction undergoes a voluntary or involuntary
winding-up proceeding, Mr. Guo Fansheng or Mr. Guo Jiang or any other
third-party creditors may claim rights to some or all of these assets, resulting
in hindrance to the Group’s ability to operate the Group’s online business,
which could materially and adversely affect the Group’s business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Even the transfer of trademark of “hc360” has been completed, there may
still be potential penalties

We have been advised by our PRC legal advisers that holders of the ICP
License shall hold the domain name and the trademarks used for conducting
the internet content provider business pursuant to the MIIT Notice.

In order to comply with the notice requirement of the ICP, Beijing HC
International transferred the trademark “hc360” to Huicong Construction
through the HC Contractual Arrangements. The Trademark Office issued a
notice of acceptance of trademark transfer on 3 July 2014. On 25 January
2016, the trademark transfer was completed and Huicong Construction
obtained the trademark certificate for “hc360” on 13 March 2016. The
Company has been advised by the PRC Legal Advisers that, upon completion
of the Trademark Transfer, it is unlikely for Huicong Construction be penalized
in respect of failure to fulfill the trademark requirement under the MIIT Notice
regarding any period prior to the Trademark Transfer.
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Structured Contracts involving Beijing Zhixing Ruijing

On 3 July 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of 100% of share
capital of Orange Triangle Inc. (“Orange Triangle”). 1t ZiE = AR ERA
7] (Beijing Orange Triangle Technology Co., Ltd.) (“Orange Beijing”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Orange Triangle entered into certain structured contracts
(the "BZR Structured Contracts”) with Beijing Zhixing Ruijing Technology
Co., Ltd. GERATE=RHE AR A F)) (“Beijing Zhixing Ruijing”) and/or its
shareholders on 3 July 2015.

Pursuant to the BZR Structured Contracts, Orange Beijing or Orange Triangle
will provide certain technical consultation and service, including but not
limited to technical services support, intellectual property licensing, and
business and management consultation, whereas Beijing Zhixing Ruijing will
pay (a) the annual service fees RMB5 million to Orange Beijing; (b) the annual
service fees which equal 12% of its annual revenue to Orange Triangle; and
(c) the service fee equivalent to its revenue deducted by its expenses, net
operation loss and reserve fund extracted to Orange Beijing. Orange Beijing
relies on the BZR Structured Contracts to control the finance and operation of
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing so as to obtain the economic benefits and the rights to
variable returns from Beijing Zhixing Ruijing.

Please also refer to the announcements of the Company dated 17 March
2015, 8 May 2015 and 3 July 2015, respectively, and the circular of the
Company dated 4 June 2015 for further details.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, save as disclosed in this report,
there was no material change in the BZR Structured Contracts and/or the
circumstances under which they were adopted.

For the reporting period, none of the structured contracts under the BZR
Structured Contracts had been unwound as none of the restrictions that led
to the adoption of the said structured contracts had been removed.

Further, the Group entered into the BZR Structured Contracts to conduct the
restricted business in the PRC in order to comply with the abovementioned
PRC laws and regulations and to assert management control over the
operations of, and enjoy all of economic benefits of, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing
on 3 July 2015, pursuant to which the Group has the right to enjoy all the
economic benefits of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, to exercise management control
over the operations of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, and to prevent any leakage of
the assets and values of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing to the registered shareholders
of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. As a result of the BZR Structured Contracts, Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing is consolidated into the accounts of the Group in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies from 3 July 2015.

As at the date of this report, the Structured Contracts involving Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing include (i) the exclusive technical services agreement, (i) the exclusive
licensing agreement on intellectual property, (iii) the exclusive right to share
purchase agreement, (iv) the voting rights proxy agreement, (v) the pledge
agreement and (vi) the business and management services agreement.
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The Group depends on the BZR Structured Contracts with Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing (who holds, among other things, the value-added telecommunications
business operating licence (I {EE(Z £ F4EE A 7E) (VAT Licence”), being
valid until 15 February 2020) in respect of its information service business
within the second type of value-added telecommunication services (the
"Value-added Telecommunications Businesses”). During the year ended
31 December 2017, revenue generated from Beijing Zhixing Ruijing is
RMB374,137,000 (2016: 334,750,000), representing approximately 10% of
the total revenue of the Group.

Information of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing

Beijing Zhixing Ruijing is a limited liability company established in the PRC on
11 September 2014 with registered capital of RMB10 million and paid up
capital of RMB10 million. As at the date of this report, the registered capital
of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing is owned as to 60% by Mr. Guo Jiang (the chief
executive officer of the Company and an executive Director) and 40% by
Mr. Liu Xiaodong (2/]N5), a shareholder of the Company and a director of
several subsidiaries of the Company.

Set out below is the key information of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing during the year
ended 31 December 2017:

HEWA
REE

Revenue
Total assets
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374,137
466,051

As at the date of this report, the business of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing mainly
involves the Value-added Telecommunications Businesses, excluding
technology development; economic and trade consultancy; organisation of
cultural and art exchange activities (not including commercial performances);
and exhibition and demonstration hosting activities (the “Excluded
Businesses”).

To the best knowledge, information and belief of the Company and as
confirmed by Mr. Guo Jiang and Mr. Liu Xiaodong, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing has
no plan or road map to develop and operate the Excluded Businesses as at the
date of this report.

Major terms of the agreements underlying the BZR
Structured Contracts

Exclusive Technical Services Agreement

Orange Beijing entered into an exclusive technical services agreement with
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing on 3 July 2015 (the “Exclusive Technical Services
Agreement”). The Exclusive Technical Services Agreement shall remain in
force during the existence of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing upon execution, unless it is
terminated in accordance with the clauses of the agreement.
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Pursuant to the Exclusive Technical Services Agreement, Orange Beijing
is appointed by Beijing Zhixing Ruijing as its exclusive services provider to
provide technical consulting service, other related technical services and
related services agreed by both parties from time to time during the term of
the Exclusive Technical Services Agreement in accordance with its terms and
conditions.

Under the Exclusive Technical Services Agreement, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing shall
pay Orange Beijing an annual services fee of RMB5 million.

Exclusive Licensing Agreement on Intellectual Property

Orange Triangle entered into an exclusive licensing agreement on intellectual
property with Beijing Zhixing Ruijing on 3 July 2015 (the “Exclusive Licensing
Agreement on Intellectual Property”). The Exclusive Licensing Agreement
on Intellectual Property shall remain in force during the existence of Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing upon execution, unless it is terminated in accordance with the
clauses of the agreement.

Pursuant to the Exclusive Licensing Agreement on Intellectual Property,
the right of use of Orange Triangle’s network domain names, registered
trademarks, databases, software systems and other intellectual properties is
granted to Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. Such rights cannot be transferred to any
other third party.

Under the Exclusive Licensing Agreement on Intellectual Property, Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing shall pay annual service fees equivalent to 12% of its total
annual revenue to Orange Triangle. Beijing Zhixing Ruijing had also procured
Mr. Guo Jiang and Mr. Liu Xiaodong to provide their holding shares of Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing as a pledge to guarantee the payment of the payable service
fee to Orange Triangle or its wholly owned subsidiaries.

Exclusive Right to Share Purchase Agreement

Orange Beijing, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Mr. Guo Jiang and Mr. Liu Xiaodong
entered into an exclusive right to share purchase agreement on 3 July 2015 (the
“Exclusive Right to Share Purchase Agreement”). The Exclusive Right to Share
Purchase Agreement shall remain in force during the existence of Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing upon execution, unless it is terminated in accordance with the
clauses of the agreement.

Pursuant to the Exclusive Right to Share Purchase Agreement, Mr. Guo Jiang
and Mr. Liu Xiaodong jointly and individually granted Orange Beijing the
exclusive right to purchase the shares of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Exclusive Right to Share Purchase
Agreement, irrevocably and without any additional conditions. Orange Beijing
can, by its own will, decide the way to exercise the right and purchase all
or part of shares held by shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and/or any
specified third party at the minimum price permitted by the relevant laws and
regulations of the PRC at any time, by one or more times.
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Under the Exclusive Right to Share Purchase Agreement, the share repurchase
price shall be the minimum price permitted by the relevant laws and regulations
of the PRC. The paid shareholder of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing will return the rest of
the transfer price after deducting the paid-up capital injected by them to Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing.

Voting Rights Proxy Agreement

Orange Beijing, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Mr. Guo Jiang and Mr. Liu Xiaodong
entered into a voting rights proxy agreement on 3 July 2015 (the “Voting
Rights Proxy Agreement”). The Voting Rights Proxy Agreement shall remain in
force during the existence of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing upon execution, unless it is
terminated in accordance with the clauses of the agreement.

Pursuant to the Voting Rights Proxy Agreement, Orange Beijing (or its
designated parties) was granted the power to, inter alia, exercise all the rights
of Mr. Guo Jiang and Mr. Liu Xiaodong as the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing, subject to applicable laws, regulations and Beijing Zhixing Ruijing’s
articles of association. No prior consent from Mr. Guo Jiang and Mr. Liu
Xiaodong is required before exercising such right. Mr. Guo Jiang and Mr. Liu
Xiaodong shall recognise Orange Beijing’s voting result.

Pledge Agreement

Orange Beijing (as the pledgee), Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Mr. Guo Jiang and
Mr. Liu Xiaodong (as the pledgers) entered into a pledge agreement on 3 July
2015 (the “Pledge Agreement”), pursuant to which each of Mr. Guo Jiang
and Mr. Liu Xiaodong pledged their equity interests in Beijing Zhixing Ruijing
held by them as security for Orange Beijing’s rights and interests granted by
the Voting Proxy Rights Agreement and the Exclusive Licensing Agreement
on Intellectual Property (collectively, the “Master Agreements”). Orange
Beijing shall have the right to get compensation by converting the Equity
interests into money and seek preferential payments from the proceeds from
the auction or sales of the said equity interests concerned or other disposal
methods as agreed by each party in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations of the PRC.

Prior to the full discharge of the payments and obligations under the Master
Agreements, without written consent of the pledgee, Mr. Guo Jiang and
Mr. Liu Xiaodong shall not assign the said equity interests in Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing.

The Pledge Agreement has become effective upon the execution date. Unless
otherwise agreed by Orange Beijing in writing after the Pledge Agreement
comes into effect, upon the full and complete performance of the Company
and pledgors’ obligations under the Master Agreements as well as Orange
Beijing’s written confirmation, the pledge shall be terminated.
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Business and Management Services Agreement

Orange Beijing, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Mr. Guo Jiang and Mr. Liu Xiaodong
entered into a business and management services agreement on 3 July 2015
(the “Business and Management Services Agreement”), which shall remain in
force during the existence of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing upon execution, unless it is
terminated in accordance with clauses of the agreement.

Under the Business and Management Services Agreement, Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing will appoint Orange Beijing as its exclusive services provider to provide
complete management support, business support, technical support and
related consulting services during the term of the Business and Management
Services Agreement in accordance with its terms and conditions, which may
include all necessary services within the scope of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing’s
business, such as but not limited to business consultations, marketing
consultancy, technical services, intellectual properties licenses, product
research and development, system maintenance, as well as general corporate
management.

The service fee shall be payable to Orange Beijing by the Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing, where the Beijing Zhixing Ruijing shall pay to Orange Beijing such
fees equivalent to the amount of the Beijing Zhixing Ruijing’s revenue
deducted by Beijing Zhixing Ruijing’s (and its subsidiaries’) expenses (including
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing’s costs, depreciation, other expenses and payments,
and relevant tax payments incurred during the term of the Business and
Management Services Agreement), net operation loss made by Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing and the reserve fund extracted by Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. The service
fee shall be calculated within three (3) months since the end of each financial
year based on the audited report prepared in accordance with the Chinese
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and paid within fifteen (15)
days of the issuance date of such audited report.

Risk associated with the BZR Structured Contracts
The PRC government may determine that BZR Structured Contracts are not in
compliance with any existing or future applicable PRC laws or requlations

If the PRC government finds that the BZR Structured Contracts (which
establish the structure for operating the Value-added Telecommunications
Businesses of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing in the PRC) do not comply with applicable
PRC laws and regulations, or if these regulations or their interpretations
change in the future, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing could be subject to severe
consequences, including the nullification of the BZR Structured Contracts and
the relinquishment of the interest of Orange Beijing in the BZR Structured
Contracts.
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According to the FITE Rules, foreign investors’ ultimate equity ownership in
an entity in the PRC which provides value-added telecommunications services
must not exceed 50% and a foreign investor who wishes to acquire any
equity interest in a value-added telecommunications business in the PRC must
demonstrate (i) a good track record and (ii) experience in providing value-
added telecommunications services (“Qualification Requirements”).

Beijing Zhixing Ruijing has been engaging in the development and operation
of the Value-added Telecommunication Businesses. Under the current PRC
regulatory circumstances, Orange Beijing as a wholly foreign owned enterprise
would not be able to obtain the VAT License and thus is unable to provide the
value-added telecommunications services in the PRC directly.

On 13 July 2006, the Ministry of Information Industry (12 A R £ FE{E &
EE ), currently known as MIIT (the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of the PRC (Fh3E A RHFE T 25015 B 3F)) issued the Circular
on Strengthening the Administration of Foreign Investment in Value-added
Telecommunications Business (B iNs& /M8 B LG EBEEHEEHB
Z0) (“MIIT Notice”), which reiterated restrictions on foreign investment in the
telecommunications businesses. Under the MIIT Notice, a domestic company
that holds a VAT License is prohibited from leasing, transferring or selling the
license to foreign investors in any form, and from providing any assistance,
including providing resources, sites or facilities, to foreign investors to provide
ICP services illegally in the PRC. Due to a lack of interpretative materials from
the authorities, it cannot be assured that the MIIT will not consider the BZR
Structured Contracts as a kind of foreign investment in telecommunication
services, in which case Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and Orange Beijing may be
found in violation of the MIIT Notice.

In addition, several recent articles published by some news agencies reported
discussions that a recent PRC Supreme Court decision and two VIE structure-
related arbitration decisions in Shanghai had cast doubt on the validity of
the VIE structure. According to these articles, the PRC Supreme Court ruled
in late 2012 that an entrustment agreement entered into by and between
a Hong Kong company and a PRC domestic entity, which was purported to
enable such Hong Kong company to make an equity investment in a PRC
bank through the proxy PRC domestic entity, was void on the grounds that
this agreement established an entrustment relationship meant to circumvent
the PRC laws and regulations that prohibit foreign investment in PRC financial
institutions and as such, constituted an act of concealing illegal intentions
with a legitimate form. These articles argued that a contractual arrangement
in a VIE structure and the entrustment agreement in the cited case, which
were similar to the BZR Structured Contracts, were also designed to “get
around” the regulatory restrictions on foreign investment in certain industries.
As such, the articles noted that this Supreme Court decision might increase
the uncertainties relating to the PRC government’s view on the validity of the
VIE structure. These articles also reported, without providing sufficient details,
on two arbitration decisions by the then Shanghai CIETAC which invalidated
the contractual arrangement used in a VIE structure in 2010 and 2011.
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The PRC legal advisor is of the opinion that, based on their understanding
and the numerous precedents of PRC domestic internet content providers
controlled by overseas companies through contractual arrangements that
are similar to the BZR Structured Contracts, the BZR Structured Contracts do
not result in a violation of PRC laws, or would not be deemed as “concealing
illegal intentions with lawful forms” (as a matter concerning Article 52 of the
PRC Contract Law). The BZR Structured Contracts are enforceable, valid and
legally binding in accordance with their terms and provisions (except for part
of the arbitration clauses contained therein setting forth that the arbitration
tribunal may issue injunction or winding-up orders and the Courts of Hong
Kong and the Cayman Islands have the jurisdiction to grant interim remedies
in support of the arbitration pending formation of the arbitration tribunal).

However, according to the PRC legal advisor, it cannot be assured that the
PRC government or judicial authorities would agree that the BZR Structured
Contracts comply with current PRC laws or regulations, would not strictly
enforce current PRC laws regulating the provision of internet content, or
would not adopt new laws or policies in the future. If the PRC government or
judicial authorities determine that the BZR Structured Contracts do not comply
with applicable laws and regulations, such contracts would be deemed void
and the PRC government or judicial authorities could have broad discretion in
dealing with such incompliance, including:

(i) requiring the nullification of the BZR Structured Contracts;

(i)  levying fines and/or confiscating the proceeds generated from the
operations under the BZR Structured Contracts;

(i)  revoking of the business licenses or operating licenses of Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing;

(iv) discontinuing or placing restrictions or onerous conditions on the
business operations of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing; and

(v) taking other regulatory or enforcement actions that could be harmful to
or even shut down the business of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and/or Orange
Beijing.

In addition, where the Group loses the right to direct the activities of Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing as a result of these consequences, the Group would no longer
be able to consolidate the financial results of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing.
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Orange Beijing relies on BZR Structured Contracts to control and obtain the
economic benefits from Beijing Zhixing Ruifing, which may not be as effective
in providing operational control as direct ownership.

Due to the PRC's legal restrictions on foreign investment in the value-added
telecommunications services, Orange Beijing controls, through the BZR
Structured Contracts rather than equity ownership, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, the
operating entity in the PRC and the holder-to-be of the key licenses required
to operate the value-added telecommunications services in the PRC. However,
the BZR Structured Contracts still may not be as effective as equity ownership
in exercising control over Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. For example, Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing and its shareholders could breach or fail to perform their obligations
under the BZR Structured Contracts. If Orange Beijing had direct ownership of
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Orange Beijing would be able to exercise its rights as
a shareholder to effect changes in its board of directors, which in turn could
effect changes, subject to any applicable fiduciary obligations, at management
and operational level. Under the BZR Structured Contracts, Orange Beijing
would need to rely on its rights under the BZR Structured Contracts to effect
such changes, or designate new shareholders for Beijing Zhixing Ruijing.

If Beijing Zhixing Ruijing or its shareholders breach their obligations under
the BZR Structured Contracts or if Orange Beijing loses the effective control
over Beijing Zhixing Ruijing for any reason, Orange Beijing would need to
bring a claim against them under the terms of the BZR Structured Contracts.
The BZR Structured Contracts are governed by PRC law and provide that any
dispute which arises will be submitted to the CIETAC, for arbitration, the
ruling of which will be final and binding. Furthermore, personal liabilities of
the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing may also cause the equity interest
they hold in Beijing Zhixing Ruijing to be subject to court preservation actions
or enforcement. The legal framework and system in the PRC particularly
that relates to the arbitration proceedings is not as developed as in other
jurisdictions such as Hong Kong. As a result, significant uncertainties relating
to the enforcement of legal rights through arbitration, litigation and other
legal proceedings remain in the PRC, which could limit Orange Beijing’s ability
to enforce the BZR Structured Contracts and exert effective control over
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. If Beijing Zhixing Ruijing or any of its shareholders fails
to perform its respective obligations under the BZR Structured Contracts, and
Orange Beijing is unable to enforce the BZR Structured Contracts, or suffers
significant delays or other obstacles in the process of enforcing the BZR
Structured Contracts, the business and operations of Orange Beijing could
be severely disrupted, which could materially and adversely affect operation
results. As a result, the Company’s investment in Orange Beijing could also be
materially and adversely affected.
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Remedies of BZR Structured Contracts may not be obtained effectively under
PRC laws.

The BZR Structured Contracts provide for dispute resolution by way of
arbitration in accordance with the arbitration rules of the CIETAC in the
PRC. The BZR Structured Contracts contain provisions to the effect that the
arbitration tribunal may award remedies when Beijing Zhixing Ruijing breaches
the BZR Structured Contracts. In addition, the BZR Structured Contracts
contain provisions to the effect that the courts in Hong Kong and the Cayman
Islands are empowered to grant interim remedies in support of the arbitration
pending the formation of an arbitral tribunal.

However, the abovementioned provisions contained in the BZR Structured
Contracts may not be enforced effectively. Under PRC laws, an arbitration
tribunal does not have the power to grant any injunctive relief or provisional
or final liquidation order to preserve the assets of or any equity interest in
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing in case of disputes, and the courts in Hong Kong and
the Cayman Islands may not be empowered to grant interim remedies in
support of the arbitration pending the formation of an arbitral tribunal under
PRC laws. As a result, the provisions may not effectively protect Orange
Beijing, notwithstanding the relevant contractual provisions contained in the
BZR Structured Contracts.

Therefore, in the event that Beijing Zhixing Ruijing breaches any of the BZR
Structured Contracts, Orange Beijing may not be able to obtain sufficient
remedies in a timely manner, and its ability to exert effective control over
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and conduct its business could be materially and
adversely affected and the financial performance of Orange Beijing could be
materially and adversely affected. As a result, the Company’s investment in
Orange Beijing could also be materially and adversely affected.

The shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing may potentially have a conflict of
interests with the Group.

The Group's control over Beijing Zhixing Ruijing is based on the contractual
arrangement under the BZR Structured Contracts. Hence, conflict of interests
of the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing will adversely affect the
interests of the Company. Pursuant to the Voting Rights Proxy Agreement,
the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing have irrevocably authorised
Orange Beijing (or its designee) as their proxy to exercise all the rights of the
shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and such authorisation shall not be
altered unless otherwise instructed by Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. Therefore, it is
unlikely that there will be potential conflict of interests between the Company
and the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. However, in the unlikely event
that conflict of interests arises and cannot be resolved, the Company will
consider removing and replacing the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing.
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The contractual arrangements may be subject to scrutiny of the PRC tax
authorities and transfer pricing adjustments and additional tax may be
imposed.

The Group could face material adverse tax consequences if the PRC tax
authorities determine that the arrangements under the BZR Structured
Contracts was not entered into based on arm’s length negotiations. If the
PRC tax authorities determine that these agreements were not entered into
on an arm'’s length basis, they may adjust our income and expenses for PRC
tax purposes in the form of a transfer pricing adjustment. A transfer pricing
adjustment could adversely affect the Group’s financial position by increasing
the relevant tax liability without reducing the tax liabilities of Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing, and this could further result in late payment fees and other penalties
to Beijing Zhixing Ruijing for under-paid taxes. As a result, any transfer pricing
adjustment could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial
position and results of operations.

The Company does not have any insurance which covers the risks relating to
the BZR Structured Contracts and the transactions contemplated thereunder.

The insurance of the Group does not cover the risks relating to the BZR
Structured Contracts and the transactions contemplated thereunder and the
Company has no intention to purchase any new insurance in this regard. If
any risk arises from the BZR Structured Contracts in the future, such as those
affecting the enforceability of the BZR Structured Contracts and the relevant
agreements for the transactions contemplated thereunder and the operation
of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, the results of the Group may be adversely affected.
However, the Group has been monitoring the relevant legal and operational
environment from time to time to comply with the applicable laws and
regulations. In addition, the Group has been implementing relevant internal
control measures to reduce the operational risk.

Actions taken to mitigate the risks associated with the BZR
Structured Contracts

The BZR Structured Contracts contain certain provisions in order to exercise
effective control over and to safeguard the assets of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing,
including but not limited to that, without the prior written consent of Orange
Beijing, the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing shall not at any time
dispose, transfer, pledge, sell or create any charges over the assets, business,
revenue or any beneficial interests of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing shall conduct its business in its ordinary and usual course to preserve
the asset value of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and shall not engage in any act (or
lack thereof) which may have any adverse effect on the business, operations
and asset value of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, and etc.
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In addition to the abovementioned internal control measures as provided
in the BZR Structured Contracts, the Company has implemented, through
Orange Beijing, additional internal control measures against Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing as appropriate, having regard to the internal control measures adopted
by the Group from time to time, which may include (without limitation):

(i)  Beijing Zhixing Ruijing to make available monthly management accounts
and submit key operating data after each month end and provide
explanations on any material fluctuations to Orange Beijing;

(i) Beijing Zhixing Ruijing to assist and facilitate Orange Beijing to conduct
quarterly on-site internal audit on Beijing Zhixing Ruijing; and

(iii) if required, legal advisers and, or other professionals will be retained to
deal with specific issues arising from the BZR Structured Contracts and
to ensure that the operation of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing will comply with
applicable laws and regulations.

Further information regarding risks associated with the Contractual
Arrangements and the BZR Structured Contracts are also set out in the
Transfer of Listing Announcement and the announcement of the Company
dated 8 May 2015 respectively.

Structured Contracts involving Hangzhou Saidian
Technology

On 18 December 2015, the Company entered into sale and purchase
agreement (“Zhongfu SPA") with Daxiong Holdings Limited (“Daxiong”),
Hanson He Holdings Limited (“Hanson”), Richard Chen Holdings Limited
(“Richard Chen"), Grand Novel Developments Limited C&¥3E AR A
A]) ("Grand Novel”) and Mr Moustache Holdings Limited (“Moustache”)
(collectively, the “Zhongfu Sellers”), and Mr. Cao Guoxiong (B BIRE) (“Mr.
Cao"), Mr. He Shunsheng (fi]JlE4), (“Mr. He") Mr. Chen Xuejun (FRE
) (“Mr. Chen”), Mr. Guan Jianzhong (B #&&) (“Mr. Guan”), and Mr.
Liao Bin (B23) (“Mr. Liao") (collectively, the “Zhongfu Seller Guarantors”),
pursuant to which the Sellers has conditionally agreed to sell, and the
Company has conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of
ZhongFu Holdings Limited, for an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$170,807,500 (equivalent to RMB144,573,000).

Part of the consideration amounting approximately HK$70,095,000 (equivalent
to RMB59,329,000) was settled in cash and the remaining portion was
settled by issuance and allotment of convertible bonds which are subject to
downward adjustments stipulated in the sale and purchase agreement.
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On 5 January 2016, Hangzhou Saidian Information Technology Company
Limited* HMERZEFRHRAR A A (“Hangzhou Saidian Information”)
("IN EHZE"), a wholly owned subsidiary of ZhongFu Holdings Limited,
entered into a series of structured contracts, including Exclusive Right to
Purchase Agreement; Authorisation Agreement; Management and Operations
Agreement and Pledge Agreement (as respectively defined below are
collectively called the “ZhongFu Structured Contracts”) with the shareholders
of Hangzhou Saidian Technology Company Limited i/ ZRERH B R A7)
("Hangzhou Saidian Technology”) (“#i/NZEERH%"), Mr. Guo Jiang (F)1),
Mr. Chen Xuejun (FREE) (together the “PRC Equity Owners”).

The shareholders of Hangzhou Saidian Technology unconditionally and
irrevocably authorise any individual designated by the Group to represent
them in exercising all their rights as shareholders of Hangzhou Saidian
Technology including without limitation, to transfer all their equity interests,
to determine the consideration for such transfer, to complete all relevant
procedures regarding such transfer, to attend general meetings and
exercise voting rights, to execute all such relevant documents, agreements
and resolutions. In addition, if Hangzhou Saidian Technology declares any
dividend, bonus or adopts any proposal for distribution of profits, such
dividends, bonus or economic benefits of all such proposal for distribution
shall be delivered to the Group.

In accordance with the ZhongFu Structured Contracts, the Group has
acquired the control over Hangzhou Saidian Technology as the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities,
i.e. the activities that significantly affect the Hangzhou Saidian Technology’s
variable returns. The Group is also entitled to substantially all of the operating
profits and residual interest generated by Hangzhou Saidian Technology.
Hangzhou Saidian Technology in turn held 80.38% of the equity interest of
Zheliang ZhongFu Internet Technology Company Limited #7 /T iR 4848 £H%
BBRAR] (“Zhejiang Zhongfu”). On 8 January 2016, the Group fulfilled all
the conditions precedent set out in the sale and purchase agreement. The
acquisition of 100% of equity interest of ZhongFu Holdings Limited (“Zhongfu
Acquisition”) has been completed accordingly. Consequently, Zhejiang
Zhongfu has become a subsidiary of the Group with effect from 8 January
2016.

The results and financial position of ZhongFu Holdings Limited have been
included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group from 8 January
2016.

The goodwill of approximately RMB38,426,000 arising from the acquisition
is attributable the synergies and technical talent and economies of scale
expected from combining the operations of the Group and Zhejiang Zhongfu.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax
purpose.
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Information of ZhongFu Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Zhongfu Group")

ZhongFu Holdings Limited is an investment holding company incorporated
in the BVI on 28 August 2015 with limited liability and issued capital of
US$50,000. As at the date of this report, ZhongFu Holdings Limited is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

ZhongFu Holdings Limited held the entire issued share capital in SaiDian HK
Limited (“SaiDian HK"), an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong on 15 September 2015 with limited liability and issued capital of
HK$10,000, which in turn held the entire equity interest in Hangzhou Saidian
Information, a company incorporated under the laws of the PRC.

Hangzhou Saidian Technology is a limited company established in the PRC on
8 December 2009 with paid up capital of RMB5,250,000 and is an investment
holding company. It held 80.38% equity interest of Zhejiang Zhongfu which
is a limited company established in the PRC on 18 June 2001 with paid up
capital of RMB10,000,000. Zhejiang Zhongfu in turn wholly owned &3IIT
MR AR S R R A R A A Shenzhen Zhongfu Yinxian Internet Technology
Company Limited* (“Shenzhen Zhongfu”) and #TT#HKXPEREER A
7] Zhe Jiang Nuotian Internet Technology Company Limited*(“Zhejiang
Nuotian”). Shenzhen Zhongfu is a limited company established in the PRC
on 21 May 2003 with paid up capital of RMB1,000,000. Zhejiang Nuotian
is a limited company established in the PRC on 15 March 2007 with paid up
capital of RMB5,000,000.

Set out below is the key financial information of Hangzhou Saidian
Technology during the year ended 31 December 2017:

Revenue
Total assets
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HRBIZhongFu Holdings Limited & H KB
RRZER (B HIRER D)
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31 December
2017
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RMB’000
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49,950
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Business overview and revenue model

Hangzhou Saidian Information, Zhejiang Zhongfu, Shenzhen Zhongfu and
Zhejiang Nuotian (collectively referred to as the “VIE Group”) is principally
engaged in the provision of vertical websites in the garment industry in the
PRC. It holds certain assets related to the operation of the websites under
the key domain names: www.efu.com.cn (FREIAREEA), www.yifu.net (FAR),
www. 5 1fashion.com.cn (8 i &6 57), www.5143.cn (BREE HNEEAE), www.nynet.com.cn
(PBIATRAE) and www .kidsnet.cn (£ 18248), which are internet portals
mainly providing information on fashion brands, finished garment products
(such as men’s wear, women'’s wear, children’s wear, underwear, shoes,
leather goods, down jackets and others), fabrics, ancillary materials (such
as buttons, zippers), textile equipment (such as sewing machines, cutting
machines, stitching machines, printing machines, automated systems) to
business users (such as manufacturers, wholesalers, traders, department
stores, shopping malls) in the garment industry.

Revenue of Zhejiang Zhongfu was generated from advertising income,
marketing solution fees from domestic apparels, bags and accessories
manufacturers for the advertisement placed with Zhejiang Zhongfu on its
websites in relation to the products and/or brands. Revenue from one-stop
solution providers for online and offline promotion solutions have been
increasing their respective contribution. Revenue from provision of promotion
solutions would be in the form of a pre-determined service fee.

MAJOR TERMS OF THE ZHONGFU STRUCTURED
CONTRACTS

1. Exclusive Right to Purchase Agreement

Hangzhou Saidian Information, Hangzhou Saidian Technology and the
PRC Equity Owners enter into an exclusive right to purchase agreement
(the “Exclusive Right to Purchase Agreement”), under which the
PRC Equity Owners will irrevocably, and jointly and individually grant
Hangzhou Saidian Information the exclusive right to purchase the shares
of Hangzhou Saidian Technology at the minimum price permitted by
the relevant laws and regulations of PRC at any time, by one or more
times. The PRC Equity Owners may not transfer their shares in Hangzhou
Saidian Technology without written consent from Hangzhou Saidian
Information.
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The exclusive purchase right may be exercised by Hangzhou Saidian
Information by written notice to the PRC Equity Owners. Hangzhou
Saidian Technology and the PRC Equity Owners shall provide all
necessary information and documents for the share registration. In
the situation that more than one shareholder holding the shares, the
PRC Equity Owners and Hangzhou Saidian Technology shall procure
any remaining shareholders of Hangzhou Saidian Technology, if any
to agree to transfer the shares to Hangzhou Saidian Information and/
or its designated parties in written statement, indicating their waiver of
pre-emptive rights. In the event of transfer of shares, Hangzhou Saidian
Technology shall procure the shareholders to sign a share purchase
agreement with Hangzhou Saidian Information and/or designated
parties upon the receipt of exercise notice. To ensure the performance
of this agreement, a Pledge Agreement (as hereinafter defined) will be
signed.

The price would be the minimum price permitted by the relevant laws
and regulations of PRC. The paid shareholder will return the rest of the
transfer price after deducting the paid-up capital by them to Hangzhou
Saidian Technology. Any taxes, charges and fees shall be borne by the
parties pursuant to relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.

The Exclusive Right to Purchase Agreement shall be effective upon
execution and as long as Hangzhou Saidian Technology subsists. The
parties agree that the Exclusive Right to Purchase Agreement can be
terminated by Hangzhou Saidian Information by giving 30 days’ written
notice.

Authorisation Agreement

Hangzhou Saidian Information, Hangzhou Saidian Technology and
the PRC Equity Owners entered into an authorisation agreement
(“Authorisation Agreement”). Pursuant to the Authorisation Agreement,
Hangzhou Saidian Information (or its designated parties who must be
one of the Director and a PRC citizen, and must not be the PRC Equity
Owners or their connected person(s) (the “Designated Party(ies)”)) will
have the power to, inter alia, exercise all shareholder’s rights granted by
applicable laws, regulations and Hangzhou Saidian Technology’s articles
of association, including but not limited to convening shareholders
meeting, voting and signing resolutions at shareholders meeting,
filing documents to company registration authorities, designating and
appointing directors and supervisors, transferring or disposing off equity
of Hangzhou Saidian Technology, participating in Hangzhou Saidian
Technology’s major decisions, and choosing management for Hangzhou
Saidian Technology.

No prior consent from the PRC Equity Owners is required before
Hangzhou Saidian Information (or its Designated Parties) exercise its
voting rights. The PRC Equity Owners shall recognize Hangzhou Saidian
Information’s voting result.
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The Authorisation Agreement shall be effective upon execution and
as long as Hangzhou Saidian Technology's shareholders remain to be
Hangzhou Saidian Technology's shareholders. The parties agree that
the Authorisation Agreement can be terminated by Hangzhou Saidian
Information each by giving 30 days’ written notice.

Management and Operations Agreement

Hangzhou Saidian Information, Hangzhou Saidian Technology and
the PRC Equity Owners entered into a management and operation
agreement (the “Management and Operation Agreement”).

Pursuant to the Management and Operations Agreement, Hangzhou
Saidian Technology will appoint Hangzhou Saidian Information as its
exclusive services provider of management and operations services. Such
services include all necessary services within the scope of Hangzhou
Saidian Technology’s business, such as but not limited to business
consultations, marketing consultancy, technical services, intellectual
properties licenses, product research and development, system
maintenance, as well as general corporate management.

The PRC Equity Owners and Hangzhou Saidian Technology shall
procure the resignation of directors and supervisors whose appointment
Hangzhou Saidian Information does not agree to. Those directors and
supervisors shall be replaced by personnel appointed by Hangzhou
Saidian Information.

Hangzhou Saidian Technology shall pay Hangzhou Saidian Information
such service fees equivalent to the amount of the Hangzhou Saidian
Technology's revenue deducted by Hangzhou Saidian Technology’s (and
its subsidiaries’) expenses (including Hangzhou Saidian Technology's
costs, depreciation, other expenses and payments, and relevant tax
payments incurred during the term of the Management and Operations
Agreement), loss covered by Hangzhou Saidian Technology and the
relevant reserve fund extracted by Hangzhou Saidian Technology. The
service fee shall be calculated within three months since the end of each
financial year based on the audited report prepared in accordance with
the PRC Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and paid within
15 days of the issuance date of such audited report.

The Management and Operations Agreement shall be effective
upon execution for three years, and upon expiry, Hangzhou Saidian
Information has a sole discretionary right to renew the Management and
Operations Agreement for another three years, subject to the applicable
law, regulations and rules at that time (including the Listing Rules). The
parties agree that the Management and Operations Agreement can be
terminated by Hangzhou Saidian Information by giving 30 days’ written
notice.
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Pledge Agreement

Hangzhou Saidian Information, Hangzhou Saidian Technology and
the PRC Equity Owners entered into a pledge agreement (the “Pledge
Agreement”).

According to the Pledge Agreement, the PRC Equity Owners will pledge
to Hangzhou Saidian Information their equity interests in Hangzhou
Saidian Technology (the “Pledged Interests”, being the entire equity
interests in Hangzhou Saidian Technology) as security for Hangzhou
Saidian Information’s rights and interests granted by the Exclusive
Right to Purchase Agreement, the Authorisation Agreement and the
Management and Operations Agreement (the “Master Agreements”)
(including any payment (including legal expense), expense, loss, interests,
liguidated damages, compensation, costs for realization of loans, costs
and losses for specific performance of Hangzhou Saidian Technology,
and the liabilities incurred as results of the termination, recession, whole
or partial invalidation of the Master Agreements). Hangzhou Saidian
Information shall have the right to compensation by converting the
Pledged Interests into money and seek preferential payments from the
proceeds from the auction or sales of the Pledged Interests concerned
or other disposal methods as agreed by each party in accordance with
relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.

The Pledge Agreement shall become effective upon the execution
date. The PRC Equity Owners has cooperated with Hangzhou Saidian
Technology and registered the pledge in shareholders’ register with the
relevant authorities.

Prior to the full discharge of the payments and obligations under the
Master Agreements, without written consent of the Hangzhou Saidian
Information, the PRC Equity Owners shall not assign any of the Pledged
Interests.

Unless otherwise agreed by Hangzhou Saidian Information in writing,
upon the full and complete performance of Hangzhou Saidian
Technology and the PRC Equity Owners under the Master Agreements as
well as Hangzhou Saidian Information’s written confirmation, the Pledge
Agreement shall be terminated. Costs reasonably incurred thereof shall
be borne by the PRC Equity Owners.

In the event where Hangzhou Saidian Technology or the PRC Equity
Owners failed to fully discharge their obligations under the Master
Agreements, Hangzhou Saidian Information shall continuously enjoy the
pledge until the above-mentioned obligations being fulfilled in a manner
to its satisfaction.
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The Company will unwind the ZhongFu Structured Contracts and
directly hold the equity interests of Hangzhou Saidian Technology when
the relevant restrictions no longer exist. The current legal or regulatory
restrictions in exercising the purchase right under the Exclusive Right
to Purchase Agreement is stipulated in the FITE Rules. Furthermore,
even if the foreign ownership restriction is relaxed, the transfer of the
equity interests in Hangzhou Saidian Technology from the shareholders
of Hangzhou Saidian Technology to the Group may still be subject to
substantial costs.

Reasons for and the benefits of the sale and purchase
agreement and the ZhongFu Structured Contracts

By leveraging on the combined customer base and business network of the
Group and the Zhongfu Group, it is envisaged that the Group will have a
wider and deeper access to different groups of customers who would require
the existing services provided by the Group and/or facilitate the matching
between the subscribers of the Group (being a customer or a supplier) with
the customers and business network of the Zhongfu Group. Besides, upon
completion of the Zhongfu Acquisition, the Group may widen its industry
coverage and geographical coverage. Moreover, the Group may integrate the
resources between the Group and the Zhongfu Group in various aspects (such
as human resources, sales and marketing, financing, back office support,
technical support and etc.) to achieve economy of scale, cost reduction
and efficiency improvement. The Directors (including the independent non-
executive Director) consider that (i) the Zhongfu SPA, the ZhongFu Structured
Contracts and the transactions contemplated thereunder were entered into on
normal commercial terms in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company after arm'’s length negotiation, and that the terms of the Zhongfu
SPA, the ZhongFu Structured Contracts and the transactions contemplated
thereunder are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole; and (ii) the amount of the annual caps for the
transactions contemplated under the ZhongFu Structured Contracts are fair
and reasonable.

For more details, please refer to the section headed “"SEGMENT
INFORMATION" on page 184 of this report.
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Risks relating to the ZhongFu Structured Contracts

We refer to the above section titled “Risk associated with the BZR Structured
Contracts”, similar risks identified under the said section would be applicable
to ZhongFu Structured Contracts as well, in particular; the following risks:

(1) The PRC government may determine that the ZhongFu Structured
Contracts do not comply with the applicable laws and regulations;

(2) The ZhongFu Structured Contracts may not be as effective as direct
ownership in providing control over Hangzhou Saidian Technology;

(3)  The PRC Equity Owners may potentially have a conflict of interests with
the Group;

(4) The contractual arrangements may be subject to scrutiny of the PRC tax
authorities and transfer pricing adjustments and additional tax may be
imposed,;

(5) The Company does not have any insurance which covers the risks
relating to the ZhongFu Structured Contracts and the transactions
contemplated thereunder.

Impact of Foreign Investment Law of the PRC (Draft for Comment)
on the ZhongFu Structured Contracts and the Business of Hangzhou
Saidian Technology

On 19 January 2015, MOFCOM published the new draft of the Foreign
Investment Law (Draft for Comment) (1 2 A B # 7 & 4} B % & )&
(Ex=HkE R T5)) (the "Draft for Comment”) for public comment. The
new Foreign Investment Law (the “New Foreign Investment Law"), if finally
adopted, may have significant impact on the foreign investment regime of the
PRC.

Under the Draft for Comment, a negative list (the “Negative List”) will be
formulated and promulgated by the State Council, which will classify the
foreign investment industries into the restricted list and prohibited list. For the
industries not listed in the Negative List, foreign investors are allowed to make
the investment without approval. For the industries listed in the restricted list
of the Negative List, foreign investors need to obtain access permission from
competent departments before it is allowed to make the investment. For the
industries listed in the prohibited list of the Negative List, foreign investors are
prohibited from making any investment.
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As the Draft for Comment is not formally promulgated and no Negative List
is formulated or promulgated by the State Council according to the Draft for
Comment, therefore, there is uncertainty as to whether the business of the VIE
Group (including the operation of the vertical website business) will fall into
the restricted list or prohibited list of the Negative List. According to current
contents of the Draft for Comment and the Notes, with respect to investment
arrangement through VIE structure before the New Foreign Investment Law
taking effect, if the relevant investment still falls within restricted or prohibited
industries for foreign investment, as mentioned above, it will be subject to (i)
reporting; (i) verification; or (iii) access permission requirement.

There is uncertainty as to which one of the three possible regimes will be
finally adopted in the New Foreign Investment Law. Based on the Draft for
Comment and the Notes, a VIE structure which is ultimately controlled by a
PRC investor may be permitted to continue following reporting to, verification
or access permission by MOFCOM, while a VIE structure which is ultimately
controlled by a foreign investor may be permitted to continue following
approval by MOFCOM after taking into account a number of consideration
including, without limitation, the identity (whether PRC investor or foreign
investor) of the Actual Controller.

Taking into account the facts that the consultation stage for public comment
of the Draft for Comment ended in February 2015 and a number of legislative
stages have to be undergone before the promulgation and implementation
of the New Foreign Investment Law, and the Directors consider that proper
arrangement has been made at this stage to mitigate against the risk to the
minimal extent that, following the closing of the Acquisition, the business
under the ZhongFu Structured Contracts may become non-compliant with the
Draft for Comment.

Three Options Proposed for the Treatment of the Existing VIE Structure
under the Notes

As mentioned above, with respect to investment arrangement through
VIE structure before the Draft for Comment taking effect, if the relevant
investment still falls within restricted or prohibited industries for foreign
investment as and when the Draft for Comment effect, it will be subject to
(i) reporting; (i) verification; or (iii) access permission requirement. Based on
the Draft for Comment and the Notes, a VIE structure which is ultimately
controlled by a PRC investor may be permitted to continue following reporting
to, verification or access permission by MOFCOM, while a VIE structure which
is ultimately controlled by a foreign investor may be permitted to continue
following approval by MOFCOM after taking into account a number of
consideration including, without limitation, the identity (whether PRC investor
or foreign investor) of the Actual Controller. The Company will comply with
the disclosure requirements under paragraph 20 of Guidance Letter 77-14
issued by the Stock Exchange to keep the Shareholders informed of the VIE
Group's business in the Company’s annual reports.
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Further details of the risks relating to ZhongFu Structured Contracts are also
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 18 December 2015.

INTERNAL CONTROL MEASURES TO BE
IMPLEMENTED BY THE GROUP

The ZhongFu Structured Contracts contained certain provisions in order
to exercise effective control over and to safeguard the assets of Hangzhou
Saidian Technology. In addition to the internal control measures as provided
in the ZhongFu Structured Contracts, it is the intention of the Company,
following completion of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, to implement,
through Hangzhou Saidian Information, additional internal control measures
against Hangzhou Saidian Technology as appropriate, having regard to the
internal control measures adopted by the Group from time to time, which
may include but not limited to:

Management controls

(i) The Group will appoint a board representative (the “Representative”)
to the board of Hangzhou Saidian Technology. The Representative
is required to conduct reviews on the operations of Hangzhou
Saidian Technology and shall submit the reviews to the Board. The
Representative is also required to check the authenticity of the monthly
management accounts of Hangzhou Saidian Technology;

(i)  The Representative shall establish a team to be funded by the Group
who shall station at Hangzhou Saidian Technology and shall be actively
involved in various aspects of the daily managerial and operational
activities of Hangzhou Saidian Technology;

(i)  Upon receiving notification of any major events of Hangzhou Saidian
Technology by the Representative, the registered shareholders of
Hangzhou Saidian Technology must report to the company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”), who must in turn report to
the Board;

(iv)  The Company Secretary shall conduct regular site visits to Hangzhou
Saidian Technology and conduct personnel interviews quarterly and
submit reports to the Board; and

(v)  All seals, chops, incorporation documents and all other legal documents
of Hangzhou Saidian Technology must be kept at the office of
Hangzhou Saidian Information.
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Financial controls

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The financial controller of the Company (the “FC") shall collect monthly
management accounts, bank statements and cash balances and major
operational data of Hangzhou Saidian Technology for review. Upon
discovery of any suspicious matters, the FC must report to the Company
Secretary, who shall in turn report to the Board;

If the payment of the service fees from Hangzhou Saidian Technology
to Hangzhou Saidian Information is delayed, the FC must meet with
Hangzhou Saidian Technology’s Shareholders to investigate, and
should report any suspicious matters to the Board. In extreme cases,
the registered shareholder(s) of Hangzhou Saidian Technology will be
removed and replaced;

Hangzhou Saidian Technology must submit copies of latest bank
statements for every bank accounts of Hangzhou Saidian Technology
within 15 days after each month end; and

Hangzhou Saidian Technology must assist and facilitate the Company
to conduct quarterly on-site internal audit on Hangzhou Saidian
Technology.

Qualification Requirements

It is the Company'’s intention to unwind the Arrangements as discussed above
and to hold all necessary and relevant licences for operation of its business
subject to such relevant laws and regulations as soon as the law allows the
business to operate without such Arrangements.

As a result of there being no applicable PRC laws, regulations or rules
which provides clear guidance on the interpretation of the Qualification
Requirements, the Company is currently unable to ascertain whether it is
capable for fulfilling all requirements of the necessary licence and approval
for online operations and conducting Value-added Telecommunications
Businesses when the laws allow the Group to directly operate the business.
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The Group has gradually commence and strengthen its overseas value-
added telecommunications services business operations with a view to
demonstrate a good track record for meeting the Qualification Requirements
in due course once the restrictions on the percentage of foreign ownership
in telecommunications services are removed in the PRC by then the Group
can unwind the Arrangements, and acquire the entire equity of Huicong
Construction, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and Hangzhou Saidian Technology,
respectively.

In 2014, the Group has established a subsidiary in Hong Kong, namely, HC
Group (Hong Kong) Limited (“Hong Kong HC"). Hong Kong HC will be
principally engaged in the construction and operation of the Group’s new
overseas platform in Hong Kong, with an aim to making such platform
the overseas platform and provide an expanded and upgraded services for
the existing customers of the Group. Such additional platform will allow
the existing and future high-quality customers to display their products
and services online. Making use of the Group’s strong customer base and
media resources, Hong Kong HC and its overseas platform will help Hong
Kong and overseas buyers to locate qualified PRC suppliers and facilitate
transactions between them. The Directors consider the Group possesses
the necessary technics and operating experiences as well as strong internal
resources to facilitate the operation of Hong Kong HC with its overseas
platform. Currently, Hong Kong HC is the registrant of the domain name
"hc360.com.hk” and the Group has launched the construction of the Group's
new overseas platform and expects to commit not less than HK$2 million to
the development and operation of the new overseas platform. Such financial
commitment shall include, but not limited to, the establishment of the server,
network services, staff costs and marketing costs. More financial resources
will be committed by the Group according to the business needs of the new
overseas platform.

As at the date of this report, the Group had completed the establishment of
overseas platform (www.hc360.com.hk). The platform had gone online and
entered into the trial operation stage. Hong Kong HC had formally operate
the overseas platform in 2016. The Group will continue to input relevant
resources to expand the overseas platform business.
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DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION IN RELATION
TO THE ACQUISITION OF THE ENTIRE ISSUED
SHARE CAPITAL OF HUUJIA YUANTIAN LIMITED
INVOLVING ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 13 January 2017, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (“Huijia SPA”) with Mu Hao Holdings Limited, Hong Rui
Technology Holdings Limited, Chance Technology Co. Ltd and Vanguard
Technology Holdings Limited (together the “Huijia Sellers”) and Mr. Zou Kai
(#B8)l), Mr. Hong Chaoran (8 #X), Ms. Wang Fei (E£3JE) and Mr. Sun Yi (#&
) (together the “ Huijia Seller Guarantors”) to acquire the entire equity
interest of Huijia Yuantian Limited at a total consideration of HK$409,090,909
(equivalent to RMB360,000,000). Part of the consideration in the amount of
HK$184,090,909 (equivalent to RMB162,000,000) was settled by cash, while
the remaining portion was settled by issuance and allotment of convertible
bonds in the aggregate principal amount of HK$225,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB198,000,000) (subject to adjustments).

The transaction had been completed on 3 February 2017 in accordance
with the terms of the Huijia SPA. Please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 13 January 2017 and 3 February 2017 for further details.

TERMINATION DEED IN RELATION TO A
CONNECTED TRANSACTION OF THE COMPANY

On 20 January 2017, the Company has entered into a termination deed
with Mr. Liu Xiaodong (the “Termination Deed”), pursuant to which, the
Company and Mr. Liu Xiaodong mutually agreed to terminate the subscription
agreement dated 9 December 2015 (“Subscription Agreement”) on the part
of the Company and Mr. Liu Xiaodong only and in accordance with relevant
clauses in the Subscription Agreement. With effect from the Termination
Deed, Mr. Liu Xiaodong ceased to subscribe for the convertible bonds with
a principal amount of HK$120,000,000, and neither the Company nor Mr.
Liu Xiaodong shall have any claim or action against each other in connection
with the Subscription Agreement. The Board considered that the Termination
Deed has no material adverse impact on the business operations and financial
position of the Group.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 9 December
2015, 30 December 2015, 29 February 2016, 1 April 2016, 26 May 2016 and
20 January 2017 and the circular of the Company dated 12 January 2016.
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FULFILLMENT OF THE PERFORMANCE TARGET OF
ZHEJIANG ZHONGFU FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2016

Pursuant to the Zhongfu SPA entered into between Zhongfu Sellers, Zhongfu
Seller Guarantors and the Company, the Company has conditionally agreed
to acquire the entire issued share capital of ZhongFu Holdings Limited, for
an aggregate consideration of HK$170,807,500 (subject to downward
adjustments) to be settled at completion by way of (i) cash; and (ii) issuance
and allotment of the convertible bonds (the “Zhongfu CBs") (subject to
downward adjustments). HK$100,712,500 of the consideration (being the
aggregate principal amount of the allotment and issue of the Zhongfu CBs)
is subject to downward adjustments on the basis of a yearly target amount
of RMB10,000,000, RMB 13,000,000 and RMB 16,900,000 of the audited
consolidated distributable profit (after-tax) of Zhejiang Zhongfu for the year
ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 respectively.

According to the audited consolidated financial statement of Zhejiang
Zhongfu for the year ended 31 December 2016 dated 28 March 2017, the
audited consolidated distributable profit (after-tax) of Zhejiang Zhongfu for
the year ended 31 December 2016 exceeds RMB10,000,000. Accordingly,
the relevant performance target for the first year has been met, and the
Zhongfu Sellers shall convert the Zhongfu CBs in the principal amount of
HK$40,427,500 into ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”) at the
conversion price of HK$10.00 per Share. Accordingly, a total of 4,042,750
Shares had been allotted and issued to the Zhongfu Sellers.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 18
December 2015, 8 January 2016 and 28 March 2017.
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FULFILLMENT OF THE PERFORMANCE TARGET OF
ORANGE TRIANGLE INC., ORANGE (HK), ORANGE
BEUJING AND BEIJING ZHIXING RUIJING FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 8 May 2015 entered into
between NAVI-IT LIMITED (the “Orange Seller”), Mr. Liu Xiaodong (£/)»
%), Ms. Wang Qian (E£f&), Mr. Shi Shilin (}&tt#f) and Ms. Yang Ye (15%)
(the “Orange Seller Guarantors”) and the Company (the “Orange SPA"), the
Company has conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital
of Orange Triangle Inc. at a consideration of US$ equivalent amount of
RMB1,500,000,000. Pursuant to the Orange SPA, 70% of the consideration
(i.e. the US$ equivalent amount of RMB1,050,000,000) shall be settled by
the allotment and issuance of 155,684,485 Shares at HK$8.5 per Share
(the "Consideration Shares”), subject to downward adjustments, among
other things, on the basis of a yearly target amount of RMB100,000,000,
RMB130,000,000 and RMB170,000,000 of after-tax profit of Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing for each of three years from the first day of the month in which
completion takes place.

According to the audited financial information of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing for
the year ended 30 June 2017 issued by the Company’s auditor on 28 August
2017, the after-tax profit of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing for the year ended 30
June 2017 exceeds RMB130,000,000. Accordingly, the relevant performance
target of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing for the second year has been met and the
Orange Seller Guarantors or their designated persons will not be required to
compensate the Company. The Company and each Orange Seller Guarantor
or their designated person shall jointly instruct the escrow agent, as the
case may be, to release 44,479,057 Consideration Shares as agreed and all
dividends attached to such Consideration Shares to the relevant Orange Seller
Guarantor or its designated person pursuant to the terms of the Orange SPA.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 8 May
2015, 2 June 2015 and 28 August 2017, and the circular of the Company
dated 4 June 2015.
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MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION -
ACQUISITION OF THE REMAINING EQUITY
INTERESTS IN CHONGQING DIGITAL CHINA
HUICONG MICRO-CREDIT CO., LTD AND DIGITAL
CHINA'S SUBSCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY'’S NEW
SHARES UNDER A SPECIFIC MANDATE

On 19 May 2017, the Company, Digital China Holdings Limited (“Digital
China”, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 00861), and a substantial shareholder of the Company), Beijing Huicong
Internet Information Technology Co., Ltd* (3t RZIAH B {Z SR MBRA
al) (“Beijing Huicong Internet”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
(as purchaser) and Digital China Investments Limited* (M &GR A =)
("Digital China Investments”, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of Digital
China) (as vendor) entered into a formal sale and purchase agreement (the
"Formal SPA”) in relation to the acquisition of the remaining 60% equity
interest (the “Sale Shares”) in Chongging Digital China Huicong Micro-
Credit Co., Ltd* (EE#MNEISEB/NEERER A F) (“Micro-Credit”) as
contemplated under a framework agreement entered into between Digital
China and the Company on 24 April 2017 (the “Acquisition”).

Micro-Credit is a company established in the PRC and is indirectly owned as
to 40% by the Company and 60% by Digital China through their respective
wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Acquisition will enhance the development and
expansion potential of the Group's financial service cluster by providing more
comprehensive services to small and medium size corporate customers in
respect of supply chain and transaction funds etc.

Pursuant to the Formal SPA, Beijing Huicong Internet has conditionally agreed
to purchase and Digital China Investments has conditionally agreed to sell
the Sale Shares for a consideration of RMB1,083,637,320 (equivalent to
HK$1,227,000,000) (the “Consideration”). The Consideration is to be settled
in cash by Beijing Huicong Internet within six months after the execution of
the first equity transfer agreement to be executed between Beijing Huicong
Internet and Digital China Investments in respect of the Acquisition.

Digital China has undertaken that upon Beijing Huicong Internet transferring
any part of the Consideration to Digital China Investments in the PRC, Digital
China will within 10 business days pay a sum equal to the said part of the
Consideration to the Company in Hong Kong to subscribe for the new shares
to be allotted and issued by the Company to Digital China or its designated
wholly-owned subsidiary (the “Subscription”) pursuant to the Formal SPA at
the issue price of HK$7.0 each (the “New Shares”).

Upon the Purchaser paying the whole Consideration, a total of 175,285,714
New Shares shall be subscribed by Digital China or its designated wholly-
owned subsidiary.
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The Acquisition constituted a major transaction of the Company. As Digital
China is a substantial shareholder of the Company, the Acquisition and the
Subscription constituted connected transactions of the Company. Completion
to the above transactions are subject to the fulfilment of the conditions
precedent as set out in the Formal SPA and the equity transfer agreement(s) to
be executed between Beijing Huicong Internet and Digital China Investments
in respect of the Acquisition in one batch or in stages as required by laws and
regulations of People’s Republic of China.

On 14 July 2017, the ordinary resolutions in relation to the Acquisition and
the Subscription as set out in the notice of extraordinary general meeting
dated 27 June 2017 were duly passed by the shareholders of the Company.

On 2 November 2017, ST A RBUT € B L{E## 2 = (Chongging Municipal
People’s Government Financial Affairs Office*) has approved the transfer of
30% equity interest in Micro-Credit (the “Equity Transfer”) from Digital China
Investments to Beijing Huicong Internet. On 15 November 2017, the Purchaser
had settled the consideration for the Equity Transfer of RMB541,818,660
("First Consideration”). The amount of the First Consideration was ratified in a
supplemental agreement entered into between the Purchaser and the Vendor
on 10 November 2017 where reference to the First Consideration in the first
Equity Transfer Agreement dated 25 October 2017, being HK$613,500,000 in
RMB equivalent at an exchange rate of 0.88316, should be RMB541,818,660
instead of RMB541,866,000.

On 17 November 2017, the Company had received the subscription money
from Digital China and had allotted and issued a total of 87,642,857 New
Shares for the First Subscription to Talent Gain Developments Limited,
a designated nominee and wholly-owned subsidiary of Digital China.
Immediately after completion of the First Subscription, Digital China and its
associates held an aggregate of approximately 23.37% of the issued shares of
the Company.

Further details of the Acquisition and the Subscription are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 17 August 2016, 24 April 2017, 19
May 2017 and 15 November 2017 and the circular of the Company dated 27
June 2017.
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CHANGE IN BOARD LOT SIZE

With effect from 28 September 2017, the board lot size of the Shares for
trading on the Stock Exchange has been changed from 2,000 Shares to 500
Shares. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 7
September 2017.

GRANT OF SHARE OPTIONS

On 13 October 2017, the Board has resolved to conditionally grant
29,930,000 share options under the Company'’s share option scheme adopted
on 22 May 2015 at an exercise price of HK$6.476 per Share to Mr. Liu Jun, an
executive Director, entitling him to subscribe for 29,930,000 Shares, subject
to the independent shareholders’ approval. The said grant has been approved
by the Company’s independent shareholders’ at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 8 December 2017.

For details of the share options granted to Mr. Liu Jun, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 13 October 2017, 20 November 2017
and 8 December 2017 and the circular of the Company dated 20 November
2017.

RE-DESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS AND CHANGES
IN THE IMPORTANT FUNCTIONS OF DIRECTORS
With effect from 18 October 2017, (a) Mr. Guo Fansheng has been
redesignated as a non-executive Director and resign as the chairman of
the Board, the chairman of the nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”), authorised representative (“Authorised representative”) and the
compliance officer (“Compliance Officer”) of the Company; (b) Mr. Guo Jiang
has resigned as the chief executive officer of the Company (“Chief Executive
Officer”), and has been appointed as the chairman of the Board, the chairman
of the Nomination Committee and the Compliance Officer; and (c) Mr. Liu
Jun has been appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and the Authorised
Representative.

PARTIAL REDEMPTION OF THE HK$780,000,000
5.00 PER CENT. CONVERTIBLE BONDS DUE 2019

The Company had issued convertible bonds with an initial aggregate principal
amount of HK$780,000,000 (“Bonds”) due 2019 pursuant to a subscription
agreement dated 20 November 2014. A principal amount of HK$728,400,000
of the Bonds had been fully redeemed and cancelled on 27 November
2017, and the outstanding amount due by the Company under the Bonds
is HK$51,600,000. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 20 November 2014, 27 November 2014 and 21 November
2017.
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CHANGE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR AND MEMBERS OF COMMITTEES OF
THE BOARD

With effect from 30 November 2017, (a) Mr. Tang Jie has resigned as an
independent non-executive Director and members of the audit committee
("Audit Committee”) and the remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee) of the Company; and (b) Ms. Qi Yan has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and members of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 474,000 Shares were issued upon
the exercise of share options under the share option scheme of the Company.

On 8 May 2017, 4,042,750 Shares had been allotted and issued to the
Zhongfu Sellers pursuant to the formal sale and purchase agreement dated 18
December 2015.

On 17 November 2017, 87,642,857 Shares were issued pursuant to the
formal sale and purchase agreement dated 19 May 2017 (details of which are
set out in the Company’s circular dated 27 June 2017).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 12,290,000 Shares were
repurchased pursuant to the general mandate to repurchase shares and
5,990,000 Shares had been cancelled. The remaining 6,300,000 Shares had
been cancelled on 17 February 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 4,844,000 Shares were
repurchased pursuant to the general mandate to repurchase shares and
4,844,000 shares had been cancelled.

The total number of issued shares of the Company was 1,085,323,710 as at
31 December 2017 (2016:1,004,308,103).
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STAFF AND REMUNERATION

The success of the Group depends on the skills, motivation and commitment
of its staff. As at 31 December 2017, the total number of Group’s employees
was 2,578, among which 1,147 were employed in the Sales and Marketing
Division, 313 were employed in the Editorial Division, 391 were employed
in the Information Technology Division and the remaining were employed in
other divisions of the Group.

Remuneration of employees is generally in line with the market trend and
commensurate with the salary level in the industry, with share options
granted to employees based on individual performance. Other benefits to the
Group’s employees include medical insurance, retirement schemes, training
programmes and educational subsidies.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, part of the bank borrowings, amounting to
RMB507,376,000 are secured by certain properties and land use right. Part of
the other borrowings, amounting to RMB255,000,000 are secured by certain
loans receivable.

EXCHANGE RISK

As the Group's operations are principally in the PRC and majority of the assets
and liabilities of the Group are denominated in RMB, the Directors believe
that the Group is not subject to significant exchange risk.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no contingent liability (2016: Nil).

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Change of head office and principal place of business in the
People’s Republic of China

With effect from 1 January 2018, the address of the Company’s head office
and principal place of business in the PRC have been changed to 7/F, Tower
A1, Junhao Central Park Plaza, No. 10 Chaoyang Park South Road, Chaoyang
District, Beijing 100026.
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Subscription of new shares of the Company under general
mandate in consideration of the Convertible Bonds

On 5 January 2018, the Company entered into the subscription agreements
("Exchange Subscription Agreements”) with (i) the Zhongfu Sellers and (ii)
the Huijia Sellers (collectively, the “Bondholders”), pursuant to which the
Company agreed to allot 36,028,500 new shares (“Exchange Shares”) in
aggregate to each of the Bondholders in exchange for the surrender of
the convertible bonds of the Company (“Convertible Bonds”) issued to the
Zhongfu Sellers and Huijia Sellers respectively pursuant to the Zhongfu SPA
and the Huijia SPA which remain outstanding and unconverted as at 5 January
2018 (the “Exchange Shares Subscriptions”). The number of Exchange Shares
allotted to each of the Zhongfu Sellers and the Huijia Sellers was calculated in
accordance with the outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Bonds
they are holding and the conversion price of HK$10 per Share for Zhongfu
Sellers or the conversion price of HK$7.5 per Share for Huijia Sellers. Pursuant
to the Exchange Subscription Agreement, the Exchange Shares allotted to the
Bondholders will be put into custodian accounts and will only be released to
the Bondholders upon ascertaining the level of fulfilment of the performance
targets set out in the Exchange Subscription Agreement.

The total number of Exchange Shares under the Exchange Shares
Subscriptions, being 36,028,500 Shares, represents approximately 3.32%
of the issued share capital of the Company of 1,085,323,710 Shares as at
5 January 2018 and approximately 3.21% of the then issued share capital
of 1,121,352,210 Shares as enlarged by the Exchange Shares Subscriptions.
The aggregate nominal value of the Exchange Shares under the Exchange
Shares Subscriptions was HK$3,602,850. The Exchange Shares were allotted
and issued pursuant to the general mandate granted to the Directors by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 26 May
2017.

The Exchange Shares were issued and allotted to the Bondholders on 16
January 2018 and the Convertible Bonds were cancelled accordingly.

Change of Company name and chinese stock short name

To better reflect the existing corporate image for the Group, after the
expansion and development of the Group over this decade, the Company has
changed its name in Chinese from “ZI248 G R A 7)" to "EBIALEEAGRE A F]",
which is used for identification purposes only, with effect from 1 March 2018.
Accordingly, the Chinese stock short name of the Company for trading of the
Shares on the Stock Exchange has been changed from “ZHa48" to "ZFa%
=" with effect from 9:00 a.m. on 6 March 2018.
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FRRHE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's
principal activities for the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the financial year by business
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the financial year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 115.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in retained earnings of the Group during the
financial year are set out on page 119.

Details of the movements in other reserves of the Group are set out in note
24 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in share capital and share options of the Company
are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2017, calculated
under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately
RMB2,470,373,000 (2016: RMB1,740,015,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 6 of this report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report

were:

Mr. Guo Jiang (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Jun
(Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Lee Wee Ong
(Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Guo Fansheng Notet

Mr. Li Jianguang Note?

Mr. Wong Chi Keung Nete!

Mr. Zhang Ke Note2

Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei Note2

Mr. Tang Jie Nete2

Ms. Qi Yan Note2

(appointed on 1 August 2006)

(appointed on 12 September 2016)

(appointed on 9 September 2011 as an
independent non-executive Director and
re-designated as an executive Director
on 1July 2012)

(appointed on 21 March 2000 and
re-designated as a non-executive
Director on 18 October 2017)

(appointed on 1 August 2006)

(appointed on 12 September 2016)

(appointed on 28 March 2003)

(appointed on 1 November 2011)

(appointed on 12 September 2016 and
resigned on 30 November 2017)

(appointed on 30 November 2017)

Notes:
1 non-executive Directors
2 independent non-executive Directors

In accordance with Article 86 of the Company’s articles of association (“Articles
of Association”), Ms. Qi Yan will be subject to, and eligible offer himself for

re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s articles of association, Mr. Lee
Wee Ong, Mr. Guo Fansheng, Mr. Li Jianguang will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

The Directors’ profile is set out on pages 16 to 21.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Lee Wee Ong and Mr. Liu Jun has entered into a director’s
service contract with the Company, whereby each of them has accepted the
appointment as an executive Director of the Company for a term of three
years from 1 July 2015 and 12 September 2016 respectively, which may
be terminated by either party giving three months’ prior written notice or
otherwise in accordance with the terms of their respective service contracts.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Zhang Ke, Mr. Zhang
Tim Tianwei and Ms. Qi Yan has entered into a director’s service contract
with the Company, whereby each of them has accepted the appointment for
a term of one year, and the service contracts shall be renewed automatically
at the end of the term. Either party may terminate the service contract at any
time by giving one month’s prior written notice or in accordance with the
terms of their respective service contracts. There is no service contract, which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation), in respect of any director
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed above and in note 29 and note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Director was materially interested, whether directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company, its holding company, or any of its fellow subsidiaries and
subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR STAFF EMOLUMENTS

Details of Directors and senior staff emoluments for the year are set out in
notes 36 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emoluments of the Directors and the senior staff are determined based on
the operating results of the Group, individual performance and/or prevailing
market conditions. The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme
and the Share Award Scheme as an incentive to Directors and senior staff.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"”) contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

(a) Directors’ Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

Class of Personal Family
Name of Director Shares Capacity interests interests
j 408 Rt 5| at BARR BT £
Guo Jiang Ordinary Beneficial owners/ 161,425,146 10,784,625
EIpIA TER family interest (note1) (notet)
EREEN/ (Fzt1) (FzE1)
Liu Jun Ordinary Beneficial owners 74,800,000 -
iz LER EREEA (note 2)
(FzE2)
Guo Fansheng Ordinary Beneficial owners 57,749,015 -
BLE EER ERAEA (note 3)
(Bf3E3)
Li Jianguang Ordinary Interest of controlled - -
TRk LR corporation
REHIARER
Lee Wee Ong Ordinary Beneficial owners 26,850,672 -
TR EEEBA (note 5)
(Fi5E5)
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EERITRARNA QR EBEE
B2kt - HERGRES 2EDR
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RZFT—tF+-A=1t—0 EERARFETH
BERANRAREEAEBEECEE REEENE
STNBF S R BRI 7#5 REE GG ]) EXVER)
ZWedn ~ BRI D RfEZT - BAREE S LRI
BIEXVERZ BT RFSN BAMG AR B M2
R Mok R (BRERIEER MBI ARGECURE
WEERREEA 2 EEIORE) * HBRRALRT]
RIBEESF LB RPIEI2EMEFER LMz s R
R IRE ETRAPAE LT RTAERETES
25z S B ([ By Bl D BAG RNA B KB AT
ZRETPORRIAT

(a) EERARARDREBERG ZHA

Total  Percentage of
Corporate Other  numberof  shareholding
interests interests Shares  (approximate)
REF A
DRER HitgR REEH (#4)
- - 172,209,771 15.87%
(notet)
(1)
- - 74,800,000 6.89%
(note 2)
(M3E2)
- - 57,749,015 5.32%
(note 3)
(Fiz13)
32,000,384 - 32,000,384 2.95%
(note 4)
(Mis4)
- - 26,850,672 2.47%
(note 4)
GEDY
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(b) Directors’ Short Positions

(b) EEZHRA

Total  Percentage of

Class of Personal Family  Corporate Other number of  shareholding
Name of Director Shares Capacity interests interests EEH EEH Shares  (approximate)
RERDL
EEpg RGHER 56 BARE  RkER  AREE  HitEE 0 ROLY (#4)
Guo Jiang Ordinary Beneficial owners 40,000,000 - - - 40,000,000 3.69%
EI il BaEBA
Note: B e -

1.

Save

Such interest in the Company comprises:

(@) 128,858,771 Shares of which 118,074,146 Shares are held by Mr.
Guo and 10,784,625 Shares are held by Ms. Geng Yi, who is Mr.
Guo's spouse;

(b) 8,351,000 underlying Shares derived from the awarded shares
granted to Mr. Guo under the employees’ share award scheme
adopted on 17 November 2011; and

(c) 35,000,000 Shares which were borrowed by Mr. Guo Jiang from
Mr. Guo Fansheng pursuant to a stock borrowing agreement dated
9 May 2016 entered into between Mr. Guo Jiang and Mr. Guo
Fansheng, of which 35,000,000 Shares were subsequently pledged to
an independent third party.

Mr. Guo is deemed, or taken to have, interested in the shares and
underlying shares held by Ms. Geng Yi pursuant to the SFO.

Such interests in the Company comprise: (i) 44,870,000 Shares and (ii)
29,930,000 underlying Shares derived from the Share Options held by Mr.
Liu Jun.

Such interest in the Company comprises:
(@) 35,000,000 Shares (long position) held by Mr. Guo Fansheng; and

(b) 22,749,015 Shares (long position) held by a trustee of a trust of
which Mr. Guo Fansheng is a beneficiary.

The references to 32,000,384 shares of the Company relate to the same
block of shares of the Company held by Callister Trading Limited, the entire
share capital of which is owned by Mr. Li Jianguang. Accordingly, Mr. Li
Jianguang is deemed, or taken to have, interested in the said 32,000,384
shares of the Company pursuant to the SFO.

Such interests in the Company comprise: (i) 25,350,672 Shares and (i)
1,500,000 underlying Shares derived from the Share Options held by Mr.
Lee Wee Ong.

as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of

the Company has any interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which

they

are taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO)

or required to be entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to written resolutions of the shareholders of the Company dated 30
November 2003, among others, a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. The principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme were summarised in the paragraph headed “Share options”
under the section headed “Statutory and General Information” in Appendix
V of the prospectus of the Company dated 8 December 2003. Following the
listing of the Shares being transferred from the Growth Enterprise Market
to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 10 October 2014, the Share
Option Scheme adopted by the Company was terminated on 10 October
2014. Notwithstanding the termination of the Share Option Scheme, the
outstanding options under the Share Option Scheme shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

On 22 May 2015, a new share option scheme were approved by the
shareholders of the Company (“2015 Share Option Scheme”). The principal
terms of the 2015 Share Option Scheme were summarized in the Appendix of
the circular of the Company dated 5 May 2015.

OUTSTANDING SHARE OPTIONS

Share Option Scheme

As at 31 December 2017, options to subscribe for an aggregate of
13,510,000 Shares granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and
29,930,000 Shares granted pursuant of the 2015 Share Option Scheme were
outstanding. Details of which were as follows:

As at

1 January
2017

R
—B-tF
—A—H

Exercise
price
per share

Name of grantee

Date of grant

BRITEE
HKS
BT

ERAA R A

Granted

the period

RERER L
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fBRESTE
REARARBRR-_TT=F+—A=+THZERE
FORER (AR BE) - RAOFAHRM—RERES 8
([BERERTEl]) - BRUERT B2 X2 IERHERARE
AHA-—ZE=F+_"ANAZBRERMERDE
FE R AR &Rl B R | — BBt - H%ﬁ}ﬁ/‘:?
—OFE+AT AR AAIEREE TR ET

& RRRIPTRNZ B BN =T — EiJrﬂwL
Bl - BEBRES B &L EERESEET
TR AR T 152 B AR AT 5 (R 52 ) S T AR SR B A = 8
TIATTEE ©

RIZ-—RFRAZTZH  ARRREAAEFER
B[ = —nsEEtEl)) - :ﬁ—ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BB T BRHERARRAHA-Z—0FHA
=gl = RelliE Rl

[ RAT i 2 F IR

IBRAETE

RZZ—+F+ZA=+—8 ' BIEERETERT
A RHE A $£13,510,0000% 0% 15 ARG =T — A F R

HERTEIIR T ] R A ££29,930,000% f% 17 2 BE AL 14

RITME - BRAFBWOT -

Number of share options
BREHE

Exercised
during
the period

As at

31 December
2017

R

It Sl 3
RERA® t=A=+-H
(Note 1)
(FHzE1)

Lapsed
during
the period

during

REIRATHRE

Directors

Es

Liu Jun (Note 2) 13 October 2017 6.476 29,930,000 29,930,000

2B (M52) —E—+E+A+ZH

Lee Wee Ong 3 April 2013 4.402 1,500,000 1,500,000
—E-=EMmA=H
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Name of grantee

ERAR

Other employees
HitfER

In aggregate

At

In aggregate (Note 3)
&5t (fiFE3)

In aggregate (Note 4)
CERGED)

In aggregate (Note 5)
&5 (HEES)

In aggregate (Note 6)
&5t (ke

Total
@5t

HC International, Inc.

Date of grant

RHAH

11 July 2007
ZTTLFELATH
29 September 2008
“EEN\EAAZTAA
7 April 2010
—Z-TFWA+A
28 March 2011
“2——%=A-+N\H
18 Novmeber 2013
~2-=E+-AtAS
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Exercise
price
per share

BRITEE
HKS

BT

As at

1 January
2017

R
—B-tF
=F=F

Number of share options

Granted
during
the period

REREL

RSB

Exercised
during
the period

REALT

Lapsed
during
the period

REAXH

As at

31 December
2017

R
“E—tf
—RA=+-H
(Note 1)
(FiizE1)

1.24 1,454,000 (474,000) (980,000) -
0.604 400,000 400,000
0.82 1,438,000 1,438,000
1.108 200,000 200,000
9.84 9,972,000 9,972,000
14,964,000 29,930,000 (474,000) (980,000) 43,440,000
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Notes:

1.

Each option has a 10-year exercise period, which may be exercised after the expiry
of twelve months from the date of the grant of options.

For the options exercisable at HK$1.24 granted on 11 July 2007, the relevant
grantees may exercise options up to 50% and in full, respectively, of the shares
of the Company comprised in his or her option (less any number of shares of
the Company in respect of which the option has been previously exercised),
commencing from the first and second anniversaries of the date of the grant of
options.

For the options exercisable at HK$0.604 granted on 29 September 2008, the
relevant grantees may exercise these options in a 10-year period starting from the
expiry of twelve months from the date of the grant of options. For the options
exercisable at HK$0.82 granted on 7 April 2010, the relevant grantees may
exercise options up to 50% and 100%, respectively, of the shares of the Company
comprised in his or her option (less any number of shares of the Company in
respect of which the option has been previously exercised), commencing from the
first and second anniversaries of the date of the grant of options.

For the options exercisable at HK$1.108 granted on 28 March 2011, the relevant
grantees may exercise options up to 50% and 100%, respectively, of the shares
of the Company comprised in his or her option (less any number of shares of
the Company in respect of which the option has been previously exercised),
commencing from the first and second anniversaries of the date of the grant of
options.

For the options exercisable at HK$4.402 granted on 3 April 2013, the relevant
grantee may exercise options up to 20%, 40%, 60%, 80% and 100%, of the
shares of the Company comprised in his option (less any number of shares of
the Company in respect of which the option has been previously exercised),
commencing from the first, second, third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the
date of the grant of options respectively.

For the options exercisable at HK$9.84 granted on 18 November 2013, the
relevant grantees may exercise options up to 10%, 20%, 40%, 70% and 100%,
respectively, of the shares of the Company comprised in his or her option (less
any number of shares of the Company in respect of which the option has been
previously exercised), commencing from the first, second, third, fourth and fifth
anniversaries of the date of the grant of options.

For the options exercisable at HK$6.476 granted on 13 November 2013, the
relevant grantees may exercise options up to 20%, 40%, 60%, 80% and 100%,
respectively, of the shares of the Company comprised in his or her option (less
any number of shares of the Company in respect of which the option has been
previously exercised), commencing from the first, second, third, fourth and fifth
anniversaries of the date of the grant of options.

G
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Mr. Liu Jun has been granted options under the 2015 Share Option Scheme to
subscribe for 29,930,000 Shares at HK$6.476 per Share.

1 employee has been granted options under the Share Option Scheme to
subscribe an aggregate of 400,000 Shares at HK$0.604 per Share.

3 employees have been granted options under the Share Option Scheme to
subscribe an aggregate of 1,438,000 Shares at HK$0.82 per Share.

2 employees have been granted options under the Share Option Scheme to
subscribe an aggregate of 200,000 Shares at HK$1.108 per Share.

56 employees have been granted options under the Share Option Scheme to
subscribe an aggregate of 9,972,000 Shares at HK$9.84 per Share.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 18 February
2004, determined using the Binomial Model value model, was approximately
RMB20,193,000. The significant inputs into the model were the exercise price of
HK$2.4, standard deviation of expected share price returns of 32%, expected life
of options ranging from 5.4 to 6.6 years, expected dividend paid out rate of 0%
and annual risk-free interest rate ranging from 1.34% to 4.43%. The volatility
measured at the standard deviation of expected share price returns is based
on statistical analysis of historical price movement of the Company and other
comparable companies with similar business nature.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 23 June
2006, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB3,919,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$1.49, standard deviation of expected share price returns of 34.8%, expected
life of options ranging from 3.2 to 5.5 years expected dividend paid out rate of
0% and annual risk free interest rate of 4.911%. The volatility measured at the
standard deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of
historical price movement of the Company and other comparable companies with
similar business nature.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 11 July
2007, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB9,390,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$1.24 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 49.0%, expected
life of options ranging from 2.4 to 6.2 years expected dividend paid out rate of
0% and annual risk-free interest rate of 4.757%.The volatility measured at the
standard deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of
historical price movement of the Company and other comparable companies with
similar business nature.
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10.

11.

12.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 29
September 2008, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was
approximately RMB2,756,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise
price of HK$0.604 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 72.2%,
expected life of options ranging from 3.8 to 4.8 years expected dividend paid out
rate of 0% and annual risk-free interest rate of 3.133%. The volatility measured
at the standard deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical
analysis of historical price movement of the Company and other comparable
companies with similar business nature.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 7 April
2010, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB12,527,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$0.82 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 79.8%, expected
life of options ranging from 3.4 to 5.9 years expected dividend paid out rate of
0% and annual risk-free interest rate of 2.865%. The volatility measured at the
standard deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of
historical price movement of the Company and other comparable companies with
similar business nature.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 28 March
2011, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB1,377,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$1.108 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 77.4%, expected
life of options ranging from 3.8 to 4.9 years expected dividend paid out rate of 0%
and annual risk-free interest rate 2.82%. The volatility measured at the standard
deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical
price movement of the Company and other comparable companies with similar
business nature.
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The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 3 April
2013, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB3,754,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$4.402 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 75%, expected
life of options ranging from 9.1 to 9.6 years expected dividend paid out rate of 0%
and annual risk-free interest rate 1.111%. The volatility measured at the standard
deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical
price movement of the Company and other comparable companies with similar
business nature.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 18 November
2013, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB50,125,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$9.84 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 71.5%, expected
life of options ranging from 4.7 to 7.9 years expected dividend paid out rate of 0%
and annual risk-free interest rate 1.915%. The volatility measured at the standard
deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical
price movement of the Company and other comparable companies with similar
business nature.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 13 October
2017, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB100,356,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$6.476 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 62%, expected
life of options 4.9 years expected dividend paid out rate of 0.9% and annual
risk-free interest rate 1.745%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation
of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical price
movement of the Company and other comparable companies with similar
business nature.

In respect of employees resigned during the period whose share options have not
been vested, such share options are lapsed, and the share compensation costs
recognised previously are credited to condensed consolidated final statement of
comprehensive income.

The values of share options recognised in share-based compensation reserves
are subject to a number of assumptions and with regard to the limitation of the

valuation model.

The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on
which these options were exercised was approximately HK$5.72 per share.
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EMPLOYEES’' SHARE AWARD SCHEME EBER G RETE

On 17 November 2011, the Board adopted an employees’ share award R-T——F+—A++H  EESHEMNES RN
scheme pursuant to which existing shares of the Company will be acquired — EhEt 2l - it - FFEABEHISEAKRATRBERS
by the trustee from the market at the cost of the Company and be held in  (BRARARFEE) WA EEERALETEER
trust for the selected employees until such shares are vested with the relevant A - B ZZSRNRERND BB 2GR EB TIRE
selected employees in accordance with the provision of the share award &EFEE AL - EHREERD EBAE 2 T2
scheme. For principal terms of the employees’ share award scheme, please 7 FZLHAAFAHA-—ZT——F+—A+tAZ
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 17 November 2011. NI

Since the adoption date, a total of 46,881,000 Shares has been granted upto  ERMBHEZEARE B - K H A $£46,881,000
the date of this report, representing approximately 4.18% of the issued share ~ B&R% 1D @ HEE R AR E A YR QT D BITHRAL
capital of the Company as at the date of this report. The awarded shares  4.18% c R—ZE—+F+_-_A=+—H HAGEEZ

remain outstanding as at 31 December 2017 are set out below: EEIAR DS YN T
As at Granted Vested As at
1 January during during 31 December
Name of Grantee Date of grant 2017 the period the period 2017
i i
—E—tF ZE—tF
BERAME REAH —A—H BRERL HABEE +T=-HA=+—H
Directors
Bx
Guo liang 20 August 2012 8,351,000 8,351,000
Ehas —E-—FAAZTH
Other employees
Hitlgg
In aggregate (Note 1) 23 November 2011 11,384,125 (6,374,682) 5,009,443
EaE —E——%+—-AZt=H
17 January 2014 2,000,000 2,000,000
—Z-mFE-A++tH
Total 21,735,125 (6,374,682) 15,360,443
@t
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER =ERRERKHEMALIREAITRHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN HMHER#OZ2EEZR AR

THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, the interest of persons (not being a Director or  ypp—=— - &+—A=+—F - RAX TR LIEE
chief executive of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the  grichiE IR IS o % R B IEGI BXVE B2 R E35
Company which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange B E AR B - s AN BRI A
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or required to be entered R RS 150 S 3365 BB R 2 A+ (T
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the EEEHAATTRAE) T -

SFO were as follows:

Approximate
percentage of

shareholding
as at
Name of Shareholder Class of Shares Long position short position  Capacity 31 December 2017
R-B—+tF
+=A=t-8H
ZBRAELN
RERHEE BB b A
Talent Gain Developments Ordinary 253,671,964 Beneficial owner and 23.37%
Limited TR (note 1) interest in controlled
(P &ET) corporation
EnlEAR
R D AR
Digital China Holdings Limited ~ Ordinary 341,314,821 Beneficial owner and 31.45%
TR (note 1) interest in controlled
(P &ET) corporation
EnlEAR
R D AR
Geng Yi Ordinary 172,209,771 40,000,000  Beneficial Owner and 15.87%
Bkta TR (note 2) Family Interest (long position)
(PH7E2) BalB ARF kR (FFR)
3.69%
(short position)
(=)
Liu Xiaodong (Note 3) Ordinary 62,273,794 Beneficial Owner and 5.74%
BN (P EE3) TR (note 3) Interest in controlled
(PH7E3) corporation
EaBEEAR
R D Al s
Wisdom Limited Ordinary 62,273,794 Beneficial Owner and 5.74%
(Note 4) TR (note 4) Interest in controlled
(BI5E4) GEDY) corporation
EaBEEAR

REH R RS
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Notes:

Save
been
other

Such interests in the Company comprise: (1) 230,263,964 Shares held by Talent
Gain Developments Limited; (i) 23,408,000 Shares held by Unique Golden Limited
and (iii) 87,642,857 underlying shares derived from the proposed subscription
of the Company by Digital China Holdings Limited pursuant to the Formal sale
and purchase agreement dated 19 May 2017. Unique Golden Limited is wholly
and beneficially owned by Talent Gain Developments Limited, which in turn is
wholly and beneficially owned by Digital China (BVI) Limited and indirectly wholly
and beneficially owned by Digital China Holdings Limited, a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 861). Therefore, Talent
Gain Developments Limited, is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Unique Golden Limited, and each of Digital China (BVI) Limited and Digital China
Holdings Limited is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Talent Gain
Developments Limited and Unique Golden Limited.

Ms. Geng Yi is the spouse of Mr. Guo Jiang. Such interest in the Company
comprises: (a) 118,074,146 Shares are held by Mr. Guo Jiang and 10,784,625
Shares are held by Ms. Geng Yi; (b) 8,351,000 underlying Shares derived from
the awarded shares granted to Mr. Guo Jiang under the employees’ share award
scheme adopted on 17 November 2011; and (c) 35,000,000 Shares which
were borrowed by Mr. Guo Jiang from Mr. Guo Fansheng pursuant to a stock
borrowing agreement dated 9 May 2016 entered into between Mr. Guo Jiang and
Mr. Guo Fansheng, of which 35,000,000 Shares were subsequently pledged to an
independent third party.

Ms. Geng is deemed, or taken to have, interested in the shares and underlying
shares held by Mr. Guo Jiang pursuant to the SFO.

Such interests in the Company comprise: 62,273,794 Shares held by Wisdom
Limited (@ company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Liu Xiaodong). Mr. Liu
Xiaodong is deemed, or taken to have, interested in all the Shares held by Wisdom
Limited pursuant to the SFO.

Wisdom Limited is a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Liu Xiaodong.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Company had not
notified of any interests or short positions of substantial shareholders or
persons in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which are

required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

e
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ek - WMNBISIEAR AR A R @ RB AR RS R
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ffiTalent Gain Developments Limited !/ Digital China
(BVI) Limited 2 & [ B 2 8 30 f 14 )N BB 2 AR B IR
REN (R OB 22 AT E T (A7 AR5% - 861) ) FilEE
2ERERESB o At - Talent Gain Developments
Limited## & E Unique Golden Limited FT#5 B 2 f& %
R B2 - MDigital China (BVI) Limited X 1/ 2075
IR E R A TS B E fEM Talent Gain Developments
Limited } Unique Golden Limited fri5 8 2 I fh s A

WL o

B Z T AT AEZRB - ZERARRIZERE
& ¢ (a) 118,074,146 R & 1D A BT S E#5 8 RAMA &
TR 210,784,625 Bk 15  (b)ZBIT Se £ RIR R
—E——F+—-A+tEEMZEERN EBEE
PR 2 S8 B IR 15 EE 4£ 2 8,351,000/ HHRARE 1D + I
(OBIT I AERIBII TR E RIS LRI LB #A
—E-XFRANAZERBEADBLESEEBAZ
35,000,0000%B% 1% + EF135,000,0000% B% 17 BE 14 K 17
F—BBILE=T o

RIEF S LR A EWEFERERRRZT
SRR A 2 ) KRR (0 o A A o

ZERANRR 2 B BIE - BBWisdom Limited (2
REETEREREAZ AR A 262,273,794
B&tn o RIBFEHRBAEEH - 2/ RAEWE SRR
YERWisdom Limited T 2 2 SRR AP A 2 -

Wisdom Limited R E/NRAEEZERERHB 2N
= o

BEXEEEN RZT—+F+-A=1t—H8 &
AR AEE B SR E A TR R AR M A
R P BEABLARNARIREES MNP EIENE
33T EE LM 2 A AERSAE -

EREMERAT 20175k



86

Report of the Directors
FEEHS

CONNECTED TRANSACTION/CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The connected transactions of the Company are set out on pages 63 to 67 in
the section headed “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” in this report.

Details of the continuing connected transactions of the Company are as
follows:

Zhongfu Structured Contracts

On 5 January 2016 Hangzhou Saidian Information, Hangzhou Saidian
Technology and the PRC Equity Owners entered into the Zhongfu Structured
Contracts, which constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company. Details of the Zhongfu Structured Contracts are set out in the
paragraph headed “Major Terms of the Zhongfu Structured Contracts” of the
“Management'’s Discussion and Analysis” section in this report. The Directors
estimated that the respective annual caps for the transactions contemplated
under the Structured Contracts for the three years ending 31 December 2016,
2017 and 2018 are RMB11,000,000, RMB14,000,000 and RMB18,000,000
respectively being the expected maximum sums received by the Company
under the Management and Operations Agreement. The transaction amount
for the year ended 31 December 2017 was RMB8,547,000.

Save as disclosed above, all the related party transaction, as disclosed in
Note 29 and 47 to the consolidated financial statement, did not constitute
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are required to comply with
any of the reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

The transaction in Note 47 were provided under the service contracts of
relevant management and thus were all fully exempted pursuant to Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Also, as the loan granted by the Group to Hui De Holding Co., Ltd., an associate
of the Group was conducted on normal commercial terms, such financial
assistance was fully exempted pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules from time to time in respect of the aforementioned
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by
independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive
Directors confirmed that these connected transactions were entered into
(@) in the usual course of business of the Group; (b) on normal commercial
terms or better terms; (c) in accordance with the agreements relating to the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole; and (d) without exceeding the relevant cap amount
disclosed in the previous announcements.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his
findings and conclusions in respect of the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions in accordance with rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group’s customers are a vast amount of small and medium sized
enterprises in the PRC and certain well-known companies. Most of the
Group's revenue is derived from B2B trading platform and online products.
The major customers of trading platforms include a large number of small
and medium sized enterprises and factories. The sales contracts are entered
according to orders. Online products mainly consist of B2B member service
and online advertising. The sale agreements have a term of one or two years,
which, depending on different contracts, shall be renewed by the customers
upon such sale agreements expired. As the price of each online product is not
significant and the online products are sold to the large number of customers,
each customer’s contribution towards the Group’s revenue is relatively small.
Therefore, the Company merely relies on individual customers.

The Group’s major suppliers are as follows: (i) the major suppliers of B2B
trading platform are large-scale factories and traders; (ii) the suppliers of
online products provide search engine and promotion services, allowing our
paid members to have a higher exposure of their products by getting more
search engine hits and promoting their products and achieving transactions.
We currently have four search product suppliers which are leading search
engine providers like Baidu and 360 Search and the respectively service
contracts with them are renewed on a yearly basis.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors, their associates
or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 24 July 2003 with written
terms of reference based on the guidelines set out in “A Guide for Effective
Audit Committees” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and internal control procedures of the Group. The
audit committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Zhang Ke and Ms. Qi Yan and a non-executive Director, Mr. Li Jianguang. Mr.
Zhang Ke is the Chairman of the audit committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management of the Company
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, the internal
control procedures, the annual results of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2017 and has met with external auditors and discussed the
financial matters of the Group that arose during the course of audit for the
year ended 31 December 2017. The audit committee held 2 meetings during
the year.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company had complied with
the code provisions of the Code on Governance contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. Details of the Group's corporate governance practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained on pages 90 to 103 of
this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Each of the Directors and their respective associates (as defined in the Main
Board Listing Rules) has confirmed that none of them had any business or
interest in any company that materially competes or may compete with the
business of the Group or any other conflict of interests with the interests of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a written confirmation or an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers the independent non-executive Directors are or have been remained
independent.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to Article 167 of the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Directors and other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they shall or
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices. This indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud
or dishonesty which may attach to any of said persons. Such provisions were
in force during the financial year ended 31 December 2017 and remained
in force as of the date of this report. The Company has also arranged
appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in respect of potential
legal action against Directors and other officers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
of the Company, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the
Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
During the year ended 31 December 2017, 4,844,000 Shares repurchased
under the general mandates to repurchase Shares and 11,144,000 Shares had
been cancelled. Save as disclosed in this report, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the shares of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2017.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board
HC International, Inc.
Liu Jun
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Beijing, PRC, 27 March 2018
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INTRODUCTION

Maintaining high standards of business ethics and corporate governance
practices has always been one of the Company’s goals. This corporate
governance report describes its corporate governance practices, explains the
applications of the principles of the Code on Corporate Governance contained
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the “Code"”) and deviations, if any.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has complied with
the code provisions of the Code. The Company believes that by achieving high
standard of corporate governance, the corporate value and accountability
of the Company can be enhanced and the shareholders’ interests can be
maximised. The Board has continued to monitor and review the Company’s
progress in respect of corporate governance practices to ensure compliance.
Meetings were held throughout the year and where appropriate, circulars and
other guidance notes were issued to the Directors and senior management of
the Company to ensure awareness to issues regarding corporate governance
practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
set out in code provision D3.1 of the Code. As at the date of this report, the
Board has reviewed and monitored: (a) the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, (b) training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, (c) the Company'’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, (d) the Company’s
code of conduct and (e) the Company’s compliance with the Code disclosures
requirements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted written guidelines regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms not less than the required standard of dealings as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Directors have complied with such code of conduct and the
required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

On 20 March 2006, the Board also adopted written guidelines on terms not
less than the required standard of dealings for relevant employees in respect
of their dealings in the securities of the Company. Prior to the adoption
of such an internal code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
employees, relevant employees who had in their possession of price-sensitive
information were formally briefed on the dealing restrictions in relation to
the securities of the Company at management meetings during the reporting
period.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

As at 31 December 2017 and as at the date of this report, the Board
comprises nine (9) Directors, of whom three are executive Directors, three
are non-executive Directors and three are independent non-executive
Directors. The participation of non-executive Directors in the Board provides
the Company with a wide range of expertise and experience, and plays an
important role in the work of the Board and brings independent judgement
on issues relating to the Company’s strategy, performance, conflicts of interest
and management process to ensure that the interests of all shareholders of
the Company have been duly considered. All Directors have given sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company. Each executive Director
has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to carry out his/her duties
effectively and efficiently.

In full compliance with Rule 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed three independent non-executive Directors, at least one
of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence, and the Company considers such Directors to be independent
in accordance with each and every guideline set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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Pursuant to the Code, the Board adopted a board diversity policy. The
Company recognise the benefits of diversity of Board members, and will
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experiences and diversity of
prospect appropriate to the Company’s business need prospectus.

The Board as at 31 December 2017 comprised:

Executive Directors
Guo Jiang (Chairman) (Note 1 and 2), Liu Jun (Chief Executive Officer), Lee
Wee Ong (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Guo Fansheng (Note 1), Li Jianguang, Wong Chi Keung

Independent non-executive Directors
Zhang Ke, Zhang Tim Tianwei, Qi Yan

Except that Mr. Guo Fansheng is the uncle of Mr. Guo Jiang (Chairman), there
are no financial, business, family or other relationships among the members
of the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified as such in all corporate
communications containing the names of the Directors.

Notes:

1. With effect from 18 October 2017, Mr. Guo Fansheng has been re-designated as
a non-executive Director and resigned as the chairman of the Board, the chairman
of the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”),
the authorised representative of the Company (the “Authorised Representative”)
and the compliance officer of the Company (the “Compliance Officer”), and
Mr. Guo Jiang was appointed as the chairman of the Board, the chairman of
the Nomination Committee, the Authorised Representative and the Compliance
Officer.

2. After the publication of the annual results of the Company, with effect from
27 March 2018, Mr. Guo lJiang resigned as an executive Director, the chairman
of the Board, the chairman of the Nomination Committee, the member of the
Remuneration Committee, an Authorised Representative and the Compliance
Officer. Following Mr. Guo's resignation, (i) Mr. Liu Jun has been appointed as the
chairman of the Board, the chairman of the Nomination Committee, the member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Compliance Officer; and (ii) Mr. Lee Wee
Ong has been appointed as an Authorised Representative, all with effect from 27
March 2018. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
27 March 2018.
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Board meetings and general meetings

The Board meets in person or through other electronic means of
communication at least four times every year. At least 14 days’ notice of
all board meetings were given to all Directors (unless waived in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company), who were all given an
opportunity to include matters in the agenda for discussion. The Board
secretary of the Company (the “Board Secretary”) assists the Chairman in
preparing the agenda for the meeting, and ensures that all applicable rules
and regulations regarding the meetings are observed. The meeting agenda
and accompanying board papers are sent to all Directors prior to meetings.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, 7 Board meetings and 3
general meetings were held and the following is an attendance record of the
meetings by each Director:

Attendance
General
Meetings

Board
Meetings

Executive Directors

Guo Jiang 717 2/3
Lee Wee Ong 717 3/3
Liu Jun 717 3/3

Non-executive Directors

Guo Fansheng 7/7 1/3
Li Jianguang 717 1/3
Wong Chi Keung 717 3/3

Independent non-executive Directors

Zhang Ke 717 2/3

Zhang Tim Tianwei 717 2/3

Tang Jie (Resigned on 30 November 2017) 6/6 1/2

Qi Yan (Appointed on 30 November 2017) 11 11
Notes:

(1) Three general meeting of the Company was held during the financial year ended
31 December 2017.

(2)  Non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) have
been invited by the Company but some of them were unable to attend the
general meeting held during the year due to other engagements. The non-
executive Directors actively participates in the Board and will attend the general
meetings of the Company if possible.

(3)  Excluding Board meeting at which relevant Director is required to abstain pursuant
to the Listing Rules and/or the Articles of Association of the Company.
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During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss and formulate the
overall strategies of the Company, monitor financial performances and discuss
the annual and interim results, set annual budgets, as well as discuss and
decide on other significant matters.

The Board Secretary records the proceedings of each Board meeting in detail
by keeping detailed minutes, including all decisions made by the Board
together with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if any). Drafts
of board minutes are circulated to all Directors for comments and approval
as soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes are open for inspection
at any reasonable time on request by any Director. All Directors have access
to relevant and timely information at all times as the Chairman ensures that
management will supply the Board and its committees with all relevant
information in a timely manner. The Directors acknowledge their responsibility
for preparing the accounts and statement.

Delegation by the Board

The Company has set out the respective functions and responsibilities reserved
to the Board and those delegated to management. The Board delegates day
to day operations of the Group to executive Directors and senior management
while reserving certain key matters for its approval. The Board is responsible
for the approval and monitoring of the Company’s overall strategies and
policies; approval of business plans; evaluating the performance of the
Company and oversight of management. It is also responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by directing and supervising
the Company'’s affairs.

Decisions of the Board are communicated to the management through
executive Directors who have attended at board meetings.

INDUCTION AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Newly appointed Directors will receive guideline and reference materials to
enable them to familiarise with the Group’s business operations and the
Board'’s polices.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
has circulated to Directors training materials relevant to the directors duties
and responsibilities and prepared a training record and the Directors have
reviewed the training materials.
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During the reporting period, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending training course or reading relevant
materials on the topics related to corporate governance and regulations, and
the individual training record is summaried below:

Attending seminar(s)/
relevant materials

Executive Directors

Guo Jiang YES
Liu Jun YES
Lee Wee Ong YES
Non-executive Directors

Guo Fansheng YES
Li Jianguang YES
Wong Chi Keung YES
Independent non-executive Directors

Zhang Ke YES
Zhang Tim Tianwei YES
Tang lie (Resigned on 30 November 2017) YES
Qi Yan (Appointed on 30 November 2017) YES

Term of Appointment and Re-election

Under the provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should be appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election. Each of the existing non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Li Jianguang, Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Mr. Zhang Ke, Mr.
Zhang Tim Tianwei and Ms. Qi Yan was appointed for a fixed term of one
year, subject to rotation and/or re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company, as specified by the Articles of Association of the Company.
Under the provision A.4.2, all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
their appointment and every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

On 10 November 2006, a special resolution was passed by the shareholders
of the Company to approve the amendments to the Company’s Articles of
Association to ensure compliance with the Code. Pursuant to the amended
provisions of the Articles of Associations of the Company, any Director
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company (in the case of
an addition to the Board), and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

During the reporting period, the roles of the Chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Company are segregated and are not exercised by the same
individual.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board functions effectively
and smoothly. In doing so, the Chairman ensures that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established and followed, and that
all Directors are properly briefed and received all relevant information prior to
each meeting.

The Chairman was responsible for overseeing the implementation of corporate
strategies of the Company. The chief executive officer of the Company was
responsible for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the Company.

Upon the appointment of Mr. Liu Jun as the chairman of the Board with effect
from 27 March 2018, Mr. Liu Jun will perform the roles as the chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer of the Company, which deviates from
code provision A.2.1. After evaluation of the current situation of the Company
and taking into account the experience and past performance of Mr. Liu,
the Board is of the opinion that it is appropriate and in the best interests
of the Company at the present stage of Mr. Liu to hold both positions as
the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company as it helps to
maintain the continuity of the policies and the stability of the operation of
the Company. Furthermore, the Board considers that this arrangement will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company as a majority of the Board members are non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors and the Board
meets regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations of the
Group and all Directors are properly and promptly briefed on such matters
with adequate, complete and reliable information.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 20 March 2006. As at
31 December 2017 and as at the date of this report, the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee is Mr. Zhang Ke (independent non-executive
Director) and other members include Mr. Guo Jiang (executive Director),
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (non-executive Director), Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei
(independent non-executive Director) and Ms. Qi Yan (independent non-
executive Director).
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee was responsible for
formulating and recommending the Board in relation to the remuneration
policy, determining the remunerations of executive Directors and members
of the senior management of the Company, and reviewing and making
recommendations on the Company’s share option scheme and share award
scheme, bonus structure, provident fund and other compensation-related
issues. The Remuneration Committee consults with the Chairman and/or the
chief executive officer of the Company on its proposals and recommendations.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with other resources enabling it
to discharge its duties such as the access to professional advice if and when
necessary. For the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration
Committee held 2 meetings. The individual attendance record of each
member is as follows:

Members Attendance

Zhang Ke 2/2
Zhang Tim Tianwei 2/2
Guo Jiang 2/2
Wong Chi Keung 2/2
Tang lie (Resigned on 30 November 2017) 2/2
Qi Yan (Appointed on 30 November 2017) N/A

Full minutes of the Remuneration Committee’s meetings are properly
kept by the Company. In line with practices consistent with meetings
of the Board and other committee meetings, draft and final versions of
Remuneration Committee meeting minutes are circulated to all members of
the Remuneration Committee for comments, approval and record as soon as
practicable after each meeting.

At the meetings of the Remuneration Committee held in the period under
review, the members of the Remuneration Committee have reviewed the
Group's remuneration policy and discussed the remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management for the forthcoming financial year.

The emoluments of the Directors and the management are determined
based on the operating results of the Company, individual performance and/
or prevailing market conditions. The Company has also adopted the Share
Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme as an incentive to Directors and
senior management.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

With effect from 20 March 2012, the Company established the Nomination
Committee and written terms of reference of the nomination committee
have been adopted. As at 31 December 2017 and the date of this report,
the chairman of the Nomination Committee was Mr. Guo Jiang (executive
Director) and other members include Mr. Zhang Ke (independent non-
executive Director) and Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei (independent non-
executive Director). The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
the structure, size, diversity and composition of the Board, identifying
individual suitably qualified to become Board members, selecting or making
recommendation to the Board on selection of individuals nominated for
directorship, assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Director and making recommendation to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination Committee also reviewed the
structure and composition of the Board.

New Directors are selected on the basis of their qualifications, skills and
experience which the Nomination Committee considers will make a positive
contribution to the performance of the Board.

In August 2013, amendments to the written terms of reference of the
nomination committee have been adopted. In deciding the composition
of the Board, the Company will consider the Board diversity from various
perspectives, including but not limited to sex, age, cultural and academic
background, race, professional experience, skills, knowledge and terms of
services.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination Committee

held 2 meetings. The Individual attendance record of each members is as
follows:

Members Attendance

Guo Fansheng (Resigned on 18 October 2017)

Zhang Ke
Zhang Tim Tianwei 2
Guo Jiang (Appointed on 18 October 2017) N/A
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AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Management of the Company provides all relevant information and records
to the Board enabling the Board to make assessment and to prepare the
financial statements and other financial disclosures. In full compliance with
Rules 3.21 and 3.23 of the Listing Rules, the audit committee of the Company
("Audit Committee”) was established in July 2003 and is currently chaired by
Mr. Zhang Ke (independent non-executive Director). Other members of the
Audit Committee include Mr. Li Jianguang (non-executive Director) and Ms.
Qi Yan (independent non-executive Director).

During the year, the Audit Committee’s primary duties include ensuring the
Company'’s financial statements, annual and interim reports, and the auditor’s
report present a true and balanced assessment of the Company’s financial
position; reviewing the Company'’s financial control, internal control and risk
management systems; and reviewing the Company’s financial and accounting
policies and practices.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties. For the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the
Audit Committee held 2 meetings. The individual attendance record of each
member is as follows:

Members Attendance

Zhang Ke 2/2
Li Jianguang 2/2
Tang Jie (Resigned on 30 November 2017) 2/2
Qi Yan (Appointed on 30 November 2017) N/A

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management of the Company
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, the internal
control procedures, the financial results of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2017 and met with external auditors and discussed the financial
matters of the Group that arose during the course of audit during the year
ended 31 December 2017. In the opinion of the Audit Committee, there
are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cost
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. There is
no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding the
selection, appointment, resignation or discussion of the external auditors.

Full minutes of all Audit Committee meetings are properly kept by the
Company. In line with practices consistent with meetings of the Board and
other committee meetings, draft and final versions of Audit Committee
meeting minutes are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee for
comments, approval and record as soon as practicable after each meeting.
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The Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements and the
responsibilities of the external auditors to the shareholders are set out on
pages 112 to 114 of this report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditors and reviewing any non-audit function performed by
external auditors, including whether such non-audit functions could lead to
any potential material adverse effect on the Company. The Group’s external
auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers. The remuneration paid or payable to the
external auditor of the Group in relation to the year ended 31 December 2017
comprised fees for audit services of HKD5,440,000 (2016: HKD3,950,000)
and HKD3,660,000 (2016: HKD2,450,000) for non-audit related services,
included providing professional services on interim review, merger and
acquisition.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external service provider to provide company
secretarial services and Ms. Kwong Yin Ping Yvonne is appointed as the
Company Secretary. The primary contact person in the Company for Ms.
Kwong in relation to corporate secretarial matters is Mr. Lu Qingguo, the
Board Secretary and the General Counsel of the Company.

Ms. Kwong Yin Ping Yvonne has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules
in relation to the professional training requirements during the year ended 31
December 2017.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION

Senior management remuneration by band
The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Nil to HKD 1,000,000

£ 21,000,000/ 7T
HKD1,000,000 to HKD2,000,000
1,000,000/ 7T 2,000,000/ 7T
HKD2,000,000 to HKD3,000,000
2,000,000;% 7T, % 3,000,000/ 7T

BEHMBRRZEM - ARINEZEENER 2 E
EHRARREF 11281148 -

A GE )

EEZ BB EE BINEREM 2 Z T REEINEZX
HEMEIT 2 EMERB T - RIEER RS TEY
BHARDRIEK T REEEATFIFE - AEBINE
B AREIFESTMEL - BE-ZT—+F
T A=+ RALEE  BSENAEEINEIZE
Rl 2 S BN B2 5% 3L AR 7% B FE 5,440,000 7L ( = F — X
£ : 3,950,000/ 7T ) R IFEFTHERA MRS (B FEIR At
B O 2 EERTE) B F3,660,0008 (=%
—7<4F 1 2,450,00057T) °

RAME

RRRZEINERISH R R E A AMERTS - B
ML LERERRRAIME » ARARHERZ LR A R
ESHZIBBRATAARREFTEWERERE
EREREEREE -

BEZZ—+F+-A=+—HILEE  BFTRLT
BT EMRAIEI 206 MEXIBIZMRE
BREE A B HMH

RARNES cEREEAEHE
e BEMT :

Number of individuals

AR
2017 2016
—g—tF  —FTAF
3 1
1 —
- 2
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems for the Group to safeguard the Company’s
assets and shareholders’ interests, as well as for reviewing such systems’
effectiveness. The Board conducts review of the Company’s internal
control systems periodically, covering financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions. In such review, the Board has
considered factors such as changes since the last review; scope and quality of
management’s monitoring of risks; incidence of significant control failings and
weaknesses identified; and effectiveness relating to financial reporting and
compliance with the Listing Rules.

On 28 December 2015, the Company adopted the new terms of reference of
the Audit Committee in accordance with the amendments to the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report made by the Stock
Exchange, which is applicable to the accounting period beginning from 1
January 2016. In addition, the Company set up a Group Audit Department in
order to enhance the internal control and risk management of the Company.

Each year, external auditors will also report on issues in the Group’s internal
control and accounting procedure which have come to their attention during
the course of their audit, if any.

The Audit Committee periodically considers the risk management and internal
control issues raised by the Company’s management, if any. The Audit
Committee will then review the remedial plans proposed by the management
in addressing the issues and will then be submitted to the Board for
consideration.

For the year of 2017, no critical internal control issues have been identified.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company discloses all necessary information to the shareholders
incompliance with the Listing Rules. The Directors host the annual general
meeting each year to meet the shareholders of the Company and answer
their enquiries (if any). The Directors make efforts to attend annual general
meetings so that they may answer any question raised by the shareholders of
the Company.

There is no significant change in the memorandum of association and articles
of association of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2017.

The proceedings of the annual general meetings are reviewed from time
to time to ensure the Company conforms to the best practices regarding
corporate governance.
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The Company also communicates with its shareholders through its annual,
interim and quarterly reports. The directors, company secretary or other
appropriate members of senior management also respond to inquiries from
shareholders and investors promptly.

A Shareholders communication policy was reviewed and updated on 20
March 2012 to comply with code provision E.1.4 of the Code.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
in writing through the Investor Relations Department of the Company whose
contact details are as follows:

7/F, Tower A1, Junhao Central Park Plaza
No.10 Chaoyang Park South Road
Chaoyang District

Beijing 100026

The People’s Republic of China

Email: ir@hcgroup.com

Tel No: (8610) 6592 0102

Fax No: (8610) 6592 0068

Investor Relations Department of the Company handles both telephone and
written enquiries from Shareholders from time to time.

Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns will be forwarded to the Board and/or
relevant Board Committees of the Company, where appropriate, to answer
the Shareholders’ questions.

Shareholders’ right to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, the Board may whenever
it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Any one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty
one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.
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Procedures for putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association, no person other than a
Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors
for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general meeting
unless a Notice signed by a Member (other than the person to be proposed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given
of his intention to propose such person for election and also a Notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office or at the Registration Office provided that the
minimum length of the period, during which such Notice(s) are given, shall be
at least seven (7) days and that the period for lodgement of such Notice(s)shall
commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7)
days prior to the date of such general meeting.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director
is posted on the Company’s website at http://www.hcgroup.com.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HC INTERNATIONAL, INC.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of HC International, Inc. (the
“Company"”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 115 to 280,
which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017;

. the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

e the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Impairment assessment of loans to customers

o Impairment assessments of goodwill

° Non-listed available-for-sale financial assets, valued using market
information and significant unobservable input

o Business combination — contingent considerations
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

HARETER

ARETEE®

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Rz EHNIEERREETEE

Impairment assessment on loans to customers
EFEEFREE

Refer to Note 4 and Note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FLRHE G BHRA M T4 R T2 -

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has gross loans to
customers amounted to RMB1,632,113,000 and accumulated
impairment allowance of RMB77,250,000 was recognised.
RZZB—tF+-A=1+—H BEERFEFEFEAAR
#1,632,113,0007T - i RETRER M R ARKET7,250,0007T °

Impairment allowance represented management’s best
estimates of losses incurred for loans to customers as at
the date of consolidated statement of financial position.
The allowance was assessed individually or on a collective
basis, where appropriate. The Group first assesses whether
objective evidence of impairment exists individually, if the
Group determines that no objective evidences exists for
individual assessment, it grouped loans with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
BEEBREERENEHMBARKAHERTEERAES
MEEE 2 &EME - ZREBRAES ISR MRERIS R T
HETRE o BEEEANEESFEEMNFERERE
il EEEREEN NMFEERNTERERE @ A EERRE
BRI 2 B T R -

In the evaluation of management’s impairment assessment
of loans to customers, we have performed the following
procedures:

RAEEREHEFERZREER - RAIEETATRE
7 -

e  Assess the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the approval,
recording and monitoring of loans to customers.
FHEBRAELE « RER R EEEN TR ER RN
Y2 BRET - B NEIERGE ©

e  Understood, evaluated and validated the design and
operating effectiveness of the controls over impairment
assessment of loans receivable, which relate to
management’s identification of events that triggered
the provision for impairment of loans receivable and
estimation of the amount of provisions;

B AR RTE AR W S FORE AT 15 2 Rt BB
M PR EREMRERBEEWETRERE S
HARBESEMGE

e  (Carried out procedures, on a sample basis, to test the
existence and accuracy of the aging of loans receivable as
at the reporting date;

AR BITET - DA BN ERRNSRE B2
BN L AREC BV ZERE M
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BEFETEE®
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRETEHR 2B NAEEREENSZE
We focused on this area due to the size of the balance of e Reviewed management’s assessment on the adequacy of
loans to customers are significant to the consolidated financial provision for individual impairment based on customer’s
statements and the impairment allowance involved significant ability to repay the outstanding loans receivable and
judgements and estimates. the value of underlying collaterals attached to the loans
HREFEFERES M BBRREASEANMRERE S R E receivable; and
RGN R st - BB ET R L &8s - BEREFEEEBWERZE - R EERERERRE

BB R Z A HE AR E IR B M & R AR R R
mBEZFE - &

° Re-performed management’s calculation of collective
impairment assessment which grouped together all the
receivables with similar risk characteristics and based on
the reference to the actual loss rates.

BHRTE R B HRIRE G 2 ETE - ARG
S FT B BB R < JRUGRIA 5 i — I IR IR B R &
BREL -

We found the judgements made by the management in
relation to the impairment assessment of loans to customers
were supported by available evidence.
BMRAEERBHEFEFRENERATE - BRRSE - 4
B RS RHE B BB
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

HARETER

ARETEE®

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Rz EHNAIEERREETEE

Impairment assessments of goodwill

BERETE

Please refer to Note 4 and Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BRHE VR IR 4 RATEE10

As at 31 December 2017, the goodwill of the Group amounted
to RMB1,325,227,000 which were arisen from business
acquisitions in previous and current years.
RZF—tF+ZA=1+—H ' BXBZHEAARE
1,325,227,0007¢ » E4 BBEFE RAFREEBYE -

The Group’s goodwill were allocated to five cash-generating
units (“CGUs"), namely (i) anti-counterfeiting products and
services; (i) online services — B2B2C business; (iii) online services
— garment industry; (iv) integrated marketing and advertising
services; and (v) financing services.
BEEECHESEEAERSEEBM([REEESMT]) - A
(B E R RARTS © (i) BB A AR — B2B2C 375 R iii) E B A4S AR
B8  (WBEEHKEERY - RVEERT -

In the evaluation of management’s impairment assessments
over the goodwill balance, we have performed the following
procedures:

RAHEE R E R B AR 2 RERER - RAEETUTIE
F:

° Evaluated the composition of the Group’s future cash
flow forecasts in developing the VIU calculations of all
the CGUs, and the process by which they were drawn
up, including testing the underlying calculations and
comparing the forecasts to the latest budgets approved
by the board of directors;

HME ESEMAReEABM I ERABENERE
A2 BRE (AR E R RE et A
BREALER) 2 KRR RETRRAS -

° Challenged the key assumptions including the revenue
growth rate, gross profit margin and customer attrition
rate in the forecasts, by making reference to the historical
performance and future business plans of the CGUs and
by benchmarking those assumptions to our independent
market analysis; and
BERIERR  BERAFESRARERR  ENXRE
PREE  Bh&2ZEREELBN 2BERBRK
HEF T EIA R AR AMVE L Tm D ITERZ SRR 218
=R
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

FAREER
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FRREEE @)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Rz EH MR IEREREETEE

As described in the Accounting Polices in Note 2(k) to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group is required to, at
least annually, test goodwill for impairment. In carrying out the
goodwill impairment assessments, management determines
the recoverable amount of each CGU by using value in use
calculation (“VIU"). These assessments involved significant
management judgments and estimates in the determination
of valuation model and the application of assumptions in
the model, including forecast revenue growth rate, gross
profit margin, customer attrition rate, terminal growth rate,
and volatility and cost of equity for discount rate used in the
projection period. Based on the management’s assessment,
there is no impairment required for goodwill.

WIS AT RA MR 20 ST BRI - BRERRDE
FEREEREETAH o RETHERENEE - EEEER
FMACABENE  BESReEABUIWEIESHE - ZF
AL RERENETE MERL RN ZIER T ERRRER(BE
RIBRAIEAR TR 2 TRRIE E WAL R E - EFIX - BFERKL
B RS RE AR ARRERLIR R 2R B R AR ) 2 BRI ER
KAtat o IRIBERE 271 - BEREERIE -

We focused on this area due to the size of goodwill balance.
Furthermore, the management’s goodwill impairment
assessments involved significant judgements and estimates.
HRRMBERRAEAUARETEERGBREN IR IER
HIE R A5 - BRI UL S

° Challenged management’s sensitivity calculations over
all the CGUs. We determined that the calculations were
most sensitive to the assumptions for revenue growth
rates and discount rates. We calculated the degree to
which these assumptions would need to change before
an impairment conclusion was triggered.
BEREEBHMARSEEEN < GREAE - FfirE
T ZEAERITHERAERERBRERZE - &
P EZERRFEEH2IZE - EEFHRESR °

We found management’s judgements and estimates applied
on the impairment assessments in respect of the goodwill were
supported by available evidence.
BMRAEEER S EMARAEN LB AT EEERS

# o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

HARETER

ARETEE®

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
®M2 R IEREETEE

Non-listed available-for-sale financial assets, valued using
market information and significant unobservable input
FLIMAMHHESHEE UTBENREATABRZES
Afh{E

Refer to Note 4 and Note 16 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

LA GBI T4 KA 16 -

The Group held certain non-listed shares of Inner Mongolia
Hohhot Jingu Rural Commercial Bank Limited Company which
were classified as available-for-sale financial assets (“AFS”) and
were measured at fair value.
EEEREAREHAESSAERNEERITROER AR Z
HETELEMRG  ZERDOFEAITHEESREE RIZAT
BEtE -

Management engaged an external valuer to determine the
year-end fair value of the non-listed AFS based on market
approach. The valuation of this AFS required the use of
market information (net assets value and price to book ratio
of comparable companies in the industry) and significant
unobservable input (discount for lack of marketability).
EIRE D RIEIMNEHERD - EEF FTAHEESREER
TS ET HZ FRATE - ZAHEE SR EEGEREZRAR
ATISER (AR ELRAREEFERTRE) REBANA
BVR I AR (FAZ 5 RhIR ) o

We focused on this area due to the carrying amount of this
AFS is significant to the consolidated financial statements
(RMB447,000,000 as at 31 December 2017) and significant
management’s judgements were involved in the choice of
comparable companies and the determination of discount for
lack of marketability in the fair value measurement of the AFS.
HRZA L ESREERIEHSHUBHREM S BEEXR
(R=ZE—+F+=A=1+—HRAREK447,000,0007T) bA K
BEAIEHB AR KSAIHEE eREEQN TV EFSETHR
Z S mBERR P REXNERE A - BULRMEER LS

B -

In assessing management’s valuation of the AFS, we have
performed the following procedures:

RAHEER B L ESREE ZHER - RPETATE
o

e Assessed the objectivity, independence and competence
of the external appraiser engaged by the Group;
FHE BEREZERIMNEGEMEE RS - B RAR
s

e Assessed the appropriateness of the selection of
comparable companies by reference to their business
nature and size of market capitalisation available in public
market;
ZEAEUBA R EBWE RN ART S Z TER
B UeHEE 2 BB AREEAE :

. Tested the accuracy of the net assets value, price to book
ratio of the comparable companies by checking to their
audited financial statements available publicly; and
WA ARER A& LR A RS EZIB®RE - AR
AHEBEHENTRERDER &

° Utilised our internal valuation specialists to critically assess
the determination of discount for lack of marketability by
reference to market practice and research.

Bz AMBHEER - UELETISEN RARE - B
R RS TIm IR R 2 BERE V% o

We found the judgements made by the management in
relation to the valuation of the AFS were supported by available
evidence.
BHMRREEEMIHHESREERE BB EERX

# o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

FAREER
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FRREEE @)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Rz EH MR IEREREETEE

Business combination — contingent considerations
EBEH—ARE

Refer to Note 4, Note 15 and Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements

EREE TR EN T4 - B 15RM7F17

The Group recognised financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FATPL") in relation to the contingent
consideration arrangement of acquiring Orange Triangle
Inc. during the year ended 31 December 2015 and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FLTPL") in relation
to the contingent consideration arrangement of acquiring
Zhongfu Holdings Limited and Huijia Yuantian Limited during
the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2017, respectively.
SEEREANEBE_Z-—RF T -_A=+—HILFEKE
Orange Triangle Inc. Z S AREBELEE AR AT EFFAERZ Z®
MEE(RATEAABSZEREE])  REBREBE—Z
—NERZE—+tF+ZA=+—HIFEDHIHEEZhongfu
Holdings Limited R &t K 2 AR B L H AR A FERTA
BazemBE((RATEAABSEZERMEBE]D -

Management engaged an external valuer to determine the fair
values of FATPL and FLTPL as at 31 December 2017.
ERERBINELER  MEFR -_Z—tF+-HA=+—8H
BRAHEF ARG eREERRAHEAABS 2 2REE
ZBFE

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of FATPL and
FLTPL amounted to RMB2,100,000 and RMB169,000,000,
respectively.

RZZE—+F+A=+—H RAFEFABRZZEHME
ERRAHEFARR 2 @R B EZREED IAARE
2,100,0007T &2 A £ #169,000,0007T ©

We focused on this area due to significant management
judgements and assumptions involved in the determination of
fair values of these financial instruments, which included the
determination of valuation methodology, estimation of the
respective probability of investee’s achievement of the profit
guarantee, risk-free rate and discount rate.
HREEZEeMIAZATESREREEEHE RRE
BIREMMETEZETE  MEREEERSHRIE 2B 24
ot mE R R AR - R AT EER UL S o

In the evaluation of valuation of the financial instruments, we
have performed the following procedures:

WREHE SR T AR ER - BPETU TR

e  Assessed the objectivity, independence and competence
of the external appraiser engaged by the Group;
Ml BEEEZRRZIMNEGEMESTE B MAR
7 ¢

e Utilised our internal valuation specialists to critically assess
the model used in the valuation by referencing to market

practices;
Bz REMEEER - LELXEMIHIEG - BRGF G
BEFTAER ;

e  Challenged management’s assumption of the probability
of fulfilling the remaining profit guarantee by the
investees with reference to market research on the
industry performance and forecast, historical performance
of the investees and business plan of the Company in
relation to the development of the investees; and
BREEBHHIREEENH TRIRE 2B E 2R
& BRRSETERE R 2 TSR - wIREE

=Ei‘%fﬁ& BERAISBIREEBR 2 B8 - &

e  Tested the integrity of the valuation calculations by
checking the formula applied in the calculations and
comparing the underlying inputs such as risk-free rate
and discount rate with market data.

R E R AR AR B A BUR (A0 E B M =R Ko Bl
) AT EIRA LR - LAIGSEFE 2 T -

We found the judgements and assumptions made by the
management in relation to the valuation of the financial
instruments were supported by available evidence.

BB REEERSRTAGBEZHERBRROBEERSS
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the management’s statement, report
of the directors and corporate governance report (but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon), which are expected to
be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it
becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

When we read the management’s statement, report of the directors
and corporate governance report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the
Audit Committee and take appropriate action considering our legal rights and
obligations.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
EAVE A R s

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Wong Ka Keung, Johnny.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
EXnraN=X e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHEZE-T—+F+-A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—T—+F ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBTFT
Revenue SHEUWA 5 3,702,466 1,958,283
Cost of revenue SHE AR (2,397,882) (706,264)
Other income HUA 33 44,359 19,590
Other gains, net Hith Wz F 58 34 168,255 106,153
Selling and marketing expenses HERMIZHESR (708,070) (698,524)
Administrative expenses 1THE A (304,467) (249,869)
Operating profit ] 504,661 429,369
Finance cost, net B TSP AN F R 38 (85,962) (49,998)
Share of post-tax losses of associates DG E R RIBRT R ESE 14 (22,405) (13,502)
Share of post-tax profits of joint ventures PMEEE R EIRF& R 14 19,774 27,633
Profit before income tax KR PS5 A& A1 416,068 393,502
Income tax expense FriSHifs 39 (98,758) (92,826)
Profit for the year RNEEm T 35 317,310 300,676
Other comprehensive income: Heb2mEUA -
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss A B 7 AR R o B
Fair value (loss)/gain on available-for-sale AEEESREEATE
financial assets (E518), /W 24 (48,875) 62,400
Fair value release on disposal of available-for-sale & 7] fit € 4 g & E# @
financial assets AN ] 24 (28,605) (95,755)
Currency translation differences BEEERER 24 13,724 13,876
Total comprehensive income for the year, AEEZERALLEE -
net of tax HIBRHIE 253,554 281,197
Profit attributable to: TEATEIERET :
Equity holders of the Company KAGIERZFEA 267,777 181,784
Non-controlling interests FEFERR i A 49,533 118,892
317,310 300,676
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

N/ ,i_| N7/
B PtR e e
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZZ—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—EB—tF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTTT

Total comprehensive income attributable to: TEIATREEZERALR
Equity holders of the Company RATEREZFAEA 204,021 162,305
Non-controlling interests FEFERR M A 49,533 118,892
253,554 281,197

Earnings per share attributable to the equity AR AEREE AELZR

holders of the Company (expressed BN (AZRARESIE)

in RMB per share)
Basic earnings per share FRREAREF 40 0.2651 0.1882
Diluted earnings per share GBS Z T 40 0.2559 0.1852

The notes on pages 122 to 280 are an integral part of these consolidated — $122ZF2808 2 i sE A& GBS IRE 2 BEHH -
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BHIBGARNR

As at 31 December 2017 R=ZE—+tF+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF ZEREF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AERBTT

Assets BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Land use rights T b A 6 166,671 171,408
Investment properties REME 7 642,087 660,345
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NEE 9 286,358 309,516
Intangible assets mEE 10 2,376,400 1,521,619
Long term deposits, prepayments and other REZS ENFER
receivables Hfth pE U 5 IE 11 11,146 2,589
Loans and interest receivable BRI RS, 12 304,400 29,422
Deferred income tax assets FEEFTISIEE 317 21,115 11,386
Investments accounted for using equity method AR E R ZI&EE 14 124,583 579,023
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEEESHEE 16 528,960 484,071
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss A F(EzFABR 2 S@EE  17(a) - 4,600
4,461,720 3,773,979
Current assets REEE
Completed properties held for sale BEEERITYE 8 110,750 364,617
Deferred expenses ERERSE 19 49,335 81,351
Finance leases receivables FEAMHEE I 20 155,587 352,327
Loans and interest receivable BRI RS 12 1,345,918 52,714
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &e -~ BRARIER
E A FEUGRIE 11 164,046 119,997
Trade receivables JEUBR X 11 290,848 154,989
Inventories =& 21 142,910 3,590
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESRMEE 16 39,500 212,646
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss & AF{EzF AIBzE 2
CRVEE 17(a) 172,021 172,686
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEY 22 401,918 963,523
2,872,833 2,478,440
Total assets wmEE 7,334,553 6,252,419
Equity En
Equity attributable to the Company’s AAREREE AELER
equity holders
Share capital [N 23 100,740 93,885
Other reserves Hib A 24 2,737,941 2,307,761
Retained earnings BiFWEs 815,417 587,143
3,654,098 2,988,789
Non-controlling interests FEIERRE RS 803,031 279,354
Total equity HRER 4,457,129 3,268,143
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BHTBIORNR

As at 31 December 2017 R=ZE—+tF+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
ZB—+tF —ERF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mzt AR®TT ARBFT
Liabilities =N
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Non-current portion of bank borrowings RITIEE 2 IEREH D 29 712,376 127,376
Non-current portion of other borrowings HEMEEZIERBE D 29 267,412 22,206
Deferred government grants IEAE AT B 27 175,658 185,508
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSHBE 31 271,710 144,654
Receipt in advance TEWGRIA 26 40,282 40,282
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or ZAF{EF AIBZH 2
loss =L} 17(b) 115,672 27,123
1,583,110 547,149
Current liabilities mENEE
Current portion of finance lease obligations BEREaBEZ RSB - 158
Trade payables FERTBRR 28 19,482 7,916
Accrued expenses and other payables FEET B A R E At FE A /I8 28 219,864 216,882
Deferred revenue RIEWA 28 158,983 244,367
Current portion of bank borrowings RITIEE ZmENEH 29 393,837 724,528
Current portion of other borrowings HEmEE 2 REE D 29 123,505 9,372
Deferred government grants IEXE T AT 4 B 27 20,627 14,500
Receipt in advance TEURGRIA 26 163,581 453,540
Convertible bonds — liabilities portion AMRES - A& 30 41,387 654,743
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or A (EFF AEZEZ
loss LRBE 17(b) 53,328 14,377
Other taxes payables HAb ST 1E 32 34,422 36,898
Income tax payables FEZFTSH 32 65,298 59,846
1,294,314 2,437,127
Total liabilities mefE 2,877,424 2,984,276
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 7,334,553 6,252,419

FISENNBZEHUBRER=_ZE—N\F=A
“tHtREEESHAETHTIEEARESER

The consolidated financial statements on pages 115 to 121 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 27 March 2018 and were signed on its behalf.

=,
LIU Jun LEE Wee Ong
Director Director
2=E LEE Wee Ong
EE 2

o

The notes on pages 122 to 280 are an integral part of these consolidated 5812222808 Z Ml AR A I iR K 2 &R H

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
S

Fortheyearended31 December 2017 BEZZT—+tF+-A=1T—HIFE

Attributable to the Company's

equity holders
KAFREEE ARG
Non-
Share Other  Retained controlling
capital reserves  Earnings  Sub-total  interests Total
ke Hth@EE  @RkE et FERER Ehy
Note (Note 23) (Note 24)
M (WiE3)  (HE2)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTT AR%TR ARETT ARMTR AR%Tn ARET:
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZZ-—~F-A—-B&#% 85,090 1,976,484 405359 2,466,933 132,013 2,598,946
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Profit for the year REE R = - 181,784 181,784 118,892 300,676
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Efp2EKA/ (F8)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale financial HHESBEE ATFHER
assets, net of deferred tax i - HIREEHE 24 - 62,400 - 62,400 - 62,400
Fair value release on disposal of available-for-sale  HEREHESBEEREREZ
financial assets, net of deferred tax NTHE - IRETEDR 24 - (95,755) - (95,755) - (95,755)
Currency translation differences ERESER 24 - 13,876 - 13,876 - 13,876
Total comprehensive (loss)/income E(EE)/ i\ eE = (19,479) 181,784 162,305 118,892 281,197
Transactions with owners HERREARTZRE
Issuance of shares upon conversion of RERAARES%
convertible bonds ki 23 8,045 326,506 - 334,551 - 334,551
Buy-hack of shares BERR 23 (529) (60,410) - (60,939) - (60,939)
Exercise of share options e 23,24 1,279 10,429 - 11,708 - 11,708
Share based compensation - value of employee  BARA S 7 B — B E 75
services BE 24 - 29,566 - 29,566 - 29,566
Share purchase for Share Award Scheme AR REEEIEE R (6,386) - (6,386) - (6,386)
Non-controlling interests arising on business ERAHELY
combination R ER - - - - 14,085 14,085
Contribution from non-controlling shareholders  Fi B2\ RI3E2IRAR R 2
of subsidiaries iE - - S = 1,112 11,112
Transactions with non-controlling interests IR ERET IR S 25 - 51,051 - 51,051 3,252 54,303
Total transactions with owners BESEE AR TS 8,795 350,756 - 359,551 28,449 388,000
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZZ—~E+ZA
=+—Bz&% 93,885 2,307,761 587,143 2,988,789 279,354 3,268,143

The notes on pages 122 to 280 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

51225280 B 2 M RS HIBI Bk 2 B
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
N

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+HF+-A=+—HIFE

Attributable to the Company's

equity holders
AAFERE AR
Non-
Share Other  Retained controlling
capital reserves  Earnings  Sub-total  interests Total
Ra Bt BEUE Mt FERER by
Note (Note 23) (Note 24)
Mz (Wi223) )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR¥Tn ARETRT ARMTR AR%Tn ARETx
Balance at 1 January 2017 R-B-—t5-F-Be#% 93885 2307761 587,143 2,988,789 279354 3,268,143
Comprehensive income 2EKRA
Profit for the year RERRF - - 267777 261,777 49533 317,310
Other comprehensive (loss)/income 2 (F8) /WA
Fair value loss on available-for-sale financial R EELRHEEZ ATER
assets, net of deferred tax B IBREERE 24 - (48,875) - (48,875) - (48,875)
Fair value release on disposal of available-for-sale  HEREHELRAERE 2
financial assets, net of deferred tax AVE - HRETRE 24 - (28,605) - (28,605) - (28,605)
Currency translation differences AEEZR 24 - 13,724 - 13,724 - 13,724
Total comprehensive (loss)income 2E(BR)WALH - (63756) 267,777 204,021 49533 253,554
Transactions with owners BRBRAAET LIRS
Issuance of shares in relation to contingent RAARBLHETRD
consideration arrangement 23 358 24,352 - 24,710 - 24,710
Issuance of new shares BATHRG 23 7438 513,227 - 520,665 - 520,665
Buy-back of shares BERLH 23 (982) (24317 (982) (26281 - (26281)
Exercise of share options TR 23,24 M 476 - 517 - 517
Share based compensation - value of employee AR i 2 #(E
services —ERRKEE 2 - 33,815 - 33,815 - 33,815
Partial redemption of convertible bonds - equity A EEIA R ES
portion —REHA - (47,494) 2,817 (24,677) - (24,677)
Non-controlling interests arising on business ERAHELY
combination iR - - - - 411808 471,808
Contribution from non-controlling shareholders of Fii B2 AIFEEIARE 24
subsidiaries - - - - 8,713 8,713
Transactions with non-controlling interests EIEEREREIT R S 25 - (6,123) - (6,123) (6377) (12,500)
Dividend paid BEARE - - (61,338)  (61,338) - (61,338)
Total transactions with owners HRSRAAETZR 588 6855 493936  (39503) 461,288 474,144 935432
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=A
=T—B#& 100740 2,737,941 815417 3,654,098 803,031 4,457,129

The notes on pages 122 to 280 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
SHIBEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZEZE-ZT—+F+-_R=+—HILFE

2016
N
Note RMB'000
izt AREFT
Cash flows from operating activities REXBRERE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations gEEE/(FR)ZEE 42(3) 144,371 (177,511)
Interest received BHFIE 17,527 45,899
Interest paid BIFIE (89,910) (59,386)
The People’s Republic of China (“PRC") income tax paid ~ EJHRZEARLERB ([HE |)FEH (104,305) (20,890)
Net cash used in operating activities MR R F 8 (32,317) (211,888)
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHHERE
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired KRB AR (IREANRS) (630,511) (49,029)
Additions of property, plant and equipment NEDE - BENEE (9,521) (32,981)
Additions of intangible assets NERVEE (256) (1,765)
Additions of investment properties NEREYE - (119,311)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment — HEYE - |E kREMEHE 42(b) 925 1,406
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets & ] (&4 g B TS FUE 125,675 247,704
Proceeds from disposal of an associate & — RS D RS R0E 3,200 =
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERRNTEH ABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss SREEMEHTE 586 864
Dividend received BElRE 6,010 1,037
Loans to an associate BERT RS A (18,000) (5,940)
Loans to a joint venture EXT—RAEAH - (45,000)
Loan repayment received from a joint venture BEH—HEENAERER - 245,000
Loans to third parties EXTE=F - (612,355)
Loan repayment received from third parties and employees B E=F REEEEER 18,137 717,530
Investment in available-for-sale financial assets RAEHESREE 7 RE (58,400) (407,935)
Investment in financial assets at RIERFE ABEZ
fair value through profit or loss SRHEEZRE (7,930) (178,160)
Investment in associates REEE R AR E 14 (8,228) (54,550)
Net cash used in investing activities REEHMACREFE (578,313) (293,485)
Cash flows from financing activities METBZELRE
Proceeds from issuance of new shares BT ETE IR 520,689 =
Buy-back of shares AR (26,281) (60,939)
Dividend paid ERKRE (61,338) =
Prepayment for buy-back of shares LR 2 IR - (13,688)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEBMEHE 887,400 910,376
Proceeds from other borrowings HiEErmE70E - 2,376
Proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds BT ERATEE0E - 312,254
Partial redemption of convertible bonds O AR ES (611,707) =
Purchase of shares under share award scheme BB REEEIE A 2 R 1D - (6,386)
Repayment of bank borrowings BRETEE (633,000) (559,000)
Repayment of other borrowings EBRAMEE (11,800) -
Transaction with non-controlling interests BRI ERE TR S (12,500) -
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests g A 8,713 63,415
Exercise of share options TR 517 11,708
Repayments for finance lease obligation EEpEREaRE (158) (825)
Net cash generated from financing activities REERBHELZRLFE 60,535 659,291
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents B&RBELZENFECED), /& (550,095) 153,918
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year RENZB4 RELZEY 963,523 790,701
Exchange (loss)/gain on cash and cash equivalents ReRASSEN BN (58) W (11,510 18,904
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year RELACBRERBEEEY 22 401,918 963,523

The notes on pages 122 to 280 are an integral part of these consolidated — #122Z2808 2 i ARNAHIHHRETZBEHH -
financial statements.

EREMEMRAT 201753



122

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHIMB R

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is 4 Floor, One Capital Place,
P.O. Box 847, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, British
West Indies. The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The core business of the HC International, Inc. (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) is to organise a business-to-
business (“B2B") community across People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") by providing business information through both online and
offline channels.

The Group is principally engaged in the following activities in the PRC:
—  Providing industrial search result prioritising services through its
B2B website “hc360.com” and offering comprehensive IT-related

product information by “zol.com.cn”;

—  Providing cross-industrial integrated marketing and advertising
services;

—  Providing transaction and agency services through its B2B trading
platform;

- Hosting exhibitions and seminars;
—  Providing anti-counterfeiting products and services to enterprises;

—  Engaging in financing business; including lease financing, factoring
services and micro-credit financing;

— Sale of properties and provision of property rental and
management services via its 020 business exhibition centre.

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017
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PR HRRMTE

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

On 3 February 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire
equity interest of Huijia Yuantian Limited, which in turn holds entire
interest of Beijing Huijia Yuantian Advertisement Media Company
Limited ("dt REZ TR XLEEBRAE" or “Beijing Huijia”). The
acquiree through its subsidiaries are principally engaged in provision of
marketing and public relations services mainly via mobile terminal in the
PRC. The results from Beijing Huijia have been reflected in the “Online
services” segment (Note 5).

On 28 November 2017, The Group also completed the acquisition of an
additional 30% of equity interest in Chongging Digital China Huicong
Micro-Credit Company Limited ("EESMEIBE SR/ EE XK ER
A|]" or "Micro-Credit”). The Company indirectly owns 70% of the
equity interest of Micro-Credit upon completion of the acquisition. The
acquiree principally engaged in micro-credit financing business. The
result from Micro-Credit has been reflected in the “Financing Services”
segment (Note 5).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated. The consolidated financial statements are for the
Group consisting of HC International, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

(a) Basis of preparation
(i) Compliance with HKFRS
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS").

—RER @

R+ E-A=H A£E=RKESE
TRZEZRE  MEFTRFEILLRESZT
AIALEHEERAR (K[ RERE ) 223
BB TEERENBATETRRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

HC International, Inc.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a historical cost basis, except for available-for-sale financial
assets, and financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, which are measured at fair value.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments to HKFRS issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time for
their annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2017:

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Statement of cash flows

HKAS 12 (Amendments)  Income taxes
HKFRS 12 (Amendments) Disclosure of interest in other
entities

The application of the amendments to HKFRS in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and position for the current and prior years
and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Report 2017
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESTHBER#ME®)

(a) WHEEH)

(iv) BEMEEFLERZHTEIRE
BB IREER ZAIEET
RZZB—tF+_A=+—HRSE
HARE B A8 B30 R 58 ) £ 2 B AR &
B ERERAZE TS

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)
(iv) New standards and amendments to HKFRS in issue but
not yet effective
Certain new accounting standards and amendments have
been published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2017 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by

the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS

HKAS 28 (Amendments)

Annual improvements to HKFRS
2015-2017 cycle@

Investments in associates and joint

AIRAERTA -

BRMHREEET

BRGIENRIH

ey e
~hEE-ELE
B g

RERLARRARAAR

ventures® (B31%) o
HKAS 40 (Amendments) Transfer of investment property( BRGHEAEA0% EEREnz0
(B31%)
HKFRS 1 (Amendments) First time adoption of HKFRS®™ BROBREENE IS ENEMEANGREE
(B31%) A
HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Classification and measurement of ERUEREENES  NRAEERAHZ
share-based payment transactions® (31%) LABREY
HKFRS 4 (Amendments) Applying HKFRS 9 financial ERUERSENRE  BANERSENEE
instruments with HKFRS 4 insurance (B31%) BIARERRBRE
contracts(” ERELERRAN—
PrreRo
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments” EANBREENEE SRIA0
HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Prepayment features with negative BROBREENER  AAAREZRAIETK
compensation®? (31%) i

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Sale or contribution of assets between

ERURRELUR0RR RAZEABEAARR

(Amendments) an investor and its associate and BAEITERIE8R ENEZHEENES
joint venture® (B31%) RO
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with ERUEREENEISE  BRAGMAL
customers(
HKFRS 15 (Amendments)  Clarifications to HKFRS 150 BRUERSEAEE  AAUERSENESH
(BiTE) ZEEN
HKFRS 16 Leases? EROBRSENE6E A0
HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts® BRETEREENETR  RBRAYe
HK(IFRIC)-Int22 Foreign currency transactions and ER(ERHHBREREE NERARERREY
advance consideration® Be)-2BELY
HK(FRIC)-Int23 Uncertainty over income tax EE(ERHERERRE MENTETE R

treatments® BE)-REEBN

Note: B &E

M Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on 1 o RZFE-N\F-A—BRHKZF
January 2018. EERRR S AR SR B A -

@ Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on 1 @ RZZ—NEF—A—BRBZF
January 2019. [EEARI S AR SR B A 2K »

@) Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on 1 ® RZZE-_—F—A—BRBEZF
January 2021. JE BRI AR SR B AR R »

@ Effective date to be determined. @ £ B HIFE ©

EREMEMRAT 201753



126

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBE#IE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(a) MBREE(E)
(iv) EFESFERZHTEARE

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)
(iv) New standards and amendments to HKFRS in issue but

not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” replaces the whole of HKAS
39. HKFRS 9 has three financial asset classification categories
for investments in debt instruments: amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (“OCI") and fair
value through profit or loss. Classification is driven by the
entity’s business model for managing the debt instruments
and their contractual cash flow characteristics. Investments
in equity instruments are always measured at fair value.
However, management can make an irrevocable election to
present changes in fair value in OCI, provided the instrument
is not held for trading. If the equity instrument is held for
trading, changes in fair value are presented in profit or loss.
For financial liabilities there are two classification categories:
amortised cost and fair value through profit or loss. Where
non-derivative financial liabilities are designated at fair value
through profit or loss, the changes in the fair value due
to changes in the liability’s own credit risk are recognised
in OCl, unless such changes in fair value would create an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case, all fair
value movements are recognised in profit or loss. There is no
subsequent recycling of the amounts in OCI to profit or loss.
For financial liabilities held for trading (including derivative
financial liabilities), all changes in fair value are presented
in profit or loss. HKFRS 9 introduces a new model for the
recognition of impairment losses — the expected credit losses
(ECL) model, which constitutes a change from the incurred
loss model in HKAS 39. HKFRS 9 contains a ‘three stage’
approach, which is based on the change in credit quality
of financial assets since initial recognition. Assets move
through the three stages as credit quality changes and the
stages dictate how an entity measures impairment losses
and applies the effective interest rate method. The new rules
mean that on initial recognition of a non-credit impaired
financial asset carried at amortised cost a day-1 loss equal to
the 12-month ECL is recognised in profit or loss. In the case
of accounts receivables this day-1 loss will be equal to their
lifetime ECL. Where there is a significant increase in credit
risk, impairment is measured using lifetime ECL rather than
12-month ECL. HKFRS 9 applies to all hedging relationships,
with the exception of portfolio fair value hedges of interest
rate risk. The new guidance better aligns hedge accounting
with the risk management activities of an entity and provides
relief from the more “rule-based” approach of HKAS39. The
Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting HKFRS
9 and, based on its preliminary assessment, the impact on
the Group’s financial statements are not expected to be
significant.

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017
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PR HRRMTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBE#IE )
POLICIES (Continued)

(a) WHEE )
(iv) EBEMESFLENZFETERRE

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)
(iv) New standards and amendments to HKFRS in issue but

not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 replaces the previous revenue standards: HKAS
18 Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction Contracts, and the
related Interpretations on revenue recognition. HKFRS 15
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining
when to recognise revenue and how much revenue to
recognise through a 5-step approach: (1) Identify the
contract(s) with customer; (2) Identify separate performance
obligations in a contract; (3) Determine the transaction price;
(4) Allocate transaction price to performance obligations;
and (5) Recognise revenue when performance obligation
is satisfied. The core principle is that a company should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to the customer in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

[t moves away from a revenue recognition model based on
an ‘earnings processes to an ‘asset-liability’ approach based
on transfer of control. HKFRS 15 provides specific guidance
on capitalisation of contract cost and licence arrangements. It
also includes a cohesive set of disclosure requirements about
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts with customers.

The Group has performed preliminary assessment on the
adoption of HKFRS 15 and the initial result indicated that the
impact on the Group's financial statements are not expected
to be significant other than changes on the disclosure.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFEEHBEHEs)
POLICIES (continued)

(a) WHEE ()
(iv) EHEMEYFENZHTEARE

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)
(iv) New standards and amendments to HKFRS in issue but

not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16, “Leases” addresses the definition of a lease,
recognition and measurement of leases and establishes
principles for reporting useful information to users of financial
statements about the leasing activities of both lessees and
lessors. A key change arising from HKFRS 16 is that most
operating leases will be accounted for on balance sheet for
lessees. The standard replaces HKAS 17 “Leases”, and related
interpretations.

The Group is a lessee of various properties which are currently
classified as operating leases. The Group's current accounting
policy for such operating lease payment is accounted for in
the consolidated statements of profit or loss when incurred
and the Group's future operating lease commitments are not
reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position.
As of 31 December 2017, the Group's total operating lease
commitments amounted to RMB205,310,000.

However, the Group has not yet assessed what other
adjustments, if any, are necessary for example because of the
change in the definition of the lease term and the different
treatment of variable lease payment and of extension and
termination options. It is therefore not yet possible to estimate
the amount of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities that
will have to be recognized on adoption of the new standard
and how this may affect the Group’s profit or loss and
classification of cash flow going forward.

The standard will be mandatory for adoption by the Group
for financial years commencing on or after 1 January 2019.
At this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date. The Group intends to
apply the simplified transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and
that would be expected to have a material impact on the
entity in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017
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PR HRRMTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)
(iv) New standards and amendments to HKFRS in issue but

not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Hong Kong)
For the other amendments to standards presented,
management is in the process of making an assessment of
the likely impact of these changes but is not yet in a position
to state whether any substantial changes to the Group's
significant accounting policies and/or the presentation of its
financial statements will result.

(b) Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group (refer to Note 2(c)).
Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
financial position respectively.
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SR RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEE:EBEMHMEs)
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (b) ZRERBESTREE

(Continued)

(iij) Associates (i) BERF
Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant BENTEMBASEHEEEXN
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally TENBENWEZEGIEZER - BT
the case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of RAEBMEF20% E50% 2K E
the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for % R IR ARG - B
using the equity method of accounting (see (iv) below), after RRIZBRENERGTHEARAT
initially being recognised at cost. X(iv)) °

(iii) Joint arrangements (i) BEZH
Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in joint REBEEBMERELERFE1RHE
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or 2 RBA LB ZRESERE
joint ventures. The classification depends on the contractual BEBIALDLE - 2N RBETS
rights and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal REEZENENREE - IR
structure of the joint arrangement. The Company has both BRYZERERE - NRAREEA
joint operations and joint ventures. EEBRAEERE -
Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity RE OB AR R A AR B A TR
method (see (iv) below), after initially being recognised at cost & RNedbEsERERERE
in the consolidated statement of financial positions. (FB2HE T (V) AR -

(iv) Equity accounting (iv) #E#ZZ:
Under the equity method of accounting, the investments BEERGTHE - REV LUK
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to R HEeTARE  UEIALRE
recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or DAEUAE & 5 A sk R 18 2 P 4 %
losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share é%ZEﬁEM&$EI DEEM R
of movements in other comprehensive income of the investee HWAZ HIKEEEfh 2 E KA E
in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or B o B EWHEE R T REE D
receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as EZBREERB/REREEIRD -

a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.
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PR HRRMTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBE#IE )
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (b) ZRERBESTREEE
(Continued)
(iv) Equity accounting (Continued) (iv) #zmEi (%)

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is
tested for impairment in accordance with the policy described
in Note 2(1).
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SR RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEHSE s

POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (b) ZRERBESTREE
(Continued)
(v) Changes in ownership interests (v) HEEEDZEE
The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests AEEG T G5B LTI IE
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with ERIERZ PR FEREBE RS
equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest BAZRS - BAEREZETHEN
results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of AR B SR AR R e AR T (B 2 8 B
the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their LA Fz il A BT /8 A ) 2 AE A #E 2 o
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between FEAE AR T B B B AR 2 T Bk
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests BB R 2 E R ZE R AR T
and any consideration paid or received is recognised in a B AR 2 B EENTER o
separate reserve within equity attributable to owners of the
Company.
When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account fiad 745 52 B0 R e Sk #2e A ~ HR[RI4EE A
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control FEEUNZ ﬂﬁﬁ%iﬁ‘dﬂ&é@’m\
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity ARRSRER AR - AIREEB 2 F
is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying AR A R 2 T;zﬁ Sizﬁé%ﬁ‘lfﬁ 2
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes AR EEZ BRIV IES TR - 3t
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently BER ABRDIIEREE A A] - REE
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint FeMEELREERMS @ %A
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously FEKATZREME © N - AT
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that REMEEBANEREZERS
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed BEMeBERENZEBEEES
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts EEHEESBEBHAAR It
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are AREERZFAAMEEMEEKAR
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category Rz eEEFHHEE B S EE
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRS. 2HEA Eﬁﬁﬁ%#ﬁiﬁﬁllﬁﬁ%ﬁ/ﬁ
B
If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is fif 7 /\**/JE%‘JZH‘J"SEETZ%%%
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, B - mikRZESERERY
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously ZHERE - BEID TR HEHAM
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to ZEHBRANBER @HEHNHOEE
profit or loss where appropriate. B (@A) °
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PR HRRMTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBE#IE )
POLICIES (Continued)

(0 XHZa6t

(c) Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments
or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

o equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
e consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity,
and

3 acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquired entity.
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SR RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(0

(d)

(e)

HC International, Inc.

Business combinations (Continued)

Over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial
liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

The executive directors are regarded as the chief operating decision

maker who will review the operating results of the Group on a
consolidated basis, and make strategic decisions.

Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR HRRMTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”). Hong Kong
Dollars is regarded as the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains or losses that related to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. All other foreign
exchange gains or losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Change in the fair value of debt securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from the changes
in the amortised cost of the security and other changes in
the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such has equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets, such as equities classified as available for sale,
are included in other comprehensive income.
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SR RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iiij) Group companies
The results and financial positions of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

(g) Land use rights
Land use rights are recorded at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Land use
rights are amortised using the straight-line method over their lease
terms from 40 to 50 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR HRRMTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Investment properties

0

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It also
includes properties that are being constructed or developed for
future use as investment properties. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at carrying values, representing cost less
depreciation and impairment provision. Depreciation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives of 40 years.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied or commences
to be further developed for sale, it is reclassified as property,
plant and equipment and land use right or properties under
development, and its fair value at the date of change in use
becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties remaining unsold at the end of reporting
period are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises development costs attributable to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the sale proceeds
of properties sold in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses, or by management estimates based on
prevailing marketing conditions.
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SR RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

HC International, Inc.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising buildings, computer
and telecommunications equipment, fixtures, fittings and office
equipment, leasehold improvements and motor vehicles, are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Motor vehicles classified as finance lease commences depreciation
from the time when the assets become available for its intended
use. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over its estimated useful lives, at the following rates per
annum:

Leasehold improvements

HEMEREE

Buildings

¥

Computer and telecommunications equipment
B R EAR

Fixtures, fittings and office equipment

FRE - RERPAERE

Motor vehicles

REL
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PR HRRMTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

1)

(k)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of financial position
date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction or pending installation and is stated at cost less
impairment losses, if any. No provision for depreciation is made
on assets under construction in progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and available for their intended use.
On completion, the relevant assets are transferred to property,
plant and equipment at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill
Goodwill is measured as described in note 2(m). Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs") for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill arose.
The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level
at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purpose.
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SR RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k) Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

HC International, Inc.

Contractual customer, distributor relationship and non-
compete agreement

Contractual customer, distributor relationships and non-
compete agreement acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The
contractual customer/distributor relations have a finite useful
life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
from eight to seventeen years over the expected life of
the customer, distributor relationship and non-compete
agreement.

Patents

Separately acquired patents are shown at historical cost.
Patents acquired in a business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. The patents have a
finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method of eight years over the expected life of the patents.

Trade name and domain name

Trade name, domain name acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Trade name, domain name have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method of
ten to fifteen years over the expected life of the trade name,
domain name.

Software license and order back log

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to their
intended use. Order backlog are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives of one to five years.
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PR HRRMTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k) Intangible assets (Continued)

0

(vi) Data library

Costs incurred on acquiring the data library are recognised
as an intangible asset where the technical feasibility has been
demonstrated, and there is an ability to sell or to use the
assets that will generate probable future economic benefits.
Such acquisition cost is recognised as an asset and amortised
on a straight-line basis over a period of three years to reflect
the pattern in which the related economic benefits are
recognised.

(vii) License
License acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. The license has a finite useful
life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over
the useful life of the license.

(viii) Technical knowhow
Technical knowhow acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The technical
knowhow has a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method over the useful life of the seven
years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that
are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the assets carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating-
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.
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SR RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial assets and liabilities
(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets and liabilities in the
following categories:

e financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss;

. loans and receivables; and
. available-for-sale financial assets.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the
investments were acquired.

Management determines the classification of its investments
at initial recognition.

1. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss
The Group classifies financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss if they are acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term,
ie are held for trading. They are presented as current
assets if they are expected to be sold within 12 months
after the end of the reporting period; otherwise they are
presented as non-current assets.
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PR HRRMTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(i) Classification (Continued)

2.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. If collection of the amounts
is expected in one year or less they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets. The Group's loans and receivables comprise
of trade receivables, deposits, prepayments and other
receivables, loan receivables, finance lease receivables
and cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Investments are designated as available-for-sale financial
assets if they do not have fixed maturities and fixed or
determinable payments, and management intends to
hold them for the medium to long-term. Financial assets
that are not classified into any of the other categories
(at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments) are also included in the available-for-sale
category.

The financial assets are presented as non-current assets
unless they mature, or management intends to dispose
within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

HC International, Inc.

Reclassification

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading
financial asset out of the held for trading category if the
financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling
it in the near term. Financial assets other than loans and
receivables are permitted to be reclassified out of the held
for trading category only in rare circumstances arising from a
single event that is unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the
near term. In addition, the Group may choose to reclassify
financial assets that would meet the definition of loans
and receivables out of the held for trading or available-for-
sale categories if the Group has the intention and ability to
hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity at the date of reclassification.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the
reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost or
amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair value
gains or losses recorded before reclassification date are
subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial assets
reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
categories are determined at the reclassification date. Further
increases in estimates of cash flows adjust effective interest
rates prospectively.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in other profit
or loss are reclassified to profit or loss as gains and losses
from investment securities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR HRRMTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(iv) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
and liabilities at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset and liabilities not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset and liabilities. Transaction
costs of financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in

the fair value are recognised as follows:

o for “financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss” — in profit or loss within other gains, net

o for available-for-sale financial assets that are monetary
securities denominated in a foreign currency —
translation differences related to changes in the
amortised cost of the security are recognised in profit
or loss and other changes in the carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive income

o for other monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale — in other comprehensive

income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(n)

(o)

HC International, Inc.

(iv) Measurement (Continued)
Dividends on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss as part of revenue from continuing operations
when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is included in the other income in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Interest on available-
for-sale securities and loans and receivables calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as part of revenue from continuing
operations.

Details on how the fair value of financial instruments is
determined are disclosed in Note 3.3.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforce right must
not be contingent on future event and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. In the case of
equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered an indicator that the assets are impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR HRRMTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFES€HHBEHEs)
POLICIES (continued)

(o) EWMEERME ()

(o) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and interest receivables, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in
profit or loss. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on
the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment testing of trade receivables is described in note
11.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

If there is objective evidence of impairment for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses on equity instruments that were recognised in
profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss in a subsequent
period.

If the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-
sale increases in a subsequent period and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(a)

(r)

(s)

HC International, Inc.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.
The cost of finished goods comprises merchandises and other
direct costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade receivables is expected in one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Deferred expenses

Deferred expenses, which principally are comprised of sales
commissions and agency fees paid in respect of subscription
revenue received in advance, are deferred and are charged ratably
to the consolidated statement of revenue and loss over the term of
the respective service contracts when the services are rendered.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities in the statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR HRRMTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(®

(u)

Share capital and shares held for employee share
scheme
Ordinary shares are classified as equity (note 23).

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where the company’s shares are acquired from the market under
the employee share scheme, the total consideration of shares
acquired from the market (including any directly attributable
incremental costs) is presented as shares held for employee share
scheme and deducted from total equity. Upon vesting, the related
costs of the vested shares for employee share scheme purchased
from the market are credited to shares held for employee share
scheme, with a corresponding decrease in employee share-based
compensation reserve for employee share scheme.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEE:EBEMHMEs)
POLICIES (Continued)

(v) &8

(v) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the drawn down occurs. To the extent there
is no evidence that is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

The fair value of the liability portion of a convertible bond is
determined using a market interest rate for an equivalent non-
convertible bond. This amount is recorded as a liability on an
amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or maturity
of the bonds. The remainder of the proceed is allocated to the
conversion option. This is recognised and included in shareholders’
equity, net of income tax effects.

Borrowings are removed from the statement of financial position
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid. Including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in statement
of profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and
the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish
all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is
recognised in statement of profit or loss, which is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR HRRMTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Borrowing costs

(x)

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period which they are
incurred.

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group companies
convertible notes that can be converted to share capital at the
option of the holder, and the number of shares to be issued does
not vary with changes in their fair value.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is
recognised initially at the fair value of a similar liability that does
not have an equity conversion option. The equity component is
recognised initially at the difference between the fair value of the
compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of
the liability component, which is included in shareholders’ equity
in other reserves. Any directly attributable transaction costs are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to
their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a
compound financial instrument is measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity component of a
compound financial instrument is not re-measured subsequent to
initial recognition except on conversion or expiry.

The liability component of a convertible instrument is classified
as current unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of
the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable
on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

(i)

(ii)

HC International, Inc.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR HRRMTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBE#IE )
POLICIES (Continued)

(y) ERRELREHRE
(i) EFETEH(4T)

(y) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(ii) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liability in relation to investment property that is
measured at fair value is determined assuming the property
will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amount will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances related to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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SR RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(z) Employee benefits
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Retirement benefit costs
The full-time employees of the Group are covered by various
government-sponsored pension plans under which the
employees are entitled to a monthly pension based on certain
formulas.

The relevant government agencies are responsible for the
pension liabilities to these retired employees. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these pension plans. Under
these plans, the Group has no obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made.

Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred.

(ii) Bonus entitlements
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled within 12

months and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when they are settled.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBE#IE )
POLICIES (Continued)

(z) Employee benefits (Continued) (20 EEBF@)
(iii) Share-based compensation (iii) KRG ZTZHE1E
The Group operates equity settled, share-based compensation REEBRBAEREN - ARH X
plans. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable RNAHE 2T E - ZEREREITE
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) B - BUERFTIS ROE (R E R E B
and share premium when the options are exercised. M52 SRR AN) 15 F AR (E1E) &

B o

Under the Share Award Scheme, the directors and certain RGO B E - NEBEER
employees of the Group are entitled to receive shares in ETREREAENGEARFRG - &
the Company. The shares held under trust by a financial PH—EermEE([ZEADNLE
institution (“Trustee”) for the benefit of the director and EREEAZEANUETRAIAE
employees, would be paid and the paid up consideration A WEHNERRK - BENBEZRE
would be capitalised in the Company’s reserves. The Trustee BRARRIREERERE - ZFEA
has been instructed to buy shares from the market using the EEETHAZEAMBFEZESR
funds held by the Trustee to grant shares to the director and MHEERG - UMESERESR
employees. TR -

The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme RATIRERNEREE - 1R
under which options may be granted to subscribe for the Ut - BRI R TR HARE AR A
Company's shares. f&ip -

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange 1E B st BV 2 B AR I iR 1) 4%
for the grant of the share options and shares awarded is Bym R4t 2 RS2 A FEER A
recognised as an expense. X o

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period REBBAARIER X 2 Be8  T)
is determined by reference to the fair value of the share 2BERLBERERRKRN 2 A TE
options and shares granted, excluding the impact of any BT - TEEEMIETISR B R
non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and (Plan & Fge ) REERREZR)Z
sales growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions are HE - NBEREHATHEERG K
included in assumptions about the number of shares or share BIRIEEE I - g5t RIETMIHE
options that are expected to vest. The total amount expensed JB 51 o 4B R (E R R HA (BiE
is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period PP T8 B B A 2 BRI ) 1 RR o
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be REFHERRAEZBE  AEESR
satisfied. At each statement of financial position date, the 1B IE T %5 55 B (G H S B H (L 5T TR B
Group revises its estimates of the number of shares or share A THB2RNDSERESE - &
options that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing BRMEETHE (E) 2 EERE
vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision of Pz R ATER - W ERIE
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of H AR EE o

comprehensive income, and a corresponding adjustment to

equity.
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SR RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEE:EBEMHMEs)
POLICIES (Continued)

(2) BEEEF @)

(z) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iv) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to
either: terminating the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a result of
an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after statement of financial
position date are discounted to present value.

(aa) Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make good
obligations are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the management'’s
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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PR HRRMTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFES€HHBEHEs)
POLICIES (continued)

(ab) S5 E WA TR

(ab) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns,
trade allowances, rebates and amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group's activities as described below. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type
of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

The Group evaluates whether it is appropriate to record the
gross amount of sales of goods and the related costs or the net
amount earned as commission. When the Group has the primary
responsibility for providing the goods to the customer or for
fulfilling the order, is subject to inventory risk, has latitude in
establishing prices and bears the customer’s credit risk, or has
several but not all of these indicators, revenues is recognised on
a gross basis. When the Group does not have exposure to the
significant risks and rewards associated with the sale of goods,
revenues are recorded on a net basis.

(i) Revenue from online services and advertisement
Advertising income from internet portals, mobile devices,
trade catalogues, yellow page directories and printed
periodicals is recognised on the date of publication.

Subscription fee income from online services is recognised
over the period of contracts entered with the customers. The
unrecognised portions of contract sum are recognised as
deferred revenue.

(i) Revenue from marketing events, seminars and other
services
Revenue from the hosting of marketing events, trade
exhibitions and business seminars is recognised upon
conclusion of the exhibitions or seminars.
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SR RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(ab) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

HC International, Inc.

Revenue from anti-counterfeiting business

Revenue from anti-counterfeiting products is recognised
when a group’s entity has delivered products to the customer;
the customer has accepted the products and collectability of
the related receivables is reasonably assured.

Revenue from anti-counterfeiting services is recognised in
the accounting period in which the services are rendered, by
reference to stage of completion of the specific transaction
and assessed on the basis of actual services provided as a
proportion of the total service to be provided.

Revenue from 020 business exhibition centre

Revenue from sale of properties is recognised when the
risk and rewards of the properties are transferred to the
purchasers, which occurs when legally binding unconditional
sales contracts were entered, the construction of the relevant
properties has been completed, the properties have been
delivered to the purchasers pursuant to the sale contracts
and collectability of related receivables is reasonably assured.
Deposits and installments received on properties sold prior
to the date of revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated balance sheet as receipts in advance from
customers.

Rental income from investment properties is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Revenue from B2B trading platform

Revenue from B2B trading platform primarily comprised
commission income and revenue from merchandise sales.
Commission income is recognised for transactions where the
Group is not the primary obligor, is not subject to inventory
risk, and does not have latitude in establishing prices and
selecting suppliers. Commission income is recognised on a
net basis which is based on a fixed percentage of the sales
amount.

Revenue from merchandise sales and related costs is
recognised on a gross basis when the Group acts as a
principal. Commission income and revenue from merchandise
sales are recognised when the customer has accepted the
goods and the related risks and rewards of ownership.

Annual Report 2017
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PR HRRMTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBE#IE )
POLICIES (Continued)

(ab) SHEW AR (1)
(i) KE2BRHZHERA

(ab) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(vi) Revenue from financing services

Lease income attributable to finance leases is recognised over
the lease term on a systematic and rational basis so as to
produce a constant rate of return on the net investment in
the finance lease.

Interest income and expense for asset factoring and micro-
credit financing services are recognised within “revenue-
interest income” and “direct cost-interest expense” in profit
and loss using the effective interest method, while the
interest from bank deposits are recognised within “finance
income” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not
consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all
fees and payments paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. Once
a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has
been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest
income is recognised using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets
has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognised using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss.
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SR RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(ac) Leases

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

HC International, Inc.

Operating lease - as a lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Operating lease — as a lessor

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the asset
is included in the statement of financial position based on
the nature of the assets. Lease income on operating lease is
recognised over term of the lease on a straight-line basis.

Finance lease - as a lessee

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment, where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net
of finance charges, are included in other long-term payables.
The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the lease period
so as to produce a constant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life
of the asset and the lease term.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBE#IE )
POLICIES (Continued)

(ac) Leases (Continued) (ac) HE (&)

(iv) Finance lease - as a lessor (iv) BEHE—EBHHBEA
When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present LAREREHAEER - HERMRK
value of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable. The Z B EHERREUGRIA o EUYFIE
difference between the gross receivable and the present value BREEENGRIRRE  ZEER A
of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income. RERERBT TSN o
The method for allocating gross earnings to accounting REFTHESEAFERE 2 AR
periods is referred to a as the ‘actuarial method’. The BRIEEE] - BEZENEG5HH
actuarial method allocates rentals between finance income MEFBRARERER DR
and repayment of capital in each accounting period in such e BUEHE - MBRAEAL
a way that finance income will emerge as a constant rate of AAREEFIRE 2B ERREH
return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease. ] o

(ad) Government grants (ad) BUAF#EBY

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair values BRI AT A ESESRATHE)

when there is a reasonable assurance that the grants will be W& %A BT A M6 - BUS BB

received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. NFERER ©

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised AR 2 BUHH B B #RAE - b0 B 4t

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period TEABER AN < T BN A fH R &

necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to e

compensate.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised AR 2 BT 2 #5RE - pAE B

within “other income” in the consolidated statement of profit or TEEKNANRE 2 TE RN A HHERER

loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that R EAMYA ] -

they are intended to compensate.

(ae) Dividend distribution (ae) B E 5K
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised AR AR IR 2 BB A A AR Rt
as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial statements in IR B 2 BEEASKE R R 2 B3R
the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s RABRAEE -

shareholders.

EREMEMRAT 201753



162

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEE:EBEMHMEs)
POLICIES (Continued)

(af) BABIEREE

(af) Financial guarantee liabilities

Financial guarantee liabilities are recognised in respect of the
financial guarantee provided by the Group to the banks for
property purchasers.

Financial guarantee liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial guarantee liabilities. After initial recognition, such
liabilities are measured at the higher of the present value of the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation of fees recognised.

Financial guarantee liabilities are derecognised from the balance
sheet when, and only when, the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged or cancelled or expired.

(ag) Sale and leaseback transaction

A sale and leaseback transaction involves the sale of an asset and
the leasing back of the same asset. The lease payment and the
sale price are usually interdependent because they are negotiated
as a package. The accounting treatment of a sale and leaseback
transaction depends upon the type of lease involved. If a sale and
leaseback transaction results in a finance lease, any excess of sales
proceeds over the carrying amount is deferred and amortised over
the lease term. If a sale and leaseback transaction results in an
operating lease, and it is clear that the transaction is established
at fair value, any profit or loss is recognised immediately. If the
sale price is below fair value, any profit or loss is recognised
immediately except that, if the loss is compensated for by future
lease payments at below market price, it is deferred and amortised
in proportion to the lease payments over the period for which the
asset is expected to be used. If the sale price is above fair value, the
excess over fair value is deferred and amortised over the period for
which the asset is expected to be used.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, value interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017
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PR HRRMTE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (c

ontinued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Risk management is carried out by a central finance department
(the “Finance Department”) headed by the Chief Financial Officer
of the Group. The Finance Department identifies and evaluates
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating
units to cope with overall risk management as well as specific areas
such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

(a) Market risk

()

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC and
majority of its transactions are denominated in the
functional currencies of the respective entities. The
Group has no material foreign currency denominated
assets and liabilities and does not have material
exposure on foreign exchange risk.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent from changes in market
interest rates and the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets except for fixed deposit categorised
in “loans and interest receivable”, “cash and cash
equivalents”, details of which have been disclosed in
Notes 12 and 22.

The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is
also attributable to its borrowings, details of which have
been disclosed in Note 29. Borrowings carry at fixed
rates expose the Group to low fair value interest-rate
risk.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk. As at 31 December 2017, if
interest rate had increased/decreased by 50 basis points
(2016: 50 basis points) with all other variable constant,
the Group's profit after tax and total comprehensive
income would have been approximately RMB1,415,000
(2016: RMB928,000) lower/higher.

The Group regularly monitors its interest rate risk to
ensure there are no undue exposures to significant
interest rate movements and regular reporting is
provided to the management for the Group’s debt and
interest rates exposure.
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SR RN

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

HC International, Inc.

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Price risk
The Group’s exposure to equity securities price risk
arises from investments held by the Group and classified
in the consolidated statement of financial position either
as available-for-sale (Note 16) or at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 17).

Post-tax profit for the period would increase/decrease
by approximately RMB270,000 (2016: RMB10,184,000)
as a result of 10% gains/losses on equity securities
classified as at fair value through profit or loss. Other
components of equity would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB53,793,000 (2016: RMB69,672,000)
as a result of 10% gains/losses on equity securities
classified as available-for-sale.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The credit risk
mainly arisen from a customer’s inability or unwillingness to
meet its financial obligations. It arises primary from the loan
receivables from the financing service segment.

Credit risk arising from financing services business

The credit risk mainly arises from micro-credit business. The
Group has established relevant mechanism to cover credit
risk in key operational phases of micro-credit business,
including pre-lending evaluations, credit approval, and
post-lending monitoring. The Group conducts customer
acceptance and due diligence by operating department and
risk management department in the pre-lending evaluations.
In the credit approval phase, all loans applications are
subject to the assessment and approval of the Department
Manager, General Manager and Risk Assessment Committee,
depending on the amount and nature of the loans. During
the post-lending monitoring, the Group conducts on-site
inspections and off-site inquiries to detect potential risks by
evaluating various aspects, including but not limited to the
customer’s operational and financial conditions, status of
collaterals and other sources of repayment.
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PR HRRMTE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BH¥RBREEw

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BKEREZ®)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EREEE)

Credit risk arising from financing services business (Continued)
In accordance with the regulations issued by the local
regulatory authority, Chongging Financial Affairs Office (&
& TIEHAE), the Group has established a loan credit
risk classification system based on the type of collateral and
credit period, and performs credit risk management based
on loan classification in one of five categories. The Group
classifies loans into the following five categories: normal,
special-mention, substandard, doubtful and loss. Loans
classified as substandard, doubtful and loss are regarded
as nonperforming loans. The primary factors considered
in loan impairment assessment include probability of loan
repayment and recoverability of principal and interest, which
reflect borrowers’ repayment ability, repayment record and
intention, projected profitability, bank guarantees or collateral
and legal responsibility of repayment. The allowance for
impairment losses is assessed collectively or individually, as
appropriate.

The definitions of the five categories of loans receivables are
set out below:

Borrowers can honour the terms of their
loans. There is no reason to doubt their
ability to repay principal and interest in
full on a timely basis.

Normal:

Special-mention:  Borrowers are currently able to service
their loans and interest, although
repayment may be adversely affected

by specific factor.

Substandard: Borrowers' ability to service their loans is
in question and they cannot rely entirely
on normal business revenues to repay
principal and interest. Losses may ensue
even when collateral or guarantees are
invoked.

Doubtful: Borrowers cannot repay principal and
interest in full and significant losses
will need to be recognised even when
collateral or guarantees are invoked.

Loss: Principal and interest of loans cannot be
recovered or only a small portion of
them can be recovered after taking
all possible measure or resorting to all
necessary legal procedures.
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BT EHRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMKEREREE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BKEBEE@®
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)) 1EEREE)
Credlit risk arising from financing services business (Continued) BEREEBELZ ZERRE ()
The balance of each categories of loans receivable (excluding FHEIWE R (B IEEE 2 FEUCF
the corresponding interest receivables) as at the reporting BORImE B2 &8AIT

date is as follows:

As at

31 December

2017

R=-Z—tF

+=H=+—~H

RMB’000

ARET T

Normal IEE5E 1,513,132
Special-mention EaE 45,679
Substandard e 784
Doubtful CIE=3 29,200
Loss =B 43,318
1,632,113
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PR HRRMTE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMKEEREKREE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEREBEEG@)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =EREEE)
Credit risk arising from financing services business (Continued) AERBRBEEZ (SEERE (&)
Impairment and provisioning policies BB RBEHR

Individual assessment

All loans receivable are individually reviewed for objective
evidence of impairment and classified based on a five-tier
classification system. Loans that are classified as substandard,
doubtful or loss are assessed individually for impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a
loan or receivables has been incurred on an individual basis,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate. The allowance for impairment loss is deducted
in the carrying amount. The impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss. In determining allowances on an individual
basis, the following factors are considered:

e The sustainability of the counterparty’s business plan;

e The borrower’s ability to improve performance once a
financial difficulty has arisen;

o Projected receipts and the expected pay out should
bankruptcy ensure;

e  The availability of other financial support and the
realizable value of collateral; and

e The timing of the expected cash flows.

[t may not be possible to identify a single, discrete event that
caused the impairment, but it may be possible to identify
impairment through the combined effect of several events.
The impairment losses are evaluated at the end of the
reporting period, unless unforeseen circumstances require
more careful attention.
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SR RN

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 H¥RBREEw

3.1 BIKEBEZE®)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

HC International, Inc.

Loans and receivables which are assessed collectively for
impairment include individually assessed loans and receivables
with no objective evidence of impairment on an individual
basis, and homogeneous groups of loans and receivables
which are not considered individually significant and not
assessed individually. Loans and receivables are grouped for
similar credit risk characteristics for collective assessment.
The objective evidence of impairment mainly includes that,
though it is unable to identify the decrease of cash flow
of each individual asset, after collective assessment based
on observable data, there is observable evidence indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flow from a group of financial assets since the initial
recognition of those assets.

Collateral and other credit enhancements
The amount and type of collateral required depends on the
assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty.

Guidelines are in place covering the acceptability and
valuation of each type of collateral.

The collateral obtained by the Group mainly consists of
mortgages on land use rights, building ownership rights or
equipment and pledge on shares. All collateral is registered in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The credit
officers inspect the collateral and assess the changes in the
value of the collateral regularly.

Although collateral can mitigate credit risk to a certain extent,
the Group mostly grants loans based on the assessment of
the borrowers’ ability to meet obligations out of their cash
flows, instead of the value of collateral. The necessity of
collateral is dependent on the nature of the loan.

In the event of default, the Company might sell the collateral
for repayment. Management monitors the market value of
collateral and will request additional collateral in accordance
with the underlying agreement.
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PR HRRMTE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Credlit risk arising from financing services business (Continued)
Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

Collateral and other credit enhancements (Continued)

Please refer to Note 12 for individually assessed and
collectively assessed impairment allowances arising from
unsecured, guaranteed loans and unsecured loans.

Other credit risk

Credit risk also arises from cash and cash equivalents, as
well as credit exposures to trade and other receivables. The
finance department has policies in place to monitor the
exposures to these credit risks on an on-going basis.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that provision
of services is made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic credit evaluations of
its customers.

For balance with a related company and loan to a third party
and the employees, management assesses the recoverability
of the balances taking into account the history of default
of these companies and the employees, and their financial
performance.

The table below shows the cash and cash equivalents held by
different type of financial institutions at statement of financial
position date.

Cash at banks and bank deposits

169

3 BH¥RBREEw
3.1 BIKEBEZE®)

(b)

RITRE RIRITHER

EEAR (&)
BERBEBELZIEEmR (&)
IR R IR G ()

AR ()

BRREEER BERERLE
ERER IR AR R [ EERT G
RERME 2B -

HiEE B
FERRTITEXRERERAEE
B LA R R R 0 e L A Mk
B - BB T BIRTHR - ARARES
KA ZEEERR -

RER B B SREBGR AR R 7% T5 [F) &
RFEERSZEPRM - A%
B RS R P TE S AR o

SRR AR ZEHEAE=
TRREERZERME @ EEE
KA Rz SRR RER 26 /R
RO BRBRHh SRR AR ERE -

TREI B TR EEBR BN
RERBPAFRELREEED -

2017
—E—+tF

2016
ZT—RF
RMB’000
ARETIT

RMB’000
AR¥T R

Listed financial institutions e i 273,369 655,570
Unlisted financial institutions JFE LT EREE 128,366 307,803
Cash on hand EFRe 183 150
Total 4=t 401,918 963,523
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BT EHRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining
sufficient cash from operating activities.

As at 31 December 2017, the cash and cash equivalents

of the Group approximated RMB401,918,000 (2016:
RMB963,523,000).

Less than

1 year

1R
RMB'000

3 BIRRMEE®

3.1

Between
1and 2
years
1225
RMB'000

B R E R )

© xEBAZER
MAMARMEBZ S RME - A%H
BRI EEEB TR RIS A
BRESEEN -

RZZE—+F+ZA=+—H " ' &
SERERRSEEMHAARE
401,918,000t ( —ZZ—RF : AR
#963,523,0007T) °

Between
2and5 Over
years 5 years Total
2855 S5ELE #5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000

AR®TT

At 31 December 2017 HN-E—+&F

ARBTT

AR®ETT ARETT AR®TR

+=A=+-A8
Trade payables FEFBRFR 19,482 - - - 19,482
Accrued expenses and other fEETE B &
payables H {th &~ 08 219,864 - - - 219,864
Borrowings & 593,539 905,801 165,597 - 1,664,937
Convertible bonds AR ES 2,157 45,290 - - 47,447
At 31 December 2016 HA=ZT—XfF
+=HA=+—H
Trade payables FESERR 7,916 - - - 7,916
Accrued expenses and EErER K
other payables HABFE FRIE 216,882 - - - 216,882
Finance lease obligations REHEaE 158 - - _ 158
Borrowings BE 775,930 150,750 2,804 - 929,484
Convertible bonds AJAR(E S 34,886 34,886 575,617 - 645,389
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PR HRRMTE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MBEBREE®

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIKEBEZE®)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (© mEEEEMEE)

The table above summarises the maturity analysis shows the
cash outflow based on the earliest date in which the Group
can be required to pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke
their unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect. The amounts include interest payments computed
using contractual rates.

The table above excludes the amount of guarantees given to
banks for mortgage facilities granted to certain purchasers of
the Group's properties as the directors consider the likelihood
of default in payments by the purchasers is minimal. As at
31 December 2017, there is RMB287,763,000 outstanding
guarantees for mortgages (2016: RMB357,430,000).

Such guarantees terminate upon the earlier of (i) issuance
of the real estate ownership certificate which will generally
be available within an average period of one to two years
upon the completion of guarantee registration; or (ii) the
full repayment of mortgaged loan by the purchasers of
properties.

Management monitors the Group’s liquidity through cash
flow projections covering a period of twelve months on a
rolling basis. Based on the cash flow projection, taking into
account the reasonably possible changes in the operational
performance and the continuous availability of banking
facilities, management considers that there will be sufficient
financial resources in the coming twelve months to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due.
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+=ZA=1+—8 BB ZREEE
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BT EHRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 UBEBEERE@

3.2 EXEKRER

3.2 Capital risk management

HC International, Inc.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including convertible bonds) and
finance lease obligations less cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position plus net debt. Accordingly, the
gearing ratios at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

AEEEREES 2 BNIREAEERFE
REZRET  ARBIRSREH - RS
HAM @B EE R RN - YRR EE
RSB ARIEE RRA -

REFRFEENGRE - NRE RSN
BERNBERZBEESRE MERREE
A~ BATHAAD S A EARUERTS -

REBERBEABBLRERHEN - %
LR T REE R AL EANGTE - FE
A EREAKRER(BIEBEITAR
REHF) EREAEAERESRASSE
B - BEARZAE R EBEEEI(R
A ORI BIRR R EIR) INFER  E it -
REZE—tFR T —R"F+A=1+—

BZEANEELRMAT

2017 2016

—E—tfF —EAF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARET T

Bank borrowings (Note 29) RITIEE (MT5E29) 1,106,213 851,904

Other borrowings (Note 29) Hi e (fizF29) 390,917 31,578

Finance lease obligation BREREEE - 158
Convertible bonds - liabilities portion (Note 30) BERITARRES - AED

(F3E30) 41,387 654,743

Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) B Be kR eFEM(HE22) (401,918) (963,523)

Net debt REH 1,136,599 574,860

Total equity g 4,457,129 3,268,143

Total capital BER 5,593,728 3,843,003

Gearing ratio ERBEHE 20% 15%
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PR HRRMTE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
including cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
finance lease receivable, trade payables, accruals and other
payables, borrowings and finance lease obligation and amount due
from a related company, approximate their fair values due to their
short maturities.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried
at fair value as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 by level of inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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BT EHRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HIBEREE:
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREMFE)
The following table presents the Group's financial assets and TRENAEER-Z—FR-F—
liabilities that are at fair value at 31 December 2017 and 2016. F+ZA=+—BERATEFAEBZEHME
ERAE-

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F—& FR e 1 ok

RMB$'000  RMB$'000  RMB$'000  RMB$'000
AEBTT ARETT ARETRT ARETR

At 31 December 2016 R-E—XRE
+=A=+—H
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial AEHESREE
assets 212,646 - 484,071 696,717
Financial assets at fair value ~ ZAFEFTAEBZZ
through profit or loss TREE 172,686 = 4,600 177,286
385,332 - 488,671 874,003
Liabilities 8f&
Financial liabilities at fair value IZAF(EFF ABzE 2
through profit or loss SRAE - - 41,500 41,500
- - 41,500 41,500
At 31 December 2017 R-T—t&
+=A=+—H
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial ARHESREE
assets 39,500 - 528,960 568,460
Financial assets at fair value QA F(EFFAEZ 2
through profit or loss TREE 169,921 - 2,100 172,021
209,421 - 531,060 740,481
Liabilities =
Financial liabilities at fair value ZAF{EzF AEZ 2
through profit or loss TRAE - - 169,000 169,000
- - 169,000 169,000
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 3 and no other FN - FREE = EWEERE - (h
changes in valuation techniques during the year. B ETEE MBI -
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PR HRRMTE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMKEEREKREE®
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREMTE
(a) Financial instruments in level 1 (a) EF—RzE£HBTA
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets EERMSEE eMIAZ AT
is based on quote market prices at the statement of financial BERBEM MR KBRS RE
position date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices FTE - ZR AR R EHRELRZS
are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, B - #S8HTS - 42 - ERATLT -
broker, industry group, price services or regulatory agency, BERBHEEERBRGRE - M
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring EAREBRREATRHELEHRTT
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. ZEBEREEHAMISX SN - Zm%
AR BB BT ©
(b) Financial instruments in level 3 (b) FE=RKzL@MTA
The following table represents the changes in level 3 THRENBE_ZE—tF+H
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2017. =+ BIFEE=FRTEZEH-
Financial Financial
Available- assets at liabilities at
for-sale fair value fair value
financial through profit through profit
assets or loss or loss
(Note i) (Note ii) (Note iii)
BAYE BEATE
AHHE stABEZ FrABEZ
SREE SREE SREE
(Bit=Ei) (P Eii) ( Brf=iii)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
As at 1 January 2017 W-Z—+F—F—H 484,071 4,600 (41,500)
Additions NE 18,900
Acquisition of subsidiaries W E B A A) - - (182,200)
Issuance of shares in related MAAREBLH
to contingent consideration BT
arrangement - - 24,686
Fair value changes (charged)/credited R &GH182% (F1k),/
to consolidated statement of STAZATE
profit or loss EE) - (2,075) 18,472
Fair value changes credited to other REMEEWAGTAZ
comprehensive income NEEE 25,989 - -
Currency translation differences EENER - (425) 11,542
As at 31 December 2017 RZT—tF
+=-A=+—H 528,960 2,100 (169,000)
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BT EHRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 UBEBEERE@

3.3 A EMAFE)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b) Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued) (b) F=RKZLBIA(E)

The following table represents the changes in level 3
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2016.

THREIBE-T—AE+=A
S+ AULFRESATAZES -

Financial Financial
assets at liabilities at
Available- fair value fair value
for-sale  through profit through profit
financial assets or loss or loss
(Note i) (Note ii) (Note iii)
A& RAFERTA RAFETA
ETHMEE BRZEREE BRzem8E
(B ( B i) ( B i)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
As at 1 January 2016 RZZ—R"F—H—H 92,553 5,100 =
Additions INE 377,435 - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W RE BT 8 A 7 = = (36,800)
Disposals HE (32,553) - -
Fair value changes charged to R AHHBRXRIG 2
consolidated statement of N EEE)
profit or loss - (500) (4,700)
Fair value changes credited to  REMZEWAGTAZ
other comprehensive income A {E& &) 46,636 = =
As at 31 December 2016 NZE—RF
+=—A=+—8 484,071 4,600 (41,500)

The Group’s finance department includes a team that
performs the valuation of financial asset required for financial
reporting purposes, including Level 3 fair values. This team
report directly to the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the
Audit Committee (AC). Discussion of valuation processes and
results are held between the CFO, AC and the valuation team
at least once before the reporting date of every quarter, in
line with the Group’s quarterly reporting dates.

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017

AEEFHHRE—EE - BE
R BHREETHT ZeREE(E
BE=RzAHEIGE ZEBKE
ERERVEE(BEMBE)LE
REER(EREZEG)ER - AT
EAREEZFERERH  AFEY
BE BEZZBEERMAEERED
BEREAAMGERF RAERE

1751 -
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PR HRRMTE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(b) Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued)

i)

i)

The fair value of the Inner Mongolia Hohhot Jingu Rural
Commercial Bank Limited Company (“Jingu”), which
classified as available-for-sale financial assets were
estimated by market comparison approach, required the
use of market information (the comparable companies
in the industry) and significant unobservable input
(the lack of marketability discount rate). Significant
management’s judgement was involved in the choice
of comparable companies and the determination of
discount rate.

For the remaining available-for-sale financial assets, the
Group estimates the fair value based on the latest unit
selling price of the financial assets on an arm’s length
basis and the market data of comparable companies.

The fair value of the financial assets through profit
or loss, which represent contingent consideration
arrangement related to the acquisition of Orange
Triangle Inc. (refer to Note 17(a)), was estimated
by applying income approach which considers the
probability that Seller Guarantors could achieve the
performance target and the market prices of the
consideration share at the valuation date. The key
unobservable assumptions in calculating this contingent
consideration are:

Risk-free rate 1 @b I R
Probabilities to achieve the ERREA B IE 2 R

performance target

3

177

BEREEE )

3.3 AFEMFT@®
(b) E=RZLMTAE)

i)

31 December

0.28%-1.22%

it B 5
+=A=+—-A

DEARTHHESRHEEZA
SEMAER A BN ER
TROBERAR(TEARDZR
FEATISLLEVEME - &L
BEFBREMTHER (175
AR E LA R]) REARA
BER&irE A (RZ M5
AR %)  BERELLRA
AREEMRE SR EEES
REE -

B TR ESREEM
5 AEERATEERES
BEEZEMBNEERATE
LA B 2 TmBIRA R A
(& o

AR eREEL A TE
5 E2 U5 8% Orange Triangle Inc.
Bz HARBLH (R
H17(a) * ZATEABASE
FTH - HEBBEHRERAZEK
BRI B IZE 2 Al el R ERRD
REEBRBZTE - sFHZ
SIAREZ EETAIEBRRRR
=2

31 December
2016
—ZE—RF

+=—A=+—H

2017

0.91%-1.11%

90% 90%
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BT EHRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(b) Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued)

iii)

The fair value of the financial liabilities through profit
or loss, which represent contingent consideration
arrangement related to the acquisition of Zhongfu
Holdings Limited and the contingent consideration
arrangement related to the acquisition of Huijia
Yuantian Limited (refer to Notes 15(a) and 17(b)),
was estimated by applying income approach which
considered the probabilities that the performance
targets the seller guarantors could achieve and the
market prices of the consideration share at the valuation
date.

The key unobservable assumptions in the calculation
are:

Risk-free rate EERFIE
Probabilities to achieve the ERENE E
performance target

3 BIRRMEE®

3.3 A EMAFE)
(b) E=Rz2BTAE)

iii)

Zhongfu Holdings Limited
ARIERR

31 December

1.05%-1.36%

80%

31 December
2016

1.11%-1.35%

80%

AAERECZeREECZAT
B8 81 B Zhongfu Holdings
Limited 5 B 2 kAR ERHEK
HIWIEEZ TR M2 AR
18 %2 BE (5F B M 5% 15(a) R T 5%
17(b)) * ZAFEARASERT
& HERBEBARERAZERE
HEIZz AT RAERDRH
HEHBHZME -

AHZIRAREZEETAE
EEEE

Huijia Yuantian Limited
EEnX
3 February
2017
31 December (Acquisition
date)
Tt F
—R=H
(KEEEE)

1.36%-1.49%  0.9%-1.02%

90% 90%
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PR HRRMTE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition seldom
equal to the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill have suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2(m). The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based on the higher of value-
in-use calculations or fair value less costs of disposal. These
calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.
Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset values
may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset in the business;
and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management
in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group'’s financial condition and
results of operations.

Useful lives of intangible assets

Significant judgement is exercised in the assessment of the
useful lives of the intangible assets. In making its judgement,
management considers a wide range of factors such as the
attrition rates and obsolescence rates.
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SR RN

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(c)

HC International, Inc.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each date of statement of financial position, the Group
reviews internal and external sources of information to
identify indications that the interests in associates and joint
venture which are significant to the Group may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

The sources utilised to identify indications of impairment are
often subjective in nature and the Group is required to use
judgement in applying such information to its business. The
Group's interpretation of this information has a direct impact
on whether an impairment assessment is performed as at
any given reporting date. If an indication of impairment is
identified, such information is further subject to an exercise
that requires the Group to estimate the recoverable amount,
representing the greater of the asset’s fair value less cost to
sell or its value in use. Depending on the Group’s assessment
of the overall materiality of the asset under review and
complexity of deriving reasonable estimates of the recoverable
amount, the Group may perform such assessment utilising
internal resources or the Group may engage external advisors
to counsel the Group in making this assessment. Regardless
of the resources utilised, the Group is required to make many
assumptions to make this assessment, including the utilisation
of such asset, the cash flows to be generated, appropriate
market discount rates and the projected market and
regulatory conditions. Changes in any of these assumptions
could result in a material change to future estimates of the
recoverable amount of any asset.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)
(d) Provision of impairment of loans and interest receivable

(e)

(f)

Significant judgement is exercised in the assessment of
the collectability of loans and interest receivable from each
counter party. In making its judgement, management
considers a wide range of factors such as results of following-
up procedures performed by customer relationship personnel,
counter parties’ payment record, creditability, nature of loans,
underlying security and subsequent settlements.

Share-based payment
Significant judgement is exercised in the assessment of
the fair value of the share-based payments. In making its
judgement, management considers a wide range of factors
such as the share price of the Group and the expected vesting
number of share options.

Taxes

The Group is subject to taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for various kinds of taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which such determination is made.
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SR RN

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

HC International, Inc.

Fair value of non-listed available-for-sale financial
assets

The Group has a significant amount of investments that are
not classified as Level 1 investments under HKFRS 13: Fair
Value Measurement. The valuations have been determined
based on quotes from alternative pricing sources supported
by observable inputs, latest transactions prices or by using
valuation technique.

In particular, the fair value of the Inner Mongolia Hohhot
Jingu Rural Commercial Bank Limited Company (“Jingu”),
which classified as available-for-sale financial assets was
estimated by market comparison approach, required the
use of market information (the comparable companies in
the industry) and significant unobservable input (the lack of
marketability discount).Significant management’s judgement
was involved in the choice of comparable companies and the
determination of discount rate.

Fair value of contingent consideration

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities through profit
or loss, were determined by using valuation techniques. The
Group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions, including the discount rates and fair value
of the Company’s shares, which are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in assumption used could materially affect the fair
value of these balances and as a result affect the Group's
financial condition and results of operation.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

EESTHEFTTRAE @

4.2 Critical judgement in applying the Company’s 42 ERAXRATETTBRZEEZHE
accounting policies

(a) Fair value of sale and lease back properties (a) HERHEYHEZLFE

The Group had started the pre-sale of the 020 business
exhibition centre in the PRC to third parties through its
indirectly owned subsidiary, Guangdong Huicong Household
Appliances City Investment Co., Ltd.* ("ERZBXREHIZE
BMRAF]") since 2014.

Some of the properties sale transactions were subject to
sale and lease back arrangement, in which the properties
buyers entered into sale contracts with Guangdong Huicong
Household Appliances City Investment Co., Ltd. and non-
cancellable lease back agreements with Foshan Huiconghui
E-commerce Co., Ltd* ("#RILTEREE FEBEERARF"),
another indirectly owned subsidiary of the Group. Pursuant
to the lease back agreement, the buyers would lease back
the units purchased to the Group in 20 years terms. At
consolidation level, the above contracts involved the sale and
lease back of same assets form a sale and finance lease back
transaction.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has
completed the handover of certain units which under the
sale and lease back transaction with contract amount of
approximately RMB56,276,000 (2016: RMB502,225,000),
and recognises the revenue. The fair value of the properties
amounted approximately RMB54,000,000 (2016:
RMB482,000,000). The excess amount between the
contracted selling price and the fair value has been deferred
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2(ag).

The Group assesses the fair value of these properties based
on valuations prepared by independent and professional
qualified valuer. The fair value is determined by reference to
current prices in an active market for properties of different
nature, condition or location (or subject to different lease or
other contracts) with adjustments to reflect any changes in
market and economic conditions; and discounted cash flow
projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows
of current market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of the cash flows.
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SR RN

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as
the Executive Directors. The Executive Directors review the Group’s
internal report in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of profit/(loss) before income tax. This
measurement basis excludes the effect of finance income and cost, other
income, other gains/(losses), and net share of post-tax (losses)/profit
from associates and joint ventures.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group is organised into the following
business segments:

(i)  Online services — provision of a reliable platform and digital
interactive media marketing tools to customers to do business and
meet business partners online and provide advertisement services.

(i)  Seminars and other services — services for hosting of seminars.

(iii) 020 business exhibition centre — sales of properties and provision
of property rental and management services.

(iv) B2B trading platform — provisions of trading and agency services
via its B2B trading platform.

(v)  Anti-counterfeiting products and services — provision of products
meticulous digital identity management services, consumer goods
tracing and anti-counterfeiting services to enterprises.

(vi) Financing services — provision of micro-credit financing business,
finance leasing and factoring services in the PRC.

There were no sales or other transactions between the business
segments for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2EER @)

Year ended 31 December 2017
BECZ-tE+-A=T-ALEE
020 B2B Anti-
Seminars business trading counterfeiting Financing
Online and other exhibition platform  products and services

Services services centre (Note a) services (Note b) Total
] 020%% BBRATA hEER SRBE

ERBRE  RHEMRE EEHRD (Mf3Ea) RiR# (Hf&Eh) @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR  ARMTr AR¥Tn AR¥Tn ARETz ARETR  ARETR

Revenue HEWA 951,170 131723 433,097 2,041,038 106,066 39,372 3,702,466
Segment results AHFE 202,789 9,358 72,408 (17,797) (5,546) 30,835 292,047
Other income HA 44,359
Other gains, net Hiplhzs5E 168,255
Share of post-tax losses of associates  fEfA DAL ER (6,902) - (15,035) - (468) - (22,405)
Share of post-tax profits of joint ElEASAERBIEET

ventures - - - - - 19,774 19,774
Finance income BAEIA 21,105
Finance cost BHA AR (107,067)
Profit before income tax BEER AR 416,068
Other information: HhER
Depreciation and amortisation FERE 81,062 4,00 2,319 24 6,380 1223 117,30
Share based compensation expense LR {A AERE 2 IERX 24,493 1,932 4,708 345 1,380 957 33,815

EREMEMRAT 201753



186

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT EHRRME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (cContinued)

5 2EER @)

Year ended 31 December 2016
BE_T-—nE+-A=t-RHIL5E

020 B2B Anti-
Seminars business trading  counterfeiting Financing
Online and other exhibition platform  products and Services
Services services centre (Note a) services (Note b) Total
gak 020%% RHTA bk SRS
GRS H iR RER (Bzra) Rigis (FirzEb) )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETT  ARETRE  ARETT ARETR
Revenue HEWA 823,106 93,179 842,081 126,197 66,137 7,583 1,958,283
Segment results AHEE 76,597 4,509 226,29 (11,667) (17,542) 4571 282,762
Other income HitA 19,590
Other gains, net £t R 3E 127,017
Share of post-tax (losses)/profitof ~ FE/ESE A RIRRF 14
assoclates (BR)/ &5 (19,355) - 5,855 2) - (13,502)
Share of post-tax profits of joint G AL AFBHA
ventures gl - - - - 27,633 27,633
Finance income BIEIMA 47375
Finance cost BHRR R (97,373)
Profit before income tax BETEHATRA 393,502
Other information: EE :
Depreciation and amortisation mEREH 69,119 221 4,25 128 6,310 - 82,030
Share based compensation expense  BAR(n EERE 2 BERT 21,538 2,568 3,678 1,368 414 - 29,566

HC International, Inc.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(@ The segment revenue and result of B2B trading platform for the
year end 31 December 2016 was previously included in online
services.

(b) The segment revenue and result of financing services included
thereafter the Group’s acquisition of Micro-Credit from 28
November 2017.

Further to the announcement made by the Group, subsequent to the
year end, on 21 March 2018, the Group would adjust its organisation
structure into three business sectors, namely (i) Information Services
Segment, (ii) Transaction Services Segment and (iii) Data Services
Segment.

(i) Information Services Segment, which mainly include the
online services “hc360.com” and “zol.com.cn” and seminars
and other services.

(i)  Transaction Services Segment, which mainly include the
020 business exhibition centre, B2B trading platform and
financing services.

(i) Data Services Segment, which mainly include the anti-
counterfeiting products and services, and advance marketing
services utilising the digital big data and tools being
conducted by — Beijing Huijia. (The segment results of Huijia
has been included in the “online services” segment above in
2017.)

The Group is domiciled in the PRC. All the revenue were generated from
external customers in the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: same).

As at 31 December 2017, the total non-current assets other than long
term deposits, prepayments and other receivables, loans and interest
receivable, investments accounted for using equity method, available-
for-sale financial assets, financial assets at fair value through profit
or losses and deferred tax assets located in the PRC is approximately
RMB3,471,516,000 (2016: RMB2,662,888,000),and the total of these
non-current assets located in other countries is Nil (2016: Nil).

The comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with
current year's presentation.
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BT EHRRME

6 LAND USE RIGHTS 6 TiiFERARE
The Group’s interests in land use rights in the PRC represent prepaid AREBE R B T (f i 2 s i R40E
operating lease payments with lease period of 40 to 50 years and their S0F 2 FEMNEEMEN - HERmFES TN
net book value is analysed as follows: T

2017 2016
—E—tF —ET—REF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

At 1 January Kn—A—H 171,408 176,145

Amortisation 3! (4,737) (4,737)

At 31 December Rt-—A=+—8” 166,671 171,408
Amortisation of the Group’s land use rights is included in administrative REE T EAE BT ASHERRZ1T
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. HERANA -

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Outside Hong Kong, held on: REBAINEE
Leases of between 40 to 50 years FAEAN T40Z=50%F 166,671 171,408

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR HRRMTE

7

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

189

7 REWEHE

2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBTFT
At 1 January n—H—H 660,345 510,551
Additions INE - 161,263
Interest capitalised BEAREF B - 4,837
Amortisation charge capitalised in investment RIEEMEER b2
properties BT - 3,590
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BB
(Note 9) TR R A (B EE9) - (16,853)
Amortisation b5 (18,258) (3,043)
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—8 642,087 660,345

The investment properties are carried at cost. The Group has completed
the construction of the investment properties during the year ended 31
December 2016.

An independent valuation of the Group's investment properties was
performed by the valuer, Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited, to
determine the fair value of the investment properties which amounted to
RMB946,000,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB1,192,000,000).
Fair value of the investment properties is derived using the market
comparison approach. This valuation method is essentially a means of
valuing the completed properties by assuming sale of each of these
properties in its existing state with the benefit of vacant possession.
By making reference to sales transactions as available in the relevant
market, comparable properties in close proximity have been selected and
with adjustments to valuer’s interpretation on the difference in factors
such as location and property size.

The fair value is valued by independent professionally qualified valuer
who holds a recognised relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the location of the investment property valued.

The Group's finance department includes a team that reviews the
valuation performed by the independent valuer for financial reporting
purpose. This team reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO)
and the audit committee (AC).

ZERBYMERAATIER - AREDREBE—
E—RFET AT —HUEFERKRERZE
WA

AEBREMEZ B G EHGEMEEHE
EMEERERARETT METRENMER
—T—+tF+-A=+—RHZATFE HA
AR #946,000,000 (=T —RF : AR
1,192,000,0007T) ° &M E A FETIATHS
LEBUERTHE o WHEERTEERITYE 2 M
BN BERZEWES B 2B T AN
TERAENZEZIAKELE - BBR2ER
BB B ZHERS ' BEEMNIE 2]
B B2 RN ERD 2 R B R )R MR
FZFREHAR) o

R EHBLFEAERMGEEMETHE - %
HEMSHER AT A X AR IR HE
RE M PIENDRT A ERR -

AEEPHHBRE —<EE - aEEHHBEL
HEMPI B REPTET 2 AE ZEHEX
RAEFUHE (BERVBE) RBEZZEE(FZ
ZEEER -
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BT EHRRME

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 7 REWEw®
At each financial year end, finance department RETHEER - F1EED
e Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report; o  REBUMMEREAMEEZH AR
e Assesses property valuations movements when comparing to the o EMEMEER L —FHERECE
prior year valuation report; £
e Holds discussion with the independent valuer. o EBVIAAEREMR o
8 COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 8 FEHERIWHE

2017 2016
—B—tF A

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AEBT T

At 1 January Bn—A—H 364,617 -
Transferred from properties under development & 2% Fb 1) £ 58 3% - 836,783
Properties sold (Note 35) B EME(MsE35) (253,867) (472,166)
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—8H 110,750 364,617
All completed properties held for sale are located in the PRC. The cost of FIEREHERTYEOURHE - EEWE
properties sold recognised as expense and included in “cost of revenue” ZEATERRBRS - WA ATMARA] - &5
amounted to approximately RMB253,867,000 (2016: RMB472,166,000). # /R ARRE253,867,0007T(ZF—RF : AR

#472,166,0007T) °
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PR HRRMTE

9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 9 Y- BEKRRE
Computer Fixtures,
and telecom- fittings Leasehold
Construction munications and office improve- Motor
in progress Buildings equipment equipment ments vehicles Total
ERRER £E 2GR L {ES ‘ .
ERIE 5 #f AR 1 8 Eh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEET T AEET T ARET R ARETT ARETT ARETR AEETT
At 1 January 2016 R=Z-~"F-A-H
Cost A = 300,853 87,275 23,534 8328 32,986 452,976
Accumulated depreciation ZHHTE - (63.939) (57,728) (17,833) (6,288) (16,115) (161,903)
Net book amount KEFE = 236914 29,547 5101 2,040 16,871 291,073
Year ended 31 December 2016~ HZE=Z-xE
tZAZt-ALER
Opening net book amount ENREFE - 236,914 29,547 5,701 2,040 16,871 291,073
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 15)  WIEHBAA (Hi15) - - 1,250 - - 31 1,281
Additions e 1,094 18,038 11,878 1,702 9 260 32,981
Disposals e = - ®) - - (972) (980)
Depreciation (a) EQ) - (13,341) 4.957) (2,590) (766) (5,992) (27,646)
Transfer from investment aREmFEE ()
properties (Note 7) - 16,853 - - - - 16,853
Government grant received BUGGEE) - - (4,046) - - - (4,046)
Closing net book amount ERERTE 1,094 258,464 33,664 4813 1283 10,198 309,516
At 31 December 2016 and R-E-AETZA=1-A
1 January 2017 k-%-tf-A-A
Cost A 1,094 335,744 90,309 2504 8337 28376 489,084
Accumulated depreciation ZiTE - (77,280) (56,645) (20411) (7,054) (18,178) (179,568)
Net book amount BEE 1,094 258,464 33,664 4813 1283 10,198 309,516
Yearended 31 December 2017 HE=S-t£+=4
=t-ALER
Opening net ook amount ENERTE 1,09% 258,464 33,664 4813 1,283 10,198 309,516
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 15)  JRIEREAA (Hi15) - - 458 4 - - 462
Additions AE - - 4,384 - 4,089 1,048 9,521
Disposals HE - - (100) 1) - (644) (817)
Depreciation (@) EQ - (14,275) (8,881) (1,795) (1,457) (4,056) (30,424)
Transfer from construction in progress BRI (1,004) 1,004 - - - - -
Government grant received EURBFER - - (1,900) - - - (1,900)
Closing net book amount FRERHE - 245,283 27,665 2,949 3915 6,546 286,358
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+-F=1-A
Cost A - 336,837 92,31 24,948 12,426 23,929 490,481
Accumulated depreciation Z2ifiE - (91,554) (64,676) (21,999) (8,511) (17,383) (204123)
Net book amount ERFE - 245,283 27,665 2,949 3915 6,546 286,358
(@) Depreciation of approximately RMB4,477,000 (2016: RMB4,854,000) is (@) IWEHARBEA477,0007T(—F—RE : AR

included in selling and marketing expenses; and RMB25,947,000 (2016:
RMB22,792,000) in administrative expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

4,854,000 7T ) & AR #25,947,0007C (=%
—~F  AR¥22,792,0007T) 2 Blst AAHHE
w2 HE RTIGHEEEBURITRERAA o
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BT EHRRME

10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 10 BEFEE

Trade name
Customer  and domain Technical
Goodwill  relationship name License Knowhow

e EFRR  EERNZ BR BENR
RMB'O00  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR ARMTz ARMTz ARMTn  ARMTR

At 1 January 2016 RZF-"5-A-H
Cost A 1,030,561 343,900 92,000 - - 47,189 1,513,650
Accumulated amortisation 2iHrE - (18,903) (3,125) - - (29,900) (51,928)
Net book amount REFE 1,030,561 324,997 83,875 - - 17,289 1,461,722
Year ended 31 December 2016 HE-E-AE+ZR

=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount EREE 1,030,561 324,997 88,875 - - 1789 1461722
Acquisitions (Note 15) e (B3E15) 38,426 - 68,300 - - 1,600 108,326
Additions hE - - - - - 1,765 1,765
Amortisation (a) B0 - (31,430) (12,997) - - (5.767) (50,194)
Closing net book amount EREMTE 1,068,987 293,567 144,178 - - 14,887 1,521,619
At 31 December 2016 and R=B-AE+ZR

1 January 2017 Zt-BR=B-tF

-A-H
Cost KA 1,068,987 343,900 160,300 - - 50,554 1,623,741
Accumulated amortisation 2B - (50,333) (16,122) - - (35,667) (102,122)
Net book value BEEE 1,068,987 293,567 144,178 - - 14,887 1,521,619
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10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

10 BEEEE®

Trade name
Customer  and domain Technical
Goodwill  relationship name License Knowhow
[k EFBR BERREE i i
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
AEETT  AR%Tn ARMTr ARETR AR¥Tn AR%TRn
Year ended 31 December 2017  BZ—ZE—tE+=F8
St-ALEE
Opening net book amount EETRE 1,068,987 293,567 144,178 - - 14887 1,521,619
Acquisitions (Note 15) Yk (FzE15) 269,722 - - 554,000 105,500 7,900 937,122
Additions NE - - - - - 256 256
Disposals irt5 - - (101) - - - (101)
Amortisation (a) B30) - (31,431) (12,997) (972) (13,555) (4,856) (63,811)
Currency translation differences EBETER (13,482) - - - (5.203) - (18,685)
Closing net book amount ELREETE 1,325,227 262,136 131,080 553,028 86,742 18,187 2,376,400
At 31 December 2017 R=B-tF+=f
=1-H
Cost AR 1,325,227 343,900 160,199 554,000 100,297 58,711 2,542,334
Accumulated amortisation ZETEH - (81,764) (29,119) (972) (13,555) (40,524) (165,934)
Net book value REFE 1,325,227 262,136 131,080 553,028 86,742 18,187 2,376,400

(@  Amortisation of intangible assets is included in administrative expenses in

the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(b)  The comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with current

year's presentation.

(a)

(b)

BIVERE 2B ASIHRER 2 ITHRERNA

LBREREBFAFUATEREFRE 22T -
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BT EHRRME

10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

10 BEE )

HC International, Inc.

Impairment test for goodwill

Management reviews the business performance based on type of
business. Goodwill are allocated to five cash-generating units (“CGUs")
identified which is the business of providing anti-counterfeiting products
and services to enterprise; online services — B2B2C business, online
services — garment industry, integrated marketing and advertising
services and financing services in the PRC. Goodwill is monitored by the
management at the operating segment level.

R AR
ERFENEBRUBMERRR - HEDL
FTAEEREE Rz REELEU([REE
EE]) ZReELBURNPREMEEE
R MER MRS - BEAIRY —B2B2CE
% EMEIRE —2KE  BEL2HRESR
BAREBRT - HEAEEBREEDEHE
IRETTELSR ©

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—K
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTFT
Anti-counterfeiting products and services 7 4 2= o M R 755 50,314 50,314
Online services — B2B2C business B A8 AR5 — B2B2C 7% 980,247 980,247
Online services — garment industry B B8 AR T — AR 3 38,426 38,426
Integrated marketing and advertising services BEEHERESRY 236,614 =
Financing services & ELARTS 19,626 -
1,325,227 1,068,987

The recoverable amount of the CGUs are determined based on value
in use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rates stated below. Management estimates
the pre-tax discount rate that reflects market assessment of the time
value of money and specific risk relating to the industry.

Annual Report 2017

ReELBM 2RO SRZEREBEAE
B - ZEAERARREREEIERERS
Rz MBRREERZ AR RERR - B
FHRZR 2B REHRA THIMEFEREE
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10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 10 BEEE @)

BERERR @)

Impairment test for goodwill (Continued)

Key assumptions of the financial budgets covering the five-year period
and other key assumptions used in the calculations are as follows:

WE T FHIR 2 IR E = E RN EMAE
HEMATERRMT

recoverable amount to fall below the carrying value of the respective cash-

generating unit.

As at As at 31
31 December December
2017 2016
R-ZE—tHF NZE—REF
+=—A=+—-R
Anti-counterfeiting products and services By B E & IR A%
Average growth rate (note a) Fitg R R (MizTa) 1% 11%
Discount rate (note b) ALI8 & (Ff7Eb) 13% 13%
Terminal growth rate IR R 3% 3%
Online services - B2B2C business B B4R 3% — B2B2CER
Average growth rate (note a) TR R (K5Ea) 10% 10%
Discount rate (note b) 838 % (Ff3Eb) 19% 19%
Terminal growth rate SRIER R 3% 3%
Online services — garment industry BRI — RKE
Average growth rate (note a) 138 R (HizEa) 14% 14%
Discount rate (note b) BLEIR K (FffzEb) 16% 16%
Terminal growth rate RIRIERR 3% 3%
Integrated marketing and BELEHRESRY
advertising services
Average growth rate (note a) TR & (Kf5Ea) 12% =
Discount rate (note b) 828 & ([f3Eb) 15% _
Terminal growth rate BEIERE 3% =
Financing services SRR
Average growth rate (note a) TR (MisEa) 21% =
Discount rate (note b) 8537 & (i 7Eb) 12% =
Terminal growth rate RIRIER R 3% =
(@)  Average revenue growth rate used in the budget for the five-year period (@ HEEARZTHBAERESREBEE_T_—
ending 31 December 2022. F+ZA=+—BIAFHREL -
(b)  The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the (b) FTAZBRIRERMRBIA - I REAER XK E
relevant business. [BUR o
() Reasonably possible change in key assumptions would not cause the (0 FEBBHEEAEZ BT EIETEH

SETHRENSREELEN 2 IRAE
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11 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 11 EBWERR &€  BARERH

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES b FE WX SR 18
2017 2016
—E—+F ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Trade receivables (Note a) FEUAR R (P 5Ea) 308,762 162,632
Less: provision for impairment of W FEUERR
trade receivables B (17,914) (7,643)
Trade receivables — net FEURBR SR — 5B 290,848 154,989
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables %Re - BANRIEREAMERRIE
(Note b) (Mi5EDb) 175,192 122,586
466,040 277,575
Less: Non-current deposit, prepayments and other & : 3EEhiRS - FERIZKIA
receivables (Note b) Ko HoAth Rk IE (B 7ED) (11,146) (2,589)
Current portion mENE D 454,894 274,986
(a) Trade receivables (a) FEURBERFR

The Group generally grants a credit period ranging from 90 days to
270 days to customers depending on business segment. The aging
analysis of the gross trade receivables based on invoice date is as
follows:

AEB—BEBEBITLTEENT
QOKRZE270KRZEEH - BUAR KR TEIR
BRERHZERESITAOT ¢

2017 2016

—E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Current to 90 days HIEEESCIIPS 176,883 98,603
91 to 180 days 91£180k 59,654 37,608
181 to 270 days 181F270K 32,837 17,085
271 to 365 days 271E365K 16,045 3,098
Over 1 year il —F 23,343 6,238
308,762 162,632

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair FEMBR R 2 BRE (B B A FEAEE o

values.
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11 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(a) Trade receivables (Continued)
Balances are denominated in RMB and there is no concentration
of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as the Group has a
large number of customers nationally dispersed.

The Group has recognised a loss of approximately RMB13,459,000
for the impairment of its trade receivables during the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: RMB878,000).

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of approximately
RMB17,914,000 (2016: RMB7,643,000) were impaired and have
been provided for. The individually impaired receivables mainly
represent sales made to customers which have remained long
overdue.

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of approximately
RMB27,891,000 (2016: RMB21,552,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default. The aging analysis of
these trade receivables is as follows:

197

11 BEWERF - &e  ANFERA
b PE WL R I ()

(a) YRR ()

EHRUAARKSHE - BIRAKERZEP
DR E M - ERARKE 2 R AR
BEhEERR -

HE—Z—+F+-RA=1+—HILEE
AEBEBREEBKEZREBEAOA
R#13,459,0007T(—F— /N : AR
878,0007T) °

R-ZT—tF+-F=+—8 ' BUKEX
HARHE17,914,000 L (ZF—RF : A
R#7,643,0007T) B REI E TR o &
R EEUGRIE £ 25 ME P IHE =
B HARASFRIE o

R-ZT—+&+-A=+—H8  BREX
HANRHE27,891,000T(ZF—RF : A
R #21,552,0007T) A EERBE © %
EREFAZZBIREPER - HEI
BB R - ZEEIERI Z BRER A AT 1A
T

2017 2016
—E—tF T AF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥ T ARET T

91 to 180 days 91£ 180k 2,759 2,773
181 to 270 days 1812270 1,805 15,502
271 to 365 days 2712365k 14,466 2,876
Over 1 year Bl —F 8,861 401

27,891 21,552
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BT EHRRME

11 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(a) Trade receivables (Continued)
Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables are
as follows:

11

EWERR - &€  BARERH
b FE W R I ()

(a) PEWRRRR (4)
MRS 2 A EREEBIT

2017 2016
—Z=—+tF ZT—RF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARBETTT

At 1 January R—HA—H 7,643 9,371
Provision for impairment of trade receivables & 4 BR ZUm (B B & 13,459 878
Write off for impaired trade receivables FEUR BR FORE I £ (3,188) (2,606)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 17,914 7,643

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written
off when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the

fair values of trade receivables disclosed above. The Group did not
hold any collateral as security.

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017
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11 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(b) Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

199

11 BRERM - #E - ANRIEREA

ftb FE YL FRE (1)

(b) &% BNRERAEKRE

2017 2016
—Z2—tHF —E—RF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Non-current portion: ERBES -
— Deposits —%& 5,715 2,589
— Prepayment of leasehold improvements ~ — A &5 (ETE [ %18 5,431 -
11,146 2,589
Current portion: MENEDS -
— Deposits —%e 18,141 17,207
— Prepayments (Note (i) — FARTRRIA (M EE()) 128,138 53,129
— Prepayments for tax (Note (ii)) — TR IR (PR EEG)) - 33,513
— Other receivables — H M FEUGRIE 17,767 16,148
164,046 119,997
175,192 122,586
The fair values are as follows: ERAATEET :
— Deposits —&&® 23,856 19,796
— Prepayments —TEFRIA 133,569 86,642
— Other receivables — H IR 17,767 16,148
175,192 122,586
Denominated in: LA E#EEHE
HK dollars I 6,978 14,999
Renminbi PN 168,214 107,587
175,192 122,586
Note (i): At 31 December 2017, the amount mainly represented i) : M-ZT—+tF+-—_A=+—8 %%
prepayment to suppliers for B2B trading platform business (2016: X EIETEMB2BR 5 F & £ ISHIE
mainly prepayment to suppliers for technical services fee). AZRE(ZZT—RF : TEEKER
FAMTARAS PR 2 ;B ©
Note (ii): At 31 December 2016, the amount represented prepayment of HaEG) . R=Z—A~F+=-A=+—8 %%
tax associated with the presale of properties in 020 business BEEOOMERET LMEEES

exhibition centre.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not include
a provision for impairment of other receivables.

The comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with
the current year’'s presentation.

B2 TANTRIA

R M B 0 L At R R OB 2 B AR Bl 9
ERREMBKFURZRERE -

HBREHEEEHPBUREERFEZE
5| -
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BT EHRRME

12 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE 12 ERERKRFE
Loans and interest receivables reflect the outstanding balance of loans BREFEAERMETHE T  EEEE
granted to associates, employees and customers. P2 EFCRERE -

2017
—EB—tF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

Loans to associates (Note 47(c)) B3 TR N 7 (MiFE47(c)) 65,540 47,540
Loans to employees (Note 47(c)) EXFEE (MiFEa7(c)) 10,350 28,824
Loans to customers (Note a) BRTREP (Miia) 1,632,113 =
Interest receivables FEU I B, 19,565 5,772
Loans and interest receivable, gross JEUE R R FI B 42 %8 1,727,568 82,136
Less: impairment allowance o ORERE

— Collective assessed — HERFHE (16,176) =

— Individually assessed — (&R (61,074) =
Total impairment allowance BB R (77,250) =
Loans and interest receivable, net W E X R F SR ER 1,650,318 82,136
Less: Non-current portion B IERBNER S (304,400) (29,422)
Current portion mENE D 1,345,918 52,714
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12 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE (continued)

(a) Analysed by nature

12

Note a:  The balance comprises of loans granted in micro-credit financing

business, and finance leasing business:

201

EBREREFE @)

(a) BUEDF
Mita:  AWSHEEET | WERBALY
RREAREEE L B

2017

—E—tF

RMB’000

ARET T

Individual loans BAER 847,989

Corporate loans ANRIER 784,124

Loans to customers, gross BERTFREFMBEE 1,632,113
Less: impairment allowance W ORER

— Collective assessed — HEFHE (16,176)

— Individually assessed —[ERIFEE (61,074)

Total impairment allowance BIER B REE (77,250)

Loans receivable, net EREFEE 1,554,863

Less: Non-current portion W IERENE D (269,794)

Current portion mENE D 1,285,069

BE-ZT—tF+=-A=+—Hit

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the weighted
average annual interest rate for the loans receivable were
approximately 12.7%, and the outstanding loan receivables were
RMB1,632,113,000 as at 31 December 2017.

FE - EWERZ INETHER =
HWB127%  R—_E—+%F+=A
=t+—HB  WAEEREKERAEAR
#1,632,113,0007T °
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12 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE (continued) 12 EWERRFE @
(b) Analysed by type of collateral (b) ZHIERBERDN
2017
e
RMB’'000
AR¥T T
Unsecured loans EHIRER 762,174
Guaranteed loans ERERER 400,822
Collateralised loans EERER 469,117
Loan receivables, gross FEWRE Sk 4858 1,632,113
Less: impairment allowance W RER
— Collective assessed — HRFHE (16,176)
— Individually assessed — &R (61,074)
_Total impairment allowance ________ migwes (77.250)
Loans receivable, net FEWE TR 1,554,863
(c) Overdue loans analysed by type of collateral and () READELARABHBRIMZ
overdue period BHER

As at 31 December 2017
R=Z—tF+=H=+—H
Overdue
Overdue  more than Overdue
Not within 3 3 months  more than

overdue months to one year one year Total
BHAE AHEA BB

REH 38R 3ERAE-F —f At

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR¥TR AR¥TRT AR%¥TRT AR%¥T:R

Unsecured loans EERER 718,911 82 40,450 2,731 762,174
Guaranteed loans BRFRER 335,203 9,980 31,606 24,033 400,822
Collateralised loans BERER 463,017 6,100 - - 469,117
1,517,131 16,162 72,056 26,764 1,632,113
Overdue loans represent loans receivable of which the whole or BHENE TR 2 A0k A Sk Ba B
part of the principal or interest was overdue for one day or more. B—HA E 2 FBIETR  IMEREDR
All amounts are shown as gross amount of overdue loans before BEERERN - TESBIERBMERZ
any allowance for impairment losses. BEEIIR -
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B

12 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE (continued)

(d) Movement of allowances for impairment losses

203

12 BRERKFE =
(d) BESERREZ25

Collectively Individually
assessed assessed Total
HEFME & B PR £ #met
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
As at 1 January 2017 R—F—tF—H—H - - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—MK B AR 15,705 74,951 90,656
Charge/(reverse) for the period RZZT—+F+—A#
from 29 November 2017 to —t+hHERE
31 December 2017 —E—tF
+ZA=+—HHER
bk, (#EE) 471 (13,877) (13,406)
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—LF
F=H= 16,176 61,074 77,250

13 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2017:

Place of Principal
incorporation and activities and
kind of legal entity place of operation
LR
+ER R TEXBREEHH
! Hong Kong Huicong Intemational Group  British Virgin Islands, limited  Investment holding
Limited ("HKHC") liability company in Hong Kong

FESREAREEERAA] RRRAES ARAR  RESR-FR

(FBEZR))
" HC Group (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, liability Investment holding
company in Hong Kong

SEE(ER)ERAR EE  ARAH RERR-BB
Orange Triangle Inc. State of Delaware, USA Investment holding
in the State of Delaware
B - EHRM RERR BRI

13 KB
WTFER-_ZE—tF+_A=+T—HEXEKHE

UNCIa -
Proportion
of ordinary
shares held by
Particulars of registered Effective non-controlling
share capital interest held  interests (%)
FERERFE
Az FEaNER BBRELH(%)
21,000,000 ordinary 100% -
shares of US$0.01 each
21,000,000 &%
[EENE Al
500,000 ordinary 100% -
shares of HK$1 each
500,000 &R E(E
18T LRk
200 shares of US$0.01 100% -

2000 B ARAE0.01 % T2 K1
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13 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2017:

13 MBAR W)
ATAR-E—+E+=-A=+—BFSHE

(Continued) RAIZEE : (£&)
Proportion
of ordinary
Place of Principal shares held by
incorporation and activities and Particulars of registered Effective non-controlling
kind of legal entity place of operation share capital interest held interests (%)
EMALBER FERERAME
HERRER TEERRESEHS BEMBRAFE FisEXEs EERLHI%)
Orange Triangle (HK) Limited Hong Kong, liability Investment holding 10,000 ordinary 100% -
company in Hong Kong shares of HK$1 each
&% BRAT REAR-FR 10,0008 RE(E1 BT ERR
ZhongFu Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, limited  Investment holding in BV 50,000 ordinary 100% -
liability company shares of US$1 each
ERRNES BRAR REBR-EEELHEE  50,000REREE
1R E Rk
Saidan HK Limited Hong Kong, liability Investment holding 10,000 ordinary 100% -
company in Hong Kong shares of HK$1 each
&% BRAT REBR-FA 10,000 SREE
1B BRI
EREREREAERAR The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business RMB110,000,000 100% -
company information in the PRC
hE - BRAH REBEER —E AK110,000,00070
G REREREERITERAR The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business RMB2,200,000,000 100% -
company information in the PRC
e BRAH REBXEA- AR%2,200,000,0007
I RERERERFAERAR The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business RMB36,000,000 100% -
company information in the PRC
HE - BRAH REHFAR - AR36,000,0007

HC International, Inc.
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PR HRRMTE

13 SUBSIDIARIES (cContinued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2017:

(Continued)

} RRBEZERRAARAR

2 RITEREEFERERAT

P ERRRETEBERRARRAA

¢ RNBEEENRARRE

IR EESRMRDARAR

BERAHEARAR

ERE=AREERAR

ERATHIHEERAR)

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity
FMELEER
HERRER

The PRC, limited liability
company

PE - ARAT

The PRC, limited liability
company

B ARAAE

The PRC, limited liability
company

TR BRAF

The PRC, limited liability
company

PE - ARAT

The PRC, limited liability
company

TE - ARAA

The PRC, limited liability
company

T ARAT

The PRC, limited liability
company

PE - ARAT

The PRC, limited liability
company
HE - BRAF

Principal
activities and
place of operation

TERBRAEHY

Construction and sale of
properties in the PRC
EXREENE -—E

Provision of properties
management services
in the PRC

AR ER R — el

Investment holding in the PRC

RARR- P

Provision of business
information in the PRC

RHEEXER-TE

Anti-counterfeiting

Technology Development

in the PRC
BEBBHRIT—H

Finance leasing services
in the PRC
HARSRYE -

Provision of business
information in the PRC

REAZRER -

Provision of business
information in the PRC

REAREN-+E

13 MBAR @)

205

NTAR-_ZE—tF+_A=+—HBEEWE
RAEZEE : (B)

Particulars of registered
share capital

DR MRARE

RMB 166,670,000

AEH166,670,0007C

RMB555,500

ARH555,5007C
RMB91,750,000
AR¥91,750,0007T
RMBS,333,000
AF8,333,0007

RMB54,927,000

AR54,927,0007
US$30,000,000
30,000,000 T
US$150,000
150,000 7T
RMB10,000,000

AR10,000,0007

Proportion

of ordinary

shares held by

Effective non-controlling

interest held interests (%)

FERBGR AR

FisEEs ERRLHI%)

37.49% 62.51%

37.49% 62.51%

60% 40%

60% 40%

55.53% 44.47%

100% -

100% =

100% =
BREEERAA 2017FR
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BT EHRRME

13 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2017:
(Continued)

Place of Principal
incorporation and activities and
kind of legal entity place of operation
FME LR
HERRER TEXHREE
ERSBAERETEERAA The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of trading and
company agency services in the PRC
el BRAR et EERABRE -+
AR TARERAR The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of trading and
company agency services in the PRC
el FRAR R EERRIZRE -+
ERERHEERAT The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business
company information in the PRC
el BRAF AR &R —TE
SRR B ARRERAR The PRC, limited liability ~ Anti-counterfeiting
company Technology Development
in the PRC
e BRAH ARG -
MMERERBHERLE Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding in the PRC
company
hE - ARAT RERR -
MNESRRERAR The PRC, limited liability ~ Investment holding in the PRC
company
el BRAF REAR -

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017

13 MBAR W)
ATAR-E—+E+=-A=+—BFSHE
ARZEE : ()

Proportion
of ordinary
shares held by
Particulars of registered Effective non-controlling
share capital interest held interests (%)
FERBRNT
BRBRARE FisaREs EBRLAI(%)
RMB10,000,000 60% 40%
AEH10,000,0007
RMB80,600,000 100% =
ARH80,600,0007
RMB220,000,000 100% =
AK220,000,0007T
RMB10,000,000 55.53% 44.47%
AEH10,000,0007
US$1,000,000 100% =
1,000,000%7T
RMB5,250,000 100% =
AEK5,250,0007T
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13 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13 B AR
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2017: RTAR_ZE—tF+_A=+—HEEWE
(Continued) RAEIZEE : (£&)
Proportion
of ordinary
Place of Principal shares held by
incorporation and activities and Particulars of registered Effective non-controlling
kind of legal entity place of operation share capital interest held interests (%)
EMALBER FERBGR AR
HERRER TEEBREENS BREMBRAFE FisEEs ERRLHI%)
AL AR AR AR The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business RMB10,000,000 80.38% 19.62%
company information in the PRC
e BRAHE REHFAA P AK10,000,0007
MIHEARERHERDE The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business RMB5,000,000 80.38% 19.62%
company information in the PRC
e BRAH REEFEA - AR5,000,0007C
s BERNYBER/)EETERAR  The PRC, limited liabilty  Provision of loan service RMB1,000,000,000 70% 30%
company in the PRC
HE - BRAH RESHRSE - AR1,000,000,00070
5 IREETAULEEERAR The PRC, limited liabiity ~ Provision of marketing USD1,050,000 100% =
company services, project, exhibition
in the PRC
e BRAH heftmi e HiRe 1,050,000%7
R RE-HE
6 REBRTARLSERERAA The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of marketing RMB20,000,000,000 100% -
company services, project, exhibition
in the PRC
TE - BRAA Heftm R RS - AK20,000,000,0007T
BR  RE-TE
5 IREXEEERAA The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of marketing RMB10,000,000 100% =
company services, project,
exhibition in the PRC
e BRAH heftmi e HiRe AR 10,000,000

BE  RE-TH
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13 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13 MEBAR@)
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2017: RTARZZE—tFE+_A=+—HFEWE
(Continued) RAIZEE : (£&)
Proportion
of ordinary
Place of Principal shares held by
incorporation and activities and Particulars of registered Effective non-controlling
kind of legal entity place of operation share capital interest held interests (%)
EMERLBER FERERAME
HERRER TEERRESEHS BEMBRAFE FisEXEs EERLHI%)
ENEETAREEEERAR The PRC, limited liabiity ~ Provision of marketing RMB2,700,000 100% =
company services, project,
exhibition in the PRC
HE - BRAH fefit e ik AR2,700,0007T
BH RE-H
LEE2ESEEERARLA The PRC, limited liability ~~ Provision of marketing RMB1,000,000 60% 40%

company services, project,
exhibition in the PRC

Befitmin 2R -
BH RE-H

TR BRAF

Shares held directly by the Company.

Guangdong Huicong Household Appliances City Investment Co., Ltd and
Foshan Huiconghui E-commerce CO., Ltd are indirectly held through the
Company'’s 60% owned subsidiary, Huicong (Tianjin) E-commerce Company
Limited* ("Z(RKE)EFREEARAF") (“Huicong Tianjin”). Huicong
Tianjin directly holds 53.1% equity interest in these two companies and
indirectly holds 9.39% (2016: 9.39%)of equity interest in these two
companies through its 20% held associate, Hui De Holding Co., Ltd* (“Z{&
B BR A E]"). Hence, the Group effectively hold 37.49% (2016: 37.49%)
of Guangdong Huicong Household Appliances City Investment Co., Ltd and
Foshan Huiconghui E-commerce CO., Ltd.

The Group holds 60% equity interest of Huicong Tianjin, and the remaining
40% is held by a non-controlling interest company (“NCI Company”). Liu
Jun, an executive director and the chief executive officer of the Company,
holds 62.5% equity interest of the NCI Company, and in turn effectively
holds 25% of equity interest in Huicong Tianjin.

Liu Jun, an executive director and the chief executive officer of the
Company, directly holds 24% equity interest in Guangzhou Huicong
Internet Technology Co. Ltd* (EB/NEBAE4&EHE AR A R]) and is a director
of the company.

The Company is step-acquired during the year ended 31 December 2017.

These companies are newly acquired during the year ended 31 December
2017.

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017

AKH1,000,0007T

BRIDEAARRIEEFFA ©

EBERERREWIREER AR RBILTERE
BEFEBARARBAARARBBEEE60%
EmzMBARZHE(KE)ETHBAERAR
([BRXZEERE - BERKZEEREX
MR RZ53.1% R AR B BEFFE20%
ERZBENTZEIERARARMEREZ
MM AR Z9.39%(=F—/ 4 :9.39% )#zs
At - AEEERFAEREEREWIRER
RARKBILTEREETFEEERARZ
37.49% (=F—754F 1 37.49% )z ©

AEERABERE60% 2 RAER - MERT
40% Rl i —FIBEE R RS A R ([ Rl R A
AD#FA - AARMTERFRITRARIER
BIERER R R62.5% 2 XA - AME
BRR A BIRRE25% < B RS -

ARFNTEFRTRBRIEEE AN
BB AR A §124% 2 BAER < WA
WEE -

FZARRRBE-E—tF+-_A=+—HIL
FEIEREBZ AT -

ZERRRRBE_T—tF+-A=+—H
LIEFEHREZ AR -
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PR HRRMTE

13 SUBSIDIARIES (cContinued)

(@) Material non-controlling interests

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information
Guangdong Huicong Household Appliances City Investment Co.,
Ltd and Micro-credit that has non-controlling interests that are
material to the Group.

Summarised statement of financial position

209

13 B AR )

(a)

BEAFERES

CE RS sl N it
Z
TXHIERBRREHREERAAR
PNEERZMHANRE - MM ARRE
BYAEET S BEA 2 IR -

BAESIRIR R AR

Guangdong Huicong Household

Appliances City Investment Co., Ltd Micro-credit
EREEXEHBRERRAT NEEK
2017 2016 2017 (note)
—E—tHF ZE—RF ZE—tF(MED)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T AR®T
Current mED
Assets BEE 343,033 616,935 1,295,283
Liabilities =R (121,575) (750,535) (51,463)
Net current assets/(liabilities) TRENEE(AR)FEHE 221,458 (133,600) 1,243,820
Non-current FERED
Assets BE 811,993 835,588 282,647
Liabilities afE (593,317) (353,166) (355,000)
Net non-current assets/(liabilities) 3EREIEE (BE)/F5E 218,676 482,422 (72,353)
Net assets BEFE 440,134 348,822 1,171,467
Accumulated non-controlling RErIEER
interest 216,303 170,205 477,867

As at 31 December 2017, the non-controlling interests balances of
Guangdong Huicong Household Appliances City Investment Co.,
Ltd and Micro-Credit amounted approximately RMB216,303,000
(2016: RMB170,205,000) and RMB477,867,000 (2016: Nil)
respectively.

* English names are translated for identification purpose only.

R-ZE—+tF+-F=+—H ERZER
REMIEEGR AR R/NEERZ IEER
B iEtr D R4 A AR 216,303,000
—T—"F : AR¥170,205,0007T) &
ANE#477,867,0007T( ZF—/~F : ) o
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13 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 13 BRI
(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (a) BEARFEZERER®
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with HEAHZR B L a2 BEERHE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) EZ(#E)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income FEBRREE

Guangdong Huicong Household
Appliances City Investment Co., Ltd Micro-credit
BREBEREHBREFTRA A NEER
2017 2016 2017 (note)

S e =)
RMB’000 RMB‘000 RMB’000
ARBTE  ARMTL  ARMTR

Revenue/Interest Income SHEIWAF B A 428,023 859,441 188,861
Profit before tax BR FT1SA% Al i A 112,473 287,089 97,785
Income tax expenses P BRI 2 (40,771) (88,407) (27,905)
Profit after tax FR T 18 i A 71,702 198,682 69,880
Other comprehensive income Hb2mgA - - -
Total comprehensive income ZHEWALLTE 71,702 198,682 69,880
Total comprehensive income DA EIEIEAR RS

allocated to non-controlling ZERALREE

interests 46,098 123,637 6,356

Dividends paid to non-controlling 21 FEFZE AR 25 AR 2.

interests - = -
Note: The figures shown above represented the financial position of MieE - BB FHRNEERIN T —tF+=
Micro-credit as at 31 December 2017 and the 12 months statement A=+ —B 28R R EERRE
of comprehensive income of micro-credit for the year ended 31 ET—+F+-A=+-HIEFEZ
December 2017. 128 B 2z 2EKEE °
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13 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13 MBAR @)
(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (a) EARFERER )
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with B BRI W8 L a2 BRI
material non-controlling interests (Continued) Z(&)
Summarised cash flow statement RERERYPE

Guangdong Huicong Household
Appliances City Investment Co., Ltd Micro-credit
EREBHEREHREERAE] NEER

2017 2016 2017 (note)
—E—+F —TERF ZB—tF(MRD)
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT ARET T

Net cash (used in)/generated from A& (FrA),~

operating activities EAIReFE (120,571) 342,387 160,460
Net cash used in investing activities ¥& &8N FT IR & /558 (190,500) (324,383) (6)
Net cash generated from/(used in) B&EBES,(FTA)

financing activities RE 130,000 107,096 (136,876)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash RERBLEEYFE

and cash equivalents Gm),/#hn (181,071) 125,100 23,578
Note: The cash flow statement represented the 12 months cash flows of M - ReERERREBEZE_T—+F+=A
Micro-credit for the year ended 31 December 2017. ET—HIEFEZ/NEERNI2EAZ
RemeE o

* English names are translated for identification purpose only.

14 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 14 Z#EZZEIIRZIRE
EQUITY METHOD

2017 2016
—E—tF  —FAF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT

Associates kNG 124,418 138,595
Joint ventures S NE 165 440,428
124,583 579,023
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14 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 14
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

BRREREVRZKRE @)

2017 2016
—g—tF  —FAF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT

Movements in the investment in associates REERNB 2 IEZEIAT

are as follows:
At 1 January Kn—A—H 138,595 105,921
Addition NE 8,228 54,550
Share of post-tax losses DIERTE B R (22,405) (13,502)
Impairment A - (8,374)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 124,418 138,595

2017 2016
—®—t%F TR

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR® T ARET T

Movements in the investment in joint REERNRZIREEBHIT ¢

ventures are as follows:
At 1 January R—A—H 440,428 412,795
Share of post-tax profits DIERT 5 A 19,774 27,633
Carrying amount of deemed disposal RIEHESE QA ZREE

of joint venture (460,037) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 165 440,428

Set out below are associates and joint ventures which, in opinion of
directors, are material to the Group as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.
The associates and joint ventures as listed below have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group;
the country of establishment or registration is also their principal place
of business.

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017
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14 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 14 ZERZEIIEZERE )
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Place of business/ % of
country of effective Nature of the ~ Measurement
Name of entity establishment interest relationship method Carrying amount

EBEE EXHE/RIER BEREZEDL BEnE AHERAR REE

2017 2016 2017 2016
“B-t§ TR Bt ZT5F
RMB'000  RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTRT

ZEmRERA PRC 12.0 12.0 Associate Equity 25320 28,746
(Hui De Holdmg Co., Ltd.*) B Note 1 B
H=YNG
Bttt
HLERREABRLRA PRC 29.6 29.6  Associate Equity 32,608 45271
(Zhejiang Huicong Investment A& Note 2 T
Co., Ltd*) YN
MaE2
FREOER)ERREER PRC 19.4 194 Associate Equity 10,489 10,361
27 (China Formwork H Note 3 T
(Bejing) International Brand NG
Management Limited*) FitzE3
I RRRKHERERRERAR  PRC 10.0 100 Associate Equity 7,366 5857
(Beijing Hurricane Partner h Note 4 o
Internet Technology YN
Company Limited*) L2
BEOMNEBER/EER PRC - 40.0  Joint venture Equity - 440,257
BRAF H Note 5 T
(Chongging Digital China RERA
Huicong Micro-credit Co. Ltd.*) FazEs

* English names are translated for identification purpose only

EREMEMRAT 201753



214

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT EHRRME

14 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

HC International, Inc.

Hui De Holding Co., Ltd* (“Z7&32f%") provides investment
management and project investments in the PRC. The Group holds 60%
interests of its subsidiary, ZI2 (KE) EFEEER2AR], which in
turn holds 20% of interests inZX{=12 %

Zhejiang Huicong Investment Co., Limited* (“#7TZ=F2") engages in
investment in real estate construction and management. The Group
directly holds 20% equity shares of #)TZJ& and indirectly holds 9.6%
equity interests through Z=42A%. Hence, the Group effectively holds
29.6% equity interest in # T ZH2.

The Group directly holds 19.4% of interests in China Formwork (Beijing)
International Brand Management Limited* ("4t x1#8"). b mp &
engages in e-commerce business for the building equipment leasing
industry in the PRC.

The Group directly holds 10.0% of interest in Beijing Hurricane Partner
Information Technology Company Limited* ("4t 7 E&[E"). 1k F &
engages in e-commerce business platform for tyre in the PRC.

The Group directly holds 40% of interest of Chongging Digital China
Huicong Micro-Credit Co., Ltd.* (“Micro-Credit”) which provides
development and operation of the micro-credit financing business in the
PRC. During the year ended 31 December 2017. The Group has step-
acquired 30% of equity interest of Micro-Credit. Upon completion of
step acquisition, the Group holds 70% of the equity interest in Micro-
Credit and has accounted for its interest as investment in subsidiary. (Note
to 15(b))

Annual Report 2017

14 ZRFEIIRZIRE @)

BaET

BiaE2 -

BIRES -

FiisE4 -

MIRES -

BrERAERAR(EED R ENERME
REEENRBREET - AKEFEH
MEARBR(RR)EFABERARLZ
60% 2 - MBR(RB)EFABERA
AR B2 20% A

AIZRIEAR AR (HIERDRERE
WERERERTEER - AEBEERHE
WTEIE 2 20% A4 - Wi B E BB
BHI6%ME - At - AEEER LHFE
T EHE 2 29.6% A4 -

AEEEEFATROLERMAEERS
RARN([IERHE])219.4%Has - JERF
ERTEZERMEEXRFTEFHEE
& o

AEEEZEFAILRRRNHEEREAR
AR([1EREERE 1) 2 10.0% 45 © L=
NRBEIR ERIAEFRE XY

REBEZEFAERSMNBBEH/ NEER
BRAR([NEER]) Z240%HEn + R
PRI EERREER CBEREE -
HE_Z—+&+-_A=1t—HLFE ' XK
SEEHRBRKE/NEERZ30% KA
o RORBRIKESEETKE  AEEFE
NEEERT0% 2 BRAE R - W EMERRM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR HRRMTE

14 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 14 ZERZEIIEZERE )
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(a) Investment in associates (a) REBEEDRIZKRE
Summarised consolidated financial information for associates BE R 2O BERE
Set out below are the summarised financial information for the TXHIESR AL AEBBEAX B izl
associates which, in the opinion of director, are material to the wRYIBR SN R 2 TS E R E -

Group and are accounted for using the equity method.

28R ISR (63 L 7BE
2017 2016 2017 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZB-tf F ZE-tF “E-tE -5 5F CE-tF 3

RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMB0O0  RMBO00  RMB'OO0  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMBIO0O
ARMTR  ARMTT ARRTR  ARETR  ARRTx  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR

Current i

Total current assets TEAELE 710,066 635,023 733,392 619,154 38,848 37,270 9,332 11,626
Total current liabiities EAELE (366,122) (317,794 (337,088)  (246,392) (24,285) (23639) (5,951) (5,139
Non-current Eiok |

Total non-current (iabilties)assets ~ 3EREN(&fE) /AELE (231,378) (112,314) (231,395) (144,518) 10,622 10,892 19,807 107
Net assets BEHE 172,566 204915 164,929 228,244 25,185 24524 23,188 6,59
Opening net assets ENEESE 204,915 128933 228,244 246,067 2,5 23,885 6,59 8,024
Capital injection TR - = - - - - 16,500 -
(Loss)profit for the year ER(EE)/ & (32,349) 75,982 (63,315) (17,823 661 639 9 (1,430)
Closing net assets EREERE 172,566 204,915 164,929 20844 25,185 24,54 23,188 6,594
Direct equity interest held i ERRAER 12% 12% 20% 20% 194% 194% 10% 10%
Share of interest held by Group REEDHER 20,708 24,590 32,986 45,649 4,886 4,758 2,319 659
Carrying amount FEE 26,386 28,746 32,608 457 10,489 10,361 7,366 5,857
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT EHRRME

14 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 14 #Z#EZRZEIIRZIBRE @)
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(a) Investment in associates (Continued) (a) REEEQRZRE @
Summarised consolidated statement of comprehensive B E W R E
income

SRER ISR HE(ER) IRRE
2017 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

“E-tf “E-tf £ ZB-tE “I-3E -t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT BTt AR¥Tn ARETn  AR%Tn  ARETT  AR%TR

Revenue HEWA 3,161 2,122 - = 17,818 13,141 6,841 =
(Loss)profit after tax RHA(BE) /&7 (32,349) 75,982 (63315) (17823) 661 639 9% (1,430)
Other comprehensive income Rt 2EBA - = - - - - _ _
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2A(ER)/ WA\EE (32,349) 75,982 (63,315) (17,823 661 639 % (1,430)
The information above reflects the amounts presented in the AR R BRI B & R R ORI B R AT
consolidated financial statements of the associates (and not 22z &R (AR EEAR ARG
HC International, Inc.’s share of those amounts) adjusted for ZELHE)  AARERBE AR 2G5
differences in accounting policies between the Group and the BURERMIELHE -
associates.

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR HRRMTE

15 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 15 XK E0t

(a) Huijia Yuantian Limited (a) EEnX

On 13 January 2017, Mu Hao Holdings Limited, Hong Rui
Technology Holdings Limited, Chance Technology Co., Ltd and
Vanguard Technology Holdings Limited (Collectively, the “HJ
Sellers”), the Company and Mr. Zou Kai (#f=]l), Mr. Hong Chaoran
(HEABER), Ms. Wang Fei (E3F) and Mr. Sun Yi (f2%%) (collectively,
the “HJ Seller Guarantors”) entered into the sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the HJ Sellers have conditionally
agreed to sell, and the Company has conditionally agreed to
acquire the entire issued share capital of Huijia Yuantian Limited,
for an aggregate consideration of RMB362,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$409,091,000). Part of the consideration
amounting to RMB162,652,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$184,091,000) in cash and the remaining portion was settled
by issuance and allotment of convertible bonds which are subject
to downward adjustments stipulated in the sale and purchase
agreement.

On 3 February 2017, all the conditions precedent under the sale
and purchase agreement have been fulfilled and the entire shares
of Huijia Yuantian Limited has been transferred to the Company
and the acquisition has been completed, which the Group has
acquired the control over Huijia Yuantian Limited as the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. the activities that significantly affect the its variable
returns.

The goodwill of RMB250,096,000 arising from the acquisition
is attributable to the synergies from combining the operations
of the Group and Huijia Yuantian Limited. None of the goodwill
recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax purpose.

MW=Z—+F—H+=HMu Hao Holdings
Limited * Hong Rui Technology Holdings
Limited + Chance Technology Co. Ltd}&
Vanguard Technology Holdings Limited
(B HIE )  ARRIEGEH AL it
AR - EIER T MARRSEAE (Bi8 TH)
BRERALD) FIZEE W Bt B
ERGHRELEMARRIE B GREREY
BEZTAEMEHETRA BRE/AR
#362,000,0007T (HHE R %7409,091,0007%%
7T) < RIBED S FEARE162,652,0007T (16
EHN49184,091,00087T) AR 2 &1 gh
TEbD BIFE BT TR AL B AR ES 2 2
B EREE i 2 R E AT e

R-ZE—+F-_A=H BEEHHEEIZ
PrESERIRM B EER - BERTRZME
BRPEEZETALRR  MEBRRE ST
B B AR BERGH BRI R
% REASAKNEEZEGENE/ETE
EBNEIESPACGIPN - Z- T JEE e 3
15)28EN -

U g STHE £ 2 4 AR 250,096,000
TIHEEAREGHASEEESZ TRERKZ
BEIER o TBEIE D R E RIS
i o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT EHRRME

15 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 15 EHS6t
(a) EExTXE
TRBIMAUEBEREZ TR 2R
BURFTWBEENTAEBBEZAT

(a) Huijia Yuantian Limited (Continued)
The following table summarises the consideration paid for Huijia
Yuantian Limited, the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities

assumed at the acquisition date. (=
RMB’000
ARBTFT

Consideration:
On 3 February 2017

RE:
R-EBE—tFE=-HA=H

Cash Re 162,652
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss EAFEFABEZEREE 182,200
Total consideration RELE 344,852
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets BB RIEERFTRIEEEZ
acquired and liabilities assumed ERALHE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEED 3,753
Property, plant and equipment VI3 - B Rk 379
Trade and other receivables JFEE L B S3R e L A PR MR IR 5,645
Intangible assets — technical knowhow (Note 10) ERE E — HAlr A (FiEE10) 105,500
Trade and other payables JRE 1 R R R EL A FE A5 SRR (4,266)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBBE (15,825)
Income tax payable FERIFTISHL (133)
Total identifiable net assets AR EEFELRE 95,053
Non-controlling interest EiSulilier (297)
Goodwill Sk 250,096
344,852

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR HRRMTE

15 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(a) Huijia Yuantian Limited (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs RMB205,000 (included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

219

15 E£X¥KS6tw

() BExXR®
HE-_Z—+E+-A=+—BIEE
BB AR AN A R#205,000TE A S
PHERR ZITREHR -

3 February
2017
R=B—+tHF

—H=H
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Cash consideration HERE 162,652
Cash and cash equivalent in subsidiaries acquired BRENBATIZIRS RIRESEEYD (3,753)

Outflow of cash to acquire business, net of cash acquired — WiE%%K2IREREE @ KBRS 158,899

Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed revenue of RMB123,505,000
and net profit of RMB27,846,000 to the Group for the period from
3 February 2017 to 31 December 2017. If acquisition had occurred
on the 1 January 2017, consolidated revenue and consolidated
profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 would
have been RMB3,702,623,000 and RMB314,431,000 respectively.

WA R RIS
R-E—+tF-_A=AZE=_FT—tF+=
A=+—RAHH  TkEEEAAEER
B A A R # 123,505,000 & 41 7| A R
#£27,846,0007T © fINAEREEN —F—+
F-—A—A%LE  AEEHE_T—LF
TZA=T—RHLEFEZEHBEARES
i A2 Bl A A R 3,702,623,0007T &
AE#5314,431,0007C °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT EHRRME

15 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 15 ¥%&86t

(a) Huijia Yuantian Limited (Continued) (a) BExTX®)

Huijia Performance Targets and adjustment mechanism

As aforesaid, part of the Consideration is subject to downward
adjustments on the basis of the performance targets to each of the
HJ Sellers. In the event that the performance targets are achieved
in each of the performance undertaking years, the following
principal amounts of the convertible bonds will be allotted and
issued to each of the HJ Sellers:

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, the HJ Seller
Guarantors jointly, severally and irrevocably covenant and
undertake to the Company that the audited consolidated
distributable profit (after-tax) of Beijing Huijia shall achieve the
Performance Targets for the relevant Performance Undertaking
Years:

Financial year

MHEE

Year ending 31 December 2017 (“First Performance Undertaking Year"”)

(E_E A F T A=+ HIFE(EEROEARFE D)

Year ending 31 December 2018 (“Second Performance Undertaking Year")

BE_ T \F+-A=1TRLFE(FE _(ABRNAHFE])

Year ending 31 December 2019 (“Third Performance Undertaking Year")

BE_Z-NAF+_A=T - RIEFE(FE=ERNAEFE])

By the end of each performance undertaking year, the Company
shall procure the Huijia Yuantian Limited to prepare the audited
consolidated financial statements of Beijing Huijia (the “Audited HJ
Financial Statements”) in accordance with HKFRSs, and provide the
HJ Sellers with the Audited HJ Financial Statements within 90 days
from the end of the relevant performance undertaking year.

As at 3 February 2017, financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss of approximately RMB182,200,000 in relation to
this arrangement were recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position based on the performance adjustment
mechanism. Please refer to note 17b for details.

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017

Huijia/B#) B #E L R 552 ##)

LAt - BARETIREHIES 2R
HWERTIATH « WRSBEOAEFEN
EREROBE  BBRSHIESRER
BTN IR SRR AR ES

RIBEE B Z - HIETERALR RER
BRI B[R AR R B RTA) KRGS+ dE R
BRZEEZAHAIDIREN (BRTE)
EBRRENARTFEZENRR

Performance Targets
BREE

RMB20,000,000
AR#20,000,0007T
RMB26,000,000
AE#26,000,0007C
RMB33,800,000
AR #33,800,0007C

MNEREAEHEEERA - ARARIRRES
BETARBEBM RS ENREIL RS
BREGAFIMBERE ([KEZHF R
= 1) - SR HERE B K9 S B R FT90
B ARHE D REEEZHIFERE -

R-ZE—+tF-A=H BEZLHZ
BEATFEFABEZERABHARE
182,200,000 T B 1RIR B A A SR E
PSRN R NTER - BRAFFIBE 25
F£17b e
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PR HRRMTE

15 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 15 EBEotw

(b) Chongging Digital China Huicong Micro-Credit Co. (b) EEMMNEBBERNEERER

Ltd

On 25 October 2017, the Group entered into equity transfer
agreement for further acquisition of 30% of equity interest of
Micro-Credit with Digital China Holdings Limited at consideration
of RMB541,819,000.

On 28 November 2017, all the condition precedent under the
equity transfer agreement have been fulfilled and the Group
completed the acquisition of additional 30% equity interest in
Micro-Credit. The Group has acquired the control over Micro-
Credit and reclassified the interest in Micro-Credit as investment
in subsidiary. Gain on the 40% equity interest were carried at
equity method and amounting to RMB460,037,000 before the
Step acquisition. Step acquisition represents the fair value gain of
RMB117,963,000 on remeasuring the existing 40% equity interest
held by the Group at the step acquisition date.

The goodwill of RMB19,626,000 arising from the step-acquisition
is attributable to the synergies from combining the operations of
the Group and Micro-Credit. None of the goodwill recognised is
expected to be deductible for income tax purpose.

NG
R—_ZT—+tF+A=-+HHB  K&EH
RN RESE R A — SR/
BERZ230%BAEzZ  REAARK
541,819,0007T °

R-ZE—tF+—A=+/\B  apiE
LR ATE N TE RSB & ERK
NEERZ30%BRAEZEHRETAE
B - moPERKBEIED STA - B
SERBEH/NEERZEHE - WEEE
BEDEAMBRRZEE - DR
FIEFTS e AR5 R R UE B RS #TT
EAKEMFA0%RE R AR MESE
2 AFEKRES AR 117,963,000 © 1
DEWEEIER © Z40%RAEREB
EmEERE - BARK460,037,0007T °

PTHEBURBEEELAAEARR
19,626,0007T /55 F R & A& E 22/ |\ 58
EREB 2 BRER - HAMEDERY
ERHIFTISHL ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT EHRRME

15 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 15 B &6t

(b) Chonggqing Digital China Huicong Micro-Credit Co. (b) EEHMNBIBEHRNEERTR
Ltd (Continued) DNE(E)
The following table summarises the consideration paid for Mirco- NREA A BB N EERE A 2R
Credit, the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at BEUAKRFIWEEERAMFAEBEZAT

the acquisition date. (=K
RMB’000
AREETTT

Consideration:
On 28 November 2017

RIE :
R-Z—tHF+-—-HA=+NH

Cash consideration HERE 541,819
Fair value of existing shares held by the Group AEBRAFRERG 2 AFE 578,000
Total consideration RELE 1,119,819
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets ~ FIBARBIEER iAEEE 2
acquired and liabilities assumed ERRLHE
Cash and cash equivalents BENESESEY 70,207
Property, plant and equipment L E N 83
Prepayment, deposit and other receivables TERTRIE - Re REMEWRIE 14,290
Loans and interest receivable, net of provision B REWFE - MBREE 1,472,046
Deferred tax assets FERIBE E 15,991
Intangible assets — license (Note 10) mEE - (FisE10) 554,000
Intangible assets — software (Note 10) | A E — 4 (5E10) 7,900
Accrued and other payables FESTE R R HoAth B A< FRIE (30,883)
Other borrowings HibEE (368,890)
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIBE B (140,475)
Income tax payable FEBFSHL (21,489)
Other taxes payable H fth fE AT I8 (1,076)
Total identifiable net assets R EESEASE 1,571,704
Non-controlling interest ElReiiyr o (471,511)
Goodwill 5k 19,626
1,119,819
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PR HRRMTE

15 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 15 EHE6

(b) Chongging Digital China Huicong Micro-Credit Co. (b) EEGMBIBRERNEERER

Ltd (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs RMB4,009,000 (included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Cash consideration HSRE
ERBHBAR RS RASFEY (70,207)

Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries acquired

YNCIE))
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HLFE"
U B MR BA AKX AN A R #64,009,000 T E 5T A
Wes R ZITHREA -

At 30 November
2017
—ZE—tHF

+—A=tH
RMB’000
AR¥FT

541,819

Inflow of cash to acquire business, net of cash acquired ek > SRR E - KRB UIE S 471,612

On 28 November 2017, the fair value of the existing 40% equity
interest in Micro-Credit held by the Group before step acquisition
amounted RMB578,000,000, while the carrying amount of such
interest amounted RMB460,037,000. Hence, a fair value gain
on step acquisition amounting to RMB117,963,000 has been
recognised in “other gain, net” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed revenue of R\MB16,858,000 and
net profit of RMB20,431,000 to the Group for the period from 30
November 2017 to 31 December 2017. If acquisition had occurred
on the 1 January 2017, consolidated revenue and consolidated
profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 would have been
RMB3,874,669,000 and RMB366,759,000 respectively.

R-ZE—tF+—A=+/\B  KEER
3 B ER U BB BT P 15/ B B 3R 40% AR A 4
=2 A FE R AR 578,000,0007T © M
ZERm 2 REEAARK460,037,000
7T o Bt - DREEBRIREAS A FEREA
R¥117,963,0007LE R A HHEZ R HA
Wees B8 | NFERR o

KA R RIS
R-E—+tF+—A=FTHE-ZT—+F
T-A=1+—AHH - kEEBALE
B & B A A R 16,858,000 7T & 4t F
AR #20,431,0007T ° 14K BHM =
T—+F—A—HB%E BHE_T—tF
TZA=+—RALEFEZEHBEAREH
= Mo Rl A A R 3,874,669,0007T &
AE#5366,759,0007T °
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BT EHRRME

16 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

16 AHHEESHME

Listed
securities Unlisted
(Note i) securities Total
WS

(Bf=ED) I ETESE et
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T AR¥T T
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RF—H—H 329,137 92,553 421,690
Additions NE = 407,935 407,935
Disposals HE (181,340) (32,553) (213,893)

Fair value gain recognised in other ~ REMEEWATERZ
comprehensive income N EE 27,257 46,636 73,893
Currency translation differences EEEN =R 7,092 = 7,092

At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF

+=-—A=+—H 182,146 514,571 696,717
Less: non-current portion B IETRENEE Y - (484,071) (484,071)
Current portion mENEE 182,146 30,500 212,646
At 1 January 2017 R_E—+tF—H—H 182,146 514,571 696,717
Additions NE - 58,400 58,400
Disposals HE (91,935) (30,500) (122,435)

Fair value (loss)/gain recognised in REMEEBARERZ
other comprehensive income NFAEEER), W (84,9809) 25,989 (59,000)
Currency translation differences EMEN =S (5,222) - (5,222)

At 31 December 2017 RZE—+4F

+=—A=+—H - 568,460 568,460
Less: non-current portion o IERENEL - (528,960) (528,960)
Current portion mENEL = 39,500 39,500

HC International, Inc.

Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR HRRMTE

16 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 16 AitHESHE @)

(Continued)
Set out below are securities which, in opinion of directors, are material RTHEHIN—_E—tF+_A=+—HESER
to the Group as at 31 December 2017. REAEEBERZES -

Name of the security Nature of the security Total amount
"HEEW "EME BeHE
2017 2016

—E—tF T AF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMTE  ARETR

AR SIS S BN ZERITRHBMR AT Unlisted ordinary shares 447,000 422,000
(“Inner Mongolia Hohhot Jingu Rural IE EE R

Commercial Bank Company Limited” *)

Notei: The balance represents the fair value of the ordinary shares of companies Wili: ZBREEERRBEBHARIAERAATER
listed in Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. EHRRIZ EBRATE
There were no impairment provisions on available-for-sale financial assets HE-T—tF+-A=1+—HIEFE ' i
made during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil). SRR E e MEERERB(ZT—RF
) o

* English name is translated for identification purpose only.
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BT EHRRME

17 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Contingent shares in relation to acquisition

17 BRAVEFARSEZEHEER
&\

(a) RAVEFABEZEHEE

2017 2016

—EB—tF — T NF

RMB’000
ARBT R

RMB’000
ARBTT

A FUEEOrange Triangle Inc.

of Orange Triangle Inc. Z AR

— Current —nE) 2,100 -

- Non-current —3ERH - 4,600
Trading securities — listed securities (Note (i) 22 5FEH — Fmass (BIEEG)) 169,921 172,686
Financial assets at fair value through BN ER AE=

profit or loss L EREE 172,021 177,286

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of contingent
consideration was approximately RMB2,100,000 (31 December
2016: RMB4,600,000), the change in the fair value amounted
RMB2,500,000 for the year was charged to “other gains, net” in
the statement of profit or loss.

The fair value of the contingent consideration arrangement was
estimated by applying income approach which considers the
probabilities that the performance target could be completed and
the market prices of the consideration share at the valuation date.

For the fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, please refer to Note 3.3.

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017

R-_ZT—+t&F+-_A=+—8 &A
REZAFELH A AR?2,100,00075T
—T-REF+-A=1+—H: AR¥
4,600,0007T) * FANAFEZHARE
2,500,000 70 A& P18 a5 5% [ H fh U 25 0%
B PR o

IARBREZ A HERBRESEGE
ERERTEREDBRZHERAERD
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PR HRRMTE

17 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR 17 ZAFEIABRZERMEER

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)
Note (i): Trading securities - listed securities

The balance represents the listed securities held for trading by
the Group. All of the trading securities are listed in the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, Shanghai Stock Exchange and Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and their fair value were based on their current bid prices
in active market at the date of statement of financial position,
which are within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3).

=L A0
(@) BAFETAEZZEREE

(&)
M) - XRE"H - LHES

ILERIERNEERMEREE 2 ETiEH T
BERSGBEFENRIIBFR BT - L/EF
HFRBIRBEHR S LN HAFE
RERM SRR E B BEERTS 2 HT
BABHE  BAVEEEZE—H(H
££3.3) °

(b) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or (b) BAFEFAERzEHERE
loss
Total
Zhongfu Holdings Limited Huijia Yuantian Limited -
3 February
2017
31 December 31 December 31 December (Acquisit- 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2017 ion date) 2017 2016
Z2—tF T F ZB-tF C"TtF IZB-tF CITF
+=A +=A +=A —R=H +=A T=H
=+-H =+—H =t—-0 (kKEBEH) S =+-H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARETT AR¥TR AR®ETH ARETrn ARETxT
Current e 14,393 14,377 38,935 49,688 53,328 14,377
Non-current JERE 12,607 27,123 103,065 132,512 115,672 27,123
27,000 41,500 142,000 182,200 169,000 41,500

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the change in the fair
value amounting to RMB18,472,000 was charged to “other gain,
net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

BE-_Z—+F+-A=+—HIEE -
N EES) AREE18,472,0007TE R A B
B R[ EAbUREFRE 1305 -
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BT EHRRME

18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 18 RERIE S 2EMIA

Assets

at fair value

Financial Assets through
assets at  at fair value other
amortised through  comprehen-

cost profitorloss sive income

RE RAFERTA

ARz RAFEFA HMEEEKRA
SRIEE BECEE EE st
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR#®TRT AR®BTR ARBTT

At 31 December 2017 R-ZF—+tF
t=A=+-H

Available-for-sale financial asset Al H& € Gl & &= - - 568,460 568,460
Financial assets at fair value ~ IRAF(EE AIBz

through profit or loss ZEREE - 172,021 - 172,021
Trade and other receivables  FEURBR 7k K B FE U

(excluding non-financial HE(TREES R

assets) BE) 338,172 - - 338,172
Finance lease receivables R AT & EW R IE 155,587 - - 155,587
Loans and interest receivable B3k & fE U FI] B 1,650,318 - - 1,650,318
Cash and cash equivalents He hESEEY 401,918 - - 401,918
Total st 2,545,995 172,021 568,460 3,286,476
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B

18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 18 ZER&E s zemMI A

(Continued)

Assets

at fair value

Financial Assets through
assets at at fair value other
amortised through comprehen-

cost profit or loss sive income

R RAFERTA

KAETEz RAFEFA  AMEERA
DEEE BaEE ZEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETFT ARETFT ARBTFT

At 31 December 2016 R-ZB—RE
+=H=+—H

Available-for-sale financial asset AJ it H & & @& E = = 696,717 696,717
Financial assets at fair value ¥ AFE AR Z

through profit or loss TREE = 177,286 = 177,286
Trade and other receivables  JEUKER TR E Ab fE UKL

(excluding non-financial (T BEEES R

assets) BE) 263,331 = = 263,331
Finance lease receivables BhEHE RN SRIA 352,327 = = 352,327
Loans and interest receivable Bk K fEULF B 82,136 = = 82,136
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEEY 963,523 - - 963,523
Total st 1,661,317 177,286 696,717 2,535,320
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18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 18 ZERl& s zemMI A

HC International, Inc.

(Continued)
Liability
at fair value
Liabilities at through
amortised cost profit or loss Total
REBHRATTE BAFEA
zEafE BnzE8E et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR¥T T AR¥T T
At 31 December 2017 R-B—tF
+=A=t+-—8
Bank borrowings RITIEE 1,106,213 - 1,106,213
Other borrowings HEmEE 390,917 - 390,917
Financial liabilities at fair value BAFERTABEZ
through profit or loss EaAH=NE - 169,000 169,000
Trade payables FETERER 19,482 - 19,482
Other payables (excluding H IR
non-financial liabilities) (TREFeREE) 219,864 - 219,864
Convertible bonds — liabilities AIMRES —BEHY
portion 41,387 - 41,387
Total “ET 1,777,863 169,000 1,946,863

Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR HRRMTE

18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
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18 RERE sz I e

(Continued)
Liability
at fair value
Liabilities at through
amortised Cost profit or loss Total
R SERK AR 2 EATFERTA
=N} BmzB8E #aEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT ARETTT
At 31 December 2016 R-ZT—XRF
+=A=t+-—8
Bank borrowings RITIEE 851,904 = 851,904
Other borrowings HEmEE 31,578 = 31,578
Financial liabilities at fair value BAFEFAEBEZ
through profit or loss ca =L - 41,500 41,500
Trade payables FETERER 7,916 = 7,916
Other payables (excluding H IR
non-financial liabilities) (TeEFeRERE) 216,882 - 216,882
Convertible bonds AIMRES —BEHD
— liabilities portion 654,743 - 654,743
Total st 1,763,023 41,500 1,804,523

19 DEFERRED EXPENSES

Upon the receipt of subscription revenue from third party customers,
the Group is obliged to pay sales commissions and agency fees to
the salespersons and agents. The subscription revenue are initially
deferred and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
in the period during which the services are rendered. Accordingly, the
commissions and agency fees, which are directly attributable to earning
from such subscription revenue during the service period, are deferred
and recognised, in agency cost, employees benefit expense, sales
commission and direct expenses of online services, respectively, of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss throughout the same period.

19 EZERMA

B E= SRS TR - AEEE
ECAHEERRESNEEMASRRES
o STRBUCA )25 B IE A PSR (L AR TS HA R 22
AR RER o Bt - RS HB R BRENE 78
STHKATEEESY e RABERAEL
WRRIHREA IR R D RIFERBRIERA -
EEEAMEY  WEMSREBERE HE
BA -
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BT EHRRME

20 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 20 BMEHEEWRE
Certain equipments have been leased out through finance leases entered ETRECBRBAAEET I MELER
into by the Group. These leases have remaining terms within one year. e ZEMEATHRA—FA - IEHEE
Finance lease receivables comprised of the following: JENFIEBIELAT &S ¢

2017 2016
—E—tf

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Current receivables BN EA FE N R IE
Finance leases — gross receivables BERE — ENFIEERE 162,370 371,800
Unearned finance income REELZ BB IR A (6,783) (19,473)
Total finance leases receivables R EHEEWRIaAE 155,587 352,327
Gross receivables from finance leases: REBERE 2 FEWGRIAREE

— No later than 1 year —TNER—F 162,370 371,800
Unearned future finance income on RERERRIZ

finance leases RARBE WA (6,783) (19,473)
Net investment in finance leases RREREZREFRE 155,587 352,327
The net investment in finance leases may be REREZIREFE

analysed as follows: AHRA N E ST

— No later than 1 year —TNER—F 155,587 352,327
Total 4=t 155,587 352,327

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017
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21 INVENTORIES 21 78

2017 2016
—®—tf& T AF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

Merchandise S 142,910 3,590
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in “cost of BRI ATHERR |2 FERASHE
revenue” amounted to approximately RMB2,081,764,000 (31 December #)5 ANR#2,081,764,0007C( — T —/RFE+ =
2016: RMB160,446,000). A=+—8 : AR¥160,446,0007T) °
22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22 RERREEEY

2017 2016
—E—tF T AT

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Cash at bank and on hand HRITIHE R FERE 401,918 931,523
Fixed deposits TE BifF K - 32,000
401,918 963,523
Denominated in: A3 S ¥ A -
- Hong Kong Dollars — BT 592 172,127
— Renminbi —AR# 374,028 755,020
- US Dollars —ET 27,298 36,376
401,918 963,523
The fixed deposits were highly liquid with original maturities of three EMFEFESREM - REEBE A=A K
months or less. As at 31 December 2017, cash and cash equivalents T RZB—tF+-_A=+—H  xKEZ
of approximately RMB373,852,000 (2016: RMB754,809,000) of the He MBS EYHAREES73,852,0007T(=
Group were denominated in Renminbi and deposited with banks in the T—NF : AR¥754,809,0007T) AAREEST
PRC. The conversion of the Renminbi denominated balance into foreign B WEFARBZRT - AARBHEZ
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange FERATRIE H AR RN AT B BB AR M 2 SNE
control promulgated by the PRC government. & AR BI K AR GIPTAR PR
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23 SHARE CAPITAL 23 |
Number of
ordinary shares Par value
EZERHE H{E
RMB’000
ARBTFT
At 1 January 2016 R-ZB—XF—H—H 899,946,103 85,090
Issuance of shares upon conversion of IR R E SR BTG
convertible bonds 95,000,000 8,045
Buy-back shares EEAElE) (5,990,000) (529)
Exercise of share options 1T BE A A 15,352,000 1,279
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZZE—RFt+ZA=+—HK
—FT—+F—H—H 1,004,308,103 93,885
Issuance of shares upon conversion FIRR R E AR BTG
of convertible bonds (Note a) (HfzEa) 4,042,750 358
Issuance of new shares (Note b) BITH R (D) 87,642,857 7,438
Buy-back shares (Note ) H [o] A1n (P 3Ec) (11,144,000) (982)
Exercise of share options 1TEHB AR 474,000 41
At 31 December 2017 R-B—+F+—A=+—H 1,085,323,710 100,740
The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 2,000,000,000 shares TERET AR ATREENNETL(ZE—N
(2016: 2,000,000,000 shares) with a par value of HK$0.1 per share F : §ik0.1787T) 2 2,000,000,000/% iz 5 (=
(2016: HK$0.1 per share). All issued shares are fully paid. T —754F 1 2,000,000,0008% %15 ) - FrE E &

TROBEERE -

REBEZT—+tF+_A=1t—"HBILFE"
RARR R IR IR B AR AT Bl IR 1T (E (B 1.248 T
TERERYAETS © 474,000 D RIBX M B T3
17 WEERAR KRG = E D BIE KA R
41,0007t & A R #476,0007T °

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 474,000 shares of the
Company were issued upon the exercise of share options under the
share option scheme of the Company at exercise price of HK$1.24
and resulted in approximately RMB41,000 increase in share capital and
RMB476,000 increase in share premium.

RZZ—+E+=-A=+—0H  ARAE%H
TTRR D 42815 1,085,323, 710A% (=B — /N 4F -
1,004,308,103%f%15) -

The total number of issued shares of the Company was 1,085,323,710 as
at 31 December 2017 (2016: 1,004,308,103).

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017
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23 SHARE CAPITAL (c

(a)

(b)

(9]

ontinued)

Issuance of share upon conversion of convertible
bond

According to the audited consolidated financial statement of
Zhejiang Zhongfu Internet Technology Company Limited (“Zhejiang
Zhongfu”), a subsidiary of Zhongfu Holdings Limited for the year
ended 31 December 2016, the audited consolidated distributable
profit after-tax of Zhejiang Zhongfu for the year ended 31
December 2016 exceeds RMB10,000,000. Accordingly, the relevant
performance target for the first performance undertaking year has
been met, and the sellers shall convert the convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$40,427,500 into conversion shares at the
conversion price of HK$10.00 per share. Accordingly, a total of
4,042,750 conversion shares had been allotted and issued to the
sellers on 8 May 2017 and resulted in approximately RMB358,000
increase in share capital and RMB24,352,000 in share premium.
The financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss amounted
RMB24,686,000 has been utilised at the conversion date.

Issuance of new shares

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has allotted
87,642,857 shares at issue price of HK$7 per share to Digital China
Holdings Limited. Approximately RMB7,438,000 increase in share
capital and RMB513,227,000 in share premium respectively.

Buy-back of shares

The Company acquired 12,290,000 of its own shares through
purchase on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange during year ended
31 December 2016. The total amount paid to acquire the shares
was RMB60,939,000. Part of the Share (5,990,000 shares)
repurchased had been cancelled in the Stock Exchanges as at 31
December 2016, hence the related amount RMB529,000 and
RMB29,861,000 has been deducted from share capital and share
premium respectively. The remaining 6,300,000 shares (“remaining
share”) repurchase but not yet cancelled, which amounting to
RMB30,549,000 was debited from share redemption reserves as at
31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the remaining
6,300,000 share has been cancelled, hence RMB30,549,000 was
credited to share redemption reserves and the related amount of
RMB556,000 and RMB29,993,000 has been deducted from share
capital and share premium respectively.

235

23 KA )

(a)

(b)

(c)

RBRUBRRESRBITRG

RN RSB AR A B ([HHLIH
f& 1) (Zhongfu Holdings Limited 22 ff} & 2
AEE_Z—ANFt+-_A=t—ALHF
B2 EEBZAEHMBHRE - IR RE
E-T—XF+-A=+—HLEEZ
KEZE BRI A 5 R E T BB A
K %10,000,0007T ° At -+ & fEFE 4%

EFEZHBEBNBERESER  ME
KRG HREFIR10.008 T LA S5
40,427,500 7T 2 AR E S o At - &
$£4,042, 750 RMBRRHE R T —+45F
FAANBRBEWHTTER @ BHRAE
NI A R #358,0007T K A% 193 (B 18 A4
AR#24,352,0007T ° A ET AR
ZEmaEAR24,686,0007TE R AR
HEEA -

BITHRG
REBEZZ—+tF+A=+—HILF
B AEEBRBETESR7E RSN
A% 12 R B BR A R %% 87,642,857 AR Ik
17 o BRAN KRB EE D BIIEINK AR
7,438,0007T &2 A FE#513,227,0007T °

B B R 13
EAEtifY RNETZA=+—HBLF
B RNRREBER B ZFTETREN

lgia= ﬁﬂﬁ1’ﬁ212,29o,oooﬁxﬂ%’ﬁ o Wi
Betn 2 B A5 5 A A R #60,939,0007T °
85 B B E AR5 (5,990 OOOHﬁﬁﬁTﬁ)EEA
ZE—RFTZ A=+ BEBRF

i - SRR IEAE@éfszg,oooﬁ&/\E
#29,861,0007CE 2 BIAE B AN R AR A3 (B
ARk © #:16,300,000% 8% 1% ([ & A%
DB FEEEEAZE  EERAR
#30,549,000ER =T —~"F+=A
=+—BERMNERZEINR -

REBEE_Z—tF+=-A=1+—HIEHF
JE + $27176,300,000% %5 B EEH ©
A R #30,549,000 7T B &1 A BR 15 & [2 {7
B XA IBA R 556,000t kAR
29,993,0007T 2 9 Bl HE AR A K AR AN 5 &
SKEH o
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SR RN

23 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 23 BA&#)

(d) Share options (d) EEAR#E

After the cancellation mentioned above, the Company has further
acquired 4,844,000 of its own shares. As at 31 December 2017,
4,844,000 shares were repurchased and cancelled during the year.
Hence RMB426,000 and RMB25,853,000 has been deducted from
share capital and share premium respectively.

On 3 April 2013, a total of 1,500,000 share options were granted
to an employee pursuant to share option scheme. The grantee
can exercise these options at an exercise price of HK$4.402 per
share in ten years period starting from the expiry of twelve months
from the date of the granting of options, being 3 April 2013.
Commencing from the first anniversaries of the date of grant, the
relevant grantees may exercise options up to 10% and gradually
up to 100% at the fifth anniversary of the date of grant. During
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017, no share options
were exercised.

On 18 November 2013, a total of 10,000,000 share options were
granted to certain employees pursuant to share option scheme.
The grantees can exercise these options at an exercise price of
HK$9.84 per share in ten years period starting from the expiry of
the twelve months from the date of granting of options, being 18
November 2013. Commencing from the first anniversaries of the
date of grant, the relevant grantees may exercise options up to
10% and gradually up to 100% at the fifth anniversary of the date
of grant.

On 13 October 2017, a total of 29,930,000 share options were
granted to a director pursuant to share option scheme. The
grantee can exercise these options at a exercise price of HK$6.474
per share in ten years period starting from the expiry of the twelve
months from the date of granting of option, being 13 October
2017. Commencing from the first anniversaries of the date of
grant, the relevant grantees may exercise option up to 20% and
gradually up to 100% at the fifth anniversary of the date of grant.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 474,000 share option
under the 11 July 2007 share option scheme were exercised (2016:
28,000 share options were exercised under the 18 November 2013
share option scheme).

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017
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PR HRRMTE

23 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(d) Share options (Continued)
The assumptions for valuation of fair value of share options are as
follows:

23 June 11July 29 September
2006 2007 2008

ZERAE CRRtE ZERNE

237

23 A
(d) BEREE)

7 April
2010
-%-%5

AHERBRE A FEMAZHRRAT

28 March 3 April 18 November 13 October
2011 2013 2013 2017
Z8-kF C®-ZE C3-ZE  CE-tE

ABZTZR tAT-B AAZTAB

Exercise price (in HK dollar) 7EBAT) 149 124 0.604
Fair value of the options (in RMB)  EFREATE(ARE) 3919000 9390000 2,756,000
Risk free interest rate (in %) EEBRHR(%) 4911 4.757 3133
Expected lffe (in years) RS 3255 2462 3848
Volatilty (in %) KE(%) 348 59 72
Expected dividend per share EHER

(HK cents) RE(%) = = =

BAtH

082
12,527,000
2.865
3459
798

ZR=tAR ME=R t-ATAR TAt=H

1.108 4402 9.84 6.476
1377000 3754000  50,125000 100,356,000
2820 111 1915 1.745%
3849 9.1-96 4719 49
174 5 ns 62

- - - 5.67

At the working date before options were granted, 22 June 2006,
10 July 2007, 26 September 2008, 6 April 2010, 25 March 2011, 2
April 2013, 15 November 2013 and 12 October 2017, the market
value per share was HK$1.45, HK$1.24, HK$0.55, HK$0.82,
HK$1.1, HK$4.3, HK$9.23 and HK$6.48 respectively.

REBREERHA 2 TER(ZETNF
ANAZt+=H - —TZTtHFLA+AH - =
ZZENFNAZ+B ZT—FFNA
ANH—ZE——HF=ZfA-_+FHH =—ZFT
—=FmA-—H - —T—=%+—AF+%
Bk=Z2—+F+HA+=H) SBRME
D RIA1.458TT ~ 1.247% 7T + 0.5587C
0.8277C ~ 1.1787L ~ 4.3/87L * 9.23/8 7L
6.487 T °
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23 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 23 A ()
(d) Share options (Continued) (d) BERE®
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their RITEERAERE RITHEEZEHNT -

exercise prices are as follows:

(i) Share Option Scheme (i) BRETE
2017
—E—tF —ERF
Exercise Exercise
price in HK$ Share price in HK$ Share
Expiry date per share options per share Options
BRET FRAT

FEA TR iR 17EfE R
At 1 January 1.49 - 1.49 1,458,000
R—HA—H 1.24 1,454,000 1.24 3,698,000
0.604 400,000 0.604 2,900,000
0.82 1,438,000 0.82 10,588,000
1.108 200,000 1.108 200,000
4.402 1,500,000 4.402 1,500,000
9.84 9,972,000 9.84 9,972,000
6.476 - - NA
Granted 1.49 - 1.49 -
[REE g 1.24 - 1.24 -
0.604 - 0.604 —
0.82 - 0.82 —
1.108 - 1.108 -
4.402 - 4.402 -
9.84 - 9.84 -
6.476 29,930,000 - NA
Lapsed and exercised 1.49 - 1.49 (1,458,000)
R RITIE 1.24 (1,454,000) 1.24 (2,244,000)
0.604 - 0.604 (2,500,000)
0.82 - 0.82 (9,150,000)
1.108 - 1.108 -
4.402 - 4.402 —
9.84 - 9.84 —
6.476 - - NA
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23 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 23 A
(d) Share options (Continued) (d) BEREE
(i) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) JFEBRR#ETE(E)
2017 2016
—E2—tF —E—RF
Exercise Exercise
price in HK$ Share price in HK$ Share
Expiry date per share options per share Options
BRET BRET
) f = THEE 11818 ke
At 31 December 23 June 2016 1.49 - 1.49 -
W+=ZA=+—H —Z—R"FRRZT=H
11th July 2017 1.24 - 1.24 1,454,000
—E—+FtA+—H
29 September 2018 0.604 400,000 0.604 400,000
ZE-NFAAZTNHE
7 April 2020 0.82 1,438,000 0.82 1,438,000
ZE-EFMALH
27 March 2021 1.108 200,000 1.108 200,000
—Z-—F=R=++H
3 April 2023 4.402 1,500,000 4.402 1,500,000
“E-=FMA=H
18 November 2023 9.84 9,972,000 9.84 9,972,000
—E-=F+—A+N\H
13 October 2027 6.476 29,930,000 - NA
—Z-+E&+HA+=H
(e) Share Award Scheme (e) MfpEREFHE
On 23 November 2011 and pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, R=ZB—F+—A=+=8 ' RERHK
the Board resolved to grant an aggregate of 24,181,000 shares BEGE - EEgRFA2ULTER
to 72 selected employees (including an executive director of the B(AEARA —BRITEF)RTEH
Company). 24,181,000 A% {7 °
On 14 June 2012, the Board resolved to grant Lee Wee Ong, an RZE—Z—FA+HA EFgk
executive director of the Company, 3,000,000 shares, subjected to AR A ITE F Lee Wee Ong# T
a vesting period of 36 months. 3,000,000/ 17 - R EAA361E A -
On 20 August 2012, the shareholders resolved to grant Guo RZB——FA\AZ+H  RERZERR
Jiang, an executive director of the Company, 16,700,000 shares, ANREIFITEE I T 16,700,000 8% ik
subjected to a vesting period of 72 months. 7 BEEAT2EA -
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23 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 23 A ()
(e) Share Award Scheme (Continued) (e) WDEEBFEI®)
The awarded shares will be held by the trustee in accordance with %5 ARG 18 B X AT ARIRAR (D 22 B 5T
the rules of the Share Award Scheme and the relevant trust period. £l 2R RN ABRAEFE AR A ©
The awarded shares are subject to vesting periods from 6 months ZERBRO 2 FEPREAZET72(E
to 72 months. =10
The following table represents the movements for number of TRINFRBE_T—tF+=A=+—
shares under the Share Award Scheme for the year ended 31 HIEFER G R 8ITE TR BB 2 &
December 2017. g o
Number of
shares (in
thousand unit)
RBEE (FR)
At 1 January 2016 RZZT—R"F—HA—H 21,877
Shares vested during the year KEEDHBRMD (1,457)
Shares purchased from the market KB EERG 1,315
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZZE—RNFE+-_A=+—H8k
—T—+F—H—H 21,735
Shares vested during the year AEEDHBIRMD (6,375)
At 31 December 2017 R-_E—+HF+_-_A=+—H 15,360
The following is a summary of the shares granted, vested and AT R B R BB B R R E B
lapsed during the year since the set up of the Share Award - BB R ROE
Scheme:

Number of shares
(in thousand unit)

BRHHE (TR)
2017
—Z2—+tF
At 1 January n—HA—H 21,735 23,192
Shares vested ERE A (6,375) (1,457)
Allocated but not vested 2o EEREEB 15,360 21,735
The Group has adopted the requirements under HKFRS 2 to REBE B ERNE B ERELRFE 2572
account for the equity compensation expenses of the shares BT - R B ERATERERERG
granted at the date of grant at fair value. ZHERFHEERANE -
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24 OTHER RESERVES 24 Hithf#E

Available-
for-sale  Shares held
Convertible Share-based Share financial for share
Share bond Other Merger compensation redemption  Exchange assets reward

premium reserve reserve reserve reserves reserve Reserve reserve scheme Total
T8k WEfRER TREESR ROKMH

BitaE  &ERE  AtRE  GHER  ZRRER Eifi BEBR  FRRG A

RMBOOO  RMBODD  RMBOOO  RMBODO  RMBOOD  RMBODO  RMBOOD  RMBODO  RMBOOD  RMBO0O

ARETR ARETR A ABETT ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARKTR ARETR

At 1 January 2016 R=E-~5-f-H 1,709,370 50,858 (17.421) 109,817 93,908 4% (28,286) 174350  (116,608) 1,976,484
Fair value gain on avaiable-for-sale At ESHEEATE
financial assets, net of deferred tax Wi - BERERE

(Notes 17 &31) (H&17R31) - - - - - - - 62,400 - 62,400
Fair value release on disposal of HETRLESRARR

available-for-sale financial assets, EozATE B

net of deferred tax R = = = = = = - (9575 - (957%)
Currency translation difference EREHZR - - - - - - 13876 - - 13876
Issuance of shares upon conversion of ~ SHATAREREELT

convertible bonds &t 326,506 - - - - - - - - 326,506
Buy-back of shares BERG (29,861) = = = - (30,549 = = - (60410)
Evercise of new share options lEmEE 10429 - - - - - - - - 10429
Share based compensation -valueof  ARAZ[ZHE-ES

employee services HisEE - - - - 29,566 - = = = 29,566
Share purchase under Share Award RERAHREH IS ARR

Scheme - - - - - - - - (6,386) (6,386)
Vesting of awarded shares ) 3,075 = = = (6,387) = = = 3312 =
Transactions with non-controlling interests  E&3FiARIERET 2R 5

(Notes 25) (Bf&t25) - - 51,051 - - - - - - 51,051
At 31 December 2016 RIZ-AETZA=t-H 2019519 50,858 33630 109,817 117,087 (30,053) (14410) 140995 (119,682 2,307,761
A1 laniay 2017 WoE-rE-B-B 209519 SO BEO 987 108 (00) (4410 14095 (1968 2307761

Fair value loss on avallable-for-sale Rt ESREE ATE
financial assets, net of deferred tax B MBELHE

(Notes 17&31) (HizE17R31) - - - - - - - (4887 - (g
Fair value release on disposal of HETHIECREER

available-for-sale finandial assets, BEZATE Nk

net of deferred tax EILRE - - - - - - - (28,605) - (28,605)
Curreny translation difference EREHZE - - - - - - 13724 - - 13724
Issuance of shares in relation to contingent ~ BiE AR BR AT

consideration arrangement ki3 24,352 - - - - - - - - 24352
Issuance of new shares BHRD 513,227 - - - - - - - - 513,227
Buy-back of shares BERG (55,848) - = = = 31,531 = = - (u31)
Share based compensation -value of LKA A ZEE

employee services -EERBER - - - - 33815 - - - - 33,815
Exercise of share options FERE 476 - - - - - - - - 476
Vesting of awarded shares SERBRN 8,049 - - - (8313) - = = 20,264 =
Partial redemption of convertible bonds SR A K EH

- equity portion ~[RiESH - (47,494) - - - - - - - (4749
Transactions with non-controling interests ~ E3EERIER #7235

(Notes 25) (Bfzt2s) - - (6,123 - - - - - - (6,123)
At 31 December 2017 RIZ—+E+-A=+-B 2509775 3364 21,507 109,817 122,589 1478 (686) 63515 (99418) 2,737,941
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SR RN

24 OTHER RESERVES (continued)

25

HC International, Inc.

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable to wholly
foreign owned enterprises, the PRC subsidiaries are required to
appropriate to reserve fund an amount of not less than 10% of the
profit after income tax, calculated based on the PRC accounting
standards. Should the accumulated total of this reserve fund reach 50%
of the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries, the subsidiaries will not
be required to make any further appropriation. The reserve fund can
only be used, upon approval by the shareholders’ meeting or similar
authorities, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, retained earnings amounted
approximately RMB20,325,000 (2016: RMB23,840,000) had been
transferred to the statutory reserve. As at 31 December 2017, retained
earnings comprise statutory reserve fund amounting to RMB108,081,000
(2016: RMB87,756,000).

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

(a) Acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries

On 21 July 2016, Beijing Zaichuang technology Co., Ltd* ("4t
REFBAIRIE AR AT"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, has entered into a share purchase agreement with Mr.
Yu Zhiguo (%138 E). Pursuant to the agreement, Mr. Yu Zhiguo
agreed to transfer 24% of the issued shares of Guanggong
Shunde Huihui trading Co., Ltd ("EXRBEZEZ ZFER AT,
or “Shunde Huihui”) for a purchase consideration of RMB1. The
carrying amount of the non-controlling interests in Shunde Huihui
held by Mr. Yu Zhiguo at the date of acquisition was RMB9,030.
The Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of
RMB9,030 and increase in equity attributable to owners of the
company of RMB9,029. After the transaction, the Group holds
84% of the issued shares of Shunde Huihui.

Annual Report 2017
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25

Hif@E e
RIBERNIEBE %2 AR EAR - o
BT 2 )/ R B8 o B S 2 B 5k B L R
R FERERFI0% B RES - MULEES
SrHeEERT BB AT 2 B EAR50% -
RN 2 B EA ML A — S BE - R
EREAS KRR DR HE% - REE
SEAAEEER AR RS -

HE-_Z—+F+-_A=t—HILSE 4=
Uk 49 AR #20,325,0007T( —F—R4F : AR
23,840,000 ) B EH =LA ERHE - N=F
—tF+-A=1+—8  BEKSBEETH
H& AR¥108,081,000L(ZF—RF : AR
#87,756,0007T) °

BFERER RS

(a) WEBMB AT ZEIMER
RZB—XNE+A-+—B XEE2
BB AR RERBARTARAA
(THERBRERIRHR AR A A ) HEmaE
TR BRI - BEBRHE - WA
EERBEREERBARBITEERER
IEEEEEZAERAT([ERIBEZESR
SERAF K EEZE )2 BTRG
Z24% o Wiya B ST AN UE B IR IES
ZIEMPBA ZIEERERREEAARE
9,0307T ° AL ERERIFERIER D A
R#£9,0307T R AR R A AFE(R RS 18
MMARYQ,0297C - KRB 1% - AEEH
BEEEED TN 284% °
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PR HRRMTE

25 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING 25 EE3ERERZ RS @)
INTERESTS (Continued)

(a) WBHME DRz BEIMERS (1)

(a) Acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries

(Continued)

On 22 July 2016, dt REHEHAIREBRAF], a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, has entered into a share purchase
agreement with Mr. Yu Zhiguo (%i’8E). Pursuant to the
agreement, Mr. Yu Zhiguo agreed to transfer 40% of the issued
shares of Guangdong Shunde Congcong information technology
Co., Ltd* ("EXRIEEHEEMEE X ARRXF", or “Shunde
Congcong”) for a purchase consideration of RMB1. The carrying
amount of the non-controlling interests in Shunde Congcong
held by Mr. Yu Ziguo at the date of acquisition was RMB71,726.
The Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of
RMB71,726 and increase in equity attributable to owners of the
company of RMB71,725. After the transaction, the Group holds
100% of the issued shares of Shende Congcong.

On 4 November 2017, Beijing Panpass Information Technology
Co., Ltd* ("JE R IKE(E ERMARMD AR A R]"), a subsidiary of the
Group, has entered in a share purchase agreement with Beijing
Kaixun Huishang anti-counterfeiting technology Co., Ltd* ("4t 58]l
B ARM AR EEART", or “Huishang”). Pursuant to the
agreement, Huishang agreed to transfer 49% of the issued shares
of Beijing Kaixun Zhaotong anti-counterfeiting technology Co.,
Ltd* ("dERELRIKBERHEARAE", or “Zhaotong”) for a
consideration of RMB12,500,000. The carrying amount of the non-
controlling interests in Zhaotong held by Huishang at the date of
acquisition was RMB6,377,000. The Group recognised a decrease
in non-controlling interests of RMB6,377,000 and increase in other
reserve of RMB6,123,000. After the transaction, the Group holds
100% of the issued shares of Zhaotong.

RZE—RFLtAZ+H  AEE2E
MB AR REREAIRH AR A A EE
SRBISEAERT MBI R o BRI - WA
B ERBEREERBARB I TEERE
RIBEIRERA AR BB R A R ([ ERIEE
RIS R A IR A A sk B TEER | ) 3%
TR 2 40% ° M a B 5 A A Uk BE B 57
RIERIRIAFTHE A < IR E R AREE R
AR®ET1,7267T - NEBRERIEIERE R
B AREET, 7267 RANA RIER AFEIS
TSI INAREET1,7257C - KRR 5% + &K
SEEFEIEEIRE 2 25 BITRG ©

R-ZE—+tF+—ANH - ~AEEHBA
AL RIS 1R BRI AR (D B R A R E L R
SR EE R EREEAR(TER])
IR B - REHE - BRERER
KRB AR 12,500,000 7T 8 2 4k 7 gl iR
JkEb AR AR AR ([ RS RIS
PraRHE AR A R sk k@) =17 H
Z49% o B IE B BN KB A
ZIERiR s R EE A A R 6,377,000
T ARERRBIEERESZRDAR
6,377,000 70 K& E fib fF 15 0 A R 8
6,123,0007T - R H1%& - NEBEFK
Bz RIBEITRMD ©
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BT EHRRME

25 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (continued)

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries

without change of control

(i) On 15 March 2016, Mr. Liu Jun (2|Z), Mr. Song Bingchen (R
7K&), Mr. Han Gang (#2[l) and Mr. Xu Ke (FFa]) (collectively,
the “GZ Subscribers”) entered into a capital increase
agreement with Shenzhen Jinhuicong Internet Technology
Co. Ltd (AT REBFBEEHRAR A F]"), Beijing Huicong
Information Technology Co. Ltd ("1t = ZHEH B & S HiT
APRR/A7]") and Guangzhou Huicong Internet Technology
Co. Ltd ("EMEHEMBERZERAR" or “Guangzhou
Huicong”), each of them being an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Pursuant to the agreement, the parties agreed to increase the
registered capital of Guangzhou Huicong from RMB5,000,000
to RMB8,333,333, comprising RMB3,333,333 to be contributed
to the increase in registered capital of Guangzhou Huicong,
and RMB50,000,000 to be contributed to the capital reserve of
Guangzhou Huicong.

As at 31 December 2016, the total capital contribution by the GZ
Subscribers amounted approximately RMB53,333,333, comprising
approximately RMB3,333,333 contributed to the increase in
registered capital of Guangzhou Huicong, and the remaining
RMB50,000,000 was contributed to the capital reserve of
Guangzhou Huicong.

After the transaction, the Group’s equity interest in Guangzhou
Huicong was diluted from 100% to 60%, while the remaining
40% equity interest was held by the GZ Subscribers.

25 BEFEREZ RS @)

(b) FEFRBEFEZHMELRE

BRERSEH

i) RZZE-—R"F=A+HH " 2EL
& RikEEE - BRIZERIA
S (I GZRBA D BRI R
ERREGHMEAERAR - EREBR
EREMBRMAR AR REMNZI
HEMBEBERAR(EMNZR]D (F
RERNBZEE2EMBAR)ETL
BE R o

BERZE SIS REEEMNZRZZ
fit & X 8 A R ¥ 5,000,000 L1 i = A
R#8,333,333)C - BIESHEMNERE
fMAEARE ML E 2 AR¥3,333,3337C
REHEMNZRERNFEBLEZ AR
50,000,0007T ©

R=ZFE—A"F+=-A=1+—8 ' GZRE
AEHHELHARKS3,333,3337T ' B1F
IS EMNZRFMERENEENARE
3,333,3337T * i & T AR % 50,000,000
TEREMNERZ EAFEBLE -

RRB%  NEBEREMNERZBES B
100%#EEZE60% » Mik T~ 40% A4 Al H
GZRBARA -

RMB'000
ARETT

Carrying amount of non-controlling FFr &5 FEFE AR M 25 2 AR TED (B
interest disposed -
Consideration received for the non-controlling interests  FtIEFEASAE LS FTIER 2 R (B (50,000)

R R N RER R AR (B
ZENHKE (50,000)

Consideration paid in excess of carrying value
recognised within equity
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PR HRRMTE

25 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (Continued)

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control (Continued)

(ii)

On 13 December 2016, a new shareholder injected capital
amounting to RMB1,500,000 into Beijing Huicong Minan
Tz-Commerce Co. Ltd* ("It REBRZETEEERA
A", or “Huicong Minan”), a non-wholly-owned controlling
subsidiary of the Group. The new shareholder subscribes
15% of the equity interest of Huicong Minan. After the
transaction, the Group's equity interest in Huicong Minan
was diluted from 60% to 51%.

The carrying amount of the non-controlling interest disposed
and consideration paid in excess of carrying value recognised
within equity as a result of the transaction with non-
controlling interests were as follows:

245

25 BEFERERIRS

(b) TEFRBEHEZMEARHE
ERERR2E @)

(i)

RZE—R"FE+=ZA+=B'—%
ﬁk%ﬁ$%l%%§%k%%
AERERERZETFEFEERA
(TER%])x& AR 1,500,000
TL o TR REERT15% M4 -
RRS%  AEBRERT ZRE
B H60%#EE51% °

BN BT RERETR S - AT
BRI 2 BREE RN EE A
BRBLREEZENRERT
T~

2016
—ERF
RMB’000
AREETIT
Carrying amount of non-controlling FfTHH &5 3R R R 2 2 BRI (B
interests disposed 530
Consideration received from the non-controlling LI 2R FTUCER 2 (R (B
interests (1,500)
Consideration paid in excess of carrying value Rz AR HEREE
recognised within equity EARRE (970)

* English names are translated for identification purpose only
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BT EHRRME

26 RECEIPT IN ADVANCE

26 FAWRKIE

2017 2016
—E—tfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBFIT
Receipt in advance for 020 business BO20E EREH L EH
exhibition centre business TEUGRIA 40,282 473,970
Receipt in advance for B2B trading BB2BR 5 & %K
platform business TEW IR 150,506 7,720
Other receipt in advance H{thFE U F I8 13,075 12,132
203,863 493,822
Less: Non-current W FERE (40,282) (40,282)
Current binE2) 163,581 453,540

27 DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

27 EEBRFFREEY

2017 PAONES)

—E2—+tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETTT

Non-current JERED 175,658 185,508
Current binE2)] 20,627 14,500
196,285 200,008

As at 31 December 2017, deferred government grants mainly
represented a government grant amounted RMB185,508,000 (2016:
RMB195,358,000) which was to subsidise the Group to provide rental
discount to the prospective tenants of the 020 business exhibition
centre in Shunde of Guangzhou. The conditions attached to the grant
has been satisfied during the year ended 31 December 2016.

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017

R-ZT—+F+-A=+—8  EEBITHE
T EIEH AR 185,508,0007T( — T —/ 4 :
AR#195,358,0007T ) 2 AT #EB) - FLAEB)
AREE R EMNIEEO20EERER L EMFE
Frigfit 2 FE 4T o UL BT Z B R E
BT RFE+_A=+—RHIFEERK -



247

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR HRRMTE

28 TRADE PAYABLES, DEFERRED REVENUE AND 28 FE{JBRFX ~ IEEWA LUK FEFTE
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES PR LAt PB4 R IE

2017 2016
—g—tF  —FAF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

Trade payables (Note a) FEAT AR R (P 7Ea) 19,482 7,916
Deferred revenue RIERA 158,983 244,367
Accrued salaries and staff benefits FEETH I & B T4EH| 28,190 22,826
Accrued agency commissions EETRERE 17,564 15,385
Accrued expenses fEETE A 72,903 109,647
Deposit from customers EYSFER S 73,507 51,528
Other payables H b B~ A 27,700 17,496

398,329 469,165

(a) The aging analysis of trade payables is as follows: (a) BENERRZERRIMMOT :

2017 2016
—E—tF T AF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Current to 90 days BNEAZE90R 9,843 6,136
91 to 180 days 91E180K 6,426 1,163
181 to 365 days 181E 365K 2,142 395
Over 1 year HRm—F 1,071 222

19,482 7,916
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BT EHRRME

29 BORROWINGS 29 B8

2017 2016
—E2—+tF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AEBTT

Non-current portion: EREEH D -
Bank borrowings RITEE 712,376 127,376
Other borrowings HibfEe 267,412 22,206
979,788 149,582
Current portion: mENE S
Bank borrowings RITEE 393,837 724,528
Other borrowings HEE 123,505 9,372
517,342 733,900
1,497,130 883,482
Movements in borrowings is analysed as follows: BEZEHOTIT

2017 2016
—g—tfF T AF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AREFTT

At 1 January n—A—H 883,482 527,309
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —MM B AR 368,890 =
Additions of borrowings mgEs 944,368 940,818
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (699,610) (584,645)
At 31 December BN+=—A=+—8 1,497,130 883,482

HC International, Inc. Annual Report 2017
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PR HRRMTE

29 BORROWINGS (continued) 29 BE )
Bank borrowings bear average interest rate of 5.98% per annum (2016: BBz RITEBEERTEHFERNE598E (=
5.95% per annum), part of which amounting to RMB507,376,000 are T—RF: FHERS595F ) E - HHfE

secured by certain properties and land use right with carrying value
amounting to RMB1,054,040,000 (2016: RMB257,271,000).

Other borrowings of RMB27,816,000 were obtained for the investment
in an associate are provided by the non-controlling shareholder of
Huicong Tianjin, in which 25% of its equity interest is effectively held
by Liu Jun, an executive director and the chief executive officer of the
Company as disclosed in Note 13. The borrowings are unsecured,
mature ranging from 2017 to 2019 and bear average interest rate of
6.2% per annum (2016: 6.3% per annum). During the year ended 31
December 2017, the corresponding interest expenses was approximately
RMB1,639,000 (2016: RMB1,652,000).

Other borrowings also included loans of RMB355,000,000 provided by
independent asset management companies and private equity fund for
operational purpose. The loans from third parties bear average interest
rate of 6.2% per annum. Part of which amounting to RMB255,000,000
are secured by certain loans receivable with carrying value amounting to
RMB381,730,000.

The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair values and
are denominated in RMB.

B AR¥ 507376000 T ABREE A AR
#1,054,040000 T (= —<NF : ARK
257,271,0007T ) Z & T ¥ 2 K& -t {F A #E1ER
?qﬂ °

PR —HBERARBRENEZHARE
27,816,000 T H At & B B ZHARZE 7 JEIE AR AR
iR - MBI E - BHERE25%
ZRAERAARNRRTESTRITREHEE
BERHAE  ZEBEREEE IR =_FT—+
FEZT—NFHH  BRFHFFNER62E
(ZZT—RF : FFXR63E)stE - HE-T
—tF+ZA=1+—HBILEFE FANSRAX
K AHAREE,639,000(ZF—RF : ARM
1,652,0007T) °

HinEBENREARBIEETREARIMERA
R #355,000,000t 2 ER R BAREEZFLE
BEES - REF=HZEFIRFHFHE6.2
E& 8 o 25 & E A K% 255,000,0007T A B
E{E A A R #381,730,0007T 2 & T W E 7
{EAEHR -

ZfEE 2 REEEEAFERE - TAARE
FI{E -
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BT EHRRME

29

30

HC International, Inc.

BORROWINGS (continued)

The table below summarises the maturity analysis of bank and other
borrowings based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan
agreements.

Bank borrowings

29

B8
TR E R SRS ERE KA
8L BATEE R S S EH A S o

Other borrowings

SRITHEE Hinfg &
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF ZEZ—RF ZB—tF ZZ=—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTRT AR¥ETR AREBTET
Within 1 year —FR 393,837 724,528 123,505 9,372
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMFR 572,376 127,376 257,555 19,792
Between 2 and 5 years MEERFER 140,000 = 9,857 2,414
1,106,213 851,904 390,917 31,578

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has no undrawn banking facilities
(2016: RMB12,624,000).

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Company issued convertible bonds with a coupon rate of 5% per
annum at a total principal value of HK$780,000,000 (Equivalent to
approximately RMB615,342,000) on 27 November 2014 (the “2014
Convertible Bonds”). The 2014 Convertible Bonds will mature on 27
November 2019 at its principal amount or can be converted into the
Group's shares at the bondholder’s option at rate of HK$11.63 per
share or at the option of the bondholder to redeem all or some only of
the convertible bonds on 27 November 2017, with unconditional right,
at their principal amount together with interest accrued but unpaid to
such date. The convertible bonds is classified as current liabilities.

Annual Report 2017
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R-ZE—+E+-_A=+—0 A&=EHE
KEAZRTBERE(ZT—RF : AR
12,624,0007T) °

ARRES

ARABRZZE—NE+—AZTERETAR
& #8%8 £ 780,000,000 7T (HHE RN AR
615,342,0007T) * EEEXGF5% 2 AR
EH(ZE—NFRRES]) - —T—NF
ABRBRESER-_E-NAF+—A-+tAK
HEARSBIHIRBEESFBEAZERNEGR
1M.63BTHMARNEERMNINR T —tF
T—AZ T EEERBESFHBAAZEREURSEE
EREZZ AR EMAENZ ZFTF S A EEF
R R 2 Hek o TR ES - ATRRES
PERTBEE -



251

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR HRRMTE

30 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 30 AlRRESH )

On 26 May 2016, the Company issued another zero-coupon convertible
bond to three executive director of the Company, in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$380,000,000 (“2016 Convertible Bonds"”). The
convertible bonds will mature on 25 May 2019 at its principal amount
or can be converted into the Group'’s shares at the bondholder’s option
at rate of HK$4 per share. On 31 May 2016, the Company received
conversion notices from the bondholders. As a result of the Conversion,
on 1 June 2016, the Company allotted and issued in aggregate of
95,000,000 share (Note 23) to the bondholder.

On 27 November 2017, at the request of the 2014 Convertible Bonds
holders, the Company redeemed HK$728,400,000 (equivalent to
RMB616,059,000) of the outstanding principle of the bonds, which
represent approximately 93.38% of the initial principal amount of the
bond. The liabilities component of convertible bonds recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position were as follows:

RZEBE—XRERA=-+AB  xAFMRA=
BRRBRTEFTE TS —HASHBER
380,000,000 T2 T EAMBRELR([=ZF
—NEABBRES]) o —T—NEARKES
BRZE—-NFEFRA-+ABERERSET S
FRBESFEAZRENEGRAB TR B AR
E@EEG - RZZE—A"ERA=+—8 &Q
AIEEFFBAZELRAN - RZT—RF
ANA—B - ARRREETHRMAGESRFEA
i 2% I 3174 $£95,000,0008% A% 1 (Ff7E23) e

RZE—+&F+—A=-++H H_T—NE
AMREFFBEAZER  AARERESRZ
# A (B 3B 7K 728,400,000 7T (B E R AR
616,059,000t ) ' HERBEF IR AR EL
93.38% ° RA HFI BN RIER Z AR &5
BEIMHAT :

2017 2016

—E—+tF —Z—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREETTT

2014 Convertible bond —ENFaBRES 41,387 654,743
2016 Convertible bond ZE—RFA R ES - =
At 31 December R+—A=1+—H 41,387 654,743
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30 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 30 AIRIRESH )

2017 2016
—E2—+tF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AEBTT

2014 Convertible bond —E-MEARRES

At 1 January n—A—H 654,743 600,225
Effective interest expense (Note 38) EREF B = (FiFE38) 43,893 46,632
Fair value loss on early redemption (Note 38) REBMEE 2 A FAEEE (FIE38) 2,702 =
Currency translation differences BERELER (39,235) 41,249
Principal redeemed EEA® (587,030) =
Interest paid EFE (33,686) (33,363)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 41,387 654,743

2017 2016
—®—t%F —2—5x

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT

2016 Convertible bond —E-AREURRES
Fair value of convertible bond issued RZE—RNFRAAZ+"H

on 26 May 2016 BT AR ER 2 A THE - 343,017
Equity component R AEEE 5 - (157,323)
Fair value loss recognised ERERATEEE - 22,297
Conversion of convertible bonds HRBRES - (207,991)
At 31 December ®n+—-—A=+—H - =

The carrying amounts of convertible bonds — liabilities component are AR &S — B &S < FREEETHE -

denominated in HK$.
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31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax relates to the same tax
jurisdiction. The offset amounts are as follows:

31

253

IESEFRS B
EERAABHRITENAKE BRREER
EHREAGERE  MEEMREHSRE—H
BEDERERE - AT EERIEFSHE ER A EIR
i o HIHSFELT ¢

2017 2016
—E—+F —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREET T
Deferred income tax assets (to be recovered after iEIEFTISHIE &
more than 12 months) (BBRBE+ (@R %ER) 21,115 11,386
Deferred income tax liabilities (to be settled after EIEFTEFiEE
more than 12 months) (BREd-+=EARBE) (271,710) (144,654)
(250,595) (133,268)

The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

RIEFT{S AR B B EFRET

2017 2016

—E—+F —EREF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREETTT

At 1 January n—H—H (133,268) (130,860)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 15) U REMT B A E) (fisE15) (140,309) (10,513)

Charged to the other comprehensive income REM 2 EWR A 15,779 7,428
Charged to the consolidated statement of RApHEZR R

profit or loss 6,423 677

Currency translation differences EHERZR 780 =

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H (250,595) (133,268)

As at 31 December 2017, deferred income tax liabilities of
RMB131,325,000 (2016: RMB93,879,000) have not been recognised for
the withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
of subsidiaries in the PRC. The unremitted earnings are to be used for
reinvestment. The income tax liability is not recognised where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

MR-ZZ—tFE+-_A=+—08 HKRpTHHK
B A R ZARE & T MR 2 BT RERIEE
Frigfia@E AR 131,325,000 (=Z — <
F : AR¥93,879,0007T) ° A& HZF# A
BIRE - WEREERD 2R AAEE R
RERZBEABRARE T SER - FEH
BRERTTHER -

EREMEMRAT 201753



254

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT EHRRME

31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 31 EEMBH @
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year FREERIBEERS BEZ R REHER—
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the MG RNERERAER)AT -

same taxation jurisdiction, are as follows:
Deferred tax assets EEHEEE

Tax losses Bad debt provision Total
BAEE BEEE #sct
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

—-tF -TF CZ®-tF "I F C—®-tF -IAF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABMTL  ARKTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR ARETR

At 1 January ®—A—H 1,17 17,149 215 122 11,386 17,271
Acquisition of subsidiaries  UKEEHTBAR]
(Note 15) (PftzE15) - 12 15,991 - 15,991 12

(Charged)/credited to the  RAFEZRR
consolidated statement (30%),/F A
of profit or loss (3.043) (5,990) (3.219) 93 (6,262) (5,897)

At 31 December W+=A=+—8H 8,128 117 12,987 215 21,115 11,386
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PR HRRMTE

31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

Fair value gains

31 EIEFFBH (e
ELEFHIEESE

Dividends Deferred expenses Total

®E BEEX st
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZEtF ZEF ZE-t§F ZTF ZB-t§ 3%
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

DVERE

2017 2016

“E-tf ZTF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFL

At 1 January W—A—-R 124,506 133,696

Acquisition of subsidiaries  WERHIEL A

(Note 15) (MzE15) 156,300 10,525
Credited to the other REMZERA

comprehensive income A (15,779) (8,553)

(Credited)/charged tothe  RAGHERR
consolidated statement (18)/FtA

ARBTR ARETT ARMTR BT ARBTR ARETIL

- = 20,148 14,435 144,654 148,131

156,300 10,525

- = - - (15.779) (8,553)

of profit or loss (12,428) (11,162) 4,579 - (4,836) 5713 (12,685) (5,449)
Currengy translation difference HH#ERZE (780) - - - - - (780) -
At 31 December Rt=A=t-H 251,819 124,506 4,579 - 15,312 20,148 271,710 144,654

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried forwards FEBARL 75 FI s 1R K 1] B35 18 7R SR FE AR st s A1) 2
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through R TRECEMEHEERRLEEHIES
future taxable profits is probable. The Group have no unrecognised tax B AEER-_ZE—tF+_A=+—B#HE

losses as at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

RERBEBR(ZF—RF &) -
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BT EHRRME

32 INCOME TAX PAYABLE AND OTHER TAXES 32 FEMFTEEI R HibprEBiE
PAYABLE

2017 2016
—g—tF T AF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT

Income tax payable: JEZRFRSE -
Corporate income tax EEFTEH 65,298 59,846
Other taxes payable: H b fEAHIIE
Value added tax BEF 3,427 9,965
Cultural and development tax XAk R EERT 5,681 4,749
Land appreciation tax + b I EF 20,373 15,788
Other taxes HAnfiIE 4,941 6,396
34,422 36,898
33 OTHER INCOME 33 Hfblg A

2017 2016
—E—tF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AEBTT

Government grants BT B 38,349 18,553
Dividend income N PN 6,010 1,037
44,359 19,590
Various government grants have been received from the local AEEERRPBEETEXRMEFES AN
government authority for promoting electronic trading platform among HY & R T HE 2 Z AU F B © £ - BUT
the enterprise in the PRC. The conditions specified in the government RO 2 FE IR EBBUER -

approval were fully achieved during the year.
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PR HRRMTE

34 OTHER GAINS, NET 34 HfttUrzn$5E

2017 2016
—®—tF T RF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

Impairment loss recognised in respect of HRBE NI ERRZ

investment in associates REREE - (8,374)
Gains on disposal of an associate o & — st 8 1 A e 5,000 -
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEE

financial assets SRIEERE 34,217 148,488
Change in fair value on financial assets BATEFG AR

at fair value through profit or loss PHEEATEES (6,913) (8,397)
Fair value gains on step acquisition (Note 15(b)) S F&ER Ui 2 A Az

(BfEE15(b)) 117,963 -

Exchange loss M 5 1R (484) (20,864)
Change in fair value on financial liabilities BRATEFABRZ

at fair value through profit or loss LHEBEATEEY 18,472 (4,700)

168,255 106,153
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BT EHRRME

35 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 35 BRATSBLATEF

The profit before income tax is arrived at

B P15 5 A4 FUAE HOBR

2017
—EB—tF

RMB’000
ARBT R

2016

RMB’000
ARBTTT

after charging: AR B IBRER
Cost of properties sold B EYIEERA 253,867 472,166
Direct expenses of B2B trading platform B2BEEFAzEEEHR 2,027,703 126,429
Agency cost REREMA 68,047 97,116
Marketing and consultancy expenses mSHEENBAER 189,803 193,468
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) {5 R A 8R (P 5E6) 4,737 1,147
Amortisation of investment properties (Note 7) & & 2854 (F1317) 18,258 3,043
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 10) EmREERE(MFE10) 63,811 50,194
Depreciation of property, M - BRERERETE

plant and equipment (Note 9) (fF7E9) 30,424 27,646
Auditor’s remuneration ZEENE S

— Audit services — BRI 4,716 3379

— Non — audit services —IEEZ R 3,508 2,096
Employee benefits expenses (Note 36) EBEHFEZ (ME36) 404,796 367,694
Staff commission ETR& 70,582 72,059
Provision for impairment of trade receivables FEWBR R 2 R BB 13,549 878
Reversal of provision of impairment of JE U S SRk (8 B B [

loans receivable (13,406) -
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BEK

plant and equipment HtE (108) (426)
Operating lease payments in respect ARt RIEFTY

of land and buildings LB 56,945 34,945
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PR HRRMTE

36 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

259

36 BERAMAX

2017 2016
—g—tF  —FAF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR® T ARET T

Wages and salaries TERFS 313,801 281,275
Retirement benefits costs (a) RIRIEFIBK AN (a) 57,180 56,853
Share based compensation — Share Option Scheme AR Szt 2 # (€ — BE AR A=+ 2 17,786 11,245
Share based compensation — Share Award Scheme AR 324+ 2 f1E — B AD 22 Eh =12 16,029 18,321

404,796 367,694

The employee benefits expenses amounting to RMB181,073,000 (2016:
RMB173,432,000) and RMB223,723,000 (2016: RMB194,262,000)
are recognised in administrative expenses and selling and marketing
expenses, respectively in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

(a) In accordance with the PRC regulations, the Group is required to
make annual contributions to the state retirement plans calculated
at 20% of the basic salaries of the employees, and employees are
required to contribute 8% of their basic salaries to the plans. The
Group has no obligations for further pension payments or any
post-retirement benefits beyond these annual contributions. The
retirement benefits are paid directly from the plan assets to the
retired employees and are calculated by reference to their monthly
basic salaries at the date of retirement and periods of service
rendered.

As at 31 December 2017, there were no forfeited contributions
available to offset future retirement benefit obligations of the
Group.

SHEAARE181,073,0007T( —F—/1F ¢ A
R173,432,0007T) & A R#223,723,0007T
(ZZE—RF : AR¥194,262,0007T) 28
BARZ ARGt AG I ERERER ZITHER
ARSHE RTISHEER -

(Q) BEFHRH  AEESFARESE
AEH£20%MBEREARBIET - ES
BB Z S B EEAT £8% 2 it
H o BZSEEHTIN  AEEBEESE
HAR RS TR SRR EREF] o RIK
BAAZSHAEEEERARKES X
i WREHNRK B2 ERAHRIZ
BRI 2 FHETE -

RZZE—tF+-A=+—8  HELK
HFRAT AR A SR B BRI B A E
Fe
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BT EHRRME

36 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued) 36 EEEAMZ
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EuGEEHFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the FR - AEERNEREFALEE=S
Group for the year include three (2016: two) directors whose (ZE2—RF: MB)EF  EF W2
emolument is reflected in the analysis presented above. The R EXFT25 2 AR R - RERBR
emoluments paid and payable to the two (2016: three) individuals RERTZME(ZE—RF : =Z8)AL
during the year are as follows: ZMEmT

2017 2016
=F—t5F A

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETT

Basic salaries, housing allowances, EXFE BEZRE -
share options, other allowances and fENRE - E MR K
benefits in kind =bilES 3,307 7,175
Retirement plan contributions RIRETEIH R 164 101
3,471 7,276
The emoluments for these two individuals (2016: three) fell within ZME(ZTE—RF  =F) AL S
the following bands: BT

Number of individuals

A¥
2017
—B—tF
Nil to HKD1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 7T - 1
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001%7T% 1,500,000/ 7T 1 =
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001%7T.%22,000,000/4 7T 1 =
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 7C 22,500,000/ 7T - -
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T - 2
(c) During the year, no emoluments have been paid by the Group () v AEEYERESFK FEAVSES
to the directors or the five highest paid individuals mentioned AT EMBE - ERMAKRM
above as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as AREBR 2 R BmE( =T —R
compensation for loss of office (2016: Nil). F ) o
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PR HRRMTE

37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 37 EEEAIRER
ESRIETBRARBZHME
BHE_Z-RFR-_ZF—tF+_-A
=t HLEFE  REERTETHAE

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a)
The remuneration of every director and chief executive for the year
ended 31 December 2016 and 2017 is set out below:

ZEMEFILT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person'’s services as a
director, whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAFQAAREMBLIESKES AL ARERZME

Employer's

Estimated contribution

money toa

value of  retirement

other benefit

benefit scheme

EEHEK

HingR BFRIGEIN

we fEETE¥E =

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT ARETT

2017: —E—+tF:
Mr. Guo Fansheng (Note i) SN A S A (P 5T - 500 - 82 582
Mr. Guo Jiang LTk - 600 5,011 82 5,693
Mr. Lee Wee Ong Lee Wee OngZt 4 - 720 219 137 939
Mr. Liu Jun 2 EE - 600 10,293 82 10,975
Mr. Zhang Ke R EE 250 - - - 250
Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei RAELE 220 - - - 220
Mr. Tang Jie (Note i) 5 b o He (Bt =) 242 - - - 242
Mr. Wong Chi Keung TE®EE - - - - -
Mr. Li Jianguang TRy hA - - - - -
Ms. Qi Yan (Note iii) AR 4 (Pt =i ) 18 - - - 18
2016: —T—RF:

Mr. Guo Fansheng BRALXE - 600 - 76 676
Mr. Guo Jiang TS - 600 5,011 76 5,687
Mr. Lee Wee Ong Lee Wee OngZt 4 = 720 438 = 1,158
Mr. Liu Jun 2EEE - 600 - 76 676
Mr. Zhang Ke R TAE 250 - - - 250
Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei RRELEE 230 - _ _ 230
Mr. Tang Jie kb 73 - - - 73
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Note iv) ~ F B384t 4 (Fiftiv) - = = = -
Mr. Li Jianguang TENFE = = - - -
Dr. Xiang Bing (Note v) Bt (feEy) 165 = = = 165
Mr. Guo Wei (Note vi) A (R - = = - -

EREMEMRAT 201753



262

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR RN

37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

HC International, Inc.

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)
Note:

(i) Mr. Guo was re-designated as a non-executive director with effect
from 18 October 2017.

(i)~ Mr. Tang Jie had resigned as an independent non-executive director
with effect from 30 November 2017.

(iii)

Ms Qi Yan was appointed as an independent non-executive director
with effect from 30 November 2017.

(iv)

Mr. Wong Chi Keung was appointed as a non-executive director with
effect from 12 September 2016.

(v)  Dr. Xiang Bing has resigned as an independent director with effect
from 12 September 2016.

(vi)

Mr. Guo Wei had resigned as a non-executive director with effect
from 12 September 2016.

Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company did
not pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2016: Nil).

Annual Report 2017

37 EER/ARER @)

(a) EERTETHAEZHE®)

(b)

(9]

(d)

i

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

BALELRBERFNTES - 8=
B+ AT\BREM -

BREEEREBUINTES A%
—tF+—A=THEER -

BRLTBECABIHRTES - &
—B— - A= HARER -

FTEREAERZERENTES 5=
ERNFAATZAREXN -

BABLIRERBYES BT RF
hA+TZBREX -

BREEBEIIFNTESE AT
FNAT-BRER -

EERAKEF
BE-F—tFt-A=T—AILFE -
4 3 5 2 R S B TR )

—=
—=

—NEF R -

BEEARILERERN
BHE_ZT—+F+-A=+—HILFE
184 2 =B B UE sk S I E 4R LR R
M ZZT—RF  &]&) -

MEHESHRBEAFE=FEHZ

RE

BE-T—tFT=A=T—BILES -
AR AL E RS R ENE=S
SHRE(ZE—E ) -
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PR HRRMTE

37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(e)

()

(9)

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there is no loans, quasi-
loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of the directors, or
controlled body corporates and connected entities of such directors
(2016: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 29 and Note 47, no other transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company’s subsidiary was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the years or
at any time during the years.

No director received any housing allowance; emolument from
the Group as an inducement to join or leave the Group or
compensation for loss of office; emoluments paid or receivable
in respect of director’'s other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the company or its subsidiary
undertaking during the years ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

37 EER/ARER @)

(e)

(f)

(9)

263

b

BRALES ZESZAEEBR
ZEESCHEERAZREAZ
EX - RERREMXSZ 2ER

BHE_T—t+tH&+-_A=1+—HILtFE "
BEARNEFTRZEGEABE RZE
BES HEBRAREAZER  EEX
REMXSLH(ZF—/RF : )

EERXS  REIEHNHZE
Kk

BRFEE20 R M EEAT PR BB B 5 - AR
BHEREE B I AARMB AR AT
SNFRARFESEELEERAEN
BTN LS ERER LR S FERET
PNAFEZ EARS - RHERAK ©

BHE_T—tH&+-_A=1+—HItFE "
BEEECWEIEAEERE - REAE
2 & PAYE S AN A SBEF AR SR B 2 3]
BB E S E B E IR AR A E
BARER 2 MR C AU ERE
(ZF—RF |-
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BT EHRRME

38 FINANCE COST, NET

38 BAFSR AR

2017 PAONES)
—E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFTT
Interest expense: FERX
— Bank borrowings —RITEE (54,405) (36,088)
— Other borrowings —HitntEE (1,639) (1,655)
— Convertible bonds (Note 30) — A RRE S (M FE30) (43,893) (46,632)
— Others —HAth (4,428) (375)
Fair value loss on early redemption REEE A MRESF A TE
of convertible bonds E518 (2,702) =
Fair value loss on issuance of convertible bonds (T A[#AR(ES 2 AL EERE - (22,297)
(107,067) (107,047)
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets W BERBEZERN LSRR - 9,674
_financecost | o FBEA N0 06) | B7373)
Finance income g 1PN 21,105 47,375
Finance cost, net B IS A8 (85,962) (49,998)
Finance costs of the loans used to finance the 020 business exhibition RERFO20MERES LERIAR 2B

centre development projects have been capitalised in properties under
development and investment properties up to the completion of
construction, at a capitalisation rate of 6.48% for the year ended 31
December 2016. The construction has been completed during the year

ended 31 December 2016.
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PR HRRMTE

39 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

265

39 FiEHiRx

2017
—g—tF

2016
—TE—RF
RMB’000
AREFTT

RMB’000
ARBT R

Current income tax expense EHMEHRY
— Hong Kong profits tax (Note a) —&BBFEH (MisEa) - =
— The PRC Corporate income tax — R EIRPAEN
("CIT") (Note b) (TEZEFERL) (HisEDb) 65,335 57,316
— The PRC land appreciation tax — R T IR (E R
("LAT") (Note o) (M3 ER 1) (FizEc) 17,046 36,187
— The PRC Withholding tax (Note d) — R EIR PSR (it eEd) 22,800 =
Deferred income tax (credit)/expense EEFER(ER) Bx
— The PRC Corporate income tax (Note 31) — B2 (FEE31) (11,002) (677)
— The PRC Withholding tax (Note e) — R EITER PTE R (P aTe) 4,579 =
98,758 92,826

(@  No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as there is no assessable profit (a)
arising in Hong Kong for the year (2016: Nil).

(b)  The PRC corporate income tax represents taxation charged on assessable (b)
profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the cities in the PRC
in which the Group operates.

The tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC is 25%, except for
certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC that were approved as High and
New Technology Enterprise, and accordingly, they were subject to a reduced
preferential CIT rate of 15% for a 3-year period according to the applicable
CIT Law, and would successively expire by 2020.

(c)  The PRC Land Appreciation Tax is levied at progressive rates ranging from (o)
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales
of properties less deductible expenditures including land use right and all
property development expenditures.

(d)  According to applicable tax regulations prevailing in the PRC, dividends (d)
distributed by a company established in the PRC to a foreign investor with
respect to profits derived after 1 January 2008 are generally subject to a
10% withholding tax.

(e)  As at 31 December 2017, the Group recognised the relevant deferred tax (e)
liabilities of RMB4,579,000 (31 December 2016: Nil) on dividend declared
by a PRC subsidiary but not yet paid.

MR FEAILE|NEBELRRTGN - BIR
REBMERIELBRE(ZF—RF : §) -

B {28 P S B I A G R R AR SR [ B 2
WA & R T ERT 5 R 3h B R TOE A B A 2
IR

TEZMEARZEMHER25%  HEELE
ERBHMBMEE s AEEETHEMNBAR
ARRIN - RBERAETOS - BN =FHER
15% 2 RIRBELEMEHBEGNHE - I
R =B TFRIRRER °

HR B S (E R T+ s E SR (B S E
R EReELIERERAENEERRA
AR Z AR B 32 2T F30% £ 60% 2 i
R -

RIEFBERTEAZHBR - RREKILZ
RAAEFIBREERNR TN F—F—
BZERBEFTELRS - SABM10%
ZIEIRFASH

RZZ—+FE+-_A=+—8  A&EEH
BB A R A RIE M AR EE 2 BRERERIE
BEABARE4S,579,000(=F—"F+=A
=+t—H8:&)-
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SHIFRERMITE

39 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 39 FR8FiB (e
The tax on the Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations B G RS FE SRR B A A 2 B TE B
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation FRAREERARMEER 2B XA EMSER
rate of the home country of the Group companies as follows: HEERENAT :

2017 2016
—E—tf

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Profit before income tax R PRAST5 AiL g A 416,068 393,502
Tax calculated at 25% (2016: 25%) R25% M E5TH 2 Hi1A
(ZZE—7F : 25%) 104,017 98,376

Effect of different taxation rates in other cities/  E i A TRETI=R

under preferential tax treatment BREEEME 2 ZE (33,966) (31,575)
Income not taxable BERBUA (33,433) (24,501)
PRC land appreciation tax deductible for Bt B E S REL HIRA

PRC corporate income tax proposes PR+ I (E R (4,262) (9,047)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes TRz &R 26,556 23,386
Withholding tax for dividend paid EAIAR S 2 TR HL 22,800 -
PRC corporate income tax R ETER 81,712 56,639
PRC land appreciation tax R £t BR(E AR 17,046 36,187
Income tax expense FriSfifsz 98,758 92,826
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PR HRRMTE

40 EARNINGS PER SHARE 40 BREF

2017 2016
—®—tf& T AF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 2N BIHERS 154 A JE(L A 267,777 181,784
2017 2016
—E2—tHF T—F
No. of shares No. of shares
RGEE Bt B
(‘000) ("000)
(F8&) (FA&)
Weighted average number of shares in issue BBITIRGD 2 M98 1,010,215 965,982
Incremental shares from assumed exercise of RERATE B R LB RE M
share options granted b1 ) 36,083 15,728
Diluted weighted average number of shares BSEAD 2 INiETF 1,046,298 981,710
Basic earnings per share (in RMB) FRERAF(ARE) 0.2651 0.1882
Diluted earnings per share (in RMB) FEERT(ARE) 0.2559 0.1852
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable FIREAR B FIRA N TIHEB AL 55 T A E
to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary AB B{TE@BAT IS &EE (B EARAT
shares in issue during the year excluding ordinary shares purchased by e 2 2@mA%) (MiaE23) -

the company (Note 23).
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BT EHRRME

40 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 40 BRER @)

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The company has two categories
of dilutive potential ordinary shares: convertible debt and share options.
The convertible debt is assumed to have been converted into ordinary
shares, and the net profit is adjusted to eliminate the interest expense
less the tax effect. For the share options, the number of shares that
would have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options
less the number of shares that could have been issued at fair value
(determined as the average market price per share for the year) for the
same total proceeds is the number of shares issued for no consideration.
Since diluted earnings per share is increased when taking into account
the adjustment on conversion of the convertible debt, the convertible
debt is anti-dilutive and is ignored in the calculation of diluted earnings
per share.

41 DIVIDENDS

Interim dividend paid of HK$0.02

BT HR 2 &R%0.02/8 T

RS 2 N IR BB A A B A A T
B AR A B S S BR B S m T
H o ARAEMBEEEEE R - TaRE
ERERAE - JRBRERRRCBERSER
B - i A A5 B 5 BE LA EH A 2R S 0 BR
S8 - BB T - RRBRIEETEE
FEE BT 2 RN 8 B IR IR R SR AR
RNFEGRFESREN 2 FHTEEE) A T
BTz OB R ASHEERTZRHE
B - ARETARRL BRI ER SR INEK
HEaN  wraREsAREEYE A
ERETESRESRT -

41 BRE

2017 2016
—Z=—+tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT

(2016: Nil) per share (Note a) (ZZT—<F : &) (Mizka) 17,953 -

No proposed final dividend
(2016: final dividend of HK$0.05
per share (Note b)) (Mf7Eb))

MEEERPRE(ZZ—RF
FREAR% B &R%0.0578 7T

- 43,385

17,953 43,385

Notes:

(@  An interim dividend of HK$0.02 per share (2016 Nil) was declared paid on
18 September 2017.

(b)  No final dividend of financial year ended 31 December 2017 was declared
(2016: final dividend of HK$0.05 per share, amounting to RMB43,385,000
was paid on 30 June 2017.)
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PR HRRMTE

42 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 42 REXBELEZRE

() RFEABRRELEEBELEZR
EFEYR

(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash
generated from operating activities

2017 2016
—EB—tF —ERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBTT
Profit before income tax R PRAS T Al A 416,068 393,502
Adjustments for: AR
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BER&EZ
equipment (Note 9) #rE& (FiI=E9) 30,424 27,646
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 10) R R (FEE10) 63,811 50,194
Provision for impairment of trade receivables FEURBR R 2 B
(Note 11) (PEE11) 13,459 878
Reversal of provision of impairment of FEE R ER R
loans receivable (13,406) =
Amortisation of land use rights {5 R A 4,737 1,147
Amortisation of investment properties AR 18,258 3,043
Impairment loss of investment in associate REE A RIEE 2 REEE - 8,374
Gains on disposal of an associate & — B A Az iz (5,000) -
Government grants income IEGSEETILON (38,349) (1,642)
Share based compensation — value of AR S+ 2 fifE — e B
employee services (Note 36) 7% B B (Pf5E36) 33,815 29,566
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BEKREZ
equipment (Note b) Wz (i EDb) (108) (426)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEEEHEE
financial assets 2 Wias (34,217) (148,488)
Dividend income & 2 A (6,010) (1,037)
Finance income RS (21,105) (47,375)
Finance expense WX 104,365 75,076
Share of loss/(profit) from investments DMEIREREARZ
accounted for using equity method wEEE, Caf) 2,631 (14,131)
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value BAFESFABRZ
through profit or loss CREEQATEEE 6,913 8,397
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial liabilities at BAYEFAEZZ
fair value through profit or loss TRIBEATE
(Was),/EiB (18,472) 4,700
Fair value gain on step acquisition HIERNIESIERS
N EE (117,963) =
Fair value loss on early redemption of IRATE R AR ES 2
convertible bonds NEEEE 2,702 =
Fair value loss on issuance of convertible bonds ~ Z#1TA] # (&5 2 A F(EE1E - 22,297
Operating profit before working EEESFHA
capital changes Fedepinkl 442,553 411,721
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BT EHRRME

42 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 42 REEXEBEEZRES @

(a) FRBIAIENEREEEBELECH

(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash

HC International, Inc.

generated from operating activities (Continued)

TEEYHER®)

2017 2016
—EB—+F —T—RF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT

Operating profit before working EIEESBEA]

capital changes FE bl 442,553 411,721
Changes in working capital: EEESHE)
Changes of properties under development BRERAYERSELE

and completed properties held of sales BT Y58 253,867 352,855
Changes in trade receivables JEURBR X B (147,037) (44,073)
Changes in deposits, prepayments and & ENRER

other receivables HAb EGRIE# &) (42,469) 56,251
Changes in finance lease receivables FEN R &M EFIEE F) 196,740 (259,481)
Changes in loan and interest receivables B R B (69,870) -
Changes in inventories FEEE (139,320) (517)
Changes in deferred expenses RIEF T 2 E) 32,016 23,965
Changes in trade payables FETBR R E) 9,737 4,237
Changes in accrued expenses FERT B A R H At FE A

and other payables KB E) (32,428) (26,027)
Changes in deferred government grants IR B Bh & & 36,526 2,750
Changes in deferred revenue EIEW A E) (85,384) (28,181)
Changes in receipt in advance TRl IR (289,959) (648,281)
Changes in other tax payable b A TH A (20,601) (22,730)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operations ransereEE L /(Fr)

ZIH& 5 144,371 (177,511)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR HRRMTE

42 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 42

(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment
In the consolidated cash flow statements, proceeds from disposal
of property, plant and equipment comprise:

271

REEREF 2RE @

(b) HEMX BMERRBZAEX
15
EaHBReRERA  HEWE  BER
REZ PSRRI -

2017 2016
—B—+tF —E—RF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Net book amount: BREDFE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 9) M BB Kk (o) 817 980
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BEK
plant and equipment (Note 35) S 2 W (P4EE35) 108 426
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEK
plant and equipment S22 NS 5RIA 925 1,406

(c) Net debt reconciliation
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movement in
net debt for each of the year presented.

() EHFEHE
REHF 2 B R R AR
B HH -

2017 2016

—E—+tfF —E—REF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREETTT

Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEED 401,918 963,523
Liquid investment (i) mENRE() 169,921 172,686
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE (1,497,130) (883,482)
Convertible bonds — liabilities portions MR ES —aEHs (41,387) (654,743)
Current portion of finance lease obligations MEREABZ RIS - (158)
Net debts BT (966,678) (402,174)
Cash and liquid investments Re RmEEE 571,839 1,136,209
Gross debt at fixed interest rate REENEFE 2B (1,201,141) (1,288,007)
Gross debt at floating interest rate REBN R E 2 B (337,376) (250,376)
Net debts BT (966,678) (402,174)

(i) Liquid investment comprise current investments that are traded in an
active market, being the Group’s financial assets held at fair value
through profit or loss, excluding contingent shares in relation to

acquisition of Orange Triangle Inc.

() FEBREBENERTSEEZREHE
& IAEERERATESABRZ
©RLE ET 15 BUEOrange Triangle
Inc. Z SARRAD ©

EREMEMRAT 201753



272

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT EHRRME

42 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (Continued) 42 RBEEBELEZRE W
(c) Net debt reconciliation (Continued) (c) BEEFELHERE

Cash and
cash
equivalents

AeRES
&N
RMB'000
ARBTR

Convertible
bonds -
liabilities
portions
TRRES
-8EHS
RMB'000
ARBTT

Bank and
other
borrowing
BITR
HitifE &
RMB'000
ARBTT

Finance
lease
obligations
MERE
=L
RMB'000
ARBT T

Liquid

Investment Total

RMB'000

AR¥T T

S
RMB'000
ARBTR

Net debt as at RZE—~F+=A=+—H
31 December 2016 ZEBEE 963,523 172,686 (883,482)  (654,743) (158)  (402,174)
Net cash flows FRENE (550,095) 7344 (187,790) 620,716 158 (109,667)
Exchange adjustment B AR (11,510) (5,271) - 39,235 = 22,454
Step-acquisition of a subsidiary ~ HFEER Y- E AR - - (368,890) - - (368,890)
Other non-cash movements HihIEH S EE) = (4,838) (56,968) (46,595) - (108,401)
Net debt as at W=Z—+F+=A=1—H
31 December 2017 ZEREE 401,918 169,921  (1,497,130) (41,387) - (966,678)
43 COMMITMENTS 43 EiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EXREIE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but not RAFEREFNENAEEZEARY
yet incurred is as follows: U

Property, plant and equipment

ERN Ve -

2017
—E—+tF

2016
—E—RF
RMB’000
ARETFT

RMB’000
ARBT R

1,900

HC International, Inc.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR HRRMTE

43 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 43 W)
(b) Financial commitments (b) BAFEAEIE
Financial commitments at the end of the year are analysed as RAFERZ A EEESFTAT :
follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Injection of investment in available-for-sale RAEHESMEETE
financial assets 33,000 42,000
() Commitments under operating leases (c) REHNRE
(i) As alessee (i) ERFEEA
At 31 December 2017, the Group had future aggregate RZEBE—+F+_-_A=+—H" ' K
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating EBSEF Y B B HIA B
leases in respect of buildings which expire as follows: MO BEEMN 2 EREREERE

mr

2017 2016
—EB—+F —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AEBTT

Within one year —FR 27,952 24,720
In the second to fifth year inclusive ZERF(RREEEMT) 177,358 145,193
Over the fifth year AFUE - 138

205,310 170,051
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BT EHRRME

43 COMMITMENTS (continued)

43

(c) Commitments under operating leases (Continued)
(ii) As a lessor
At 31 December 2017, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of buildings which expire as follows:

A m)

() RERWEB@E
(i) HEBHHEA
R=ZF—t&F+=-A=+-B %
EERIET 2 EE BT AR
R0 B R 2 R E KA RE

I
2017 2016
ZE—tF —TREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
Within one year —&FR 3,904 5,780
In the second to fifth year inclusive —EhFE(PIEEEME) 15,877 19,918
Over the fifth year RENRE 42,194 33,431
61,975 59,129

44 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

44 SAREE

As at 31 December 2017, there were no material contingent liabilities to

the Group (2016: Nil).

45 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

45

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of the
Group's property units and provided guarantees to secure obligations of
such purchasers for repayments. Such guarantees terminate upon the
earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate ownership certificate which will
generally be available within an average period of two to three years
upon the completion of guarantee registration; or (ii) the satisfaction of

mortgaged loan by the purchasers of properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage
payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay the
outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued interest and
penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks and the Group
is entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the related
properties. The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of grant
of the mortgages. As at 31 December 2017, the amount of outstanding
guarantees for mortgages were approximately RMB287,763,000 (2016:

RMB357,430,000).

The directors consider that the likelihood of default in payments by
purchasers is minimal and therefore the financial guarantees measured

at fair value is immaterial.
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PR HRRMTE

46 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 46 AARIMBEMRRIRRFHEEE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company AN B B AR R TR
As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2017 2016

—g—tF  —FAF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMTE  ARETR

ASSETS BE

Non-current assets ERBEE

Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZIEE 1,555,244 1,367,882
1,555,244 1,367,882

Current assets REEE

Loan to a subsidiary BERT—EHBAF 1,010,316 1,052,450

Total assets MmEE 2,565,560 2,420,332

EQUITY En

Capital and reserves EXRNf#E

Share capital k&N 100,740 93,885

Note (a)
Other reserves Hib A (H15t(3)) 2,462,198 1,950,238
Note (a)

Accumulated losses ZEEE (Hiat(@a) (39.462) (279,504)

Total equity HRES 2,523,476 1,764,619

LIABILITIES =L

Non-current liabilities kRBEE

Convertible bond - liabilities component AHBRES - BB D 41,387 654,744

41,387 654,744

Current liabilities RBAG

Accrued expenses and other payables FEETE A K H A RN R 697 969

Total liabilities FER=R 42,084 655,713

Total equity and liabilities HERRAE 2,565,560 2,420,332
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BT EHRRME

46 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 46 AR BB BERRREBEEH

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (&)
(Continued)
(a) Reserve movement of the Company () XATIZREEEE

Accumulated Other
losses reserves

RitER Hitf# &

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT

At 1 January 2016 R=-ZB—XRE—H—H (179,610) 1,688,035
Comprehensive loss 2HEE
Loss for the year REEEE (99,894) =
Other comprehensive loss Hith2HEEE
Currency translation differences EHTE N =58 - (37,501)
Transactions with owners HEFAETZIRS
Issuance of shares upon conversion of FARA AR E SR

convertible bonds BITIRG = 326,506
Buy-back shares E=AEIlid0) = (60,410)
Share based compensation — value of AR 5 2 f(E

employee services —(EERRIBEE = 29,566
Share purchase under Share Award Scheme 1R ERD EZEIEHEIE AR HD - (6,387)
Exercise of share options TR B MR = 10,429
At 31 December 2016 and R-E—RFE+=-A=+—H

1 January 2017 E—_ZFE—+HE—H—A (279,504) 1,950,238
Comprehensive loss 2HER
Loss for the year REEZEE (81,440) =
Other comprehensive income Hib2mEKA
Currency translation differences EHE N R = 11,901
Transactions with owners HEFANETZRS
Issuance of shares upon conversion of AR E AR

convertible bonds BT = 24,352
Issuance of shares in related to business MEBE HFETRD

combination - 513,227
Buy-back shares B [ AR 7 (982) (24,317)
Share based compensation — value of LA S5 2 f (B

employee services —(EERRIBEE - 33,815
Redemption of convertible bond & AR ES = (47,494)
Exercise of share options 1TIE BN - 476
Dividend income from subsidiaries REMBRRZREMA 383,802 -
Dividend paid BAIARE (61,338) =
At 31 December 2017 R=B—+tF+=H=+—H (39,462) 2,462,198
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PR HRRMTE

47 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47 BABALRE
(a) Key management compensation (a) FTEEEAEHM
The remuneration of directors and other members of key FRNEERTEETEEEMKS 2 FHM0
management during the year were as follows: g

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits %% & H #0458 HifE 2127 4,944 6,075
Share-based payments IV =P =S A N E = 19,863 8,130
24,807 14,205
(b) Related party transaction (b) BBALRS
Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BRE I RRE M D FTETREIN - A
statements, transactions were carried out with related parties in SEHERBEATHETIRINBEESEB
normal course of Group's business. R -
2017 2016
—E—tfF —E—RF
Nature of transactions RMB’000 RMB’000
REME AR¥T T ARETT
Associates  Note (i) Interest income 4,014 3,030
RN E () AEWA
Joint venture  Note (i) Interest income - 12,593
& AF KEEG) FEWA
Key management personnel Note (i) Interest income 1,596 1,415
BAREEAE  MIEE() FEWA
Note (i): The Group has granted loan receivables to certain associates, a fEEG) - AEBERETHEQR - —HEE
joint venture and certain key management personnel of the Group NEIARARERMB AR ZETE
and subsidiaries. The loans are charged at terms mutually agreed REBASRHERER - ZZEXK
by the parties concerned or in accordance with the terms of the REEE T ERBE  GRIRIESF
underlying agreements, where appropriate. B taR 2 6k (LA ) IR E A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT EHRRME

47 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Related party balance
Saved as disclosed in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has following balances with related parties as
at 31 December 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Loan and interest receivable from:

Associates (Note i) kNS QU =)
Key management personnel (Note ii) RASEEIE A B (Mg
Deposit received from: EWLA & SRS ¢

Associates (Note iii)
Key management personnel (Note iii)

Bt =) (B i)
B E IR A B (MEi)

47 BEBALRE »)

(c) BEEALTHESR
BAHTBRERMF29MHBEEIN - B
2 tEFRE—R"F+_A=F—
B AEBEEBEALTEBZESHRD
IR e

2016
ZT—RF

RMB'000
AEBTTT

FEWIAT BT EFRRANE -

83,441 53,312
86,496 28,824
3,992 =
2,440 —

Note (i): The Group granted loans amounting to RMB20,800,000,
RMB20,800,000 and RMB5,940,000 to ZEZAEER A A
("Hui De") during the years ended 31 December 2014, 2015 and
2016 respectively. The loans will mature during the years ending
31 December 2020, 2018 and 2019 respectively, and are interest
bearing at a rate of 7%, 7% and 6% per annum.

The balance includes loan receivable from b5 g @B EHE A
PR A 7] (“Rongshangtonglian”), amounting to RMB18,000,000,
granted during the year ended 31 December 2017. The loan will
mature during the year ending 31 December 2018 and is interest
bearing at 8% per annum.

The remaining balance also includes loans granted to certain
associates amounting RMB8,310,000 through financing services
company of the Group. The loans will mature during the year
ending 31 December 2018 and is interest bearing at 15% per
annum. These loans are granted under ordinary course of business
with terms and conditions mutually agreed by parties concerned on
an arm'’s length basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR HRRMTE

47 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Related party balance (Continued)

Note (ii):

Note (jii):

The Group granted loans amounting to RMB7,770,000 (2016:
RMB25,907,000) to several management personnel of Beijing
Panpass Information Technology Co., Ltd (“Panpass”), a subsidiary
acquired by the Group on 8 October 2014, for their sole purpose
of purchase of shares of Panpass at market price and the shares
purchased are pledged to secure the loans. The loans will mature
on 28 September 2021, and is interest bearing at a rate of 5% per
annum. These management members hold 6% (2016: 20%) issued
share capital of Panpass after the acquisition of Panpass by the
Group on 8 October 2014.

The Group granted loans amounting to RMB2,400,000 (2016:
RMB2,400,000) in connection with the Employee Share Scheme.
On 21 December 2012, the Group granted loans to several
employees of the Group for the sole purpose of purchase of shares
of the Group at market price. Maturity date of the loans have
been extended from 21 December 2017 to 21 December 2018,
and is interest bearing at a rate of 5% per annum. The loans are
denominated in HK dollars.

The balance also includes loans granted to certain key management
personnel through a financing services company of the Group.
Loans amounting to RMB74,050,000 will mature during the
year ending 31 December 2018, and the remaining balance of
RMB2,000,000 will mature during the year ending 31 December
2019. The loans are interest bearing at rate ranging from 8% to
12%. These loans are granted under ordinary course of business
with terms and conditions mutually agreed by parties concerned on
an arm's length basis.

The balance includes deposits received by a financing services
company of the Group from certain associates and a key
management personnel of the Company as guarantee for the
loan granted to their customers and himself. The deposit would
be refunded upon the repayment of the loans which will mature
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

279

47 BABALRE »)

(c)

RSN T8 ()

BrFRE(G) -

B i) =

REBEEERARKE7,770,000 7T

—ZT—XF : AR¥25907,000
7)) EERTASER =T —NE+A
N\BUEE 2 KB AR Tk fEE e
MR BRAR(KED ETERE
REZEXR  BREUTSEREE
KiE2 &t - WK IERER
W - ZEEFER-_E=—FNA
Z+N\BEIE - WIRFFE5%:TE °
ZEEEEREEASER -
F+ANBKEKER - HEKE6%
(ZZT—7R"F : 20%)BBITRA »

AEEGREERDAERLEERAR
#2,400,0007T (ZF —/N4F : AR
2,400,0007T) e R=T—=—F+=A8
—+—H AfEREETEERE
EX - EREUATEBEASEER
B ZEERZFHPABE-T—CF
—t-BERE-E-N\%F
—+—8  YERFFNE%t
o REEFUABITTAHE ©

ZEBTEEAEEFRET /AR
BARALE THREEABRHZE
o BRARKET4,050,0007T #5 A&
E_E-N\EFE+-A=+—RHIFE
ZIH - ek T 458 AREE2,000,0007T
HRBE-T—NWF+=-_A=+—H
IEEFERIH - BRAEFKIEFENT8%
EN2%E c ZEERARBEEE
BIZPIRERE A ERBE 2 KR
R -

ZERDEAEBETSRRBE QAR
FEUCE FEE AR RAA R —& A
BBABZES  IMEABRERFR
HESMBREERZER - @RS
BREBEERERE - A BERE
REBE=_T—-/\F+=-A=+—H1t
FEHER o
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SR RN

48 EVENT AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF 48 Bf#ifnik B EIEEH

FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group has completed the acquisition of Zhongfu Holdings Limited
and Huijia Yuantian Limited on 5 January 2016 and 3 February
2017, respectively. Pursuant to the corresponding sales and purchase
agreement, part of the consideration would be settled by issuance
and allotment of convertible bonds which are subject to downward
adjustments.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
has entered into subscription agreements (“Exchange Subscription
Agreement”) with the Zhongfu Sellers and Huijia Sellers (collectively,
the “Bondholders”), pursuant to which the Company agreed to allot
36,028,500 new shares (“Exchange Shares”) in aggregate to each of
the Bondholders in exchange for the surrender of the convertible bonds
of the Company (“Convertible Bonds”) issued to the Zhongfu Sellers
and Huijia Sellers respectively. Pursuant to the Exchange Subscription
Agreement, the Exchange Shares allotted to the Bondholders will be put
into custodian accounts and would be released to the Bondholders or
repurchased by the Company subjected to the performance as set out in
the Exchange Subscription Agreement.

The total number of Exchange Shares under the subscription
("Subscriptions”), being 36,028,500 Shares, represent approximately
3.32% of the existing issued share capital of the Company of
1,085,323,710 Shares and approximately 3.21% of the then issued
share capital of 1,121,352,210 Shares as enlarged by the Subscriptions.
The aggregate nominal value of the Exchange Shares under the
Subscriptions will be HK$3,602,850. The Exchange Shares will be
allotted and issued pursuant to the General Mandate. The Subscription
has been completed on 16 January 2018.
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REEE((RBEE]) THARMDES (A
36,028,500 A% & 10 ) i E R AR R 2 IRBE B &
7787 (1,085,323, 7100 /% 15 ) 493.32% M 48 3R
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